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n Subsidiary company details

Please enter the registered name and number of the company delivering
this statement

Company number l'[_)—l_at—j1_|2_]_6— F|9—l?—

Company name in full IFREMANTLE GROUP PENSION TRUSTEE LIMITED

I

+ Filling in this form
Please complete In typesenipt or n
bold black capitals

Al fields are mandatory unless
specified or indicated by *

u Relevant financial year

l Please show the financial year end date to which the guarantee relates
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ending

E Guarantee ©

[ Please show details of the guarantee

GUARANTEE GIVEN UNDER SECTION 479C OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2006

RTL Group S A a company regulaled under the laws of the Grand Duchy of
Luxembourg having its registered office at 45 boulevard Piarre Friedan, L-1543
Luxembourg, registered onthe R C § Trade and Company Register Luxembourg
under Ragsstration No B 10807

WHEREAS

« the financtat information of Fremantle Group Penston Trustee Limited, a imited
company, incorporated uader the laws of England & Wales, under Company No
4126998 having its registered office at 1 Stephen Street, London W1T 1AL, has been
consolidated by the undersigned in its consolidated annual accounts to which
pursuant to appllcable law, the Seventh Directive on Company Law of the Council of
the Europaan Communillas applies

* The audif examption under sections 479A to 479C of the Companies Act 2006 Is
disclosed in its notes to the consolidated annual accounts to 31 December 2012

« the sole shareholder of Fremanile Group Pension Trustee Limuted has declared in
writing on 19 March 2013, its consent to the audit examption under sections 479A to
479C of the Companies Act 2006 with respect to the annual accounts of the Company
for the financial year ending 31 December 2012

DECLARES

To guarantee all puistanding debts and habililies 1o which the sybsidiary 18 subject at
the end of the financial year 31 Dacember 2012

0 You must include

Details of the secuion of the

Comganies Act 2006 under which

the guarantee I1s being given

a Saction 394C—exemption
from preparing accounts for a
dormant subsidiary

b Section 448C—exemption from
filing accounts for a dormant
subsidiary

¢ Section 479C—audit exemption
for a subsidiary company

The name of the parent undertaking

and

a i the parent was incorporated
tn the UK its registered number
iif any), or

b f the parent was incorporated
and registered {in the same
country) elsewhere in the EEA,
its registration number and the
identity of the register where nt
15 registered

Schedule
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schedule to this form
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I Please insert the date the statement was made

Date [ B Rhi[s
H Signature on behalf of the parent undertaking®
l t am signing this form on’behalf of the parent undertaking
Signature Signature
X

O This section must be signed on
behalf of the parent undertaking

Signature of subsidiary ©

l | am signing this form on behalf of the subsidiary company
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B Presenter information

n Important information

You do not have to give any contact information, but if
you do 1t will help Companies House if there Is a query
on the form The cantact information you gwe wilt be
visible to searchers of the public record

Conact ame H L Farnaby

Company hame

FremantileMedia Group Ltd

Address

1 Stephen Street

|
|

Post town

London
CountyiRegien

i AN

| Cauntry

Inx

Ikkwm

02076916692

W4 checkist

We may return forms completed incorrectly or
with information missing

Please make sure you have remembered the

following*

O The company name and number match the

information held on the public Register

You have entered the date of the financial year

In Section 2

You have completed Section 3

You have entered the date of the statement

in Section 4

A representative of the parent has signed their

name n Section 5

A director of the subsidiary has signed the form

To beneht from one of these exemptions, the

subsidiary must also subait the following

documents to the registrar of companies on or

before the date on which its accounts are due

- awiiten notice that all members of the
subsidiary agree to the exemption in respect of
the relevant financial year, and

- a copy of the parent undertaking's consohdated
accounts, including a copy of the auditor's
report and the annual report on those accounts

o0 O oo O

Please note that all information on this form will
appear on the public record

@ Where to send

You may return this form to any Companies House
address, however for expediency we advise you
to return it to the appropriate address below

For companies registered in England and Wales'
The Registrar of Companies, Companies House,
Crown Way, Cardiff, Wales, CF14 3uZ

DX 33050 Cardff

For companies registered in Scotland

The Registrar of Companies, Comparies House,
Fourth floor, Edinburgh Quay 2,

139 Fountambridge, Edinburgh, Scotland, EH3 9FF
DX ED235 Edinburgh 1

or LP - 4 Edinburgh 2 {Legal Post)

For compantes registered in Northern ireland
The Registrar of Companies, Companies House,
Second Fioor, The Linenhall, 32-38 Linenhall Street,
Belfast, Northern freland, BT2 8BG

DX 481 N R Belfast1

ﬂ Further information

For further information, please see the guidance notes
on the website at www companieshouse gov uk
or email enquiries@companteshouse gov uk

This form is available in an
alternative format. Please visit the
forms page on the website at
www.companieshouse.gov.uk

This ferm has been pravided free of charge by Companses House
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FRANCE’S FIRST
REALITY SHOW

heavily criticised,

but then copied — Lorc Story

@
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To mark its 25th anniversary, M6 became France's third
most popular channel How did it achieve this?

In the last five years the new DTT channels ganed 16 points
market share Our man competitor TF1 has lost eight ports,
while M6 remained stable and became the
third national channet in the process | belleve
M6 successfully countered fragmentation
hecause we constanily renvent ourselves
and stand out from the compstition For
instance, we launched very successful pro-
grammes, such as Scénes de Ménages and
Le 719h45 — our evening news show nobody
beleved in at first Today M6 symbolises
‘Feel Good TV, which 1s a type of TV that
conveys posiive values viewers feal comfort-
able with in this day and age that's what
they are looking for

“We gradually
reduced the gap

Some shows are the same age as the channel

What's their longevity secret?

We strongly betieve in the power of brands A channel or a TV
show 1s a brand you need to develop, nurture and position In
wviewers’ minds — while constantly adapting it
Caprtal, Turbo, £=MS6 and Zone interdite are
20 years old or over These are durable
brands based on stmple concepts They en-
oy a strong dentity and have the power to
evoke relevant emages In people’s minds In-
terestingly, most of them were created from
scratch by novices in the TV business Today
we continue to bank on new talent and it
pays off remarkably

Did you expect L'Amour est dans le pre,
Top Chef and Scenas de Menages to

be such hits? Were you surpnsed when

In March 2012, you said in the press that over the years’ not other shows flopped?

Coeros gy only by winning 50,8 T oo
The abiity to adapt to new consumption ‘audience faces’ to admit that we didn't expect L'Amour est
patterns s key in this industry So we're still but by winning dans e pré to become the channel’s maost-

bulding the M8 house We keep enriching
our programme gnd, creatng interactive
tools to develop viewer loyalty, and working
on gaining market share We invest in con-
tent and pay particular attenton to the
gualty of our programmes Today our
access prime time 1s doing very well, but we put in a huge
amount of effort Next, we’d ke to improve our lunchtime
and prime bme ratings

Do you think M6 can still increase its ratings in spite of the
ongomng fragmentation?

Despite growing competiron M6 confirmed s ranking as
France's third channel in 2012 It was also the only major chan-
nel i¢ post growth, and even achieved its best year since 2067
Two of the charnel’s prograrﬁmes entered the country’s top 10
most-watched programmes of 2012, when in 2011 we didn't
even make 1t into the top 100 Today in an audiowsual land-
scape of 25 free TV stations, our family of channels - M6, W9
and 6ter, which we launched in December 2012 —1s well-posi-
tiched to face fragmentation

M6 has come a long way What do you remember from all
these years?

Audacity and creatwmty Today we are still driven by these two
adjectives that fathfully describe M6 The positon we have
secured in the French audiovisual landscape 15 umgue Surveys
have shown that M6 18 one of the top four brands in France and
the number one entertainment brand We launched M& in 1987
In very difficult conditions The first month our total audence
share was 03 per cent, whie direct competitor TF1's was
42 per cent We gradually reduced the gap over the years, not
only by winning ‘audience races’ but by winning viewers’” hearts
What started as one channel 25 years ago s now one of
Europe's most diversified entertainment groups

Despite the difficulties, what motivated you to stay on
board? Is the motivation different today?

The channel's top pnorties continue to be surprise, INnovate
and satisfy viewers' expectations The only difference today s
the market we cperate in 1t changed, especially with the amval
of the internet What we did for one channel then, we now do
for 12, on linear but alse on non-knear TV

viewers’ hearts.”

THOMAS VALENTIN,
DEPUTY GEO OF GROUPE M6

watched show It 1s doing better season after
season, and the same goes for the other
flagship shows Why? Maybe becduse view-
ers need to know where they are at, strong
brands inspire trust Most of these shows are
created to be watched by the whole farmily,
making themn efficient crowd pullers

Is counterprogrammung still the mainstay of M6's ratings
success? Will you use it to become number two?

Bunng the first 15 to 20 years, countarprogramming indeed
played a major role We have since shifted towards creating a
unigue offer based on values that are different from those of the
other channels but on a par with what a co-leader would offer
This 1 why we also decided to broadcast major football compe-
ttions despite their poor return on Investment They are events
M6 can't afford to miss as they bring people together

KEY DATES -

* 1 March 1987 M6 15 launched

* 1992 It starts making a profit and becomes a “"Groupe”
the year after
* 1996 First online presence with M§ i
* 1999 M6 ranks second national channal with
viewers under 50
* 2000 MB Web 1s set up
> 2001 Broadcast of first ever reality senes in France
Loft Story — M6 1s heavily criticrsed, but then copled
» 2605 M6 enters the mobile phone market with
M6 Mobile by Orange
* 2006 First season of L'Amour est dans le pre
{The Farmer Wants A Wife}
* 2008 Launch of catch-up TV service M6 Replay
and first broadcast of Un diner presque parfart
{Coma Dine With Mg}
» 2009 Le 19R45 and Scenes de Menages hit the screens
* 2010 |-Phone and |-Pad applications avalable
» 2012 M6 becomes third channel with viewers

aged 4 and above, and the first French channe!
to release a second screen app
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THE YEAR IN REVIEW

GROUPE M6

On 1 March 2012, M6 celebrated its 25th anniversary Once labelled “the one channel
too many” or “the hittle channel”, it has proved wrong everybody who predicted 1t wouldn't
last. It has grown to become France’s third most watched TV channel and the only
one to increase its total audience share in 2012 Despite this, resting on its laurels 1s not on
the agenda, as Thomas Valentin, Deputy CEO of Groupe M6, explains

26 RTL GROUP ANNUAL REPORT 2012




On 1 Apnl 2012, RTL Nitro launched
in Germany It's a broad, pure
entertainment channel, but skewed
more towards the interests

of a male audience than either

RTL Telewvision or Vox

“Our USP 15 to offer the widest vanety
of entertainment for men — cnme, action,
comedy, drama, documentanes and
magazines,” says head of channsl, Oliver

Schablitzika, “As the market fragments
still further, we know we have to fragment
oursalves, and we've buillt an offerng that
complements the other Medengruppe
RTL Deutschland channels, as well as
the market "

RTL Nitro broadcasts free, in a market
nhzbited by 80 other free channels, so
witial expectations weren't too high, but
it has started very well “From day one
ratings wera gooed and after five weeks

RTL Mitro airs
the whole series
of Brealng Bad

we had our first day with a 1 0 per cent
share of the relevant target group,” says
Oliver Schablitzki After eight months, by
Novermber 2012, the monthly share had
aready reached Q7 per cent of the 14
to 49 age group, and 08 per cent of
20 to 59-year-old men This 1s much bet-
ter and faster than competitor channel
launches of the past ten years — even suc-
cessful channels have taken two years to
reach that “There was a potential boost
with andlogue switch off at the end of
Apnl, as people bought digrtal and found
new channels,” he says, “and of course
wa've had tremendous cross-promotion-
al support from the other channgls of
Mediengruppe RTL Deutschland ”

The channel boasts almost fully independ-
ent programming, with TV premieres of
shows not ared on bigger channels
“There's a dedicated night for comedy
and sitcom,” says Olver Schablitzki, “and
our big tut 1s Modern Famuly, which hadn’t
found 1ts way to the German market, so
we had the exclusive premiere ” There are
also ¢nme nights, where action seres
Chase 1s doing well, and shows from the
CSt franchise are popular The channet
has taken a different tack for daytime TV
too, showing classic senals such as
Krught Rider and Walker Texas Ranger -
this has also proved a hit with audiences

And there’s plenty of attractive program-
ming due for 2013 "We have the whole
senes of Breaking Bad,” says Olver
Schabiitzla, “which | hope will becorme our
signature senes Plus more sci-fi, comedy
in My Name Is Earl, and a senes of Derren
Brown specials " With excellent earty rat-
ings, good feedback from viewers, and
being marketed alongside the whole RTL
family, Clivar Schabltzki 1s optimistic that
2013 will be a good year for RTL Nitro's
advertising revenue, {00
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GRUPO ANTENA 3

ANTENA 3
AND LA SEXTA
MERGE

Spanish broadcasters Grupo
Antena 3 and La Sexta merged
an October 2012 to create

a family of eight channels.

The merger significantly enhances
Grupo Antena 3‘s already 1mpres-
sive portfolio, which includes a
strong presence 1n radio, cinema
and advertising. RTL Group owns
a 20.5 per cent stake in Grupo
Antena 3, whose new family of
channels — Antena 3, La Sexta,
Neox, HNova, Nitro, Xplora, La
Sexta 3 Todo Cine, with Gol TV on
a lease basis — provides a com-
prehensive and varied offer for

Spanish viewers and advertisers.

R’TL GROUP ANNUAL REPORT 2012

BIG RTL

Big RTL Thnll launched on 5 November 2012 n India,
signalling RTL Group's first steps into the Indian
broadcasting market. The ‘ulbmate action destination’
channel arrs currently in the Uttar Pradesh state,

as well as in Mumba: and Delh, featunng international
content dubbed i Hind

Andreas Rudas, Executive Vice President Regional Opera-
tons and Business Development CEE and Asia, sees the
move as exciting for RTL Group “The Asian market repre-
sents very promising growth opportunities for us We're
bnnging male viewers mainly aged 15 to 44 mgh-gualty con-
tent — and our partnersiup with Rellance Broadcast Network
will help ensure Big RTL Thnll becomes a strong new brand
for the Indian market We wanted a robust local partner, and
Reliance Broadcast Network 1s a big entertainment group
with an expenenced management team that can support our
expansion Into a whole new continent of possibiities and op-
portuniiies Incia has the largest young population in the
world — half of its 1 2 biion population s aged under 30 °
Big HIL Thnli provides edge-of-your-seat entertanment,
with content from around the world Reality shows, action
sangs, wrestling, extreme sports, game shows and movies —
exclusive to the channel and never seen before on Indan TV
Tarun Katal, CEQ of Reliance Broadcast Network, explains
how the new channel fills an Important gap in the market
“Big RTL Thrll comes as an answer to the Indian male's
quest for action entertainment The product 1s world class,
served in Hindi, and has been designed to fill a void in the
market With the launch of this channel, Reliance Broadcast
Network strengthens its pasition in the market, providing ad-
vertisers with an offering unmatched in the region We are
happy to have our partner, RTL Group, with us in this enter-
tainment revolution ”

Big RTL Thnil currently reaches approximately 25 million
households, complements the growth and success of Reb-
ance Broadcast Network's number one Indian radio network
- 927 Big FM - and takes the company’s total channel
count across India to seven




RTL RADIO (FRANCE)

RTL Matin
presenter,
Laurent Bazin,
n the studio

NEW PERSONALITIES,
IMPROVED FIGURES

In September 2012, RTL Radio in France changed the presenters of its three flagship
news shows simultaneously, for the first ime 1n its history When the audience figures for
September/October were released, the station had registered its best season debut

for ten years, with a cumulated audience of 6,462,000 listeners. By the tme December's
figures came out, they'd added 405,000 new listeners. Even for a leader, it seems,

it pays to keep things fresh

“It wasn't an easy decision to make, changing
the three main news shows,” adimits Chnstopher
Baldell, CEQ of RTL Group's French radio sta-
tons “Radio Isteners are creatures of habit — they
stick to ther favounte staton, so any changes
must be accepted But we felt a new dynamic
was required °

Vincent Parizot, the morning anchor for four sea-
sons moved to the lunchtme slot ATL Midh, while
fus place on ATL Matn was taken by Laurent
Bazn The evening show RTL Soir 1s now pre-
sented by Marg-Olivier Fogiet “The morning job 1s
very demanding and can be exhausting,” explans
Baidelll, “so for Vincent Parizot it's a nice change
of pace and he 1s working well with co-presenter
Ehsabeth Martichoux, with time to chat to the hs-
teners wha callin ™

The morning show 18 radio’s pnme time, and lis-
teners expect to start the day eniightened by the
news, analysis and insight alongside the occa-
sional recreational moment “Laurent Bazin has
brought the nght mm, and sets the nght tone,”
confimms Chnstopher Baidell, “whereas for the
evening show, Marc-Clivier Fogiel, prewiousty an
INterviewer with us, was hosting a show else-
where We decided it was Yrme he carne back,
he's a fierce competitor, negotating exclusive in-
terviews and scoops, the character we need at
that tme of day”

Many of the station's interiiniang shows have also
been refreshed in recent years, and each show
leads naturally into the next, creating a snowball ef-
fect i attracting listeners  Aside from the exceltent

figures, the station’s own research shows that
listenars wholeheartedly approve of the changes —
gven compettors have gone on record to note
the success

The ratings are good for the radio group’s other
statons, too RTL 2, the 'adult’ music station 15 the
anly one in its genre gaining audience numbers “It
has mantained a consistent format for rany years
in pop/rock, whereas competitors keep changing,”
notes Baldell, “and it follows a good strategy of
events such as concerts and roadshows around
the country, gong out to meet isteners ™

Fun Radio has also maintained its market share
by offerng a clear posticning, offenng young
aduits the best dance music “It’s the only station
focused totally on dance, which 1s growing into a
mainstream category,” says Chnstopher Baldell,
"It has a very popular and lively morning show, a
good event strategy including a big annual con-
cert In Bercy, and it also has a dynamic strategy
for matang the maost of social networks and app
downloads "

Hawing three successful stations clearly benefits
the radio group as a whole [n adverusing sales
“radio has performed bettar than other media,”
according to Baldslli, "and our sales housa has
done a good job of capitalising on the ratings ”
Other than back office synergies and an inherent
element of brand awareness, the stations don't
necessanly capitalse on each others’ success
“Each station has its own independent pro-
gramming and its own distinct identity,” explans
Chnstopher Baldell
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Elton, Roger Waters, Rod Stewart — they've become good
fnends, too

Are you stil just as excited?

Oh yes I'm passionate about # You couldn't do it for so
long without that | love the night show, being alone in the
studio, but knowng the listeners are there, and maybe
they're alone too, but I'm thesr refuge | know they're thers,
too, as with the internet, we now get lots of iImmediate feed-
back |read it all, though | don't mention people on ar

Do you get lots of mail as well?

Yes, | keep it all People who tell me they've been listening
snce the 70s They give detals, too, which confimms it 1s
true And even listeners in the US wa the internet, how about
that? But new, young hsteners as well — you don't need the
radio under the bedcovers now, they ksten to me on thar
phones They can listen to my old stuff and they'll hear the
fundamentals of music, and understand foday’s music even
better

So the music 1s bringing in young hsteners teo?

That's what 1t's ail about, the music | say on arr ‘Nocturmes
The music, you and me ' The mustc is the most intereshing
part of the show, not me! But | do Jke it when we get out
on the road and do specials New York and LA are fun, but |
ke gong to Lyon, Nancy, Clermont-Ferrand and meeting
the listeners

“Georges’ long-standing
success is based on
the wonderful relationship
he has with listeners.”

CHRISTOPHER BALDELLI,
CEQ OF RTL RADIO (FRANCE)

It's tme to let Georges go, but just tme for the CEQ of
RTL Group’s French radio stations, Chnstopher Baldell, to
add hes views “Georges i1s a very well-known music expert
This 1s good for RTL Radio But more important s that night-
time racio can be very emotive Maybe people are at home
alone, or dnving through the night Georges' long-standing
success Is based on the wanderful relationship ha has with
those listeners ®

PP

In Bavana, Antenne Bayern continues
to lead the field as Germany’s most :
popular commercial radio station — with

more than four milion listeners a day .
In July the station hecame the first single
radio station in Germany's history to pass
the 1 3 mulhion listeners per hour mark

- a remarkable achievement for what 1s
essentially a regional station

LY

Also i 2012, Antenne Bayerm's audience share
of listeners aged 10 or over was 27 7 per cent,
compared with 19 4 per cent n 2011

Much of this success (s attnbuted io some
re-structuring and fine-tuning With the clam
“Wir Yieben Bayern — Wir lieben die Hits”, the
staton's shows directly address the Bavanan
audience, and by doing so have attracted more
l|5té_ners For example, several "Wir lieben Bay-
ern’ songs were written especially, and offered to
listeners by the station, and created quite a buzz
Even Bavana's pnme minister Horst Seehofer —a
Facebook pioneer n German poliics - ex-
pressed his love for one of the versions and
added it to his playlist

Antenne Bayern also became the first station to
offer ‘real-time traffic measunng’ This immensely
popular feature gives listeners minute by minute
dnve-time updates on the traffic situation, and
detals of how long they can expect to sit in traffic
across the region dunng rush hour Through .
phene-ins they can identify and share infonmation .
about commuting problems as they happen .
Listeners stuck in a traffic jam can even ask
Antenne Bayern to send the ‘Stauschrauber’ traf-
fic helicopter to get them out of the traffic chaos

As well as top performer Antenne Bayern,
RTL Group has 18 other radio holdings in 11
states across Germany, and 1s the largest com- .
mercial radio group n Germany Every day, al-
most 28 milkicn peopls in Germany listen to one .
of RTLs radio stations

car 4+

trsasrs sases ¥
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RTL RADIC (FRANCE)

REELIN’

IN THE YEARS

On 22 May 2013, fans of the RTL Radio show Les Nocturnes will switch on around
midnight and settle in for the night to enjoy Georges Lang’'s selection of
music. Nothing unusual there, you maight thaink? And definately nothing unusual
for those fans who’ve been listening for 40 years. Because Georges'’
show first aired on RTL Radio in May 1973. We met him to test his memory.

Georges Lang,
preparng for
the might shudt

How did it all start, Georges?

| grew up In Metz and to earn some money | used to babysit for
Amencan miltary farmlies  Except | didn’t really babysit 1 used
to get the kids to bed early so | could listen to ther parents’
records — The Platters, jazz, blues, Ray Charles, he was my dol
- I couldn't afford my own records, and where could | buy such
fantastic music, anyway?

How did that lead to a radio career?

Well, | fust wanted to work in music First | tned to play the
gurtar, but was no good | started to study philosophy as wal,
but that was no use | longed to be in music, so | hstened all
the time to the radio, prrate radio, the Englsh DJs on Radio
Luxembourg playing the Beatles and the Anvmals | said to my
pest fnend “‘one day | will do radio' | said to the radio, to the DJs
| was listening to, 'one day | will do this, for longer than you'
And how did you get your chance?

| came to RTL in Paris and asked for a job They sent me back
to Luxembourg to make a demo, and said one day they'd call

RTL GROUP ANNUAL REPORT 2012

me | didn't think they would, but when they went to 24-hour
broadcasting they said | could do a night slot at 3am fdid a
show in November 1971 | didn't imagine I'd be there for long,
I was just happy to have a jJob And from there we get to Les
Nocturnes 1973

What did you play?

They let me do a different kind of radio Classic rock was quite
rew I'd play things ke a whole side of Dark Side Of The Moon
— imagme that, 16 minutes long But I'd spent time i Califor-
nia and discovered freeform radio — that is, where the DJs
have complete control over what they play — my mentor was
Jim Ladd of KLOS i Los Angeles | choose a record, then one
leads to the next, and s0 on | can't explan i, it st works
So you were bringing new matenal to French ears?

We brought them Elton John and Dawd Bowe for the first
time We were pioneers And | had a lot of fiends and con-
nections In the States who were sending me music It was
an exciing tme Now all these stars come on as guests —
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During the four-hou-plug,
“broacicast. N-TV's audience sh;’n"éf!
peaked at 27.8 per cent of
14 tB—f;l-Q-year—olds, while the
channel's online and mobile sites
also recorded excellent ratings.

7.1 MILLION
VIEWERS

The event's ewck e TV panins m lermany, M-TV.

attracted un b 1 milbon vewers 1 1'a v
b anticast of the e et — L cdhdn renion i vt s o,
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MEDIENGRUPPE RTL DEUTSCHLAND

39KM
FREE-FALL

Jumping 1into free=fall from

34km up in the atmosphora
in his palloon capsule
‘Red Bull Stratos’,
Felix Baumgartner broks the
racord for skyvdiving ~—
angd the sound barrier in

the process.
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FREMANTLEMEDIA

THE
SUCCESS

STORY
CONTINUES

New faces 1o the judging panels of the world's top two talent formats, maybe.

but certainly no strangers to the music industry and the celebrity spotlight.

The X Facior and American ldol have brought yet more established star power to their
judging panels, keeping things fresh and exciting for their armies of avid fans.

How established? How big? Well, let's start with The X Factor
pringing none other than Britney Spﬂﬂrs te the panel, along with
heir to the pop gusen throne, Demi Lovato. They joined Antonio

'L.&.' Reld and Simon Cowsll for the show's second s=2ason. Britney
Spears is on2 of pop's most celsbrated and suceessful icons,

with five albums going straight to number one in the 8illboavd charts,
24 top-40 singles, and album sales fast approaching 100 million.
Cécile Frot-Coutaz, CEO of Fremantle Media and previcusly

The X Facior's Exscutive Producer, had this to say when Britney
aygre=d to th= second s=ason: "She's the ultimate pop icen, and I'm
thrilled she’1ll be jeining us. She's already shown the world what

the X factor i1s, and how to sustain it in an incredible caveer.”
Simon Cowell, the format’'s mainstay in th2 UK and now in the US,
could only agres, saying: "8ritnsy is onz aof thz biggest stars in the
world — sh2’s talentad and fascinating, #nd I pelieve she can spot

the % factor in people.”

RTL GROUP ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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For her performance on
the show, Demi Lovato
won the accolade for best
celebrity jutige at the 39th
Pegple’s Choice Awards.

DemiLovato :s fast vecoming &
world star, too. An accomplished
singer and actress, Pemi’'s career
bggan whar she was just 10 years old,
and as Cécile Frot-Coutaz explains:
“Her ambition and drive establish
her as on2 of ths most popular voung
artists teoday.”

Together, Britn2y and Demi gave

The ¥ Factor's huge audiencs

an exciting addittion to the panel

— rafreshiny its dynamic and
complementing other enhancements

Lo the show in preparation for

t.ha naw ssason.

RTL GROUP ANNUAL REPORT 2012

41

15vJavoud

o
=]
=
=]
m
=
]




e L THE YEAR IN REVIEW

8.3 MILLION
VIEWERS ON AVERAGE
IN THE US

Hosts Khloé Kardashian
and Man Lobes
chat 1o a conteslan on
tne United States’
panulas The X Factor snov

a0 RTL GROUP ANRUAL REPOAT 2012




THE
SUCCEsS

SToRY
CONTINUES

S0 how could American Idol match that? How about fiva-
Lime Grammy-winning global superstar Mariah Carey?

She joined the judges panal for the format’s return to
US screens for its 12th season in January 2013.
Marigh Caréy nas scld more than 200 nmillion albums
worldwide, and has achieved more number one scngs than
any solo artist in history. Her 18 Billboard number
onas — of which she wrete all but one — put har on a par
with tha Beatles in US chart success.

“4s a singer, songwriter and preoducer, it's going to
ba fun and rewarding to help find new talent and give
something back with American fdol,” says Carey.

“T can’'t wait to channel my creative energy asg part

of this massive global phenomenon.” Creator of the
Idol format and the show's Executive Producey, Simon
Fuller, is 2qually excited: “For this season, we

have one of ths world's greatest ever female singers
on our show. Mariah defines the term *idel* and will
inspire every singer who has the honour ot performing
in freont of her.”

Country star Keith Urban and pop sensation
NiCki“ﬂ"1aj'xill be sitting on the judges panel with
Mariah Carey. Together they join lifzlong iadustry
plavar Randy Jackson, who has been on the American
Idol panel since iks debut series in 2002,

American Idol has been the top entertainment

programme among total viewars for nine consacutive
seasons. No other entity has ever created as

many hit-making artists and best-selling albums and
singles. The show’s alumni have created an astonishing

345 Billboard nuinber ones in its first ten years.
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GRUPO ANTENA 3

THE SHOW
WITH THE
MULTI-FACETED
STARS

In a completely new reality format,
well-known personalities
transform themselves into other
celebrities in Antena 3's hit talent
show, Tu cara me suena (Your Face
Sounds Familiar).

Antena 3 broadcast season two from October 2012 up un-
tit February 2013 On Monday evenings Tu cara me suena
was the most-watched programme on Spanish TV as well
as the most-talked-about on social networks  An average
22 per cent of total viewers tuned in weekly, which repre-
sents an ncrease of 3 percentage ponts and 430,000
viewers compared to season one

The umique concept of the show contributes hughly to its
ratings success Every week, well-known personalities
have to impersanate other famous celebnies ard perform
live Eight participants — four males and four femmales, take
up the challenge to become Lady Gaga, Justin Bieber, Ei-
ton John or Michael Jackson for ane evening A jury of four
as well as the audiencs rate the performances The week's
winner is awarded a €3,000 cash pnze donated to charty

In October 2012, the show, which 1s now traveling to the
rest of the world, was voted ‘Best Competition Reahty For-
mat’ at the C21/Frapa Internatonal Formats Awards 2012

Actor and TV presenter,
Arturo Valls
impersonates Shakira

RTL GROUP ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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rmatch agamst Sweaen was MG's

second-highest ranngs sver. and

the thind fargest audience o e
yEEN anong any anannsl.

11 GAMES

Mé will also show

11l games from the 2016
tournament. M§ viewers
will ke hoping for
a home advantage —
Euroc 2018 is to be

held in France.
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GROUPE M6

SEAL
THE DEAL

In April 2012

Groupe M& annocunced
its deal with UEFA
te secure television
broadcast rights
for the hugely
popular foothall
tournaments, Eurco

2012 and Euro 2016.

46  ATL GROUP ANNUAL REPORT 2012




48

THE YEAR IN REVIEW

RTL HRVATSKA

ATL GROUP

B4 oy

Hali Ergeng is
Suleyman in

Century

RTL Televizija re-conquered Croatian
pnime time TV in autumn 2012, thanks to
the success of new Turkish drama
senes Suleimanvelicanstverr (The Mag-
nificent Century) Ainng the history-
inspired love story, RTL Televizya edged
past ts closest nval Nova in

the pnme time viewing figures

Sufgyman achieved a 28 5 per cent audience
share among viewers aged 18 to 49 for its
very first instalment on 27 August, and con-
tinued to grab viewers' imagnatons from
then on W was the most-watched pro-
gramme on Croatian TV screens most days,
and peaked with an audience share of 40 par
cent on 16 December, having an average of
31 2 per cent since 1t first broadcast The
Croatian press has labelled the seres ‘the TV
phenomenon of 2012’

In September, RTL Televzja launched its
next tactical move to stay top of the ratings
wiih the second season of locally produced
daily pnme tme drama senes Ruza Vietrova,
new episodes of daly favourites Galleo and
Family Affarrs, and the redesigned magazine
format, Exkduziv Tabloid

The Magnificent
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RTL BELGIUM
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For seven days, the star’s
fans could vote for their
favourite songs and get

* a chance to win a complete
. set of her albums.

&

C

Long-standing queen of pop Madonna's world
tour rolled into Brussels on 12 July 2012,
so Radio Contact moved 1ts team into the
Stade Roi Baudouin to take those without

Belgum’s Radio Contact loves its music, and helps
its music-loving audience get closer to the
stars that create it. Summer 2012 saw the station offer
its enthusiast listeners special in-depth
programming on one major star, and a unique
mobile phone package for ancther .

tickets closer to the experience. The nlgﬁt
involved live broadcasts of Madonna’s show,
' plus three 100 per cent Madonna playlist
‘ sets prepared by top DJs to keep the fans
happy well ainto the night. And it didn’'t
stop there — for the next seven days, the
star’s fans could vote for their favourite
songs and get a chance to win a complete set
of her albums
Earlier, in June 2012, Radio Contact’s
mobile phone offering, Contact mobile, cre-
ated a unigue new package 1n collabora-
tion with internationally renowned house
DJ Bob Sinclar. The ready-to-use, all-in-
one 18-month package aincluded a touch-screen
Samsung Galaxy ¥ phone, a Contact sim card
with €5 calling credit, and a free download
of Sinclar‘s latest album Disco Crash, whach
reprises some of his classic hits. A unique
way to get music fans closer to the artasts
they love.

. Madonna entertains fans
at Stade Roi Baudouin,
with Radio Contact in attendance

RTL 6ROUP AMNUAL REPORAT 2012
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French hit senes L'Amour est dans le pre aired the final
episode of its seventh senes on M6 on 1 October 2012,
attracting 6 7 million viewers and a total audience
share of 26 9 per cent. That’s a new 'wrap-up’ episode
hugh for this unique and hugely popular serles.

But such an impressive share 18 no one-off — the docu-reality
show charting rural folks' search for love and life-partners re-
corded 6 4 milllon wiewers on average across the season, mak-
ing lucky number seven its best since the senes began in 2006

RTL GROUP ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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It was the most-watched programme on French tslevision for
the third surmmer n a row

So what makes L'Amour est dans le pré (The Farmer Wants A
Wifa) such a phenomenon? M6 Programme Director Bibiane
Godfroid may have the answer “The pariicipants are truly au-
thentic There's no senpting, and in this case reality 1S tar more
powerful than fickon Also, the people aren't there to get tharr
faces on TV - but genuinely to find love, as 37 couples, 12 wed-
dings and 24 babies suggestst”

It has also been a great success digitally in its seventh season,
with 168 million cakch-up wideos watched online across all serv-
ices, and 17 million website views




FREMANTLEMEDIA

GOING PLAGES
WITH THE KIDS

Having identified a gap in the market, FremantleMedia
decided to increase its investment in children’s
programming, and three years ago created a new
Kids & Family Entertatnment diviston Now, with more than
15 titles in production globally, the diviston i1s one of the
leading sndependent producers and distnbutors in the sector.

“When we started the Kids & Family Entertainment dvision, our goal
was to join forces with leading broadeasters and producers of kids'
content in order to mspire, transform, challenge and stmulate our
young audiences,” explans Sander Schwartz, President, Kids &
Farnily Entertainment at FremantieMedia.

The dwsion's growing portfolio of content spans four key genres
preschool, kuds' comedy, action/advantura and tweenfteen It works
with a number of producers, broadcasters, and toy companies
around the word including Fresh TV, DHX Media, BBC Chiddren’s,
Nickeiodeon, Cartoon Network, Disney and Mattel

“We have made a good deal of progress in a short time in the sourc-
ing of products and in mantaming high qualty,” says Cécile Frot-
Coutaz, FremantieMedia CEO, "and Tree Fu Tom s a key brand ”
Tree Fu Tom, a co-production with the BBC, 15 one of the dvsion's
biggest successes to date The entertaining show bnngs pre-school
children into ts stones with interactive physical actwty, and was
CBesbies’ highest rated programme of 2012 for chidren aged four to
six {by highest occurrence, excluding special events) Senes two has
already been commussioned FremantleMedia has to date sold the
show to more than 50 temtones globally, and launched a major
leensing and merchandise campaign I the UK, the brand’s rthal
terrtory There's a master toy deal with Gioch Preziost, with a range
of Tree Fur Tom toys launching from spnng 2013, and further product
development with over 20 licensing partners already sigred, includ-
ing publishing, apparel, stationery, accessones, extles, funiture and
maore The DVD was also a top seller in the UK in 2012 Now the Kids
& Family Entertanment division has signed a long-term deal with
BBC Chidren's to co-davelop and co-produce a sequence of new
shows for children of all ages over the next five years

David Ellender, CEQ of FremantleMedia International and Kids, add-
ed “The deal with BBC Children’s Is a landmark in our kids’ strategy
and a real game changer in that it's a first for 8BC Children’s and a
tantastic opportunity to create mspinng and iNnovative programming
for the UK and international broadcasters " Another BBC collabora-
tion, Wizards vs Aliens, created by acclaimed Doctor Who praducer
and wnter Russell T Davies and Doctor Wha wnter Phil Ford, was al-
s0 a stand-out success as CBBGC's number two new show of 2012
for chiidren six to twelve The show has been sold to over 50 temnto-
nes to date and debuts i the US in the summer

The energstic
acorn sprite, Twigs,
from Tree Fu Tom

MEDIENGRUPPE RTL DEUTSCHLAND

AUDIEZVOX

A strong selection of senes for daytime
viewers has seen Vox's audience

figures nse steadily in 2012 This has
cantnbuted significantly to Mediengruppe
RTL Deutschland establishing a six
percentage point lead over its closest
nvals, with a 33 7 per cent share of

the 14 to 49-year-old viewming demographic

An injection of ‘docutanment’ formats has
been ntroduced to kesp things fresh and en-
ticing throughout daybime on Vox — among
them Shopping Quesn and Veridag mich doch!
The senes formats were especially popular,
with daytme favounte Verklag rmch doch
attracting 1 01 million viewers aged over three
years on 5 October Shopping Quesn and
Mieten, Kaufen, Wohnen were also consistent-
ly strong performers

In 2012, Vox's dayime ratngs increased to
7 3 per cent i1 the main target group of 14 to
49-yaar-olds, from 4 4 per cent in 2011 Pro-
gramme audience shares for 2012 n this

group ware as follows

» 4 Hochzeiten und eine Traumreise:
up to 10 5 per cent

:Shop,;ing Queen- up to—1 20 p;ar ce—nt“

» Hilf nur doch: up to 13 2 per cent

> Vz-e:kla—g m:cf; d’o;:hf. up to—1;‘5 1— per cent

RTL GROUP ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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In August 2012, Super RTL unveiled its plans to
continue 1ts 15-year leadership of the children’s TV
sactor in Germany Once again, it's all about
foresight, and keeping things fresh and exciting

Thne flagship of Super RTUs plans for the 2012 season was
undoubtedly US senes Cnce Upon A Time, with s classic
fairy-tate storyteling approach to tacking modern-day 1ssues
A huge hit with adults and children in the US, the modern
fable format 1s perfectly suted to Super RTL's audience

While Super RTL may entertam children and thesr parsnts, the
channel wil not entertain cormplacency, and embarked on its

The cast of Once
Lipon A Time.
the it US seres
wilrs a fawy

story approach
to tackhing
mode: nissues

biggest m'arketlng campaign yet to support the launch of
Once Upon A Time The cross-media campaign includsd
billboards and cinema screen adverts But perhaps the most
nspinng stunt involved three fairy-tale characters = Prince
Charming, Snow White and the evil Queen — wisiting ceniral
train statons 1 several g German cities and handmg out red
apples with the senes logo lasered onto them

Once Upon A Time first ared on 12 Septermber 2012 at
2015 And just fike fairy tales, we have a happy ending, as
the show was popular with children, but also achieved an
average of 4 1 per cent of the commercial target group of 14
to 48-year-olds

RTL GROUP ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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MEDIENGRUPPE RTL DEUTSCHLAND

REPORTING ON THE BATTLE
FOR THE WHITE HOUSE

News channels

N-TV and

CNN International,
and German daily
newspaper Die Welt
teamed up in

2012 ko once again
offer German viewers
comprehensive
cross-media
coverage of the
world's biggest
political event —
the US election.

RTL GROUP
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RTL NEDERLAND

In September 2012, RTL Nederland
announced the creation of its
. fourth business umit, after Televisaon,
Dagital, and Ventures: Live
Entertainment. The new unit is led
by Ren&é Smit (right), who reports to
Matthias Scholten (left),
RTL Nederland’'s Content Director.

At RTL Nedertand a TV brand's life span can
start before the show 1s broadcast, and con-
tinues after the season 1s over “We call that
the total expenence,” says Rene Smit “We
constantly try to explore our farmats i depth
and ennch them, making sure consurmers get
an all-round expenence ”

With -its family of channels and its sirong
brands, RTL Nederland reaches many target
groups, and develops music, theatre and oth-
er live events for them These can be small
serminars for RTL Z.Apght up to much igger
shows such as The Voice Of Holland con-
certs, the Af You Need Is Love concerts,
GTST Ive and'Sunday Sessions

The idea behind this new unit was to group
all of RTL Nederand’s ive entertanment
activities under oné roof Matthias Scholten
comments “Live entertainment actvities are
becoming more and more important for
RTL Nederland and the market 1s moving
fast Consumers are spending less, so you
need to have a strong offer in order to attract
them We are well posttioned to rermvigorate
the market thanks to our combinaton of
appealing brands, major talents and market-
ing force "

The possibiities offered to advertisers by the
Live Entertanment unit are endless Via the
unit’s lve concepts, advertisers gst talor-
made services and a unique display platform
for thar products, brnging them closer to
consumers than aver

RTL LETZEBUERG

. ONLY
THE VOIGE
MATTERS

Organised by RTL Télé Létzebuerg and Eldoradto,
instant succéss The One I1s a talent show with

a difference. Unlike dther talent show formats, the
audience never saw any of the performers or knew
anythmg about them And nerther did the judges

at first - all participants were chosen, from audttion
and took part in the show’s preliminary rounds under
pseudonyms, and based solely on their voices.

As Stave Schmit, Programme Director at RTL Letzebuerg,
explans, this fresh approach to the talent show concept
combines the strengths of the three key media - tefewision,
raco and the internet “We felt that playmg on the anonym-
ity of the singers would help creatd buzz around the radio
and the intemet The whole of Luxembourg will be asking
themselves who 1s behind the veices ” The show alsa had
its ownt smartphone app,, so fans could download and lis-
ten to the contestants’ performances, and vote for them by
SMSE

And of course, as the anonyrmous candidates progressed,
the TV show aspect of the compstition merely ncreased
the mtnigue Cnly when the finalists performed their second
song n the grand finale, could audiences see what they
looked ke

Eight singers sang ther way to the final round, which took
place at Luxembourg's brggest concert venue, the Rock-
hal, n June 2012, where ther faces were finally revealed
live on RTL Télé Letzebuerg The only male in the final
eight, Armand Thies, an employee of Luxembourg’s nation-
al ralway, CFL, won the competiion under his pseudonym
Willy Stone, with 18 37 per cent of the public's votes

RTL GROUP ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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DREAM TEAM

Taking a seat, the presenters of
Belguin'’s Got Talent, Jean-
Michel Zecca and Jufie Taton,
flanked by ury members
Maureen Dor, Carlos Vaquera,
and Paul Ambach
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THE YEAR IN REVIEW

105.5
SPREERADIO
smariphone” B
Esteners

can send in
naws, photos
and victeo

RTL GROUP — NEW APPS FOR 2012

ATL INSIDE
offers exclusve
live programme

information

104.6 ATL
listaners can
get all sorts of
acditronal
fun on ther app

ATL NIEUWS 365

The regularly updated
and interactve

digital newspaper from
RTL Nleuws 365
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The advent of smartphones and tablets has changed many things inlife And for TV fans and TV companes - the
consumers and the providers of TV content — these devices simply bring them even closer together. Apps
provide TV viewers with live streamed entertainment, news and information, and interactive additions to their favounte
shows. Shows they can now view anywhere Here are some of the latest launches from around RTL Group.

RTL INSIDE

A fres app for 1-0OS and Android smartphones and tablets,
transforming the devices nto handy ‘second screens’ for in-
teraction with RTL Telewision programmes RTL Inside features
exclusive live inforrmation about the programme running on TV,
wdeo clps, and buit-m interactvity with several social net-
works RTL Inside 1s also an attractive option for advertisers
looking to extend their reach across all platforms

N-TV

In 2012, the N-TV app famidy welcomed a new member,
the news app for Android tablets Across all platforms, comi-
pnising N-TV apps as well as its mobile pages, N-TV reached a
monthly average of 195 8 millon page impressions in the year,
an increase of 63 5 per cent on 2011 The highest month was
in October, with 220 millon page wmpressions and 3 2 mobile
video views -

105.5 SPREERADIO

A new app that puts smartphore listeners at the heart of
Ive broadcasting, alowing them to send In news tems,
traffic informatian, celebnty-spotting, and shared photos and
videos And as ever, they can listen to 'the best songs of
all ime, anytime and anywhere’ on #ve broadcast, or chaose
ther favountes from the app’s 1970s, 80s or classic hits
playlists — around the clock and umiterrupted

104.6 RTL

The new 104 6 RTL app showcases the unique ‘RTL Comedy
Alarmv', which wakes fisteners to station favourtes such
as Armo und die Morgencrew, Der Kleine Nis {Litle Nils),
Burhiahn, and Angie Merkel The app also features pictures of
the shows, and provides users with addiional matenal on all
concerts and events organised by 104 6 RTL. Usteners can
also delve into backstage insights on the 104 6 RTL photo
wall, and have access to backstage interviews of the concert
senes Stars for free

] |
M6 FOR I-PAD
With almost 1,100,000 downloads up to December 2012, this
free app was the most popular across all categeries 1t offers
24/7 lve streaming of the channel, plus catch-up service MG
Replay faaturmg\u'the ‘Devant ma TV' second screen option,
and bonus wdeos its success follows the I-Phone and |-Pod
Touch versions, which have already passed the three million
downloads mark

RTL NIEUWS 365
Launched n January 2012, the 8TL Nieuws |-Pad app gives
Dutch users comprehensive access to ATL Nieuws, RTL Sport
and RTL Boulevard This nteractive ‘digital newspaper' 1s con-
tinuously updated and offers regutlar features across its many
sectons

WIE IS TIM?

The Wie 1s Tim? Who Is Tim?) app helped fans of the daily
soap Goede Tiiden, Slechte Tjden bndge the summer break
App users were challenged to discover the true identity of a
new character called Tim, with the help of notes, videos,
games and hidden content The app was downloaded
120,000 tmes In its first week and became the number ong
free app in the Dutch App Store To date t has been down-
loaded more than 280,000 tmes

. (]
RTL-TVI, CLUB RTL AND PLUG RTL
FOR THE TABLET USER

Second screen apps for the growsng number of people watch-
ing TV while surfing the net, Iinking channel content, onfine
searches and social networks more easly Launched iniatly
for I-Pad with 80,000 downloads in 2012, these are now also
available with new features for smartphone users, broadering
the three channels’ reach even further RTL Belgum was the
first in Belgium to offer its viewers the chance to comment and
chat on social media on all of #s shows, rather than just
special event programmes

—|
ANTENA 3'S LIVE XBOX APP
Access to Antena 3's extensive catalogue of programmes
as Iive broadcasts or on-dsmand - etther free, or through
addional shbscnptlon options — plus extra functionalty and
inturtve navigation via the "Kinect for Xbox 360’ feature Users
can also connect with their Facebook friends to share which
episodes they are watching or have watched

El

OTHER DIGITAL SERVICES
M6 REPLAY LEADS
THE FRENGH,CATCH-UP TV MARKET

With 180,400 dally users, M6 Replay has a 24 per cent mar-
ket share among catch-up TV users on IPTV — amounting to
741,300 users n all - and a 23 4 per cent share of the total
number of videos watched In fact, M6 Replay has an average
20 8 per cent market share of total daly audience and the
longest viewing times per viewer among traditional channels’
serviges an average of 76 minutes a day

Since the beginning of 2012, Groupe M6 vidso offerings have
generated more than 600 milllon video views across all screens
- B5 per cent of thern on TV, mobile and tablets

RTL GROUP ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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THE YEAR IN REVIEW

MEDIENGRUPPE RTL DEUTSCHLAND

Convergence has been a mantra in the technology world
for many years now What it meant, in reality, was
that one day we might video-chat on a new device like a
tablet, watch TV on our compu’cers a.nd shaop an gur
phones. Might ) n be that we will be watchmg v content
on, well ourTV sets'?

L *

RTL GROUP ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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GROUPE M6

CAUCHEMAR EN
CUISINE

(R o O L 3

MVigge s wath W9
and M6 second soreen
ANPS CAn
cnooseg ther device
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In the digrtal era, watching tefevisian is no longer
solely about sittng watching a TV set. Today, viewers
can become more deeply engaged with TV pro-
grammes, using the internet and social networks

As digital forerunners in France, M6 Web is part

of this evolution, and has developed many tools
aimed at enhancing viewer's televisual expenence.

At the end of 2012, M6 Web made social TV a reality with
‘Devant ma TV, a second-screen serwce that's become
part of its catch-up TV platform Managing Director of MG
Web, Valery Gerfaud, explans “Multitasking while watch-
ing TV 1s undoubtedly on the nse, so we can esther just tet
it happen, or take a more proactive approach For exam-
ple, we provide wiewers with exclusive addtional iInforma-
tion, and develop interactive features such as surveys or
voting That's ‘Devant ma TV' in a nutshell enriching the
programme with a new content dimension ¥ Chnstan
Bombrun, Deputy Managing Director of M6 Web, adds

“Users like the interactive tools and soctal functions They
can watch a show on TV and follow.the social events
linked to ¢t on a mobile, comment on the programmes n
real-time, chat with fends on Facebook ‘or Twitter and
share content and recommend programmes *

The next step, eagerly awaited by television professionals,
1s for the second screen to influence the man screen

According to Gerfaud “This has a lot of potential, and could
also generate revenue Nevertheless, we can only create
new advertising oppdrtumbes by pnmanly offering quality
content to our viewers.” 'Devant ma TV’ also enhances mo-
bility With thewr Tnedia synced, wewers can start watching a
prograrmme on TV, pause and pick it up later on their smart-
phone from exactly‘the moment they stopped watching,
and firush watching it even later on ther tablet

M6& Web ennches TV in other ways, too Each show s
avallable on catch-up and has its own website, and most
have a Facebook page as well Over sx milion people
have ‘liked’ one of Groupe M6's Facebook pages “Some
shows have more fans than the channel itself - Scénes de
Ménages has two rmillion Facelbaok fans compared to the
channel’s one milian,” says Bombrun “There are several
social interactions with shows — viewers can become a fan
on Facebook, follow its prasenters on Twitter, or comment
on the show Iive on Twitter Talent and realty shows are
the mast active on Twitter, whareas Facebook 1s more
popular with shows where viewers' attachment is very
strong and long tern, such as Scénes de Ménages ®
Soon, ennched advertising will make its debut on the plat-
form According to Gerfaud “We can synchronise an in-
teractve advert on the'second scraen exactly with what's
happening on the main screen ® Bombrun adds “With this
option, adverts become nteractive In all modes of view-
ing " Groupe M6 launched the first complete online wdeo
package in France in October 2009, with some content
free and some paid far in 2012 alone, free content from

M6 Replay and W9 Replay, along with backstage
videos (M6 Bonus) and news from MSN Actu, represented
over 600 mdiion videos streamed “These are our anti-
piracy tools,” says Gerfaud “When Megaupload was shut
down, views on our Replay service iIncreased,” adds Bom-
brun According to Mediamétne, the number of online vid-
eo viewers grew by 17 2 per cent from July 2011 to July
2012 In additon, 76 per cent of internet users in France
watched video content when online - a figure that’s con-
stantly ncreasing M6 Web doesn't see any danger for live
TV however Gerfaud explains “The time spent on Replay
15 only about 3 or 4 per cent of that spent watching M6,
but we know this will grow In the future We will avaid can-
nibalisation # we continue to value non-inear consurnption
as much as inear, both for vewers and advertisers *

Ivii secoted 21 ADP USH S
can post theit v d conments,

and respond 10 others

“We can synchronise
an interactive
advert on the second
screen exactly with
what’s happening
on the main screen.”

YALERY GERFAUD,
MANAGING DIRECTOR OF M5 WEB
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EXTEND
Extending successful programme
brands online

An online presence can create many new opportunites for a
succeassful TV show In the UK, both The X Factor and Got Tafent
Youtube channels have chalked up well over a billon hits, making
them global rather than national sensations At the same time
they create new revenue streams — chips of the UK X Factor
viewed in Germany are monetised, forinstance Nowadays, there
1S a dstnct change in approach — developng secial media
strategies and planning digital extenstons are actually part and
parcel of the ruhal TV format Inially the company was looking to
monetise shows on online platforms, whereas now, increasingly,
digital platforms are becorming a way to acquire new audiences

Family Feud, the long-running Amencan game show, 1s a good
example In 2010, with a new host, an entertaning comedan,
clips posted on Youtube often went wiral, recruiting an entrely
new, young male audience In parailel, the company launched a
game version of the show on Facebook and I-Pad (and now on
the Android platform) As well as being profitable and successful
ventures In thewr own nght, the games have increased TV ratings
among the show's heartland, older, female audience — in effect
making monay while attracting and retaining audiences

RTL GROUP ANKUAL REPORT 2012

djfferent audtences across a \frpultltudéi of medla platfonns FremantleMedla IS capltallsmg on b
the new dugna] word In many ways, and currently focuses ns dlgltal actlwty nto three key strands

o

DISTRIBUTE
Applytng the company's distribution skills
in & muiti-platform world

FremantieMedia’s Enterpnses arm 1s a well-positroned and net-
worked global distnbutor, and makes a strong partner for new
media content producers looking to distnbute across online,
mobile and linear platforms FremantieMedia Enterpnses now has
the mternational distribution nghts for Hulu, the US online wdeo
service, which 1s now producing is own onginal content Similar-
ty, new studios launching expressly as mufti-platform producers,
such as Vuguru, are looking to FremanieMedia Enterpnses’
distnbution expertise This 1s the expansion of the distribution
business nto a multi-platform werld Good examples are the
company’s long content becorming available on I-Tunes and Love
Fim and, as a founding partner, FremantieMedia Enterpnses
puttng over 100 hours of contert into Netfix UK

Global
populanty
The Youtube
channel for
The X Factor
n the UK

has generated
more than
one billlon
video views
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CREATE
Greating original content iniiatives
for new platforms

The third leg of FremantieMedia’s new media actwity 1s to create
new content distnbuted exclusvely through onling platforms such
as Youtube This differs from the extension of TV formats to
Youtube, in that the company 15 generating completaly onginal
contant for an entirely online audience This creates more cppor-
tunities for consumers to benefit from programming delivered
over the internet  FremantieMedia's content creators can adapt
therr skills to diferent platforms, but also develop their knowledge
and expertise in other areas such as markehng, as thers 1s no
broadcaster ‘The Pet Collective’, launched in May 2012, was the
company's first ever Youtube-only channel It started with over
seven different onginal short-form series offenng more than 20
hours of hps, stones and entertanment revohang around pets

FremantieMed:a company Radical Media then launched THNKR'
on Youtube in July, jomed in November by two onginal content
channels from FremanteMedia’s German subsiciary UFA. 'eNtR
Berlin’ {urban Ifestyle) and “Tngger’ (crime)
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MEDIENGRUPPE RTL DEUTSCHLAND

Berlin - Tag & Nacht has enjoyed

a fantastic flounsh following its

slow start in late 2011 It has also
given its avid viewers a successfuf
side-senes, and led by example when
it comes to getting the best results
from using social media Qver

2 5 milhon Facebook fans says it all.

Mediengruppe RTL Deutschland's hit show
on RTL ! follows an extraordinary group of
people shanng a flat in Berlin — the city
they really love Cross-meda success

ATL GROUP ANNUAL REPORT 2012

aside, the show soon picked up pacs after
a few weeks and took its average market
share from 46 per cent in September
2011 to 9 1 per cent among viewers aged
14 to 49 dunng December 2011

But perhaps the main reason for its fast-
growing share of viewers ever since 1S its
clever links with other media - In particular
social networking website Facebook, plus
catch-up TV and its own online presence
This forward-thinking strategy has even
extended 1o integrating the show's Face-
book actvity with the plot of the show

3eriin — Tag & Nacht's
Facebook page

is an integral part of
the show and key
to fans’ nteraction

ared on RTLIl Berln - Tag & Nacht char-
acters post commernits on Facebook, and
upload photos and wvideos as part of the
fast-paced storvine In fact in November,
the flatmates tune in to RTL I's transmis-
sion of the hit filrm Dirty Dancing for their
own dance party, and viewers can join
the action via lve stream on Bid dg and
RTL2 de, In another example of cross-
media entertanment

Jochen Starke, CEO RTL I, says, “The
show's ratings make & clear that our
onling actwites are the perfect loyalty tool,




especially among younger wewars
Fans can use Facebook and the RTL i
Mediathek to get more information and
share ther thoughts about the latest
events in the senes Berin — Tag &
Nacht's online community I1s crucial to
the show’s success — and it's still grow=
ing * In December 2012 the format was
attracting an average market share of
13 2 per cent of the 14 to 49-year-old
audience group, and an impressive 24 8
per cent of 14 to 29-year-olds

This success has in many ways allowed
the freedom to create Kdin 50667, a
spin-off that began anng on RTL li in
January 2013 Berin — Tag & Nacht
character Meike Weber leaves Berlin for
Cologne and falls for bar owner Alax
Kowalski, causing a str among his
frends and famiy Similar crass-media
promotion earned Kain 50667 300,000
Facebook fans befors the show aven
premierad

“Berlin - Tag &
Nacht’s online
community is crucial
to the show’s
success — and it's
still growing.”

JOGHEN STARKE, CEOQ OF RTL I

L 3 Fans of Berfin — Tag & Nacht
can use the show's
o7 ' app to chat with other fans
on the show's
commentary page

IR

RTL NEDERLAND

REGIPE
FOR SUCCESS:

In October 2012, RTL Nederland acquired Videostrip, the country’s
biggest online video advertising network, thus strengthening the
company's position in the digital adverfising market.

“The clever thing about Videostnp,” says Amo Otto, RTL Nederland’s
Managing Director of Digital, “is that it's not simply a wideo ad sales net-
work, but also a syndication network " Videostnp 1s behind the large-
scale distnbutron of video content to many sites, partners and platforms,
also controlling the advertising on the syndicated network “This creates
reach, which agam strengthens our position in the advertising market,”
says Otto, “and we control ad sales in our own content, rather than deal-
ing with third parties ”

Syndication 1s used manly for short-forin content, and this s where
Videostnp’s technology allows RTL Nederland to distrbute its content
through many other pubkshers, while mantaning ad sales “We are try-
Ing to put technology much more at the heart of the business,” explans
Ao Otto, “In a viston of digital transformation it's bke the yin and yang
the technology complements the creative In this way, Videostnp stays at
the farefront of new developments ™ One of these developments s how
the automated real-time bidding used In anline advertising might wark in
video content

The long-form content is st presented on RTL platforms, but again,
controling ad sales 1s fundamental to holding on to revenue share The
difference beng, that while the TV business has two major competitors,
in the digital worid there are at least 30 competitors “Videostnp adds the
expenence and technological know-how to develop these areas We get
Videostrp's ad share next o ours, we get full service and bnng in reve-
nue from day one Last but not least we control ad sales on our own
content,” says Armo QOtto, “all in all, Videostnp is a nce catch for RTL "
*In addition to advertising, the next challenge and trend 1s monetising
paid-for content,” says Arng Otto, “people will pay for pre-view ad-free
content — for example, paying €1 30 to see the next episode of the
popular soap Good Times — Bad Times before it ars — so this 1s an
additional revenue model we'rs working on ®
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RED GARPET
TN

N

GOUDEN TELEVIZIER-RING

THE VOICE
OF HOLLAND

Duich viewers awardec RTL 2%

Tie Yoice Of Holland the "2012 Gouden
Telewziei-Ring for Best TV Programme
Preturant from lefi to nght Erland

Gahaaret, Deecior of Programemng at

RTL Mederland with the shaw's prasentars
Wendy van Difk. Manipn ~rabié and
Winston Garschlanovatz
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RED
CARPET e

RTL Radia’s Gweandciine Debono (24) DEUTSCHER RADIOPREIS
was awarded the ‘Lownse Waiss Prize

for European Joumalism' In the Mi I“ I E‘
“Young Talent’ category for her raport ARNO

Greak Criszs. The Extreme Right Ambush
She also won the ‘Pnx Varenne' Arno Moller {pictured with actor

for bar ge of the war Gm:grfhpmm l;tmh::sborﬂq:n%
anchonman, was awarded a

‘Lifetima Actuevement for

Prasenting' award at the German

Radio Awards m Hambung

MOST INFLUENTIAL PERSONALITY

DIRK GERKENS

Hunganan ¢ommunication
magazine Marketing & Media
elacted the CEQOof RTL Kb ~

most inflyential parson [ ©
the Hungarian media industry  ~
it of S0 personalities

RTL GROUP STARS
ONCE AGAIN GRACED
RED CARPETS TO RECEIVE
PRESTIGIOUS AWARDS.
HERE ARE SOME
OF THE PROUDEST
MOMENTS OF 2012.

DEUTSCHER FERNSEHPREIS

SULIANE BAATEL MEDIA AWARD

DENNIS LISK, JENKE VON
COVERMY SONG WILMSDORFF
Vex music documaentary, Cover My Song, presented by rapper - " The reporter for Extra — Das RTL-Magazrin
Dencus Lrsk aka Deryo (nght) won ‘Best Documentary/Docutainment” was presarted with the ‘Jullane Bartef Media Awand
at tha 2012 ‘Gemman Television Awards’' Astrid Quentefll (lef}), . Hewas honoured for his weeidy series
Managing Diractor of Seny Fictures Film and TV Production and Vox Das Jenke-Expenment; Jenke afs afleinerzishendes Mutter
oditor-in-chief Kai Sturm (centra} ware honoured alongside Lisk. {The Jenks Experiment Jenka Aa A Single Mother)

74 RTL GROUP ARNUAL REPORY 2012




RED CARPET

DBEUTSCHER FERNSEHPREIS WIRTSCHAFTSWOCHE ‘HALL OF FAME
STERN TV ANKE SCHAFERKORDT
The jury at the German Telsvision tn March 2012, RTL Group’s Co-CEO was
Awards votad RTL Television's inducted into Wirtschaffswocha's ‘Hall of Fame'
waekly magarme show Stern TV in Berlin Former Young & Rulicam boss
‘Best Infformation Programme’ Host Ingo Krauss {left) was honoured alongside
Steffen Hallaschka was Schitferkordt. Both receved the award from Raland
accompanied by wife Anns-Kathrn . Tichy (nght), editor-m-chuef Wirtschaftswoche.

Gottsching to accept the pnze

DRI I

* s e sae e e

HILDEGARD VON BINGER AWARD

ANTONIA RADOS

Antonla Rados, Mediengruppe

RTL Dsutschiand’s chiet fonsign comespondant

since 2009, received the prestigious

‘Hitdegard von BlngmAwarg'forhersepgrgng »
from war-torn and crisis areas '

ro senay

.

HEDIA COMPANY OF THE YEAR

RTL NEDERLAND :

HTL Nederiand won the ‘Media .

Company of tha Year award KRESS' PRODUCER RANKING

at the Broadeast Business Event

GEO BortHabeta (ot cocgiod GRUNDY LIGHT

prize from Hi LI MAyor,

Pleter Broertes {nght) ENTERTAINMENT
Grundy Light Entertalinment,
haaded by Lite Biemat, topped
media industry magazine Knss'

producer ranking as the most
successful programme supplier
to German talewision, for

the sbch consscutiva year.
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OPERATIONS

TELEVISION
FREE-TV DIGITAL PAY-TV NON-LINEAR TV
GERMANY RTL Telewvision . 100% | RTL Cnma - 100% { RTL Now - 100%
Vox _ . 99 7% | ATL Lving e wma wem - 100% [ Vox Now - - .99 T%
RTL O . 358% | Passion _ - 100% | ATL i Now . 359%
SuperRTL . . . - 50% Super ATL Now -50%
N-TV - - 100% N-TViNow._ _ . 100%
RTL Nitro 100% RTL Nitro Now - 100%
FRANCE M6 48 6% | Pans Premigre . .48 6% [ MG Replay . 48 6%
ws . 4868% [ Téva - 48 6% { W9 Replay .48 6%
Gter 48 6% [ Séne Club .. . - 48 6% | 6ter Replay .. . . 486%
RTL9 . - - 35%(TF6 - - . .4B6% |MBVOD _ 48 6%
M6 Music Hits - 48 6%
M6 Music Black 48 6%
M6 Music Club .. ~ - 486%
Girondins TV - 48 6%
NETHERLANDS RTL 4 100% | RTL Lounge' . - 100% | RTLXL 100%
RTL 5* 100% | RTL Gnme’ — 100%
RTL 7* PP 100% | RTL Telekids' - 100%
RTL 8' 100%
UNITED KINGDOM
BELGIUM RTL-TVI . .66% RTL& 't _ . .B6%
Club RTL' I 66%
Plug RTL! 66%
LUXEMBOURG RTL Télé Letzebuerg 100% RTL Replay . 100%
BPen 2. ATL 100%
CROATIA RTL Telavizyja 100% RTL Sada - 100%
RTL2 100%
SPAIN Antena 3 205%5 | Gol TV .. . 205%¢ | Antena 3 Moda Salon 20 5%#
La Sexta 20 5%*
Neox = 20 5%"
Nova " 20 5%"
Nitro .20 5%:"
Xplora ... . - 20 5%"
La Sexta 3 Todo Cine 20 5%"
HUNGARY” RATL Kiub . 100% |RTLU . 100% | RTL Most  _ 100%
Cool - 100%
FilmPlusz . . - 100%
Film Plusz Two . 100%
Prizma . 100%
Sarozat Plusz . _ - 100%
Muzsika TV . 100%
NORTH AMERICA
AUSTRALIA
ITALY
SCANDINAVIA
INDIA Big RTL Thnll 50%
RTL GROUP ANNUAL REPORT 2012




OPERATIONS

This chart tlustrates the structure of RTL Group’s prmcipal businesses and undertakings as at 31 December 2012
The name of each company 1s followed by an indication of the percentage heid directly or indirectly by RTL Group

RADIO CONTENT
TV SERVICES PRODUCTION? RIGHTS
[+1: 4 .. 100% | 104.6 RTL Berlins Hit-Radio 100% | UFA Film & TV Produktion® . 100% [ Universum Film 100%
Info Network  100% | 105.5 Spreeradio _100% | Grundy LE* .100% [ UFA Sports 75 1%
RTL Radio - Grundy UFA® - -100%
Die besten Hits aller Zetten' 100% | Phoemx Group® 51%
Hit-Radio Antenne .49 9% | Teamworx® 100%
Antenne Bayern - .16% { UFA Cinema® - .100%
Radio Hamburg ... 29 2% | UFA Entertainmert® 100%
RTL' 100% | FremantieMedia France® .100% } SND® . -486%
RTL 2 - .100% | 123 Productions® .. 100%
Fun Rado 100% | TV Presse® - 100%
206n50 Telovision? - 100%
Studio 89° - 48 6%
RTL Lounge - .. 100% | Blue Circle® — 100% | FremantleMedia
Four One Media® . - 100% | Operatians? . 100%
Fremantle Productions® S0%
FremantleMedia UK? - 100% | FremantleMedia
Worldwide®* — - 100%
BelRTL . 44 2% [ FremantleMedia Belgum® 100%
Radio Contact 44 2%
BCE - 100% | RTL Radio Létzebuerg - 100% CLT-UFA internationat* 100%
Enex 76 4% | Eldoratho 100%
Fremantle Pradukcya® 100%
Onda Cero 20 5%* | La Competencia de
Europa FM . . 20 5%* | Produccionas® - 100%
Magyar Grundy UFA® - 100%
FramanileMedia
North Amenca? 100%
Original Productions? 75%
Radical Media® - . 625%
Ludia® 80%
Fremantle Produchons
Latin America® . 100%
FremantieMedia Australia® - 100%
FremantleMeadta Italia® 100%
Blu, Denmark?® 100%
Fremantle Entertamment,
Finland® _ 100%
Fremantle Svenge, Sweden® 100%
FremantieMedia India
TV Productions® 100%

Prncipal businesses — exterlad hist on pages 204 to 209 (1) Programmes broadcast by CLT-UFA under & Luxembourg icense {2) FremantieMeda has operstions
22 countnas inclugkng Branl Canadsa, China, India Indonesia, Mexco, Poland, Portugal Russia Swrizerland, and Turkey (3} A FremartieMedia company (4) Global

{5) A Groupa M8 company (6) After deduction of treasury shares held by the entity (7) Cable chanma! Reflek

stoppad broadi

g on 1 January 2013

RTL GROUP

ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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Each RTL Group profit centre 1s led by its own CEQ.
This allows each to be an entrepreneur, and act quickly
and ftexibly m tts local market. However, each profit
centre can draw on the understanding and expertise of
other RTL. Group companies - to replicate successes,
pass oh ideas, and learn from mistakes. The RTL Group
Corparate Centre tn Luxembourg facilitates this collab-
aration.

Indeed, the central management sets tha strategy for the
Group, and this was one of the man tasks of the Executive
Committee In 2012 This committee, newly reconstituted fol-
lowing the management change at the top of the Group. con-
sists of three Executive Directors - that 1s, the two Co-CEQOs
and the CFQ

“The Executive Commuttee this year conducted a comprehen-
sive review of our corporate strategy,” says Elmar Heggen,
CFOQ, “We have many growth opportunities, and together with
the management teams in our operations, we have defined
three main investment areas broadcast, content and digital

“We are committed to
giving the Synergy
Committees an even higher
profile in our
network of companies.”

ELMAR HEGGEN, CFQ OF RTL GROUP

RTL Group's Operations Management Committee (OMC} 15
the principal forum for Group-wide discussion and decision-
making, attended by all the profit centre CEOQs and senior
executives from the Corporate Centre The OMC identifies
speaific areas for study by Synergy Committees (Sycos}, the
next layer down in a classic pyramid structure

Throughout RTL Group's decentraised organisation, these
Sycos have become one of the major means for shanng infor-
mation and knowledge Executives and specialists from across
the Group meet regularly to discuss matters such as market
trends, new ideas and best practice in an atmosphere of trust
and open discussion Elmar Heggen confirms “We are com-
mitted to gving the Sycos an even higher profile v our net-
work of companies "

The Sycos each generally meet twice a year, though some are
schaduled more fraquently So useful are they that the number
of committees has grown over tme, and now covers pro-
gramming, news, radio, advertising sales, new media, busi-
ness affars, marketing research and programme research,
with the facility to convene a spectal Syco for a specialist topic
on request

HOW WE WORK

OPERATIONS MANAGEMENT
COMMITTEE (OMC)

ANKE SCHAFERKORDT Co-Chief Executive Officer,

RTL Group,

Chef Executive Officer,

Mediengruppe RTL Deutschiand
GUILLAUME DE POSCH Co-Chwf Executive Officer,

RTL Group
DAWN AIREY President, CLT-UFA UK TV
CHRISTOPHER BALDELLI  Chief Executive Officer,

RTL Radto {France)
ALAIN BERWICK Chief Executive Officer RTL Letzebuerg
OLIVER FAHLBUSGH* Senior Vice President,

Corporate Commurications & Marketing,

RTL Group
CECILE FROT-COUTAZ Chief Exacutive Ofiicer, fremantieMedia
PHILIPPE DELUSINNE Chief Executive Officer, RTL Belgum
VINCENT DE DORLODOT  General Counsel, RTL Group
DIRK GERKENS Chief Executive Officer, RTL ¥ub
ALEXANDER GLATZ Exacutive Vice President,

Strategy & Controlling, RTL Group
BERT HABETS Chief Executive Officer RTL Nederland

ELMAR HEGGEN Chref Financia Officer,

Head ot the Corporate Centre, RTL Group

ROMAIN MANNELLI Executiva Vice President, HR, RTL Group

ANDREAS RUDAS Exscutive Vica President, Regional
Operations & Business Davelopmant

CEE and Asia, ATL Group

NICOLAS DE TAVERNOST Prasident du Directowe, Groupe M&

GERT ZIMMER Chief Executive Officer,
RTL Radio Deutschiand

EDUARDD ZULYETA Consultant, Managing Diractor,
Mabuat (Spain)

JOHANNES ZOLL Chief Executive Officer, RTL Hrvatska

“Permanent guest

RTL GROUP ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

RTL GROUP

ANKUAL REPORT 2012

ANKE SCHAFERKGRDT
Co-Chief Executive Officer
since 18 Apnj 2012

Anke Schaferkaordt, born in 1962,

has been CEQ of RTL Television

since Septernber 2005 In Novermnber
2007, tha German RTL family of
channels adopted the brand name
Mediengruppe RTL Deutschland

in her capacity as CEQ of RTL Telewision,
Anke Schalerkordt 1s also CEO

of Mediengruppe RTL Deutschland

After receming her degree 1n business
administration, Anke Schaferkordt
began her career at Bertelsmann AG In
1988 In 1991 she went {o Cologns to
become an executive assistant for sales
controling and strategic planming at
RTL Plus {now RTL Telewision), taking
over the contralling department the
following year From 1983 to 1995 she
was a Director in charge of the Corpo-
rate Planning and Controling division
at RTL Telewision In 1985 she moved
to TV broadcaster Vox, serving as

CFQ and, from 1997 onwards, also as
Programme Director From 1999

until 2005 Anke Schaferkerdt was CEQ
of Vox In February 2005 she was
appointed Chief Operating Officer and
Deputy CEQ of RTL Tslewision, respon-
sible for Finance, Technical Serices,
Information and Media Policy as well as
the General Secretanat, the advertising
sates unit IP Deutschland, the Vox
channel and RTL Group's holdings in
N-TV and Super RTL

Since 18 Apnt 2012, Anke Schafsrkordt
has been Co-CEQ of RTL Group In this
capacity, she stil retains her role as CEQ
of Medengruppe RTL Deutschiand

She also sits on the Executive Board of

Bertelsmann Management SE,

RTL Group'’s majonty shareholder

Mandates in hsted companies Member of
the Supsrwisory Boards of BASF SE, Ludwigs-
hafert, and of Software AG, Darmstadt

FIRST APPQINTED 18 APRIL 2012

GUILLAUME DE POSCH
Co-Chief Executive Officer
singe 18 Apnl 2012

Guillaume de Posch, hom in 1958,
started his career at the international
energy and services company Tractebel
{1985 to 1990) and then joined the
global management consutting firm
McKinsay & Company (1990 to 1993}

Guillaume de Posch began his career n
the media industry at the Compagnie
Luxembourgeoise de Télédiffusion (CLT)
as assistant to the Managing Director
(1993 to 1994) and then became

Head of CLT's TV operations in French-
speaking countnes (1995 to 1997)
From 1997 to 2003, he was Deputy
General Manager and Programming
Dwector of the French pay-TV company
TPS, before joining the publicly hsted
ProSiebenSatt Media AG in August
2003, first as Chief Operating Officer
and then as Chairman of the Executive
Board and CEO (2004 to 2008)

Guillaume de Posch was appointed
Chief Operating Officer and a new
membaer of the RTL Group Executive
Committee on 1 January 2012

With effect from 18 Apnl 2012,

Guillaurne de Posch assumed the role
of Co-CEQO of RTL Group

FIRST APPQINTED 18 APRIL 2012




THE BOARD

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

ELMAR HEGGEN
Chef Financial Qfficer
and Head of the Corporate Centre

Elmar Heggen, borm in 1868, holds a
dipfoma in business administration from
the European Bustness Scheal, and
graduated with a Master of Business
Administration {MBA) in finance

In 1992, he started kus career at the
Felix Schoeller Group, becoming Vice
President and General Manager of
Felix Schoeller Digital Imaging in the
UK n 1299 Elmar Heggen first jained
the RTL Group Corporate Centre in
2000 as Vice President Mergers and
Acquisitions In January 2603, he was
promoted to Senior Vice President
Controling and livestments  From July
2003 untl December 2005 he was
Executive Vice President Strategy and
Controling

Since January 2006, Elmar Heggen

has served on the ATL Group

Executive Management team, and since
1 October 2008 he has been CFO

and Head of the Corporate Centre of
RTL Group

Mandates in histed comparnies
Member of the Board of
Directors of Regus PLC, London

FIRST APPOINTED 18 APRIL 20112

GERHARD ZEILER
Chief Executive Officer
{until 18 Aprik 2012}

Gerhard Zeler, born In 1955 1In Vienna
(Austna), Joinad RTL Group in November
1998 when he was appointed

Chigf Exacutive Officer {(CEQ)

of RTL Tefewision in Cologne In thig
capacity, Zeller was responsible for
the German RTL family of channels
(RTL Televtsion, Vox, HTL il, Super RTL,
N-TV] In March 2003 Garhard Zeller
was addonally apponted CEOQ

of RTL. Group He handed cver the
management of RTL Telewision to
Anke Schiferkordt n Septerber 2005
to fully concentrate on RTL Group's
international entertainment retwork

in his functron as CEQ of RTL Group,
Gerhard Zeiler was a memioer of

the Supervisory Boards of Groupe M6
in France and RTL Telewision in
Germany He was a member of the
Bertelsmann AG Executive Board
from October 2005 to Apnl 2012

Gerhard Zeller began his career as a
freslance journatist and then became
press spokesman for the Austran
ivirister for Education and the Arts,

Or Fred Smnowatz, whom he eventually
foliowed to the Federal Chancellor's
Office in 1983 Later he continued
warking i the same capacity for
Federal Chancellor Or Franz Vranitzky
In 1986 he became Secretary-General
of the Austrian public broadcaster,
ORF. n Vienna After a two-year penod
as CEOQ of Tele 5 and a further two-
year penod as CEO of RTLII, he was
elacted Chief Executive Officer of

ORF 1n 1894 and stayed in thus position
untl November 1998

FIRST APPOINTED 4 MARCH 2003
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THE BOARD

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

THOMAS RABE

Chainman since 18 Apnl 2012

Chairman and CEQ,
Bertelsmann SE & Co KGaA

Thomas Rabe, born in 1965, holds a
diploma and a doctorate in economics
from the Uruversity of Cologne (Germa-
ny) He started his career in 1989 at
the European Commission n Brussels
From 1990 to 1996 he held vanous
senior posiions at Fomrester Norall &
Sutton (now White & Case) in Brussels
as well as the state pnvatisatron agency
Treuhandanstalt and a venture capital
fund in Berlin In 1996, he jomed Cedel
Intermational (Clearstream, following
the merger with Deutsche Borse
Cleanng) where he was appointed
Chief Financial Officer and membber of
the Managerment Board in 1998

In 2000, Themas Rabe became Chief
Fiancial Officer and member of the
Executive Commitiee of RTL Group

In March 2003 he was aiso appointed
Head of the Corporate Centre with
responsibility for the Luxembourgish
actwvities of RTL Group He was Chief
Financial Officer and Head of the
Corporate Centre of Bertelsmann AG
from 1 January 2006 to 31 December
2011 Since 1 January 2012, Thomas
Rabe has been Chairman and CEQ
of Bertelsmann AG, now Bertelsmann
SE & Co KGaA

Comenittee membership

Audit, Nomunation and Compensation
Mandates ih hsted compames
Chairman of the Supernsory Board of
Symnse AG, Hotzminden

FIRST APPOINTED 12 DECEMBER 2005
(EFFECTIVE 1 JANUARY 2008}
RE-ELECTED 18 APRIL 2012

RTL GROUP ANNUAL REPORT 2012

SIEGFRIED LUTHER
Chairman {ustil 18 April 2012}

Siegfried Luther, borm in 1944, was
Chret Financial Officer (from 1990) and
Deputy Chairman of the Executve
Board {from 2002} of Bertelsrmann AG,
Gitersloh He retred at the end of 2005
Between 1974 and 1990 he held vanous
servor positons at Bertelsmann AG,

In taxes, group accountng and treasury,
and in carporate finance He graduated
as a dactor of law from the Unversity
of Mlnster (Gerrnany)

Comrmittee membership

Audit, Normination and Compensation
Mandates in listed companies
Non-exacutive member of the Board of
Directors of Compagme Natonale 2
Portefaulla SA, Loverval (untl June 2011)

FIRST APPOINTED 24 JULY 2000

MARTIN TAYLOR

Vice-Chaiman, Independent Girector

Martin Taylor, born in 1952, began

his career as a financial journalist

with Reuters and the Financial Times
He then joined Courtaulds PLG,
becoming a director in 1987, then
Chief Executive of Gourtaulds Textiles
PLC on its demerger in 1990 He
moved to Barclays PLC in 1983 as
Chief Executive, a post he held untit the
end of 1988 From 1999 to 2003 he
was Charman of WH Smith PLC, and
from 1999 to 2005, International Adwisor
to Goldman Sachs Currently he i1s
Chairman of the Board of Syngenta AG

He has worked on vanous projects for
the Bntish Government and served for
five years as a member of its Council
for Science and Technology Appointed
as independent, non-exscutive director
n July 2000 (when RTL Group was
creatad), he took over the responsibii-
ties of Vice-Charman of the Board in
December 2004

Committee membership

Audit, Nomination and Compensation
{Charman)

Mandatas in isted comparies

Chairman of the Board of Syngenta AG (CH}

FRST APPOINTED 25 JULY 2000
RE-ELECTED 18 APRIL 2012




THE BOARD

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

THOMAS HESSE
Member of the Bertetsmann
Managemant SE Executive Board

Thomas Hesse, born in 1966, holds a
doctorate In econamics and began

tis career in 1991 as a consuftant with
McKinsey & Company, lsavng In

1686 to joir what 1s now RTL Group,
and subsequently taking on vanous
axecutive positions within Bertelsmann
until 2008

Following the 2004 merger of BMG and
Sony Music, Thomas Hesse served as
head of the worldwide digital business
and Chief Strategist at Sony BMG —
now Sony Music Entertainment, from
2005 to 2010 In this postion he was
also responsible for US sales

In November 2011, Thomas Hesse
was appointed to the Bertelsmann AG
Executive Board His tasks are to
advance the group’s business develop-
ment, buld new businesses for
Bertelsmann, and facilitate the digrtal
transformation of the core businesses
In this rols ha 1s responsible for the
growth platforms Bertelsmann Digital
Madia Investments (BDM) and
Bertalsrmann Asia Investments {BAI),
for the Educaton business, and

for the halding n the BMG music rights
company

FIRST APPOINTED 12 DECEMBER 2011
(EFFECTIVE 1 JANUARY 2012)
RE-ELECTED 18 APRIL 2012

BERND KUNDRUN

investor

Bernd Kundrun, born in 1957, studied
business administration at the universities
of Munster and Innsbruck In 1984, he
started his career as Executive Assistant
at the Bertelsrmann Ciub In 1983, he was
appomted Charman of the Board of
Management of the Bertelsmann Cluk

In 1894, Bermd Kundrun became
Managing Director of Pramiere Medien in
Hamburg He was apponted a member
of tha Executiva Board of Gruner + Jahr
in August 1997 and was responstble

far the company's newspaper dwsion
until 31 October 2000

From Novemnber 2000 to 6 January 2009,
Bemnd Kundrun was Chairman of

Gruner + Jdahr's Executive Board and the
company's CEQ During this tme, he was
also a member of the Executive Board

of Bertelsmann Since February 2009,
Bernd Kundrun has been partner of the
onlne donaton platform Betterplace org
and since 2010 he has been Chairman

of the Superwsory Board of Gut org

At the end of 2009, Bernd Kundrun
founded the Start 2 Ventures
Beteligungsgesellschaft which provides
online startups with inttal caprtal Further-
more he 15 a member of the Board of
Directors of Newe Zircher Zertung, and of
the Supenvisory Board of CTS Eventtm

FIRST APPOINTED 18 APRIL 2012

JACQUES SANTER
Chairman of the Board of CLT-UFA,
Independent Director

Before Jacques Santer, bornin 1937,
became Charman of the Board of
CLT-UFA in May 2004, his distinguished
career covered a variety of political roles
including Member of the European
Pariament (1874 to 1979 and 1899 to
2004), Pnme Minister of Luxembourg
{1984 to 1995) and President of the
European Gommission (1995 to 1996)

FIRST APPOINTED 9 DECEMBER 2004
RE-ELECTED 18 APRIL 2012
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THE BOARD

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

ROLF SCHMIDT-HOLTZ

Business founder and investor

Rolf Schrmidt-Holtz, born mn 1948 in
Martinsreuth, Germany, 15 an exarmined
fawyer and studied political science and
psychology Rolf Schmidt-Holtz has
been an ndependent business founder
and investor since Apnl 2011 He was
CEQ of Sony Music Entertainment from
February 2006 {until October 2008
Sony BMG Music Entertainment) to
March 2011 Prior to this appointment,
he served the company as Chairman
of the Board from August 2004

From January 2001 to August 2004, he
was Charman and CEO of Bertelsmann
Music Group (BMG) At the same time,
Rolf Schmidt-Holtz was a member

of the Bertetsmann AG Executive Board
{from 2000) and headed the BMG dwv-
sion, which consisted of the Sony BMG
Music Entertainment joint venture and
BMG Music Publishing He also served
the Bertelsmann Executive Board as
Chief Creative Officer Schmidt-Holtz
was also a member of the Supervisory
Boards of Gruner + Jahr and

RTL Group He s a member of the
Bertelsmann Stiftung foundation’s
Board of Trustees

Prior to running BMG, Schrmidt-Holtz
served as Chief Executive Officer of
CLT-UFA. He later oversaw the merger
of CLT-UFA with Pearson Television

to form RTL Group He s Co-Founder
and Chairman of Just Software AG
and Co-Founder and Partner of Hanse
Ventures GmbH

Committee membership
Norminabion and Compensabion

FIRST APPOINTED 18 APRIL 2012

ANNUAL REPORT 2012

JAMES SINGH

Independent Director

James Singh, born in 1946, joined
Nestle Canada as Financial Analyst in
1977 and served the company in
various executive positicns until

2000 when he was appointed Sentor
Vice President, Acquisitons and
Business Development, iIn Nestid SAs
headquarters in Vevey, Switzerland
James Singh was a member of

the Executive Board and Chief Financial
Cficer of Nestle SA from 2008 to 2012
He retired on 31 March 2012 after

a long and distinguished career of

35 years with Nestle

He serves as Chairman of the
Finance Committes of the European
Round Table, as well as member of
the International Integrated Financial
Reporting Standard Commitiee

Commuttee membership
Audit (Chayrman)

FIRST APPOINTED 18 APRIL 2012




EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

ANKE SCHAFERKORDT
Co-Chief Executive Officer

In her capactty as Co-CEOQ of RTL Group, Anke Schaferkordt Is responsible for
the Group's largest profit centre, Mediengruppe RTL Deutschland, for which she
also continues to serve as CEC

GUILLAUME DE POSGH

Co-Chief Executive Oificer

In his capacity as Go-CEO of RTL Group, Gullaurme de Posch 1s responsible
for the Group's broadcasting operations cutside Gerrmany, and the company’s
production business

ELMAR HEGGEN

Chief Financiat Officer
and Head of the Corporate Centre

In his capacity as CFQ and Head of the Corporate Centre of RTL Group,
Elmar Heggen controls Finance and Legal Me also oversees the Group's operations
in Luxembourg and Spain, and UFA Sports

ANDREAS RUDAS*
Executive Vice President,
Regional Operations & Business Develapment
GEE and Asia

Andreas Rudas, borm it 1953, worked with the Austnan public broadcaster ORF

from 1986 to 1997, eventually as Secretary-General from 1994 to 1997 In this role, he
was responsible for business planning, media, marketing and satelite broadcasting
Starting m 2000, he held vanous positions at Magna International Europe, and was
amember of the Management Board from 2001 to 2005 Since December 2005,
Andreas Rudas was Executive Director of WAZ Ost Holding (a subsidiary of WAZ
Media Group), responsible for Austna, South Eastern Europe and Vietnam

Andreas Rudas was appainted Executive Vice President Regional Operations &
Business Development CEE and Asia with effect from 1 January 2002 In this capacity,
he oversees RTL Group’s operations in Croatia, Hungary, Russia, and Germany {racha),
and explores bustness opporiunss i Central and Eastern Europe, and in Asia

GERHARD ZEILER
Chief Executive Officer {umtl 18 Apsd 2012}

In addiion to his roles as Executive Director and CEQ of RTL Group, Gerhard Zerler
was in charge of programme and synergies throughout all cperations He oversaw
the operations In Germany (television), France (television} and FremantieMedia

RTL Group Corporate Communications, Public Affairs & Marketing also reported to
hin, as did Hurman Resources, which also reports to the CFO

The Executve Committee keeps the Board of Directors informed on the results of the Group and its mamn profit
centres on a regular basis The compensation of the members of the Executive Committee 1s determined by
the Nomunation and Compensation Committee, and 1s composed of a fixed and a varable part (see note 10.3. to

the consolidated financial statements).

* Permarient guast
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

HIGHLIGHTS

The Directors are pleased to present their report to the shareholders, with details on the
businesses and the development of the Group, together with the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2012 on pages 144 to 209.

Yeer to Year to
Decamber December
2mz2 2011 Per cent
£m €m change
Revenue 5,998 5,765 +4.0
Underlying revenue’ 5,872 5,704 +2.9
Reported EBITA? 1,078 1,134 (4.9)
Reported EBITA margn (%) 18.0 19.7
Reported EBITA 1,078 1,134
Impairment of iInvestment in associates and amoertisation and imparrment
of farr value adjustments on acquisitions of subsidianes and joint ventures (92) {19)
Re-measurement of earn-out arangements 2 -
Gain/(Loss) from sale of subsidiaries, other Investments and
re-measurement to farr value of pre-existing nterest in acquiree (9} 107
EBIT 979 1,222 (19 9}
Net financial expense (11) (29)
. e Income tax expense 277) (302)
! s,alm,:d ,,:‘:m thﬂ,,andg Profit for the year from continuing operations 691 891
the A f cable channels
e B o oo ot Loss for the year from discontinued operations (1) (o6}
scope changes and atf constant Profit for the year 690 795 (1 3-2)
exchanga ratas
2 EBITA oo ope ) Attnbutable to
represents earmings befars inferast ~— Non-controlling interests 93 99
D et e of dorast oo — RTL Group shareholders 597 696 (14.2)
and amaorisation and smpasment
of far valse adustments on
acqusstons of subsidianes and oint Basic EPS continuing operations {in €) 3.89 5.01
fa;”'fw';mf:";gmgfm Basic EPS discontinued operations {in €) oo {0 48)
eam-out arangements and gan or Reported EPS {in €} 388 453
lass from sale of subsidianes, other
nvesiments and re-measurement
{6 far valye of pre-exsting mierest Proposed/paid total dwvidend per share {in €) 10.50 5.10

" aoquinee
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RTL Group headlines

a Reported Group revenue up 4 0 per cent to €60
bilhon, reflecting higher revenue from Meden-
gruppe RTL Deutschland and FremantleMedia,
and exchange rate effects

a For the third consecutive year, RTL Group gener-
ated an EBITA of more than €1 bilkon, despite an
increasingly challenging ecanomic envirgnment
# EBITA decreased 4 9 per cent to €1,078 mithon
as a significantly higher profit contnbution from
the German TV operations was offset by lower
resuits from operations facing challenging market
conditions In other countrres, higher investment
In programming, and portfolio effects such as the
disposal of the Dutch radio stations

u Raported EBITA margin remains at a healthy level
of 18 C per cent (2011 19 7 per cent)

® Net profit atinbutable to RTL Group shareholders
down to €597 millon (2011 €696 milion), matnly
due to an impaiment amounting to €72 mdlion on

A more efficient capital structure, providing sufficient flexibility to invest

s On 24 February 2013, RTL Group’s Board of
Drrectors decided to distribute an intenm dividend,
compnsing an ordnary dvidend of €5 1 per share
and an extraordinary dividend of €5 4 per sharg

= Tha total dividend amounting to €1 6 billon will
be funded by the Group's net cash position and
by debt n the form of shareholder loans from
Baertelsmann pravided at arm's length terms and at
current market condiions The dwvidends will be
pad on 7 March 2013

u Ag a rasult of this, RTL Group will have a 2012 net
debt to EBITDA ratic of around 05 tmes This
conservative level of geanng creates a more effi-
cient capital structure, 10 ine with the industry, and
still provides sufficient flexibiity to invest

DIRECTORS® REPORT

RTL Group’s shareholding n the Spanish broad-
caster Grupo Antena 3

u Ngt cash from aperating actvties was €925 mil-
hion, resutting in an operating cash conversion of
101 per cant and a net cash positon of €1,051
rmilton at the end of 2012

= Throughout 2012, European TV advertising mar-
kets clearly reflected local macro-economic devel-
opments while the German TV advertising market
was shghtly up, the French, Dutch and Belgran
markets were estimated to be down year-on-year,
with a significant slowdown over the second haff of
the year, markets in Spain, Hungary and Croatia
continued to see a more pronounced decline

w43 per cent of RTL Group's revenue onginates
from a broad range of non-adverbsing activities
such as content production, nghts trading, tele-
shopping, e-commerce, and merchandising

u The Board also approved a new dnadend policy
going forward, targeting a pay-out ratio of 50to 75
per cent of the adusted consolidated net profit
atmbutable 1o RTL Group sharehclders

® RTL Group notes that Bertelsmann 1s considenng
a reduction of is shareholding n RTL Group
through a capital market transaction, while main-
taning a qualfied maonty of approximately 75 per
cent While the Supervisory Board of Bertelsmann
has in principle approved a potental reduction of
shares in RTL Group, no final decision has been
taken yet on whether or not Bertelsmann will offer
any part of its shareholding In RTL Group We ex-
pect Bertelsmann to release further information as
and when appropnate
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Profit centre highlghts

a Mediengruppe RTL Deutschland achieved a com-
ned audience share of 33 7 per cent among
young viewers aged 14 to 49, and remained the
clear market leader, 5 9 percentage points ahead
of its man commercial competitor EBITA in-
creased by 9 B per cent to €581 million - the best
gver full-year operating profit for RTL Group's larg-
est profit cantre

s In France, M8 was agan the enly maor French
channel to Increase its total audience share year-
on-year As a result, the combined total audience
share of Groupe M6 grew to 15 5 per cant EBITA
of Groupe M6 decreased to €224 millon as a re-
sult of lower advertising revenue and programming
investment related to the Euro 2012 football cham-
ponship

= BTL Nederland attracted a combined pnme time
audiencs share of 32 3 per cent in the commercial

target group, with a significant lead of 12 3 per-
centage points gver its main commercial compet-
itor Following record results in 2011, EBITA
decreased to €97 millon due to a weaker TV
advertising market and scope changes resulting
fram the extt of the Dutch radio stations

= FramantieMedia, RTL Group's content production
arm, continued to produce number one pnme time
shows for the leading broadcasters in almost every
major TV markst n the world, the company’s
revenue grew by 19 7 per cent, dnven by growth in
the US, UK, Germany and Asia-Paciic, exchange
rate effects, and recharges without margins to
thrd partes for certan production contracts,
ERITA decreased shghtly to €138 muillan

® RTL Belgium and the RTL radio family in France
remained clear markst leaders and generated
stable profit contributions

RTL Group makes good progress n all strategic fields - broadcasting, content and digital

Broadcast m |n total, RTL Group launched five new TV channels
n 2012 — a sgnficant investment to further
strengthen the broadcasting business
=1 Apnl 2012 launch of digital free-TV channel
RTL Nrtro n Germany This is the most success-
ful channel launch m recent years, with an aud-
ence share of 0 7 per cent among young viewers
in December 2012

x | September 2012 launch of digital children’s
channel RTL Telelads in the Netherlands

= 1 October 2012 launch of family entertamment
cable channel RTL Il in Hungary, n the penod
October to Decernber 2012, RTL |l attracted an
average audience share of 0 8 per cent among
viawers aged 18 to 49

Content = FremantleMedia’s key formats capture mass audi-
ences around the globe
» American Idol has besen the number one anter-
tanment senes in the US - the biggest TV mar-
ket worldwide - for the past ning years
= With an average total audience share of 40 8 per
cent, Britain’s Got Talent was the highest rated
entertainment senes in the UK for 2012
= The local versions of The Farmer Wants A Wife in
France, the Netherlands and Germany contnued
to score excellent ratings, with audience shares
of up to 43 7 per cent

® FremantieMedia’s new management team has put
a clear focus on fusling its creative pipeline, devel-
oping new formats and bullding brands, across a
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= 5 November 2012 launch of action entertan-
ment channel Big RTL Thnltin Indra, RTL Group’s
first broadecasnng venture outside of Europe, the
channel already reaches more than 25 millicn
households

=12 December 2012 launch of Bter in France,
Groupe M6's new general entertainment channe!
for the whole family 6ter has quickly become the
audience leader amang the six new DTT chan-
nels launched in France at that tme

broad range of genres, while mantaining market

leadership in its core business areas

a The new structure anncunced on 1 February
2013 will create a Digital & Branded Entertan-
ment dvision alongside a new global division fo-
cused on distnbution and kids and family enter-
fanment Other commercial ancillary actvties
will be undertaken by the local production com-
panies

aThe kidds and family entertainment dmsion has
signed a new five-year partnership with BBC
Children’s to develop and co-produce a continu-
ous sequence of new children’s programmes




Digttal

= RTL Group's online platforms and on-demand
offers across Europe collectively generated more
than 2 4 bilkon wideo wiews of professionally pro-
duced content in 2012 — up 25 per cent year-

on-year

s Mobile video views increased by 58 per cent to
118 milion in Germany and by 119 per cent to
70 5 million in France

® RTL Group's ontne network compnses more than
200 websites, reaching an average 61 milion
unigue users a morith

2 0n 17 October 2012, RTL Nederland announced
the acqusition of Videostnp, the Netherand's
leacding conline wideo advertising network, which
generated 1 3 billon wideo views and delivered
392 million ads in 2012

DIREGTORS" REPORT

» FremantleMedia has become the highest-rated TV
producer on Youtube, with 107 channels register-
ing 4 5 billion wews in 2012
= The Youtube channels for the UK versions of X
Factor and Got Tafent have generated well over a
bilion hits around the world

u in addhon to ts established TV format brands,
fremantieMedia launched four Youtube-funded
channels n 2012 The move 1s part of the com-
pany's strategy to produce onginal, quality pro-
grammung for muttiple media platforms
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3 Inchstry/IREP and ATL Group
estmates
4 Sowce. GK. Target group. 14-49
5 Sowce Groupe ME estimate
§ Sowrce Médflamdéine Tamet groun.
housewves under 50 (inckang
channels)

digaal

7 Source. SKO Target group 20-49
18-24h

8 Source Audméire Targe! groug
shappers 18-54 17-23h

9 Source. infoadex and
Grupo Antena 3 esirnate

1& Source TNS Sofres Terget group
16-54 finchydng digital channels,
but excluding La Sexts)

11 Sowrce. AGB Hungsry Target group
1849 prrne trne (inchiding cable
channak)

12 Source. AGE Nrelsen Media
Resemch Target group. 18—49

13 EBITDA represenis CBIT axcluding
amaortisation and impawmnent of
non curent programne gnd other
nghis, of goodwil and dispasal
group, of other rmangible assets,

bon and inparment
of property, plant and equapment,
rmpesment of yvestments n
associales, re-messuwrernent of eam-
out armangements and gam or loss
from safe of subsidianes, other
nvestments and re-measurement
to far vakwe of pre existing wrerest
n acquree
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REVENUE

Throughout 2012, European TV advertising markets clearly reflected local macro-economic
developments: while the German TV advertising market was slightly up, the French, Duich and
Belgran markels were estimated to be down year-on-year, with a significant slowdown over

the second haif of the year The markets in Spamn, Hungary and Croatia coniinued tc see a more

pranounced decline.

A summary of RTL Group’s key markets ts shown below, including estimates of net
advertising market growth rates and net advertising market shares, plus the audience share

of the main target audience group

ATL Group HATL Graup

2012 nat TV HTL Group RTL Group audience audience

advertismg market advertismg adverhaing share in mam share i man

growth rate market share 2012 market share 2011  torget group 2012 targat group 2011

{in per cent) {in per cent) {in per cent) {in per cent} (in per cant)

Germany +103 44 4 437 3374 3504
France {6 0)5 240 234 22 9¢ 2308
Netherlands {5 4)2 473 477 3237 3527
Belgium {r 7?2 715 710 36 3° 37 88
Spain {18 9)¢ 352 305 19 210 1841
Hungary (14 7)3 540 479 37 31 4071
Croatia {9 0)? 368 408 24 3% 255”2

Revenue ncreased by 4 0 per cent to €5,998 millon
(2011 €5,765 mufion) On a like-for-lke basis
(adjusting for portfolo changes and at constant
exchange rates) revenue was up 2 9 per cent, or
€168 milion, to €5,872 mulkon

EBITA

Reported EBITA decreased by 4.9 per cent to €1,078 miilion (2011. €1,134 million} Challenging
market conditions, higher investment in programming and portfolio effects such as the disposal
of the Dutch radic stations offset a significantly improved lovel of profitability at Mediengruppe
RTL Deutschland. The Group’s EBITDA"™ for continuing operations was € 1,257 milhion (2011:
€1,306 nuilion), resulting in an EBITDA margin of 21 0 per cent (2011. 22.7 per cent).

Group operating expenses wera up 5 9 per cent at
€4,892 millon in 2012 compared to €4,715 million
in 2011 Excluding foreign exchange rate effects and
the recharges without margins to third parties at
FremantleMedia, costs were up €165 milion or 3 4
per cent
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REVIEW BY SEGMENTS
Year to Yaar to
December December Per cent
2012 2011 Per cent of total
Revenue £m €m change 2012
Mediengruppe RTL Deutschiand 1,882 1,912 +37 331
Groupe M6 1,387 1,421 (2 4) 231
FremantleMedia 1,711 1,429 +197 285
RTL Nederland 43 491 (122) 72
ATL Belgum 210 216 {2 8) 35
French radio 180 184 (2 2) 30
Other segments 304 330 (7 9) 51
Ekminations (207) {218) (5 0) (35
Total revenue 5,998 5,765 +40 100.0
Year to Year ta

December December Per cent

2012 2011 Per cent of total

EBITA €m €m change 2012
Meadiengruppe RTL Deutschland 581 529 +98 539
Groupe M6 224 249 (100} 208
FremantleMedia 138 143 (3 9) 128
RTL Nederland a7 134 (27 B) 90
ATL Belgium 45 46 22 41
French radto 30 30 - 28
Other segments (37) 3 na (3 4)
Reported EBITA 1,078 1,134 (4.9) 100.0
Yoar to Yearto  Percentage

Decemnber point

12 2011 chiange

EBITA margins per camt per cent

Mediengruppe RTL Deutschland 293 277 +16
Groupe M6 161 175 4
FremantleMedia 81 100 (1 9)
RTL Nederland 225 273 (48)
RTL Belgum 214 213 +01
French radio 167 163 +04
Other segments na. 09 na
RTL Group 18.0 19.7 1.7m
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MEDIENGRUPPE
RTL DEUTSCHLAND
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Financial results

In 2012, Mediengruppe RTL Deutschland continued to outperform

the German TV advertising market - which was estimated to be shghtly up,
by 1.0 per cent — and increased 1ts combined net share (including RTL {i)

to 44.4 per cent (2011. 43.7 per cent}

Overall revenue of Mediengruppe RTL Deuischland grew by 3.7 per cent
to €1,982 rmuilion (2011 € 1,912 milion), mamly driven by ligher TV advertising
revenue from the unit’s two mamn channels, RTL Television and Vox. Due
to ongoing cosi control measures, EBITA increased strongly by 9.8 per cent
to €581 million (2011- €529 muilion) — the unit’s best ever full-year
operating profit At 29.3 per cent, the profit margmn also reached a new

‘ record level (2011: 27.7 per cent).

Audience ratings
In Germany, the 2012 ratings were impacted by

ne-::rbg nectﬂ‘é?i maor sporting events, including the Euro 2012 foot-
22‘: “ﬁ‘"" P;" a‘ifﬂ"; ball championship and the Summer Olympics, both
of which were ared on the public broadcasters
ARD/Das Erste and ZOF 2012 also saw an acceler-
1,982 1,912 3.7
Revenue 2 8 hd ated fragmentation of the TV landscape, with the
EBITA 581 529 798 launch of new channels and the switch-off of ana-

logue satellite broadcasting, resuting in audience
share losses for all of the three biggest commercial
TV channefs At the same tme, niche channels (with
an audience share below 2 0 per cent In the targset
group) collectively increased therr audience shares
by 2 3 percentage ponts

The combined average audience share of Medien-
gruppe RTL Deutschiand in the key 14 to 49 target
group amounted to 33 7 per cent {2011 350 per
cent} — iIncluding the new chanrel RTL Nitro which
was launched in Apnl The RTL family of channels
was clearly ahead of ts man commercial competitor
ProSiebenSat1 (27 8 per cent) and the public broad-
casters (22 7 per cent)

With an audience share of 15 9 per cent in the tar-
get group of viewers aged 14 o0 48 in 2012 (2011
18 4 per cent), RTL Television remained viewars’
number-one choice for the 20" consecutive year,
and by a large margin — 4 6 percentage points
ahead of the second-highest rated channel, Pro Ste-
ben In terms of total audience, RTL Telewvision was
on a par with ARD/Das Erste (both 12 3 per cent)
and slightly behind ZDF (12 6 per cent)
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RTL Television
Source, GIK Targat 14-49

TV audience share
2008-2H2 (%)

159
184
18 1
169
157

RTL Telewision scored high ratings across all genres,
frorn entertanment shows, Ive sporting events and
daly soaps to factual entertanment and fiction
formats Its big TV events continued to reach mass
audiences At the beginning of the year, the sixth
ssason of ich bin en Star — Holt mich feer raus! 'm A
Celebnty  Get Me Qut Of Here) attracted an aver-
age 6 69 millon viewers The average audience share
among viewers aged 14 1o 49 was 37 7 per cemt

On Easter Sunday, the movie Avalar was watched
by an average 7 04 rmilion viewers, representing a
35 0 per cent audience share among young viewers
Lwve broadcasts of the Formula One races attracted
an average 34 0 per cent of the total audience In
2012 As many as 12 92 milion viewers tuned n for
the Vitall Klitschko vs Dereck Chisora boxing match
in February, which attracted 56 5 per cent of the to-
tal audience ~ making it the most-watched show on
RTL. Telewision in 2012

An average 25 7 per cent of viewers aged 14 to 49
watched RTL Telewision's talent show Deutschland
sucht den Superstar The sixth season of Rach, der
Restauranttester hit a new ratings high with an aver-
age auckence share of 22 7 per cent in the target
group of 14 to 49-year-old wiewars

The dally senes Gute Zeiten, Schiechte Zeiten (Good
Times, Bad Times) celebrated its 5,000 episode n
May, attaining an average audience share of 20 3
per cant among viewers aged 14 to 49 dunng the
reporting penod

RATL Telewision's main news programme, ATL Aktuel,
was watched by an average 17 9 per cent of view-
ers aged 14 to 49 It remained the most popular
news farmat among young audiences, despite com-
pettion from the public channels with audience
magnets such as the Olympic Games and the Euro-
pean football championshups

Vox TV audience share
Source G Teget: T4=49 2008~ 2012 {%)

77
73
77
75
75

in 2012, Vox’s audience share i the target group of
14 to 49-year-old viewers was 7 7 per cent (2011

*‘Fragment yourself before
the market does.’ With that rule
in mind we launched
a new free digital TV channel
in 2012. Less than a year
later, RTL Nitro is already a
success. So we keep developing
strong brands on the content
side while offering them
on all screens: in 2012
we generated more than 1 billion
online video views across all
of our platforms for the
first time. Again, having the
best content was key to another
record business year.”

ANKE SCHAFERKORDT,

€0-GEO, RTL GROUP,
CEO, MEDIENGRUPPE RTL DEUTSCHLAND

RTL GROUP
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7 3 per cent] The channe! registered a significant
ratings Increase In daytme audience Dunng the
13 00 to 17 OO slot on Mondays to Frndays, Vox at-
tracted an average 7 3 per cent of 14 to 48-year-old
viewers, representing a 66 per cent increase over
the previous year {2011 4 4 per cent) Especially
well received were the scnpted reality format Verkiag
much doch!, with an average audience share of 97
per cent, and Shoppmng Queen, which reached an
average 7 § per cent of wewers aged 14 to 49

The channel’s Saturday documentanes continued
to achieve geod ratings The four-hour special,
Thank You For The Music — 40 Years Of Abba, which
rarked the anniversary of the Swedish pop group
on 2 June, scored an audence share of 12 1 per
cent among viewsrs aged 14 to 49

In access pnme tme, Das perfekte Dinnar i Schiaf-
rock — the sleepover special of the cocking show
Come Dine With Me — attained #ts highest ratings
since going on ar, attracting 2 6 mithon viewers on
30 January, and an average audience share of 10 3
per cent The daly ediion of the celebnty magazine
Prominent!, ared at 20 00, proved its populanty
with a new ratings record since its launch, reaching
an average audience share of 8 5 per cent in the tar-
get group

The new US senes Azzoll & isies has settled well into
the channel's Wednasday cnme ine-up Its average
audience share in the target group was 8 7 per cent

TV audience share
2008-2012 (%)

64
56
60
62
61

RATL Il signficantly increased #ts audience share
among wviewers aged 14 10 49 to 6 4 per cent (2011

5 6 per cent), mainty dnven by ts access pnme tme
hne up, which consists of Berin — Tag & Nacht,

Privatdatektive im Einsatz and X Dianes  Also popu-
lar was the new daytime programming, with shows
such as Der Trodeftrupp and Family Stones In July,
RTL Il recorded a daytme audience share (8 00 to
20 00) of 8 4 per cant — the best figure 1n this times-
lot smce the channet launched

RTL II's vaned programming dunng prime time also
resonated well with viewers, who enjoyed its snnova-
tve gvent-scale transmission of Game Of Thrones -
Das Lied von Eis and Feuer on a single weekend
The fantasy seres scored an average audience
share of 9 7 per cent In the target group, and gave
the channal its best Sunday pnime tme ratngs
(20 15 to 23 15) since August 2010 and best Satur-
day pnme time ratings since January 2009

The channel's docu-sgaps were also popular dunng
pome tmo For example, Die Gerssens - Eing
schreckiich glamourdse Farmihe, which follows the
unusual daily life of a family of setf-made millicnarres,
was watched by an average 9 9 per cent of viewers
aged 14 to 49

Super RTL

Saurce GIFC Targsr 3-73(8-20 15K}

TV audience share
2008- 2012 (%)

231
241
228
242
232

With an audience share of 23 1 per cent {2011 241
per cent) in the target group of 3 to 13-year-olds be-
tween 6 00 and 20 15, Super RTL remains well
ahead of its two competitors, Kinderkanal (22 1 per
cent) and Nickelodeon {11 6 per cent) The channal
has been the clear leader in the German children’s
TV market for 16 consecutive years, and currently
reaches over 95 per cent of children aged 3 to 13
years in Germany, according to GfK

Super RTLs pre-school strand, Toggohno, scored
huigh average audence shares in the target group,
with formats such as Mike dar Ritter (46 G per cent)

TV audience share
Sourca GIK Targei 14-45

TV advertising share
Source. ATL Group axtimates

2008- 2012 (%)

2008- 2012 {%)

464
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and Cleo und dia Kunstpiraten (36 0 per cent) Inac-
cess prnme Ime, live-action formats such as Disney
Jessie (21 0 per cent) performed well The new se-
nes Once Upon A Time - Es war enmal  was par-
ticularly successful In pnme tme, with an average
audience share of 4 1 per cent In the target group of
14 to 49-years-olds

N-TV attracted an average audience share of 11
per cent among viewers aged 14 to 49 dunng the re-
portmng penad (2011 1 2 per cent} The N-TV news
programmes attracted up to 11 0 per cent of viewers
aged 14 to 49 while the Tefeborse, which prowdes
datly information about developments on the finan-
cial markets and the stock market, attracted up to
9 4 per cent of the target audience With the Ive
broadcast of the Red Bull Stratos event on 14 Octo-
ber, N-TV recorded an average audience share of
11 9 per cent among viewers aged 14 to 49 — the
channel's best ratings since 11 September 2001 and
the live broadcast of the bunal of Michael Jackson

With a monthly audience share of 07 per cent
among 14 to 49-year-olds i December 2012,
RTL Nitro, the latest addriion to the Madiengruppe
RTL Deutschland family of channels, ended the
year on a high note Its average ratings for 2012 -
dunng which the channel was only on air for nine
months - were an encouraging O 4 per cent among
young viewers

National audience breakdown

Source G, Target. 14-49 2012 {%)
RATL Television .. _ . 159
Vox . e e o 1
RTL I - - 64
SuperRTL ... . ... 22

' N-TV 11
RTLNitro .. .. . .04
Pro7 . - . 13
Sat1 o 99
ARD . ... _ .._TO
ZDF .. . 68
Kabel1_. __.__. ....586
Others _ . .. ... 2567

New medta and diversification activiies

RTL iInteractive 1s responsible for diversification
actvities within Mediengruppe RTL Deutschiand,
ncluding digrtal content and services

Durng 2012, RTL interactive completed the Now'
farmly of catch-up TV sences with the addiion of
RTL i Now, N-TV Now and RTL Niro Now The
farnity — wihich consists of RTL Now, Vox Now, RTL Il
Now, Super RTL Now, N-TV Now and RTL Nitro
Now — callectively registered 602 milion views
(2011 247 milion wdeo wiews), representing more
than 50 per cent of video views for websitas man-
aged by Mediengruppe RTL Deutschiand

Combining these on-demand platforms with the clip
portal Clipfish de, the newly launched Clipfish Music
HEbTV, and Medengruppe RTL Deutschland’s
channel and thematic websites, the number of video
views of professionally produced content increased
by 52 per cant to 1 18 billion Around 10 per cent of
thesa views wera generated on mobile devices

Including all mobile portals and apptications of Medi-
engruppe RTL Deutschland’s portfolic, mobile page
impressions were up 54 per cent to 4 84 billion,
while mobile wideo wiews were up 58 per cent to 118
millon As part of these figures, apps from the news
channel N-TV - together with Mobi N-TV de - gen-
erated an average 1958 mihon page impressions
per month (up 63 5 per cent year-on-year), and a to-
tal of 2 4 billon page impressions in 2012 With up
to 898,000 unique mobile users, according to AGOF
Mobile Facts 2012-1, N-TV's apps rank first among
German news apps.

At the end of February 2012, RTL Interactve
launched the RTL Inside app, which had been
downloaded more than 1 millon tmes by 31 De-
cember 2012 RTL Inside 1s the first app by a Ger-
man broadcaster that synchroncusly links additional
nformation about the inear TV programme with vid-
a0 and social TV options across several media The
application links to socral networks to support fans’
interaction as they watch TV

RTL Interactive also strengthened ts transaction-
based busiesses dunng the raporting penod In
January 2012, the company acquired Guischeine de
which offers several thousand online discount
vouchers, promotons and local coupons — one of
the largest selections on the German internst

wWith more than 2 5 millon fans on its Facebook
page, which 1s produced by RTL II's anlme editonal
team, Berlin — Tag & Nacht 1s Germany's most pop-
ular TV format in the social web

RTL 6ROUP
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GROUPE M6

Financial results

In 2012, Groupe M6’s reportad revenue was down by 2.4 per cant to €1,387
million (2011. €1,421 miliion). While the company’s diversification and audio-
visual nghts revenue remained almost stable, Groupe M6’s total advertising
revenue decreased by 3.9 per cent. 41.5 per cent of Groupe Mé’s consolidat-
ed revenue originated from a broad range of non-advertising activities, un-
derlining the company’s position as a leader in the field of diversification

The French net TV advertising market was estimated tc be down by 6.0 per
cent in the reporting penod, due to a significant slowdown dunng the second
half of the year Groupe M& agam outperformed the market, increasing s
estimated net share to 24.0 per cent (2011- 23.4 per cent).

Based on significantly lower profit contnbutions from its man channel M6

- as a resuft of lower advertising revenue and higher programiming costs for
the Euro 2012 football championship — reporied EBITA of Groupe M6 de-
creased by 10 0 per cent to €224 million (2011: €249 mifhon).

Year to Year to
December BDecember
2m2 201t Per cent
£€m €m change
Revenue 1,387 1,421 24)
EBITA 224 249 {10.0}

114 RTL GROUP ANKUAL REPORT 2012

Audience ratings

Tharks to its complementary family of channals, the
combined total audience share of Groupe M§& In-
creased to 15 5 per cent over the penod 2011 152
per cent) In the man cormmercial target group of
housewives aged under 50, the combined audience
share remaned almost stable at 229 per cent
(2011 23 0 per cent)

M6 remained the second most popular channel in
France among housewwes under 50, reporting an
audience share of 17 Q per cent {2011 17 2 per
cent), and continued to reduce the gap to the mar-
ket lsader, TF1 Owver the past ten years, this gap
has reduced from 16 6 to 8 5 percentage points In
terms of total audience share (11 2 per cent), M6
remained the third most popular channel, and was
agan the only rmajor channel to increase its ratings
year-on-year (2011 10 8 per cent}, In an environmert
stll marked by ongoing audience fragmentation At
the end of 2012, sx now fres digital terrestrial TV
{DTT)} channels were launched in France

in June and July, M6 arred ten of the 31 matches of
the European football championstup and scored
excellent ratngs The France vs Sweden match
was watched by 12 2 midlion viewers, the channel's
second-highest ratings ever M6 achieved a record
audience for the competition In access prime time
for the Ukrane vs France match, with 10 5 milion
viewers — the third best audience ever for M6 As a
consequence, M6 broadcast two of the ten most-
watched shows on French TV in 2012




mée TV audience share
Source, Médamdiria Targer housewnmes < 50 20082012 (%)
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M6 increased its ratings in access pnme time, with
the factual entertainment show Un diner presque
parfat (Come Ding With Me), the magazine 100%
Mag, the main news show Le 19 45 and the short
drama series Scénes de menages On average, Le
19 45 gained more than 500,000 wewers year-on-
year, making it the news show with the biggest auds-
ence increase {average audience share among
housewrves aged under 50 26 6 per cent) With an
average audience share of 25 4 per cent In the com-
mercial target group and 17 4 per cent of the total
audience, Scenes de ménages achieved the chan-
nel's best ever ratings in the 20 00 tmes slot ever
The sernes has become the most watched pro-
gramme in the 20 00 tme slot among viewars aged
under 50, all channels included

M6’s most popular pnme tme format was the
seventh season of the romantic docu-scap L'amour
est dans le pre (The Farmer Wants A Wife} which
achreved an average audience share of 37 6 per
cent In the commercal target group The format
also made M6 the market isader amang alt target
groups on Manday evenings Since its first season,
the tormat has consistently improved its ratings
The second highest-rated format was Top Chef,
which reached up to 55 millon viewers with s
season finate, and Increased s average audience
by 500,000 viewers dunng the thwrd season
The talent show La France a un mncroyable talent
{Got Talent) achieved its best season ever, with an
average audience of 4 9 million viewers (2011 43
milion viewers) Other established brands in pnme
time include Peékin Express, factual entertainment
formats with a focus on hfestyle such as D&Co
and Marson & vendre {House For Sale), US senes
such as NCIS and Bones, and the long-running
information magazines Capital, Zone Interdite and
Enquéte Exclusive

Finally, M6 continued to innovate in 2012, success-
fully launching programmes such as Le metleur
patissier, Patron Incognito and 60 secondes chrono,
which has become the most watched show among
viewers aged under 50 In its timeslot

Groupe MBs man digital channel, W9, remained
the most watched DTT channel iy the key commer-
clal target group, with an almost stable average au-
dience share of 4 2 per cent among housewives
aged under 50 (2011 4 3 per cent) Underiining its
postioning as a ‘min-generalist’ channel, WO
scored high ratings in vanous genres, including US
series such as Glee and Spartacus, the magazine
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“In 2012 Groupe M6’s audiences
rose for the second year in
succession, primarily thanks to
its investments in programmes.
This performance enabled us
to win market share and canfirm
our status as a co-leader.”

NICOLAS DE TAVERNOST,
PRESIDENT DU DIRECTQIRE, GROUPE M6

ATL GROUP

DIRECTORS' REPORT

ANMUAL REPORT 2012

115




DIRECTORS" REPORT

t16 RATL GROUP

Enquéte d’Actron, factual entertainment formats,
maovies and sports, with ive broadcasts of Uefa Eu-
ropa League football matches and the Masters ATP
tennis world tour The reality format La belle et ses
princes presque charmants gathered an average
audience of 12 milllon viewers, to become the
highest-rated reality format among all DTT channels
in France Les Ch'tis débarquent a Mykonos scored
record ratings for a daytime TV reality show on W@,
with up to 10 miflon viewers The year's most
watched programme on W4 was the US mowve
classic Pretty Woman, with 1 9 milion viewers on
17 Jdune 2012

In December 2012, six new free DTT channals were
faunched in France From the outset, 6ter, Groupe
M6's new family channel, has become the most
watched of all new channels by a large margn
Shortly after its launch, the channel registered its
first success with the movie Sister Act, watched by
372,000 viewers

In the pay-TV ermwaronment, Groupe M6's channels
confirmed ther leading positions in therr key target
groups Among the 114 thematc channels m the
Mediamétne survey Médiamat Thematik — which
measures TV audiences among French households
eguipped with cable, satellite or IPTV — Paris Pre-
miére was the most-watched channel in the strate-
gic pnme time slot, 20 45 to 24 00, while Téva was
agam the top chotce of housewives aged under 50
(audience share 1 4 per cent)

National audience breakdown

Source Middiamdine Targel: hotaawives < 50 2m2{%)
M6 . _ . . _ 170
W9 . o . . 42
™ . ___.__ ._.__._255
France2 _. .. . _.110
France 3 . . 50
™C 40
NT1 - e 27
CanalPlus . . _ _26
Franced4 .. . ... ....286
D8 . & o 24
Others ____ ___ _2340
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New media and diversification activities

The catch-up TV service, M6 Replay, registered
380 milion anline video wviews in 2012, whie
W9 Replay reported 100 mullion online wvideo views

Both services enable viewers to re-watch the
channels’ flagship programmes, at no cost, for
seven t0 15 days after ther imwbal broadcast They
are avallable on both computer and telewvision wvia
virtually all cable, IPTV and satelite packages in
France, 1ncreasing the number of total video views
on all platforms to over 600 mifllon n 2012 (2011

543 million)

The M6 app for I-Pad and |-Phaone offers the chan-
nel ve at no cost, plus catch-up TV services and
behingd-the-scenes wideos By the end of 2012, it
had registered more than 4 3 miflon downloads,
making 1t one of the top free apps available from the
App Store

At the end of 2012, Groupe MB launched a new ver-
sion of Replay’'s mobile apps and services for the
channels M& and W8 This revamped catch-up TV
sarvica not only offers social TV and continuous
viewing functions that are synchrorused across all
media, but also affords access to a second screen
service, dubbed Devant ma TV {in Front Of My TV)
The new version of Replay allows users to comment
aon and interact with a programme whenever they
want For example, they can make recommenda-
tions on social networks such as Facsbook, let oth-
ars know what they're up to, watch the wideos most
fraquently viewed by thewr fmnends or even instanta-
neously share ther views on the performance of a
contestant on La France a un Incroyable Talent (Got
Talent} and vote

During the year, M6 Web reached an average audi-
ence of 12 2 millon urkque users per month across
its network of 20 internet sites (2011 12 5 milion)

The M6 Mobile by Crange service had reached
2 4 mullion custorners by the end of 2012, up 20
per cent vear-on-year, despite the launch of the mo-
bile senice 'Free’ on the French market In January
2012, while the M&-branded payment card had over
1 2 milien customers (end of December 2011 14
muflion customers)

In the previous years, Groupe M6's audiovisual
nghts dvision benefited from the tremendous suc-
cesses of the Twillight mowies, in terms of both box
office and DVD sales in 2012, M6 fims registered
18 mifion enines, while SND ganed 8 6 milion en-
tnes with 12 movies

Groupe ME's mail-order and retait actwvitigs — bun-
dled in the untt Ventadss — also had to operate n a
challenging environment, rnarked by strong compe-
tilon
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Financial resufts

Revenue of FremantleMedia — RTL Group’s production and brand explortation
arm - increased by 19.7 per cent to €1,711 million (2011: € 1,429 million},
dnven by growth in the US, UK, Germany and Asia-Pacific, exchange rate
effects, and recharges without margins ta third parties for certain production
contracts. Despite this revenue growth, EBITA - which was impacted

by posifive and negative one-off effecls i 2012 - was slightly down

to €138 million (2011: €143 million), manly due to continued pressure from
broadcasters on margins and volumes.

Year to Year to
Dacember December
2M2 201 Per cont
€m €m change
Revenue 1,711 1,429 +19.7
EBITA 138 143 (3.5)

“Despite difficult market
conditions, FremantieMedia’s
core businesses continued
to perform strongly in 2012,
with good progress in
newer investment areas like
gaming and kids programming,
and a clear focus on
fuelling our creative pipeline
for future growth.”

CECILE FROT-COUTAZ,
CEQ, FREMANTLEMEDIA

Production businesses

In 2012, FremantisMedia’s global network of pro-
duction companies was responsible for over 8,100
hours of TV programmming across 62 countnes The
company also distributad 20,000 hours of program-
ming to mare than 150 countnes, making 1t one of
the largest creators and distnbutors of award-win-
ning nternationat programme brands in the world
RTL Group's contant arm continued to produce the
highest-rated entertainment shows for broadcasters
n the biggest TV markets worldwide - including the
US, the UK, Germany, Australia, France and the
Netherlands ~ along with a strong stable of top-rat-
ed and ong-ninning drama senes
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FremantleMedia’s entertainment formats continued
to travel well in 2012 Got Talent added another sev-
en terrtanies in 2012, with the show now being suc-
cessfully produced in Belgum, Canada, Ecuador
and Nigena, among others, taking its total to 52 The
X Factor added six terntones to its roster, launching
in countnes such as Sweden, Indonesia and the
Philppines The show has now been produced in 35
tertones and sold to mare than 40

In the US, the 11th season of American Idol — co-
owned by FremantleMedia North Amenica {FMNA)
and 19 Entertanment — was the country’s number-
ane entertanment senes, winning an average audi-
ence of 17 4 miion viewers (15 2 per cent of the to-
tal audience) For the target demographic of adults
aged 18 to 49 Amencan Idof achieved an average
share of 14 7 per cent — over 120 per cent higher
than broadcaster Fox's pnme tme average ~ and
has been the numker one entertamment senes In
the US for the past nine years

Returming for its seventh season in May 2012,
Amenca’s Got Talent was the number one summer
senes In the United States, winning an average of
10 1 milion viewers and a 9@ 0 per cent total audi-
ence share America’s Got Talent exceeded broad-
caster NBC’s prnme twne average by 61 per cent for
all viewers

The X Factor {co-produced with Syco) retumed 1o
the Fox network to an average audience of 8 3 mi-
hon viewers and an average share of 8 4 per cent
among adults aged 18 to 49

After 40 years on arr, The Pnice Is Right remained the
highest rated daytme entertanment show in the
United States, ganing an average audience of 4 6
million viewers in 2012

Launched on 27 January 2012, Benng Sea Gold,
produced by FremantleMedia company Onginal
Productions, was the highest rated senes launch
ever on the Discovery Channel, with 3 7 million view-
ers tuning nto the prerigre episode The seres
achieved an average audience of 2 7 millen viewers,
and a 2 6 per cent total audience share, more than
doubling the broadcaster's pnme tme average

In Germany, the ninth senes of Deutschiand sucht
den Superstar (dols) won an average audience of
5 1 mithon viewers and a 25 7 per cent markst share
for the commercial target of viewers aged 14 to 49,

for whuch 1t was the thurd-most watched entertain-
ment senes of the year on RTL Television

Ared on RTL Television in autumn 2012, senes six of
Das Supertalent (Got Talent} achieved an average
audience of 5 0 millon viewers and a 23 2 per cent
market share for the commercial target group

Meanwhile, the eighth senes of Bauer sucht Frau
{The Farmer Wants A Wife) drew an average
audience of 6 9 millon wiewers, and a 23 3 per cent
audience share in the 14 to 49 target group For the
total audience, it exceeded RTL Telewision's pnme
e average by 86 per cent, making it the channel's
highest rated entertainment senes of 2012

On ar since 1992, Gute Zeifen, schlechte Zerten
(Good Times - Bad Times) was agamn the highest
rated daly drama senes i Germany, winning an
average audience of 3 4 millon viewers and a 20 3
per cent share for the commercial target, and con-
sistentty ranking number one i ds time slot

Event mowvies continued 10 prove popular in 2012
The Teamworx produciion Aommel was one of the
most talked-about TV mowies in 2012, creating sig-
nfficant media coverage and winning an audience of
6 4 rmilhion viewers Ancther Teamwaerx production,
Der Tirm, was the number two TV movie on public
broadcaster Das Erste, with an average aucdence of
7 0 milllion viewers across s two parts Der Falf Ja-
kob von Metzler also receved significant public and
medsa attention, and attracted 5 3 millon viewers on
public broadcaster ZDF

In spring, the sixth senes of Brtain’s Got Talent in
the UK won an average audience of 11 0 milion
viewers and a 40 8 per cant total audience share,
making it the UK’s highest rated entertainment se-
nes for 2012 With an average share of 489 per
cent for the commerceal target of viewers aged 16 to
34, Bntain's Got Talent exceeded [TV1's prime tme
average by 155 per cent

Returning for #s ninth series in the auturmn, The X
Factor was 2012's highest rated entertainment se-
nes for young viewers, with an average audience
share of 51 8 per cent

Ainng s seventh and eighth senes in 2012, Celeb-
iy Jurce continued to prove a success on [TV 2
Attaining an average share of 27 2 per cent for the
cornmercial target {vewers aged 16 to 34) Celebrily

Number of hours

Breakdown of hours

produced produced by main markets

Programmes w1z 2011 202 201

New ] 2,379 W 2,269 U NN 956 SN 918

Returning | 6,758 N 6,922 Germany 798 NN 866

Total MR 0,137 HNEA 9,191 France 648 TR 599
453 I 418
419 IR 347
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Juice consistently ranks number one n ids tme
penod across all channels, outperforming the five
major UK broadcasters it continued to be the hugh-
est rated programme ever on 1TV 2 and the number
one entertainment show across all mufichannels
for 2012

Take Me QOut was the number one dating show n
the UK in 2012 The third and fourth senes of the
show consistently ranked number one in the time
slot for the commercial target {adults 16 to 34) with
an average share of 34 5 per cent

Ared from July to October, senes seven of Uamour
est dans fe pré (The Farmer Warts A Wife) In France
was the most successful yet, becoming the highest-
ranked entertainment senes on M6 for 2012 with an
average share of 37 6 per cent for the commercial
target group of housewives under 50

The third senes of The X Factor in Austrahia was the
best-parforming yet, attracting an average audience
of 1 6 million viewers — an increase of 7 per cent on
senes two and 33 per cent senes one Meanwhilg,
Nerghbours gained an average share of 12 6 per
cent of viewers aged 16 to 39, exceeding Eleven’s
pnme time average by 148 per cent

Elsewhere, the Dutch version of The Farmer Wants
A Wife continued to prove popular, captunng an av-
erage 43 7 per cent of the commercial target group
of adults aged 20 to 49, and In New Zealand Got
Talent was the country’s highest-raied programme
since at least 1997 (excluding news and sports}
Meanwhile in ltaly, the sixth senes of The X Factor
ganed a massive 33 per cent more viewers than the
previous season

Dagital

At the end of 2012 FremantleMedia operated
101 Youtube channels across 18 termtones Four of
these are Youtube-funded channels for which ongr-
nal content 1s produced exclusively They are ‘The
Pet Collectnve’, created and produced by Fremantle-
Media North Amenca and FremantteMedia Enter-
pnses, launched n May 2012, "THNKR', created
and produced by FremantleMed:a subsidiary Radical
Media, launched mn July, and ‘eNtR Berhn’ and
“Tngger’, produced by FremantleMedia’s German
subsidiary UFA, and {aunched in the last quarter
of 2012

FremantleMedia's remaining Youtube channels act
as an extension of the company’s exsting formats
The brand channels for Britain’s Got Talent and The
X Factor UK surpassed one billon lifetme views
each, making them the highest rated channels for an
entertainment programme worldwide They are also
among Youtube's top-50 most viewed channels of
all ime In total, FremantieMedia 1s the world’s high-
est rated TV producer on Youtubs

Ludia, already a top-50 games and apps developer
for mabile and Facebook, reached three million datly

activg users and ten million monthly active users n
2012 It offers more than 50 apps across the 1-08
{Appls), Google Play and Amazon app stores More
than 50 milon combined downloads were regis-
tered for its properties, with 12 of its games reaching
top-five spots in the |-OS app store

FremantieMedia Enterprnises (FME)
FremantieMedia Enterpnses (FME} works with
FremantlsMedia’s own brands and those of third
parties to create additional revenue opportunities
through international content distnbution, kcensing,
new media and home antertainrment

In July, FremantleMedia announced an exclusive
creative and strategic partnership with the US divi-
sion of Random House, the world's largest trade
book publishing company, owned by Bertelsmann
The companies agreed on a first-logk deal as well
as a collaboration on developing onginal scripted
telewvision properties basad on the works of Random
House authors

FME’s Kids & Family Entertainment dvsion, ong
of the leading independent producers and distn-
butors in the sector, with more than 15 titles In
production globally, signed several major develop-
ment and distrbution deals Among them was a
landmark partnership with BBC Children’s to co-
develop, co-produce and co-fund a continuous
sequence of new children’s programmes over the
next five years, extending on the success of titles
such as pre-school senes Tree A Tom, the highest
rated programme on CBeebies in 2012 for children
aged 4 to 6 (by highest occumrence, excluding
speclal events) FME sold Tree Fuv Torn to more than
50 temtores globally, inked a lucrative master toy
deal with Giochi Prezioss, and signed up 18 licensing
partners for turther ancillary product development

Action-adventure CGl-animated senes Max Steef
sold to mare than 100 termtones, while Wizards vs
Afiens, from Doctor Who producer Russell T Dawvies,
launched as CBBC's number one new shaw of
2012 with an average share of 21 G per cent for the
key target demographic of children aged & to 12

In drama, a deal was finalsed to adapt bestseling
novel The Maid for television, providing a new take
on the Joan of Arc legend, while award-winning
writer/producer Marshall Herskowitiz will oversee
development of an histoncal TV drama senes inspired
by the popular non-fictior book Hitlartand

FME signed several deals in the digtal and
new platform field in 2012, announcing a new
digital bcensing agresment with Netfix to bring
115 hours of FME’s catalogue to Netflix customers
in the UK and ireland FME also signed a major
first-look deal for international distnbution nghts to
the onlne wvideo service Mulu’s onginal commission
programming across all platforms A similar deal
was announced with independent muiltipiatform
studio Vuguru
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Financial results
The Dutch TV advertising market" was down by 5.4 per cent in 2012
Following an exceptional 2011, RTL Nederiand achieved an advertising
market share of 47 3 per cent in 2012 (2011- 47 7 per cent). The siightly lower
share was mainly due to the fact that the public broadcasters presented
both the live matches of the Euro 2012 football champronship and the
Olympic Summer Games in 2012
Total ravenue at RTL Nederland decreased to €431 midlion (2011 €491 mil-
fron), mamnly reflecting the deconsolidation of the Dulch radio stations Radio
538, Rado 10 Gold and Slam FM after the unwind of the transaction with
Talpa Media Holding closed i December 2011. With the shortfall of profit
contrtbutions from its radio activities, and lower TV advertising revenue, the
EBITA of RTL Nederiand decreased toc €87 nullron (2011. € 134 mullion).
Audience ratings
RTL Nederland's family of channels achieved a com-
Year to Year to
December  December bined pnme ttme audkence share of 32 3 per cent in
2012 am Per cent the main commercial target group of viewers aged
€m €m change
20 to 49, down from 2011 (35 2 per cent) — mostly
due to the broadcast of the Euro 2012 football
Revenue
TV, online and other 231 230 102 championship and the Qlympics on the public chan-
Radio — 81 — nels However, RTL Nederland mantained the large
Total 231 291 22 gap to its main commercial competitor, SBS Group
(20 O per cent), and was also ahead of the public-
EBITA service broadcasters {29 1 per cent)
TV, online and other a7 108 (10 2)
Radio - 26 -
Tom‘ 97 134 ‘27.5) ::r’t :(O. Target- shoppen 20-49 (18-240) Tv aUd‘en::f:::?:
192
201
183
170
14 9
The family’s flagship channel, RTL 4, scored an au-
dience share of 192 per cent i s man target
group of shoppers aged 20 to 49 (2011 201 per
cant) and was again markat leader by a large mar-
gin, ahead of Nedertand 1 {16 9 per cent} and SBS
6 (9 0 par cent} In January 2012, RTL 4 recorded its
best January ratings since 1997, with a 21 4 per
cent share In the target group
RTL 4 commands a very strong posttion with its Fri-
day talent shows The Voe Of Holland (average au-
dence share among shoppers aged 20 to 49 489
per cent), The Voice Kids (39 6 per cent} and Hol-
14 Spot and non-spat reverue fand’s Got Taferit (34 6 per cent} The channel’s new
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drama senss, Moordvrouw - broadcast immeadiate-
ly after the talent shows -~ was very well recenved, as
were tk Hou Van Holland, De TV Kantine and Van
der Vorst Ziet Sterren  Other new introduced pnme
tme hit formats include Dvorce, Ushi & The Family,
Ontvoard, Mijn Leven In Puin, Prodeo and Mannen
Van Een Zekere Leeftyd

RTL 4's access pnme tme — with ATL Boulevard,
Goede Tyden, Slechte Tiden and RTL Nieuws — de-
Ivered strong ratings once agan Goede Tiden,
Siachte Tydan reached a new record with 2 3 mullion
wewers on 5 Octoher 2012

The summer campaign, De Zomer van 4, premiered
dunng the Euro 2012 football championship with the
episodes of VI Oranje Against the publc-service
broadeaster, which attracted large audiences with
the live broadcasts of the matches, De Zomer van 4
V! Oranye attracted an average audience share of
21 1 per cent )/mmediately after the matches

ATLS TV audience share
Sowrce. SKO. Target 20-34 (18- 245 20082012 (%}

70
94
88
96
91

RTL 5 scored an audience share of 7 0 per cent
in the 20 to 34-year-old demographic {2011 94
per cent) This declne was caused by sporting
events being broadcast on the public channels, and
by underparforming reality shows such as Top Chef
Dutch productions are the most popular shows on
RTL 5, ncluding Expeditie Robinson, which was
watched by an average 27 O per cant of young adult
viewers Also popular was Barbves Brudoff and
Barbies Baby, which both attracted around 22
per cent of young viewers each week FEchie
merses Op Zoek Naar Zichzelf and Bntt & Ymke
also did very well, drawing audience shares of
13 8 per cent and 10 2 per cent respectively On
Sundays, RTL 5 scored good ratngs with The
Uttmate Dance Battle (average audience share
12 3 per cant)

ATL 7 TV audience share
Seurce SKC. Target man 20— 49 (18- 24 20082012 (%)
. 72
. 78
L 71
[ | 67
I 69

The men’'s channel RTL 7 achieved an average au-
dience share of 7 2 per cent among men aged 20 to
49 {2011 7 8 per cent) Eurcpa League football
games atiracted mora than 30 per cent of viewers In

“In 2012 we successfully
created a healthy basis for a
future in which the media
landscape will be in a constant
state of flux. We had the
courage to keep investing in
our channels, especially
during a year full of international
sporting events and the Dutch
elections. The result is a growing
loyalty among our viewers.

On top of that we are seeing
steady growth across
all our other actwvities, such
as digital, live entertainment, our
news organisation and
our ventures. Financially
we are in good shape, but above
alt we remain ambitious and
dedicated when it comes to sat-
isfying our customers’ wishes.”

BERT HABETS,
CED, ATL NEDERLAND
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the target group, and Formula One races 27 7 per
cent RTL 8 reported an audience share of 3 0 per
cent among female wiewers aged 20 to 49 1n 2012
(2011 3 3 per cent}

RTLS TV audience share
Source. SKO: Tarpet women 20-43 (18- 24h) 20082012 (%)

3.0
33
32
33
34

Digital pay channels RTL Lounge and RTL Crime
reached 76 millon and 4 8 millon viewers re-
spectively, among wewers aged 6 and above
RTL Lounge Is the fourth most popular digital chan-
nel in its target group of female viewers aged 13 and
ahove, with a reach of 37 miflon viewers in this
demographic Since 10 September 2012, the new
children's channel, RTL Telekids, has reached 2 ©
millon viewers aged 6 and older In the core target
group of chitdren aged 3 to 8, RTL Telekids reached
407,000 viewers

National audience breakdown
Source SKG. Targe! 20-49{18-244 2012 (%)

RTL4_. ... ... 185
BTLS . e v .50
RTL?_ ______ __._B86
RTL&_ ________ . .24
Nederand 1 . 174
SBS6 ... . . 92
Nederand3d _. . .. 78
Veromca ... ... 62
Net5 . . _. __47
Nededand 2 . _ 39
Others .. . .184
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New media and diversification activities

RTL Nederand's network of websites - including
the general partal RTL n/, the on-darnand platform
RTLXL ni, the weather portal Burenradarnf, and a
vanety of websites dedicated to popular formats —
ingreased its average nurnber of unique wisitors per
month (based on unique browsers) by 13 per cent to
17 4 million (2011 15 4 million)

Tha total number of video views grew by 19 per cent
to 465 million 0 2012 (includng syndicaton, but
excluding Youtube, 2011 380 milien, including
syndication) The most popular formats wera epi-
sodes of the soap Goede Tiden, Slechie Tiden, the
talent show The Voice Of Holland, and clips from
ATL Nieuws, RTL Boulevard and RTL Z The mobile
app for RTL XL generated 104 millon video views,
and the company increased the number of screens
on which RTL XL cantent I1s distnbuted by adding
apps for Windows 8 and Xbox 360

The Buenradar, RTL XL and RTL Nieuws 365 apps
all ranked among Apple’s list of the best Dutch apps
for 2012 Buenradar ranked fourth, RTL XL, ranked
third and RTL Nisuws 365 appeared in ninth place

In February, the anhne restaurant reservation portal
Couverts ni launched an app that makes reserving a
table even easier Meanwhile, during the summer,
RTL Nederland [aunched an nnovative app with an
exclusive storyiing to bndge the summer break when
new episodes of Goede Tiiden, Slechte Tiden are
not beng ared Within a week of its faunch, the app
was downloaded 120,000 times, making 1t the high-
est ranking free download avalable from the App
Store !n total, the app was downloaded 280,000
tmes and had 215,000 actve players

In September, RTL Nederand launched the new
cigital channet RTL Telekids In cooperation with
Bol com, RTL Telekids developed an Andrord tablet
especually for kids that has an advanced parental
control functton The channel alsc has its own app

In October, RTL Nederland acquired Videosinp - the
Netherland's leading orline wideo advertising net-
work — thus strengthering the company's position in
the digital advertising market

RTL Ventures s RTL Nederiand's central dvision for
new business activities in new consumer markets In
early 2012, the division entered into a partnership
with the internet entrepreneur Laurens Groenendik
and the Scandmnawan fashion company Minto The
Dutch yont venture 1s part of the intemational roll-out
of the Minto concept, and was launched i August
2012 Interms of connected stores (165 in 2012),
Munto ni1s the market leachng sales platform opera-
tor for local boutiques in the Butch market

In September, RTL Nederland announced that the
company would not only be engaging in telewision,
digital and new business but would also be pooling its
live entartainment acimvities in a separate business unit
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Financial results

The nat TV advertising market in French-speaking Belgium was estimated to
be down 7.7 per cent, with RTL Belgium broadly performing in e with the
market. Total revenue of the profit centre decreased by 2.8 per cent to €210
million (2011: €216 million} as higher radio revenue partly compensated for
fower TV advertising revenue. Total EBITA of RTL Belgium was almost stable
at €45 mithon (2011: €46 million), despite lower TV adverlising rovenue.

Year to Yaar to
December December
2012 2011 Per cent
€m €m change
Revenue
TV, onlline and other 157 165 {4 8}
Radio 53 51 +38
Total 210 216 (2.8)
EBITA
TV, online and cther 22 25 {12 0}
Radio 23 21 +95
Total 45 46 (2.2)

“Despite a sluggish

TV advertising market and

an increase in programme

investments RTL Belgium
maintained its profitability in

2012, thanks to improved
operational efficiency and the
strength of its radio business.”

PHILIPPE DELUSINNE,
CED, RTL BELGIUM

Audience ratings

Though combined pnme time audience share of the
RTL family of TV channels in the target group {shop-
pers aged 18 to 54) decreased to 36 3 per cent
(2011 37 8 per cent) its lead over the public broad-
casters remained high, at 37 7 percentage points
Bespite the competing public channels’ popular
broadcasts of the Surmmer Olympics and the Euro
2012 football championship, RTL Belgium achieved
76 of the top 100 programmes n French-speaking
Belgium
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RTL-T™ TV audience share Club RTL TV audience share
Source. Auchmétne. Target. shoppers 18-54 (17-23h) 20082012 (%) Sourca Audimidtre Target man 18-54 (17-23N 2008-2012 (%)
1 27.3 2l 6.4
AR ] N 29 6 1] 55
we o o A 300 100 55
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After 25 years on ar, RTL-TVl has mantamned
its strong market-leadership position i French-
speaking Belgium with an average pnme time audi-
ence share of 27 3 per cent in the target group
of shoppers aged 18 to 54 {2011 296 per cent),
10 0 percentage points ahead of the second highest
rated charnel, the French commercial broadcaster
TFt, and 14 6 percentage ponts ahead of the
Belgian pubhic broadcaster RTBF 1

RTL-TV 15 the leading news source for French-
speakang Belgians, covernng such avents as the
tragic school-bus incident of Sierre in March 2012,
and the local elections in Belgium in October 2012
with special broadcasts Itis also the go-to channel
for poiitical coverage, with Le Grand Direct attracting
an average total audence share of 26 1 per cent
For the US presidental elections, RTL-TV created
cross-media thematic programming spanning the
news, RTL Magaznes, documentanes, radio and
the internet, thus reaching audiences across a mul-
ttude of screens and platforms

The award-winning Fnday news magazine Reporter
enjoyed its best season to date, with an average of
403,000 wiewers, translating into 27 2 per cent of
the total audience Newcomer personality magazine
Les Orages de la Vie proved nstantly popular, at-
tracting an average 552,000 viewers in 2012

RTL-TVI also offers ts audience a strong Iine-up of
international senes Audence favounte Dr House
finished ts eight-season run with an average share
of 36 7 per cent among shoppers aged 18 to 54
NCIS remained the channel's top senes, with an
average audience share of 34 8 per cent

In 2012, RTL-TVI pursued its strategy of increasing
the number of pnme time entertainment formats
RTL-TV and M6 in France were successful at pre-
senting the third season of Top Chef to an avarage
audience of 36 8 per cent among shoppers aged 18
to 54, as well as the new format Le Meileur Patissier
{average audience share among shoppers aged 18
to 54 31 7 per cent) Local Belgian adaptations of
successful FremantleMedia formats outperformed
the competition in 2012 Seascn 4 of L'amour est
dans le pre (The Farmer Wants A Wife} won an aver-
age 37 3 per cent in the main commercial target
group of shoppers aged 18 to 54 Belgurmn's
Got Talent was the number one entertainmaent show
in French-speaking Belgium, averaging 671,000
wiewers and 38 7 per cent m the mamn commercial
target group Local comedy shows — such as the
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monthly Les Gens d'en Bas - were big audience
draws in 2012

In 2012, Club RTL strengthened its positioring
as a male-onented channel, increasing its average
audience share in the target group (men aged 18 to
54) to 6 4 per cent {2011 55 per cent} Football
1s one of the channel's flagship formats, and will con-
tinue to be so for the next three years as Club
RTL has secured the nghts to Tuesday and Wednes-
day Champions League rights and the Europa
League, startng i September 2012 Natonal
matches also proved popular It 2012, wath 751,300
wviewers following September’'s Belgum vs Croatia
match The audience share among men aged 18
to 54 was 552 per cent The successfully re-
vamped Monday film night ganed a sokd 2 2 per-
centage paints year-on-year, with an average 8 4
per cent among men aged 18 to 54 in 2012 (2011
6 2 per cent)

In March 2012, all chidren’'s programmes were
combined under the Kidz RTL umbrela brang,
broadcast on Club RTL in the mornings

Plug RTL TV audience share
Source Audimétne Target 15- 34 (17-23W 20082012 (%}
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Ptug ATL, the youth and kfestyta channel that com-
plements the Belgian TV family, reported a pnme
time audience share among young viewers aged 15
to 34 of 3 8 percent (2011 3 4 per cent) In 2012,
the channel introduced French scripted reality mto
access pnme time with Les Anges de la Télé Réalté
(averaging 7 2 per cent among viewers aged 15 to
34) and Les Ch'ts (4 6 per cent)

In pnme time, Plug RTL offers a mix of fichon and
French entertainment shows such as Pekin Express
{8 7 per cent among viewers aged 15 to 34} and
Nouvelle Star {dats), which captured 18 7 per cant
inits man target group for the three episodes broad-
castin 2012

The Red Bull Stratos jump drew huge numbers
for the channel The ten minutes of the actual jump
attracted 708,000 wviewers, which translated into




Bel RTL Radio audience share
Source CIM Rubo {Sprng Wave! Targst- 12+ 20082012 %)
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Radio Contact Radio audience share
Source CiM Radio {Sprng Wava) Target 12+ 2008-2012 (%)

151
1586
168
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151

an audience share of 49 0 per cent among young
viewers, and a total audience share of 35 5 per cent

According to the CIM audience survey covenng Apni
o June 2012, Bel RTL remamned the general-inter-
est leader In French-speaking Belgiurn (winning 16 6
per cent of all listeners aged 12 and older, un-
changed to 2011), ahead of Radio Contact (audi-
ence share 15 1 percant, 2011 15 6 per gent}, the
lsading music statton and the number two French-
language radio staton

Bel RTLs all-news morning show I1s the feading one
in French-speaking Belgian radio It creates synergies
with RTL-TV1 by shanng on-arr personalities and car-
nyng top TV shows over into the airwaves

Radio Contact extends beyond its FM distibution
through the web and Radio Contact Vision, a digital
video version of the radio programme These now
platforms increase the net reach of the music station
by more than 10 per cent every day

,

French-speaking
Belgium audience breakdown
Source. Auckmatre Target shoppers 18-54(17-230 2012 (%)
RTL-TVI. . _.___ _..273
ClubRTL _ ... _.57
Plug RTL _ .3.3
TF1 ... .. I 173
' La Une . 27
Lta Deux . .5H8
France 2 . . 52
AB3 ... . . _46
France 3 e - . 28
Others I 152

New media and diversification activities

Dunng the year after its launch, the RTL be website
became the leading news website in Southern Bel-
gum, with 1 6 miion unique wisitors each month,
according to CIM Metriweb

Video remains a cornerstong of RTL's onhne servic-
es in Belgum In 2012, 73 millon onling videos were
watched across all digital platforms, almost doubling
2011's 37 milion views By the end of 2012, the app
verston of RTL be had beesn downloaded 300,000
times 16 per cent of ATL be's traffic came from mo-
bile dewvices The second screen app for tablets and
smartphones, launched in Apnl 2012, registered al-
maost 100,000 downloads within six months
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Financial results

in a net radic advertising market estimated to be down 1 2 per cent, the

French radio profit centre reported revenue of € 180 mulfion (2011: €184 mil-
hion). The net advertising share of the RTL radio famiy decreased siightly

to 26.1 per cent (2011- 26.4 per cent). Despite difficult market condilions, the
reported EBITA of the French radio profit centre was stable at €30 miilion,
helped by voluntary cost reduction and the dynamic devefopment of the
unit's diversification activities.

Year to Year to
December Decamber
2012 2011 Per cent
€m €m change
Revenue 180 184 (2.2)
EBITA 30 30 -
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Audience ratings

The French RTL radio famify maintained rts market
[eadershwp in 2012 With a combined average audi-
ence share of 18 3 per cent (2011 18 2 per cant),
the unit’s three stations - RTL, RTL 2 and Fun Radio
— continued to lead over ther man commercial
competitors, the radio farmes of NRJ (14 8 per
cent, up 0 3 percentage paints on 2011) and La-
gardira (12 6 per cent, stable on 2011}

RTL Radic Radio audience share
Source Méciamdine Target 13+ 2008-2012 (%)

18
121
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124
130

In an emvronment that remans competitive,
RTL Radio was the numiser one station 1n France
for the tenth consecutive year The station reinvigo-
rated tts news programmes in al time slots — morn-
g, noon and evening - starting In September 2012
This helped the flagship station to lead on ali key rat-
1ngs crtena, delivering an average cumulated audi-
ence of 6 3 million darty hsteners {down O 1 million
on 2011) and an average dally time spent Iistening of
141 minutes (stable on 2011) With an average audi-
ence share of 11 6 per cent (2011 12 1 per cent)
RTL Radic led #ts closest competitor by 1 S percent-
age paints

Entertainment programmes also expenenced an in-
crease in hsteners While A fa bonne heure increased
its audience share by 8 percentage points, Les
grosses tétes — which celebrated 35 years on the air
in 2012 - achieved a 9 percentage point increase
Both entertainment programmes were number one
in therr respective tme slots

Fun Radto achieved an audience share of 3 8 per
cent In 2012 {down O 4 percentage points on 2011,
and in Ine with the French music radio segment),

Fun Radio Radio audience share
Source Médiaméire Tampet 13+ 2008~ 2012 (%}

38
42
41
38
38




confiming ds status as the number three French
music station The popular marning show Bruno
dans la Radio wakes 17 milion hsteners every
marning The station also proved popular on the so-
cial networks, gathenng a combined 1 6 million Fa-
cebock fans for the Fun Radio, and Bruno dans fa
Radic pages, and 800,000 Twitier {ollowers for Bru-
no dans la Racho alone

ATL 2 Radio audience share
Sowcs Médiamdtrie Tagst 13+ 2008-2012 (%}

2.9
29
28
29
30

In 2012, RTL 2 mantained its 2011 audience share
of 2 9 per cent and gathered ar avarage 2 6 millon
listeners a day {up O 1 million on 2011) Lstened to
by an average 1 2 milion people each morning, Le
Grand Morning - the station’s marning show driven
by hosts Chnstophe Nicolas and Agathe Lecaron —
reached tts highest ratings ever for the sixth consec-
utrve season

National audience breakdown

Sourre Mddizmetre Targat. 13+ a2 (%)
General-interest radic hetworks
RTL e oo 116
France Inter 101
Europel . _.__ . .74
Music radio networks
targeting adufts
RYL2 .29
Nostalgie ... . .. 38
RFM .31
Chéne FM _ e 27
Music radio networks
targeting young iisteners
Fun Radio .38
NRJ - e e . 69
Skyrock .. 41
Qther formats _ . . 436

New media and diversification activibies

in 2012, RTL Net, the profit centre’s digital subsid-
wary, gathered on average almost 4 milion unique
visits per month and achieved an ingrease of 7 0 per
cent In cumulated audence compared to 2011
RTL Radio's website, RTL fr, renforced its position
as the man player In the general-nterest radio mar-
ket, with almost 2 8 million urntque visitors per month
{up O 2 millon on 2011) RTL podcast downloads
increased over the year to 4 4 millon and man-
taned the number two position In ‘Catch-Up Radio’
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“Radio has two major
advantages: it is equipped for
the digital age, and it is the
advertisers’ preferred media in
times of crisis. Therefore,
even in a changing environment,
RTL Radio delivers
a steady performance.”

GHRISTOPHER BALDELLI, CEQ, RTL RADIG {FRANGE)

in 2012, according to Médiametne RTLs services
accounted for 20 per cent of radio podcasts down-
loaded in France in 2012 RTL has also been proac-
tive in terms of online wideo, generating over 12 mil-
lion video views dunng the year

Two new websites weare successfully launched Fun-
radio fr for the October 2012 Starfloor Iive dance
evant, with a strong interactive and sccial dimension
through Facebook connectmity, and RTLAuto fr
for the Pans Motor Show in Septermber 2012 This
was the sixth thematic website from RTL Radio in
France, this tme fully dedswcated to automabile news

Thanks to RTL Net's am of being universally avall-
able, the company's mobile app becarne the first ra-
dio app to launch on Windows 8 1n 2012

RATL Speciat Marketing, the dversificaton branch
of the French RTL radic family, launched the fourth
editton of the sall-out ve dance event, Starfloor, In
Pans, which was attended by 17,000 people Ared
successfully on Groupe M6’s channa!l W9 and on ra-
dio stations in France, Belgium and Spaw:, Starfloor
provided a record number of connections on digital
platforms, social networks and maobile applications
Funradho fr in parbcutar scored high usage figures that
day, with 223,000 wisits and 730,000 page views

While the music markst i France was estimated by
SNEF to be down 7 8 per cent In September 2012,
RTL Special Marketing continued to act as a major
player in the music compilation market, selling a to-
tal of 446,500 music aloums last year {up 2 7 per
cent on 2011}

ATL SAQUP
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This segment compnses the fully consolidated businesses

RTL Klub (Hungary), RTL Hrvatska (Croatia}, RTL Group's Luxembourgish
activities, the German radio business, UFA Sports, and the associate
Grupo Antena 3 (Spain}.
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RTL Klub in Hungary In 2012, the Hunganan net
TV advertising market continued to decline sigrufi-
cantly, by an estimated 14 7 per cent This difficuft
economic enwronment, combined with the ongomng
fragmentation of the highly competitive Hunganan
TV market, underlines the rationale of RTL Group’s
acquisttion of seven cable channels in 2011 to buld
a compiementary family of channels and mantan
market leadership in Hungary

RTL Klub TV audience share
Source AGE Hungary Targel 18- 49 (prme tmw 20082012 (%}

247
298
291
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The combined TV advertising market share of the
main channel, RTL Kiub, and the newly acqurad
RTL cable channels was 54 0 per cent This com-
pares to RTL Klub's advertising share of 47 9 per
cent in 2011

Total consclrdated revenue of the profit centre was
€107 million {2011 €93 million} as revenus from the
cable channels compensated for the significant de-
crease of RTL Kiub's advertising sales Total EBITA
was €9 millen {2011 €15 milhon), helped by profit
contnbutions from the RTL cable channels

The combined pnme tme audience share of the
new RTL family of channels in the key demographic
of 18 to 49-year-old viewers was 37 3 per cent
(2011 407 per cent) For ten consecutive years,
HTL Klub has been the most watched channel in
Hungary — both among the country’s total audience
and n the key demographic of 18 to 49-year-old
viewers Following a very strong performance in
2011, the pnme time audience share of RTL Klub
decreased to 24 7 per cent (2011 29 8 per cent}
among viewers aged 18 to 49 The decline was
largely due to the highly competitive Hunganan mar-
ket, with more than 100 TV channels avallable in
Hunganan language In addition, the public broad-
caster ared the Euro 2012 football charnpionship
and the Olympic Games Despite this decrease,
RTL Klub was 6 9 percentage points ahead of its
man commerciad compettor TV2 i pnme tme
{2011 10 5 percentage ponts)

The channel broadcasts audience favourntes such as
the talent shows X Faktor (average audience share




46 2 per cent) and Csilfag sztiletik faverage audence
share 37 1 per cent), the daly soap Bardtok kdzt
{Between Friends), the game show Egy perc és ny-
ersz (Minute to Win li), the quiz show A kdd (Cash
My Memory) and RTL Klub's news and information
programrmes RTL Klub also mtroduced n 2012 a
new genre of scnptad reality to the Hunganan telew-
slon market, A gyanu drnydksban (Cases Of Doubts,
average audience share 31 0 per cent) RTL Klub
was the most-watched channel in the target group
on 299 out of 365 evenings, and arred 91 of the 100
most-watched TV programmes of the year - the first
17 of which were X Faktor episodes

With an average pnme time audience share of 60
per cent among viewsrs aged 18 to 49, Cool was
the country's most-watched cable channel With an
audience share cof 4 7 per cent n the same target
group, Film Plusz was the leading Hunganan mowvie
channel

taunched in October, RTL il got off to a promising
start, attracting an average audience share of 0 8
per cent among viewers aged 18 to 49 between Oc-
tober and December 2012 In pnme tme, the chan-
nel’s audience share was O 5 per cent Among the
55 channels that sell cornmercial airtime in Hungary,
RTL Il ranked 17th by the end of 2012

RTUs entire family of cable channels in Hungary
(Coot, Film Plusz, RTL U, Film Plusz Two, Pnzma,
Sorozat Plusz, Muzska TV, and Reflektor TV}
achieved a combinad pnme tme audience share of
12 6 per cant This represents an mcrease of 17
percentage points compared to 2011 RTLS cable
channels are the country’'s most-watched group of
cable channels

The channel's catch-up TV service, RTL Most, gen-
erated 50 mifion long-form wideo views in 2012,
(2011 66 8 milion), while other onlineg wideo views
declingd to 33 milion (2011 133 mullion), mairly due
to the fact that the popular daly reality show Vaio
Vildg was on ar for just two months in 2012 - and
the format had been one of the key drvers for online
wvideo views in 2011

National audience breakdown
Source. AGH Hungary. Target: 18- 43 (prime trrw) 212 {%)
RTLKiub . _.______ 247
Cool . _____ _ GO
FilmPlusz___._ . __ _4.7
v2 .. .. . . . 178
’ MTV 1 - - B3
Viasat .. . e .06
Cthers.. ______.. ... 349

“2012 has been a crucial year
due to our cable portfolio
acquisition which has enabled us
to build the market’s strongest
family of channels, thus allowing
us to strengthen our total TV of-
fer as well as entering the
subscription market as a second
strategic source of revenue. By
operating a total of eight
channels, we are now strongly
positioned for the challenges
of a fragmented market heading
towards full digitisation.”

OIRK GERKENS,
CEQ, RTL KLUB
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“RTL Hrvatska
again
demonstrated
its potential
for innovation by
bringing
the series
Sulejman
velicanstveni
(The Magnificent
Century)
to Croatia.”

JOHANNES ZOLL,
CED, RTL HRVATSKA

130 RIL GROUP

RATL Hrvatska In a TV advertising market that fell
by an esttmated 9 0 per cent i 2012, RTL Hrvats-
ka's revenue dropped to €31 million (2611 €37 mil-
lion) The profit centre's net TV advertsing market
share decreased to 36 8 per cent (2011 409 per
cent), while EBITA was down to minus €2 milllon
{2011 €0 milicn} The profit centre’s operating free
cash flow was €0 milion {2011 €2 milkon)

RTL Telewvizya TV audience share
Sowurces AGH Nesisen Madka Retearch Targal 718-49 2005~ 2012 (%)

19.4
206
245
26 2
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RTL Hrvatska aperates two free-to-arr channels —
RTL Telewizya and RTL 2 The combined audience
share of the two channels in the key commercial tar-
get group of viewers aged 18 to 49 was 24 3 per
cent (2011 25 5 per cent) The profit centre’s flag-
ship channel, RTL Telewizija, achieved an average
audience share of 19 4 per cent among young view-
ars, down from 20 6 per cent in 2011 This decrease
was due to further fragmentation of the market wath
the launch of new national channels In prime time -
the most impaortant timesiot — the RTL famuly repart-
ed a stable combined audience share of 27 5 per
cent, despite 2012 having been a strong sports
year In this timeslot, RTL 2 remained the country's
most popular secaond-generatiron channel, with an
average audience share of § 6 per cent inits key
target group (2011 4 2 per cent)

The Turkish soap Sulgiman vehiéanstvert (The Mag-
nificent Century), broadcast daly n pnme time,
scored an average audience shars of 31 2 per cent
and became the biggest TV phenomenon of 2012
in Croatia, achieving peak shares of more than 40
per cent The senes has sparked new trends and
became a major topic of conversation at farmly and
office gathenngs

Local programmes continued 1o be a wital part of
RTL Televizja's programming schecdule The third

ANNUAL REPORT 2012

season of the docu soap Lubav je na seiu (The
Farmer Wants A Wife), produced by FremantieMedta
and broadcast an RTL Televizja, was one of the
most popular shows on Croatian TV, with an aver-
age audience share of 38 2 per cent of the tar-
get audence The first season of Ruza Vietrova,
RTL Hrvatska's local dally drama senes, scored an
average audience share of 25 5 per cent in the most
compebtive slot In pnme time

The first documentary produced entirely by
RTL Televizya - entitled Missing Smile Antoria Bilic,
about the tragic death of a missing 17-year-old - be-
came the most watched show in autumn on Croatian
television, with an audience share of 42 O per cent

ATL Televizija's main news programme, ATL Danas,
broadcast daily at 18 30, continued to draw large
audiences, with an average share of 29 9 per cent
among young viewers In autumn, the celebnty mag-
aze Exkluziv Tablowd increased its average audi-
ence share by 11 0 per cent, to 25 t per cent 1n the
target group Krv mye vada (Famiy Affars), the
scripted reality format produced by Constantin En-
tertainement, continued to draw large audiences
Amencan senes such as the CS/ franchise and The
Mentakst also remained very popular

In July 2012, RTL 2 scored its best ratings since its
launch i January 2011 The channel attracted an
average of 7 1 per cent of viewers In pnme time
Amencan sitcoms such as Modern Family, The Big
Bang Theory and Two And A Half Men proved par-
ticularty popular with Croatian viewers tn pnme tme

The profit centre’s websites collectively generated
15 milkon online video wviews during the reporting pe-
nod, including over 5 millon wideo views through its
catch-up TV platform, RTL Sada (RTL Now) The
service provides the opportunity for tme-shifted
viewing of formats brodcast on RTL Telewzija and
RTL 2 Since May 2012, RTL Sada has been avala-
ble on TV screens thanks to cooperation with IPTV
operator H1 Telekom In 2012, the RTL app was
downloaded over 150,000 tirmes, making it one of
the maost popular news apps 1n Croatia

National audience breakdown
Source AGH Nisisen Medla Reseach: Tarpst 16849 2012 (%)

RTL Telewizija .. 194
RTL2 - 49
Nova 223
HTV1. .. ... 144
HTV 2 _. 104
Doma . 51
Cthers e e 235
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In 2012, RTL remained the number one media brand
in the Grand Duchy of Luxembourg Combining its
TV, radio and internet activities, the RTL Letzebuerg
media family achieved a daily reach of 82 4 per cent
of all Luxembourgers aged 12 and over

When t comes to news and entertanment,
RTL Radio Létzebuerg continues to be the station
inhabitants turn to, with 185,300 listeners each
weekday Meanwhie, RTL Tele Letzebuerg attracts
131,700 viewers a day, representing a pnme time
audience share of 49 2 per cent {Luxembourgish
vigwers aged 12 and over, Monday to Fnday, 19 00
to 20 00}

RTL Télé Letzebuerg broadcasts its entira content in

HD and has ennched its news senices, with a new- “The RTL media family
ly launched 10-minute nvestigative magazine, Top in Luxembourg reaches
Thema Magazin, anng weeskdays at 1900 In ac- 82.4 per cent Of a"

cess pnime time, 20vir Spezial covers laisure, recre- "
ation, gastronomy, and lifeste The channe! also Luxembourgers every dav"
broadcasts popular sports programmes, and s hive ALAIN BERWICK,

coverage of natonal and internabional sporting CEO, RTL LETZEBUERG

events has expanded over the past few years

RTL Letzebuerg's online portal, RTL #, 1s the coun-
try's most visited website, with a daily reach of 23 7
per cent among Luxembaourgers aged 12 and over
RTL launched several free apps for the I-Phone,
I-Pad and Android devices dunng the year, featur-
ing news, cultural calendars, catch-up TV services
and lve racto They have recorded over 250,000
downloads, making them among the most popular
applications in Luxembourg

RTL Letzebuerg Daily reach
Sounce TNS-H A Plurrmecle 2011 Tagal Liambotrgers 12+ 2012{%)

RTL Radlio Létz [ emee 56 1
RiL Tele Ltz o] 403
ATL.Iuv ] 237
RTL Létzebuergd oo &S
Inchucing Den 2 ATL In 2012, BCE, RTL Group's technical-services pro-
vider, launched the HD broadcastng platformn of
pubkc French-German broadcaster Arte, n Stras-
bourg The company also finished the multimedia in-
stallation of the European Gonference Centre in Lux-
embourg, started a studio installation for 'Equipe 21
in France, and upgraded the playout technology for
RTL Televizya in Croatra BCE started the digiisation
of 20,000 music wideo chps for M6 in France and the
wideo archives of the Council of Europe in Brussels

RTL Nederland and BCE launched the new channel
RTL Telekds, and BCE launched the new French-
speaking martial-arts channel Kombat Sport A new
teleport mfrastructure was introduced to improve the
exchange of data betwesen its customers via sateflite

A Goaogle Widevine-certified implementation partner
for both videc-on-demand and streaming, BCE naw
works on vanous [T projects, such as the hosting of
TV5 Monde's connected-TV applicatons, and, in No-
vember 2012, installed and supported the launch of
integrated television services for Big RTL Thrll in India
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#2012 was a challenging year
for us. Despite ongoing
fragmentation, our radio stations
once again significantly
cutperformed the German radio
market. They enjoy the highest
regard among listeners
and do well in the competition
between different media.
The strategy paid off with
a record EBITA for our company.”

GERT ZIMMER,
CEOQ, RTL RADIC DEUTSCHLAND

In 2012, RTL Radio Deutschiand, RTL Group's
German radio holding company, achieved record
EBITA of €12 millon (2011 €11 millon} Revenue
remained stable at €52 milion

While commerctal radio in general grew s average
hourly reach by 1 5 per cent year-on-year among lis-
teners aged 10 and older, RTL Radic Deutschland’s
portfolio significantly outperformed the market with
an increase of 8 8 per cent

In Berlin, Germany’s most competitive radio market
with morse than 30 FM stations, 104 6 RTL remained
the market leader The station increased its audi-
ence share from 11 8 per cent to 13 4 per cent
among hsteners aged 10 and older

RTL Radio Center Berlin's second staton, 1055
Spreeradio, recerded an audience share of 7 3 per
cent among listeners aged 10 and older, and 1s the
fourth most histened-to radio station in Berlin {2011
9 5 per cent)

In Bavana, Antenne Bayern was the first station in
the histary of German radio to beat the threshald of
1 3 milion isteners per hour By achweving this his-
tonc high, Antenne Bayern leads the ranking in Ba-
vana, and also the natiorwide radio ranikeng ahead
of all other radio stations (audience share among lis-
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teners aged 10 and older 27 7 per cent, 2011 194
per cent)

In Saxony-Anhalt, the two radio stations of the
Funkhaus Halle broadcasting centre, 89 0 RTL and
Radio Brocken, increased therr combined audience
share among listeners aged 10 and clder by 89
percantage points to 27 5 per cent In Northern
Germany, Radio Hamburg had more histeners than
ever befors In fts 25 year history With a 24 6 per
cent audience share, the station 1s the undisputed
market lsader in Hamburg (2011 23 1 per cent)

Also In 2012, 11 large German commercial radio
stations pooled ther resources to become the offi-
cially licensad radio stations of the Uefa Eure — coor-
dinated by RTL Radio Center Berlin Together, they
provided live coverage of all football matches and
the German national team’s path in Poland and
Ukraine This put the stations in a position to ireat
listeners to special expenences dunng one of the
world’s biggest sporting events, and gave advertis-
ers an attractrve environment

At the end of the year, RTL Group's German radio
porifolio encompassed participations 10 19 stations,
most of which are minonty holdings because of re-
strictions on media ownershig in Germany The sta-
tons in the portfolio collectively reach a total of 27 8
rmalbon hsteners per day (2011 27 2 million), and
have a combined average audience of nearty six mil-
lion ksteners per hour

In 2012, YFA Sparts continued to expand its port-
folio, founding a Corporate Hospitahty unit, sigrng
an exclusive cocperation agreement with travel op-
erator Dertour, and enhancing s cooperation with
the Royal Spantsh Footbalt Federation This partner-
ship now encompasses the marketing of the inter-
natonal media nights for the national team and
Spain's prermigr club cup tournament, the Copa det
Rey, n ten countnes across Asia and Europe in
Apnl 2012, the Polish Olympic Committee (PKQOI)
and UFA Sports Poland signed a long-term partner-
ship deal, making UFA Sports Poland the PKOI's ex-
clusive marketing partner until at least 2016

In September 2012, UFA Sports ang the NBA ex-
tended their parinership, which sees UFA Sports as
the marketer of media nghts for the NBA in Sub-Sa-
haran Afnca In October, UFA Sports signed a con-
tract for marketing the advertising nghts of the Men's
World Handball Champianship 2013 in Span for all
matches of the German and Polish national teams




The profit share of RTL Group (EBITA contnbution)

Antena 3 TV audience share was €6 miion (2011 €20 millior)
Sowce TG Sofres Target 16-54 2008-2012 (%)
125
17 Matronal audrence breakdown
11 a Sourca TNS Sofraz Target! 16-54 2012 {%)
154
16 8 Antena3d . 12.5
Grupo Antena 3
Grupo Antena 3 i Span In December 2011, digital chanmels . . 6.7
LaSexta . . .58
Grupo Antena 3 and La Sexta signed an agreement ;
La Sexta
for the merger of the two broadcasting companies ' digital channels 31
This was approved by the companies’ Boards and Telecinco 133
Sharsholders’ Meetings, and followng final regulato- TVE(TVE1+La2) .__120
ry approval La Sexta was absorbed into Grupo An- Cuatro _ ) 76
tena 3 in October 2012 Forta ) 67
Others . . . 323
Lz Sexta's shareholders recewved 7 per cent of the

share captal of the new Grupo Antena 3, N ex-
change for the assignment of all assets and labilibes
in the company To enable this transaction, Grupo
Antena 3 first increased #s capital by means of a
new share 1ssue The agreement also includes the
allccation of an additional stake of up to 7 per cent
to the shareholders of La Sexta in a graduated man-
ner and subject to the achievement of a senes of
targets nked 1o the resuits of the new group dunng
the penod 2012 to 2016

By incorporatng La Sexta’s TV channels, the new
Grupo Antena 3 has augmented Its strong presence
in other markets — such as radio, adverusing and
¢inema —with a leading proposal n the TV business
A family of eight channels (Antena 3, La Sexta, Ne-
ox, Nova, Nitro, Xplora, La Sexta 3 Todo Cine and
Gol TV - the latter on a lease basis} prowides a com-
plementary and vaned offer to meet the needs of
bath viewers and advertisers RTL Group owns a
stake of 20 5 per cent in the new Grupo Antena 3 '¢

Though the Spanish TV advertising market declined
by an estimated 18 9 per cent in 2012, Grupo Ante-
na 3 clearly autperformed the market, with TV ad-
vertising sales decreasing by just 5 O per cent As a
rasult, the company’s net share of the Spanish TV
advertising market increased significantly to 35 2 per
cent (2011 30 5 per cent)

The main channel, Antena 3, Increased s audience
share in the commercial target group of viewers aged
16 t0 54 t0 12 5 per cent (2011 11 7 per cent) In-
cluding the digital channels Neax, Nova and Nitro,
the Grupo Antena 3 family grew its combined audi-
ence share to 19 2 per cent n the target group (2011
18 4 per cent) Including the channels of La Sexta for
tha last quarter of 2012, Grupo Antena 3's combined
audience share for 2012 was 21 8 per cent

On a 100 per cent basts, consolidated revenue of
Grupo Antena 3 dropped to €741 mulion (2011
€805 million}, whie operating profit (EBITDA) de-
creased to €39 5 milion (2011 €124 miion) and
net profit fell to €32 millicn (2011 €93 mullon)

RTL Group has applied for a bulding permit at its
Luxembourg headquarters which will involve the
construction of a new building to hest RTL Group's
Corporate Centre and s Luxembourgrsh actvities
Based upon a provisional tming the first phase of the
canstrichon coudd start dunng the first half of 2013
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Main portfohio changes

On 2 January 2012, RTL Group completed the ac-
quisthion of a 100 per cent stake in Gutschemne de
HSS GmbH which operates online couponing sites
The acquisition strengthens RTL Group's position in
Germany within the onling market

On 20 February 2012, RTL Group completed the full
disposal of the shares held in Alpha Media Group
{AMG} to Demco, a non-controiing shareholder At
31 Decernber 2011, AMG was classified as a dispos-
al group and qualfied as a discontinued operation

On 1 October 2012, Grupo Antena 3 completed the
absorption of Gestora de inversiones Audiowvisuales
La Sexta SA {La Sexta)

On 11 Qctober 2012, RTL Group completed the
acqusttion of a 100 per cent stake In Videostnp BY,
the largest oniine wideo advertising netwark In the
Netherlands

Share of results of associates

Year to Year to

December December
2012 2011 Percent
€m €m change
- Grupo Antena 3 (66) 20 na
- RTLU 13 13 -
QOthers — 5 na
Total {53) as n.a

The total contribution of the associated companes
decreased to a loss amounting to €53 million (2011
€38 milion) The main reason for this was the im-
parment aganst the Group's camying value of
Grupo Antena 3, for an amount of €72 milhon, and a
€10 milkon imparment against the Group’s camng
value of Ad Society, which is fully impared

Interest income/{expense} and financial results
other than interest

Net interest expense amounted to €10 milkon
(2011 expense of €2 milkon) and 1s pnmarily stem-
ming from lower overall Interest Income, due to the
low Interest rate environment

The financial results other than mterest \nclude the
re-measurement of put options at year-end, move-
ments in avallable-for-sale mvestments, and chang-
g5 in far value on other financial assets

Amortisation and impairment of fair value
adjustments on acquisittions of subsidiaries
and joint ventures

This heading includes the costs related to the amor-
tisation of fair value adjustments (mainly Groupe M6)

Imparment of nvestment in associates

An mpairrment loss amounting to €82 millon was
recorded (2011 €6 milhon relating to a Group pro-
ducticn company), due to an mparment aganst the
Group’s carmyng value of Grupo Antena 3, for an
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amount of €72 million, and a €10 million imparment
aganst the Group's camrying value of Ad Society,
which 1s fully impaired

Gain/(Loss) from sale of subsidianes, other
investments and re-measurement to fair value
of pre-existing interest in acquiree

A loss of €9 miflon from the sale of subsidianes,
other investments and re-measurerment to far value
of pre-existing interest In acquiree was recognised In
2012 (2011 non-cash gain of €107 milllon) This
loss mainty relates to the dilution n the Group’s
sharehoiding in Grupo Antena 3 following the acqul-
sition by Grupo Antena 3 of La Sexta

Income tax expense
In 2012, the tax expense was €277 milkon (2011
expense of €302 million}

Following the PLF agreernent {see heading "Related
party transactions"), which was approved by the
Board on 26 June 2008, a commission Incormne of
€69 millton, representmng 50 per cent of the tax ban-
efit generated at the level of Bertelsmann, has been
recorded in tax for the year (2011 €69 milion)

Loss from discontinued operations

The loss from discontinued operations for the year
of €1 millon relates solely to Alpha Meadia Group
(2011 loss of €96 millon relating mamly to Alpha
Media Group}

Profit for the year atinbutable toa RTL Group
shareholders

The profit for the year attnbutable to RTL Group
shareholders was €597 millon (2011 €686 rmillion)

Earnings per share

Reported earnings per shars, based upon
153,618,853 shares, was €388 (2011 €4 53 per
sharg)

Net cash position

The consoldated net ¢cash position at 31 December
2012 was €1,051 mihon (31 December 2011
€1,238 mullon} The Group continues to generate
significant operatng cash flow with an EBITA to
cash canversion ratio of 101 per cent (2011 104
per cent)

As at 31 Ag at 31
Decamber December

2012 2011

€m €m
Gross balance shest debt (29) (53)
Gross financial debt {29) (53)
Add cash and cash equivalents 650 701
Add cash deposit and others 430 590
Net cash position 1,051 1,238




Own shares

RTL Group has an issued share capial of
€191,800,551 dmded nto 154,787,564 fully pad
up shares with no defined nommal valua

RTL Group directly and indirectly holds 0 76 per
cent (2011 0 76 per cent) of RTL Group’s shares

Related party transactions

Financing

As at 3t December 2012 RTL Group had vanous
deposts (overmght and up to three months)
amounting to €426 milion (2011 €589 milion} with
Bertelsmann These deposits bear an interest rate of
exther EONIA or EURIBOR plus 10 basis points de-
pending on the duration of the deposit The over-
night depostt has subsequently been rolled over
The total interest iIncome on these depasits for the
penod ending 31 December 2012 amourited to €3
millon (2011 €8 milton)

Bertelsmann granted to RTL Group pledges on all
shares of its wholly owned French subsidiary Madia
Communication SAS and of ts wholly owned Span-
1sh subsidiary Media Finance Holding SL as secunty
for all payments due by Bertelsmann

{n October 2008, Bertefsmann granted to RTL Group
a further pledge covenng all the shares of ts 73 4
per cent owned Gerrnan subsidiary Gruner + Jahr
AG & Co KG as secunty for all payments due by
Bertelsmann

in November 2008, Bertelsmann granted to
RTL Group a further pledge covering ali the shares
of its wholly owned UK subsidiary, Bertelsmann
UK Lmited, as secunty for all payments due by
Bertelsmann

In December 2011, RTL Group Deutschland GmbH
- a Group company — and Bertelsmann entered into
an agreement related to the depost of surplus cash
by RTL Group Deutschland GmbH with Bertelsmann
Bertelsmann pledged to RTE Group Deutschland
GmbH its aggregate current partnership interest in
Grunar + Jahr AG & Co KG as well as all additional
partnership wterests In Gruner + Jahr it may ¢reate
or acqurs as securdy for all payments due by
Bertalsmann As at 31 December 2012 the three-
month deposit of RTL Group Deutschiand GmbH
with Bertelsmann amounted to €75 milion (2011
€50 million}

Tax

On 26 June 2008, the Board of Diectors of
RTL Group agreed to proceed with the tax pooling
of s indwrect subsidiary RTL Group Deutschland
GmbH (*RGD") Into Bertelsmann Capital Holding
GmbH (*BCH?), a direct subsidiary cf Bertelsmann

To that effect, RTL Group, through RGD, entered in-
to a Proft and Loss Poolng Agresment {*PLP
Agreement”) with BCH for a six-year period starting

1 January 2008 Simultaneously, Bertelsmann en-
tered into a Compensation Agreement (*Compensa-
ton Agreament”) with CLT-UFA, a direct subsidiary
of RTL Group, providing for the payment to CLT-UFA
of an amount compensating the above profit trans-
fer and an addional commission {*Commission™)
amounting to 50 per cent of the tax saving based
upon the taxable profit of RGD

Through these agreements, as from 1 January 2008,
Bertelsmann and the RGD sub-group of RTL Group
are treated as a single entity for German income tax
purposes

As the PLP Agreament does not give any authority
to BCH to instruct or control RGD, 1t affects nerther
RTL Group nor RGD's ability to rmanage ther busi-
ness, includimg thewr responsibility to optimisea ther
tax structures as they deem fit After six years, both
PLP and Compensahon Agreemeants are renewable
on a yearly basis RGD and CLT-UFA have the nght
to request the early termination of the PLP and Com-
pensation Agreements under cartain conditions

In the absence of specific gudance in iFRS,
RTL Group has elected to recognise current iIncome
taxes reiated to the RGD sub-group based on the
amounts payable to Bertelsmann AG and BCH as a
result of the PLP and Compensation Agreements
descnbed above Deferred mcome taxes continue to
be recognised, based upon the enacted tax rate, In
the consolidated financial statements based on the
amounts expected to be utiised by the Group in the
future The Commission, teing economically and
contractually closaly related to the Compensation, 1s
accounted for as a reduction of the tax due under
the Agreements

These Agreements increase the Group's net profit
As at 31 December 2012, the balance payable to
BCH amounts to €191 millon {2011 €278 militon)
and the balance recewable from Bertelsmann
amounts to €122 million (2011 €209 million)

The Comrnission recognised by CLT-UFA, a direct
subsidiary of RTL Group, in 2012 amounts to €69
rullion (2011 €69 million}

RTL GROUP
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Sigmficant tigations

RTL Group 1s party to legal proceedings in the nor-
mal course of its business, both as defendant and
clamant

Most of these claims iInvolve complex issues and the
probability of loss and an estimation of damages are
difficult to ascertain A provision Is recognised when
the nsk of a loss becomes likely and when it I1s pos-
sible 10 make a reasonable estimate of the expected
financial effect of a proceeding The publication of
this information on a case-by-case basis, however,
would senously prejudice the company's position n
the ongoing legal proceedings or n any related set-
tlerment discussions

The man legal proceedings to which RTL Group 1s a
party are disciosed below

Several subsidiaries of the Group are being sued by
smaller broadcasters in Germany seeking disclosure
The proceedings succeed the iImposition of a fine
by the German Federal Cartel Office with regard to
discount scheme agreements (“share deals™) IP
Deutschland GmbH and SavenOne Media GmbH
granted to media agencies in 2007 The German
Federal Cartel Office argued that these discounts
would create a pull of advertising chents towards
the larger broadcasters of RTL Group and Pro-
SiebenSatt and would foreclose the advertising
market for smaller, less powerful broadcasters
[P Deutschiand GmbH, RTL Telewvision GmbH, Vox
Telewision GmbH, RTL Disney Fernsehen GmbH &
Co KG and N-TV Nachnchten GmbH are being
sued in thus respect by RTL 2 Fernsehen GmbH &
Co KG and El Cartel Media GmbH & Co KG before
the regonal court of Dusseldorf, Germany and by
MTV Networks Germany GmbH as well as Tele-
Munchen-TV GmH before the regronal court in Mu-
nich, Germany The clamants demand disclosure of
the adverhising boolkangs 1n the past in order to de-
termine and substantiate a possible claim for dam-
ages TeleMunchen-TV GmbH was unsuccessful in
the first Instance Its appeal was tumed down by the
higher regional court of Munich, Germany

At the end of 2012, RTL settled two proceedings
wiath the German Federal Cartel Office (FCO} The
FCO1ssued these decisions on 27 December 2012
In the first decision, the FGO imposed fines totalling
approximately €55 milton on ProSiebenSat1 and
RTL Telewision GmbH as well as two indwduals with
regard to anticornpettive concerted practces re-
garding the encryption of digital free TV programmes
and signal protection measures In 2005/2006 In the
second decision, ProSiebenSat1 and RTL Telewision
GmbH, RTL 2 Fernsehen GmbH & Co KG and
RTL Disney Fernsshen GmbH & Co KG bindingly
comemitted to the FCO to broadcast theirr main chan-
nels in SD-Quality unencrypted via cable, satellte
and IPTV (except for IPTV platforms operated {) by
companies that don't have ther own network or {1}
by companies that have ther own network and
operate |PTV platfiorms outside such network) for
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ten years starting from the later of 1 January 2013 or
the commencement of unencrypted SO distribution
by the relevant network aperators They further
committed that to the extent SD signals are encrypt-
ad on IPTV platforms to not restrict recording, for-
warding and skipping functronaliies Encryption of
HD channels on all distnbution channels remans
possible and 1s not affected by the decision The
parties agreed to settle the cass N accordance with
section 32b of the German Act Against Restraints of
Competition

The FCO's second decision was appealed by Kabal
Deutschland (KDG) before the Gourt of Appeal in
Dusseldorf on 25 January 2013 KDG had argued in
the FCO proceeadings (to which It was a party) that
the commitments accepted by the FCO do not
address the allegedly anticompetitive practices in
relation to the HD channels but rather implement
new anticompetitive agreements for SD broadcast-
ing, and that they mpose the obhgation of an ineffi-
cient SD/HD-Simulcast and interfere wath the entre-
preneunal freedom of network operators These
objectians were dismissed by the FCO in the com-
rmitments decision and based thereon RTL Group 1s
confident that the FCO's deciston will be upheld by
the court if the appeal were successiul, the Court of
Appeal would remand the proceedings to the FCO

Brand Cochran (*8C") was employed as a model
on the television senes The Price Is Right from July
2002 untl February 2010 and 15 claming wrongful
termination and other allegations due to her gender
and pregnancy Her clam was brought aganst
FremantleMedia The court allowed BC to proceed
to tnal

The court entered judgement on 17 January 2013
and awarded damages i the amount of $ 8,536,384
(compensatory damages of $766,944 and punitive
damages of $7,769,440, subject 1o interest at the
rate of 10 per cent per annum untll paid) plus attor-
ney’s fees Fremantle Media 1s appealing the verdict

Prnincipal risks and uncertainties

Pnncipal nsks and uncertanties are disclosed in
note 3 to the consolidated financial statements for
the financial nsks (pages 160 to 167} and In the sec-
tion “Corporate Governance” on the RTLGroup com
website for the external and market nsks




Corporate governance statement

The RTL Group Board of Directors 1s committed to
hugh standards of corporate governance RTL Group
has applied the principles of good governance for
years, even bafore The Ten Pnnciples of Corporate
Governance were iImplemented by the Luxembourg
Stock Exchange — prnciples that RTL Group 1s in
line with and submitted to

More information on this topic can be found In
the “About us” section of the Company’s website
(RTLGroup com) It contains our corporate govern-
ance charter, and regularty updated informaton,
such as the latest version of the Company’s govern-
ance documents (articles of incorporation, statutory
accounts, minutes of shareholders’ meetings, etc),
and information on the composition and rmission of
the RTL Board and ts Committees The “investors”
section also contans the financial calendar and
other nformation that may be of nterest to share-
holders

Shareholders

The share capital of the Company s set at
€181,900,551, which 1s dwded into 154,787,554
futty pard up shares with no par value

Excluding 0 76 per cent held collectvely as treasury
stock by RTL Group and one of its subsidianes, as
at December 2012, Bertelsmann held 92 3 per cent
of RTL Group shares The remaimng 7 7 per cent
were publicly traded

General Mestings of Shareholders will be held at the
registered office or any other place in Luxembourg
indicated In the convening notice A General Meet-
ing of Sharehclders must be convened upon re-
quest of one or more shareholders who together
represent at least one tenth of the Company's capr-
tal, and the Annual General Mesting of Shareholders
1s held on the thrd Wednesday of Apnl at 1500 if
this day 1s a public holiday, the mesting will be held
on the next business day at the same tme

Resoiutions will be adopted by the smple majorty of
valid votes, excluding abstentions Any resolutron
amending the Articles of Incarporaticn wil be adopt-
ed by a majonty of two thirds of the votes of all the
shares preseant or represented

The Annual General Meeting will examine the reports
of the Board of Directors and the auditor and, If
thou'ght fit, will approve the annual accounts The
meeting will also determine the allocation of profit,
and decide on the discharge of the directors and the
audror from any duhes

On 18 Apnl 2012, the by-laws of the Company were
amended dunng an Extraordinary Meating of Share-
holders in order to endorse the provisions of the law
adopted by the Luxembourg Parlament on 24 May
2011 - wiich implements Directive 2007/36/EC of
the European Parhament and of the Councd of 11
July 2007 on the exercisa of certain nghts of share-

holders of histed companes, the so-called “Share-
holders' Rights Directive”

Board and mznagement

Board of Diractors

0On 31 December 201 2 the Board of RTL Group had
ten members three executive directors, and seven
non-axecutive directors The executive and non-ex-
acutive directors elected at the General Mesting of
Sharehalders on 18 Apnl 2012 were appointed for
three years The tiographical detadls of the directors
are set out on pages 96 to 100 Three of the non-
executive directors - Jacques Santer, James Singh
and Martin Taylor - are independent of management
and other outside interests that might snterfere with
therr Independent jJudgement

Martin Taylor was apponted under the cntena of
independence of the London Stock Exchange, be-
fore RTL Group adopted The Ten Principles of the
Luxembourg Stock Exchange, though he meets the
cntena of the latter Jacques Santer and James
Singh are independent directors, and both meet the
current critena of iIndependence of The Ten Princi-
ples of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange

The Board of Directars has to review, with expert help
if requested, that any transaction between RTL Group
or any of its subsidianes on the one hand and any of
the shareholders ar any of therr respective subsidiar-
1es on the other hand s on am’s length terms

The responsibility for day-to-day management of the
Company 15 delegated to the Chief Executive Offic-
ers (“CEOs" The Board has a number of respansi-
bilites, which inciude approving the annual Group's
budgst, overseaing significant acquisitions and dis-
posals, and managing the Group’s financial state-
ments The Board of Directors met five tmes in
2012 - with an average attendance rate of 100 per
cent — and adopted some decisions by circular res-
olution An evaluation process of the Board of Direc-
tors' activities — and the actvities of its committess —
was camed out n 2011, and In the future will
continue to ba parformed on a reguilar basis

The Executive Commttee updates the Board on the
group's actvities and financial situation At each
meeting, representatives of the Exacutive Commit-
tee briet the Board on ongoing matters, and on pos-
sible upcoming INvestment or divestment decisions

In 20112, a total of €0 53 milion (2011 €0 53 mulion)
was allocated m the form of attendance fees to the
non-executive members of the Board of Dwrectars
and tha Committees that emanate from it {see note
104 to the consolidated financial statements)

Neither options nor loans have been granted to
Directors

ATL GROUP
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Appropnrate measuras were taken by the Company to
ensure compliance with the prowistons of the Luxem-
bourg law on market abuse, and with the Circulars of
the Commission de Surveliance du Secteur Financier
{CSSF) concerming the application of this legislation

The following Board Committees are established
Nomination and Compensation Committee
The Nomination and Gompensation Commuttes com-
pnses thres non-executive directors, one of whom is
an independent director {who also charrs the meet-
ngs), and meets at least twice a year The Nomination
and Compensation Committee met five tmes in 2012,
with an average attendance rate of 100 per cent

The Nomination and Compensation Commities con-
sults with the CEOs on the appointment and removal
of executive directors and senior management, and
determines the Group’s compensation policy

Audit Committee

The Audit Comimitiee 1s made up of three non-exec-
utve directars — two of whom are independent —
and meets at least four imes a year

The Committee’s plenary meetings are attended by
the CEOs, the Chief Financial Officer (*CFO"), the
Head of Internal Audi, the external auditors and oth-
ar senior Group finance representatives The Audit
Cormmittee met three times In 2012, with an average
attendance rate of 100 per cent

The Committes reviews the risk management and
control emaronment, financial reporting and stand-
ards of business conduct

The Head of intemal Audrit and the external auditors
have drect access to the Chairman of the Audit
Committee, who 13 an independent director

CEOs

Respensibility for day-to-day management of the
company rests with the CEQs, who - on a regular
basis and upon request of the Board — inform the
Board of Directors about the status and develop-
ment of the Company

The CEOs are responsible for proposing the anmual
budgst, to be approved by the Board of Directors.
They are also responsible for determining the ordi-
nary course of the business

Executive Commuttee

On 18 Apnl 2012, the Board of Directors (rejset up
the Executive Committes which consists of the thres
exacutive directors, 1e the two CEOs and the CFO

The Executive Vice President Regional Operations &
Business Development CEE and Asia 1s inwted to at-
tend the meetings on a permanent basis The Exec-
utve Commuttee 1s vested with nternal management
authonty Biographical details of the members of the
Executive Committee can be found on page 101
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External auditor

In accordance with the Luxembourg law on com-
mercial companies, the Company's annual and
consolidated accounts are certified by an external
audrtor, appointed at the Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders On 18 Apnl 2012, the shareholders
appomnted Pncewaterhouse Coopers S & rl (PwC)
for a year PwC’s mandate will expire at the Annual
General Mesting on 17 Apnl 2013

Dealing in shares

The Company's shares are hsted on Euronext Brus-
sels, and on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange Ap-
plicable Belgian and Luxembourg nsider dealing
and market manipulaton laws prevent anyone with
matenal non-puble nformation about a company
from dealing in its shares and from committing mar-
ket manipulations

A detailad Dealing in Shares Code contains restnc-
tons on dealings by directors and certain employ-
ees of RTL Group and its subsidianes, or assoctated
companies

Restnictions apply to

u Members of the Board of Directars,

u All employess of RTL Group SA, and directors and
employees of any subsidiary or affiiated company
of RTL Group who, bacause of therr positon or ac-
twities, may have access to unpublished pnce-
sensitive information

Internal controls over financial reporting
internal controls over financial reperting am to
provide reasonable assurance on the rebabity of
external and internal financial reporting, and ther
conformity with the applicable laws and regulations
They help to ensure that financial reporting presents
a true and far picture of the Group’s net assets,
financial position and operational results

Tone at the top

Basic guidelines for RTL Group's daily actmties and
decision-making processes are governed by its
Cods of Conduct, which requires that financial re-
porting 15 prepared on the basis of integnty and
transparency The Group has a training prograrmme
in place 10 ensure that new starters across our oper-
ations ars fully aware of the Code

Standards and rules

The rules governing the Group's financial reporting
erwronment and crtical accounting policies are
set qut in the Group's Financial Accounting Manual
(FAM) The FAM, which 1s regulary updated, 1S circu-
lated to the members of the Group's finance com-
munity, and publshed on our ntranet  Standards of
a mmmum conirol framework for key accounting
processes at the level of our fuly consolidated
reporting units ara formalised m a set of expected
ke controls Our centralised treasury and corporate
finance activitigs are governed by dedicated policies
and procedures Hedgmg of exposure in non-Euro




currencies is governed by a stnet policy All internal
and external financial reporting processes are organ-
1zad through a centrally managed reporting calendar

Systems and related controls

Local (*ERP™ systems are largely centrally mon-
tored via common system platforms to ensure a
consistent set-up of system-embedded controls
Segregation of dutes i1s regularly rewewed by the
Corporate Cantre using dedicated software for all
reporting units whose ERP s centrally maintained
Internal and external financtal reporing 1S up-
streamed by a centrally managed integrated finance
systemn — from budgeting and trend year analysis,
monthly intermnal management reporting, and fore-
casting of financial and operational KPis, to con-
soldation and external financial reporting, and finally
nsk management reporting {see section “How we
manage nsks") Specific system-embedded controls
support the consakdation procass, ncluding the
reconciliation of intercompany transactions T Gen-
eral Contrals (TGCs") are regularty assessed by
external experts or by intemal audit Controls ob-
|ectives are defined for the RTL Group central appli-
cations (“Referenced Applications”} and therr refated
IT infrastructure The objectives and the effective-
ness of these controls are subject to an annual
SOC1 ISAE3402 certification The Group's consoii-
dation scope 15 constantly updated, both at the level
of financial nterests captured in the cons#olidation
system, and at the level of legal information through
a dedicated legal scope system

Analytics and reporting

All internal and external local financial and consoll-
dated reporting s systematically reviewed by local
finance staff or by finance teams within the Corpo-
rate Centre Typical analyses mnclude comparisons
to previous year, budget and forecast, financial and
operational KPIs, flows of key captions on the m-
come statement, statement of the financial postion,
changes In equity, and cash fiow statement Regular
commumcation between our gperatons and the
Carporate Centre’s finance department ensures any
issue that could affect the Group's financial reporting
s immediately flagged and resolved Quarterly re-
porting to the financial market 1s reviewed and ap-
proved by the Audit Commitiee

Transparency

Business unit-level finance committees ensure any
issues that could significantly affect the financial
statements are quickly brought to the attention of
management Our incident reporting policy requires
business units to iImmediately report fraud incidents
to the Group tdentfied control weaknesses that
could impact the reliability of financial reporting - re-
ported by ether external or internal audt - are
brought to the attention of management and the Au-
dit Committee, and are part of a follow-up process
Each ysar, the business units self-assass the matu-
nty ievel of their local internal centrols cver financlal
reporting Results of this self-assessment are report-
ed to the Audit Committes At each meeting the Au-
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dit Committee is updated on the key accounting, tax
and legal 1ssues within the Group

The Corporate Centre constantly promotes the im-
portance of soundly designed internal controls - not
only over financial reporting, but also for operational
processes — through dedicated workshops with our
business unrts, and the wark of the Internal Audit
department

How we manage nsks

By theirr nature, media businesses are exposed
to nsk Telewision and radio channels can lose audi-
ences rapldly as new competitive threats emerge,
with consequent loss of revenue Broadcasters and
producers ars exposed to legal nsks, such as -
gation by aggneved indmduals or argamisations,
and media businesses are more exposed than most
to economic cycles — advertising s usually one
of the first casualties in an econormic downturn
RTL Group’s international presence exposes it to
further nsks, such as adverse currency movements
and debtors’ default

The Board of Directors maintains responsibility for
ensunng RTL Group mantans a sound systern of
internal controls, including financial, operational and
compliance nsks

RTL Group has robust nsk management processes
In place, designad to ensure that nsks are 1dentl-
fiad, monitored and controlled Our nsk manage-
ment system 1s based on a specific policy and a
clear set of procedures Policies and procedures are
reviewed on a regular basis by the Internal Audit
Department and/or external consuling companies
Risk management reporing 1s coordinated by the
Treasury Departrment, then reviewed by the Internal
Audit Department

The internal control system process 1s designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the achiave-
ment of ogjectives n the following categones

= Effectiveness and efficiency of operations, and the
optimal use of the Group's resources

= |ntegrity and relability of financial and operaticnal
nformation

= Rehabilty of financial reporting

= Proper 1dentificatton, assessment, mitigation and
reporting of matenal nsks

» Complance with applicable laws, regulations,
standards and contracts

Intarnal controls cannot prowvide an absolute guaran-
tee that nisks of misstaternent, losses or human error
have been totally eliminated

Definttion of nsk

RTL Group defines a nsk as the danger of a negative
development that could endanger the solvency or
existence of a business urit, or have a negatve im-
pact on the Group's ncome statement
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Risk reparting framewoark
Wa have developed a framework for the reporting of
nsks, in hne with good corporate practice

Thws framework 15 based on a number of key
principles

u Comprehensive scope of nsk assessment risks are
assessed withun a frameworlc of defined key nsk
categaries Regular nsk assessments include a de-
scnption of the nsk, an Indication of the potential fi-
nancial Impact, and steps taken to mitigate the nsk
These steps ara performed throughout RTL Group,
consohidated by the Treasury Department, reviewed
by the Internal Audit Department, and ultimately de-
scnbed in a dedicated Risk Management Raport
Results are presented to the Audrt Committee
# Regular reporting RTL Group’s systemn of intermal
conirals ensures that nsks are addressed, report-
ed and mihgated when they anse All significant
nsks are comprehensively assessed within the nsk
reportng framework, and reported to RTL Group
managerment on a ti-annual basis This ensures
the necessary actions are undertaken to manage,
mitigate or offset nsks wittin the Group
® Bottom-up approach we assess nsks where they
anse — in our gperations  All business units have to
assess themselves according to the three parts of
the Risk Management Report
* Part A, Risk assessment and quantification of re-
sidual nsks if applicable

® Part B Health-check (self-assessment on inter-
nal controls on processes n place)

s Part C Sefif-assessment questionnare on nsk
managemsnt

The three parts are reviewed by both the Treasury
and the Internal Audit departments, as mentoned
above

= Consistent reporting  our operations report on
therr nsk assessment using a common GRGC (Gov-
ernance, Risk and Compliance) reporting tool to
ensure consistency in scope and approach
® Consolidated Group matnx we gan a compre-
hensve view of signiicant nsks for the Group by
consolidating local nsk assessments A Risk Man-
agement Committee — chared by the CFO and
comprising senior Group management — prepares
and reviews this consolidated Group nsk matnx
The committee also
= Advises on the control and reporting process for
any major nsks, and recommends miigaton
strategies to the Group CFO
= Monitors follow-up of nsks and ensures miiga-
ton measures have been taken
u Incraases nsk awareness within the Group
» [dentifies potental optimsation oppertundies N
processes
= Audit approach batih the process of local nsk as-
sessments and the consoltdated Group nsk matn-
ces are regularly revieawed by the internal audit
tunction
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Going forward

RTL. Group's nsk management framework 1$ con-
stantty challenged — at both operations and Group
level = through the Risk Management Comemittee,
to ensure it reflects the nsk profile of the Group at
all times

To ensure our nsk management process and report-
ing requirements are consistently implemented
throughout the Group, we hold regular workshops
to update staff and to introduce new tools avalable
to assess nsk.




Profit appropnation {RTL Group SA)”?

The statutory accounts of RTL Group SA show anet
profit for the financial year 2012 of €1,854,247 717
(2011 €170,055,128) Taking wnto account the
share premium of €4,691,802,180 and the result for
the year of €1,854,247,717, the amount available
for distnbution is € 4,922,600,240, net of an intenm
dmvdend of £1,623,449,667 (€10 50 per share, of
which €5 40 extraordinary dmdend} as decided by
the Board of Directors of RTL Group SA on 24 Feb-
ruary 2013 and which will be pasd on ¥ March 2013

Luxembourg Law on Takeover Bids

The following disclosures are made th accordance
with article 11 of the Luxembourg Law on Takeover
Bids of 19 May 2006

2} Share capital structure

RTL Group SA hasssued one class of shares which
1s admitted to trading on Euronext Brussels and the
Luxembourg Stock Exchange No other secunties
have been issued The iIssued shara capital as at 31
December 2012 amounts to €191,900,551 repre-
sented by 154,787,554 shares with no par vatue,
each fully pad-up

) Transter restnctions

At the date of this report, ali RTL Group SA shares
are freely transferable but shall be subject to the pro-
visions of the apphcable Belgian and Luxembourg
insder dealing and market manipulation laws, which
prevent anyone who has matenal non-public infor-
mation about a company from dealing in 1ts shares
and from committing market mampulations A de-
taled Dealing in Shares Code contans restnctions
on dealings by drectors and certan employees of
RTL Group SA and its subsidiangs

) Major shareholding

The shareholding structure of RTL Group SA as at
31 December 2012, excluding O 76 per cent which
1s held collectively as treasury stock by RTL Group
SA and one of its subsidianies, 15 as follows Bertels-
mann Capital Holding GmbH, 92 3 per cent, and the
remairung 7 7 per cent s publcly traded

d) Speciai control nghts

All the 1ssued and outstanding shares of RTL Group
SA have squal voting nghts and there are no spscial
control nghts attached to them

) Control system in employee share scheme

RTL Group SAs Board of Directors 1s not aware
of any 1ssue regarding section e} of article 11 of the
Luxembourg Law on Takeover Bids of 19 May 2006

f} Voting nghts

Each share 1ssued and outstanding in RTL Group
SA represents one vote The Articles of Association
do not provide for any voting restnctions In accord-
ance with the Articles of Association, a record date
for the admission to a general meeting 1s set and
certficates for the shareholdings and proxes shall
be recaved by RTL Group SA the 14th day before

the refevant at 24 hours {Luxembourg tme} Addi-
tronal provisions may apply under Luxembourg law

g} Shareholders' agreement with

transfer restnctions
RTL Group SA's Board of Directars has no infarma-
tion about any agreements between shareholders
which may result In restrictions on the transfer of se-
cuntties or voting nghts

h} Appointment of Board members,
amendments cf articles of association

The appointment and replacement of Board members
and the amendments of the Articles of Association
arg governed by Luxembourg Law and the Articles
of Association The Articles of Assomahon are pub-
hshed under the ‘About Us* Corporate Governance
Section on RTLGroup com

i) Powers of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors I1s vested with the broadest
powers to manage the business of RTL Group SA 1t
may take all acts of administratian and of disposal In
the interest of RTL Group SA The Board of Direc-
tors has set up several committees whose members
are Directors The responsibibties and the function-
alites of the Board of Directors and its committees
are descnbed in the Articles of Association and
the Corporate Governance Charter, published under
the ‘About Us” Comporate Governance Section on
RTLGroup com The Board of Directors 1s not en-
titled to buy back treasury shares

#} Significant agreements or essential

business contracis
The Board of Directors 1s not aware of any significant
agreements to which RTL Group SA 1s party and
which take effect, alter or terminate upon a change
of control of RTL Group SA following a takeover bid

k) Agreements with Directors and employses
Executive Commuittee members are enttled to con-
tractual severance payments in case of dismissal,
axcept in the case of dismissal for senous reasons

RATL GROUP
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17 Amounts m £ axcept where siated
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Subsequent events

On 1 February 2013, FremantieMedia announced
that 1t 1s reviewing its FremantleMedia Enterprises
{FME) arm wrth a plan to creats one new, stand-
alone, global dwsion focused on distnbuton and
lads and family entertanment All rermaining digital,
licensing, sponsorship and other ancillary actwvibies
previousty undertaken by FME will be housed within
FremantleMedia’s regional production operations In
addition, a new Digital & Branded Entertamnment
divsion will be created to focus on the company's
global digtal and branded entertainment actmties
The proposed company structurs will significantly
strengthen FremantieMedia’s core business acti-
ties wivle also better posittoring the company to
capitahse on growth opportunitiss for the future

The Board of Directors meeting on 24 February
2013 decded on the following

® The distnbution of an intenm dividend amounting
10 €1 6 hilion funded by the Group's net cash po-
siton and by debt in the form of shareholder loans
from Bertelsmann provided at arm's length terms
and at current market condrtions The dvidends
will be paid on 7 March 2013,

= A change in the Group’s dradend policy, rasulting
in 2 pay-out ratio of between 50 and 75 per cent of
the adjusted consalidated net profit atinbutable to
RTL Group shareholders within the hmit of the
Company’s distnbutable reserves

ANNUAL REPORT 2012

Outlook

Advertising market conditons in January and Febru-
ary 2013 conhnued to be challenging, with negative
growth in some of RTL Group’s core markets If this
continues, 1t 1s uncertain whether the profit will be at
the sarme level as in 2012 Facing this environment,
RTL Group has a clear focus on mamntaring its
leactership positions and debivenng financially while
pursung opportunities In broadcast, content and
chgrtal, which will develop the busingss further in
future years

24 February 2013
The Board of Directors




Management Responsibility Statement

We, Anke Schaferkordt and Guiliaume de Posch, Co-Chief Executive Officers, and Elmar Heggen, Chief
Financial Officer, confirm, to the best of our knowledge, that the consolidated financial statements which have
hesn prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European
Union, give a true and fair view of the assets, habilities, financial posttion and profit or loss of RTL Group
and the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whaole, and that the Directors’ report includes a
farr review of the development and performance of the business and the position of RTL Group and the
undsrtakings mcluded In the consofidation taken as a whole, together with a descnption of the prncipal nsks
and uncertantes that they face

Luxembourg, 24 February 2013

i) QS%/M,% V cﬁi%’

Anke Schaferkordt and Guillaume de Posch Elmar Heggen
Co-Chief Executive Officers Chief Financial Officer
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CONSOLIDATED

INCOME STATEMENT

for the year ended 31 December 2012

2012 201t
Notes €m €m

Continuing operations
Revenue [ 5] 5,998 5,765
QOther operating income 45 40
Consumption of current programme rights (2,015)  (1,791)
Bepreciation, amortsation and impairment (187 (178)
Qther operating expenses 7. 2. (2,790) (2,746)
Amortisation and impairment of fair value adjustments on acquisitions of subsidiaries and joint ventures (10) (13)
Gain/{loss) from sale of subsidiaries, other investments and re-measurement
to fair value of pre-existing interest in acquirse 7. 3. {9} 107
Profit from operating activihes 1,032 1,184
Share of results of associates {53) 38
Earmings before nterest and taxes {“EBIT™} 979 1,222
Interest income 11 23
Interest expense {21} (25)
Financial results other than interest (1) 27)
Profit betore taxes 968 1,193
Income tax expense 7. 6. {2r7) (302}
Profit for the year from continumng operations 691 891
Discontinued operations
Loss for the year from discontinued operations [ 4.] {1) (96)
Profit for the year 690 795
Attributable to
RTL Group shareholders 597 696
Non-controlling interests 93 99
Profit for the year 690 795
EBITA* (continuing operations}) 1,078 1,134
Impairment of Investments In assoclates {82) {6)
Amortisation and imparment of far value adjustments on acquisiions of subsidianes and joint ventures (10} {13}
Re-measurement of earn-out arrangements 2 -
Gain/{loss) from sale of subsidianes, other nvestments and re-measurement
to fair value of pre-existing interest in acquiree 7.3 {9) 107
Earnmings befare interest and taxes (“EBIT"} 8979 1,222
Earmings per share from continuing operations (in €)
- Basic 3.89 501
- Difuted 3.89 501
Earmings per share from discontinued operations (in €)
- Basic {0.01) (0 48)
- Diluted (0 01) {0 48)
Earnings per share (in €
- Basic 3.86 453
- Diluted 3.88 453

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

EBITA represents earmnings belore interest and taxes excluding smparment of goodwilf and' of disposal group, and armortsation and smparment of ar vakse adusiments an acqustons of subsidanes
and joml ventures, smpaxtnent of ¥vestments i assocales, re-measwrement of earn-oul arangermants and gam or loss from sale of subsicanes, other nvesiments and re-messurement fo far value of

pra-axsting terest N acquires
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

for the year ended 31 December 2012

2012 2011
Notas £€m €m
Profit for the year 690 795
Other comprehensive iIncome
ftems that wall not be reclassified to profit or loss
Actuarial losses on post employment benefit abligations Bz ] (33} (1}
Income tax m 6 -
{27) {1}
Htems that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Foreign currency translation differences B (3)
Share of other comprehensive incarne of associates - 1
Effactive portion of changes in fair value of cash flow hedges (20) 54
Income tax 6 (15)
(14) 39
Change in farr value of cash flow hedges transferred to profit or ioss {26) (9
Incarme tax __ﬁ 8 3
{18) (6)
Fair value gams/(losses) on availlable-for-sale financial assets 14 {1)
income tax 8. 5] (1) 02
13 (13)
{11} 18
Other comprehensive income/{loss} for the year, net of ncome tax {38) 17
Total comprehensive ncome for the year 652 812
Attributable to
RTL Group shareholders 568 706
Non-controlhng interests 84 106
Total comprehensive income for the year §52 812
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financiat staterments
RTL GROUP ANNUAL REPCRT 2012 145




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF FINANCIAL POSITION

as at 31 December 2012

2012 2011
Nates £m €m
Non-current assets
Programme and other nghts 124 119
Goodwill 2,679 2,662
Other intangible assets iii 202 201
Property, plant and equipment 8. 3. 346 358
Investments In associates ﬁ__ 251 356
Loans and cther financial assets e 239 312
Deferred tax assets [ 8. 6] 377 361
4218 4,369
Gurrent assets
Programmae nghts 906 927
Other inventories 30 34
Income tax receivable 86 57
Accounts recervable and other financial assets [8. 6] 2,005 2,068
Cash and cash equivalents 8. 4. 650 701
3,677 3,787
Assets classified as held for sale 8 4 3 3t
Current liabilites
Loans and bank overdrafts 3. 0. 16 42
Income tax payabla 79 100
Accounts payable 2,156 2,154
Prowvisions 221 240
2,472 2,536
Liabilities directly associated with non-current assets classified as held for sale - 57
Net current assets 1,208 1,225
Non-current habilihes
Loans 2. 10.] 13 11
Accounts payable 318 319
Provisions 174 114
Deferrad tax liabilities 8. 6] 62 57
568 501
Net assets 4,858 5,093
Equity attnbutable to RTL Group sharehclders 4,366 4,596
Equity attributable to non-controlling interests 492 497
Equity 8. 14. 4,858 5,093

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

* Re-presentad (see nota 1 21}
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Equity
attributable Equsty
to attributable
Currency RIL Group to non=
Shara Share  Treasury translaton Hedging Ravaluaton  Retained share- controfing Total
capital  presmum shares resarve reserve ressrve  eamings holders  interests equty
Notes €m €m €m £€m €m €m €m €m €m £€m
Balance at 1 January 2011 192 6,454 (44) {148) 19 86 (1,556) 5,013 584 5,597
Total comprehensive mcome
Profit for the year - - - - - - 696 696 99 795
Foreign currency translation differences - - - [} - - - 2 - 2)
Effactive portion of changes I fair
value of cash flow hedges, net of tax - - - - 39 - - 39 - 39
Change n far value of cash flow hedges
transferred to profit and loss, net of tax - - - - (8) - - (6) - {6)
Far value gans/(losses) on avallable-
for-sale financial assets, net of tax $ 1.5 - - - - - (20) - {20) 7 (13)
Defined benefit plan actuanal losses,
net of tax - - - - - - {1} {1) - (1)
- - - (2) 33 (20) 695 706 106 812
Capital transactons with owners
Dwvidends - - - - - - (769)  (769)  {128) (897
Equity-settled transactions net of tax - - - - - - 3 3 4 7
Transactions on nan-controlling
interests without a change in control - - - - - - (354)  (354) 38  (392)
Transactions on non-controlling
interests with a change n control 8 1 & - - - - - - - - (30) (30}
Dervatives on equity instruments 8 149, - - - - - - (1) {1 (%) 2}
Transactions on treasury shares
of associates - - - - - - (2) (2) - 2
- - - - - - (1,123) (1,123 (183} (1,316)
Balance at 31 December 2011 192 6,454 {44) (150) 52 76 {1,984} 4,596 497 5,093
Total comprehensive iIncome
Profit for the year - - - - - - 597 597 93 690
Foreign currency translation differences - - - B _ _ _ B _ 8
Effective portion of changes in fair
value of cash flow hedges, net of tax 8 14, 4. - - - - {13) - - (13) 1) (14}
Change in far value of cash flow hedges
transferred to profit and loss, net of tax - - - - (18) - - (18) - {18}
Far value gans/(losses) on available-
for-sale financial assets, net of tax 8 04§ - - - - - 20 - 20 (7) 13
Defined benefit plan actuanal losses,
net of tax - - - - - - (26} (26} (1) {27)
- = - 8 {31) 20 571 568 84 652
Caprtal transactions with owners
Dwvidends - - - - - — (783  (783) (95)  (878)
Equity-settled transactions net of tax - - - - - - 5 2 3 5
Transactions on non-controlling
interests without a change in cantrol 8. i4. & - - - - - - (18) (16) (1) {7
Transachons on non-controlhing
interests with a change in cantral - - - - - - - - 4 1
Denvatives on equity instruments 8 14, 9. - - - - - - 2 2 q 5
Transactions on treasury shares
of associates - - = - - - 3 (3) - (3)
- - - - - - (798) {798) (89) (887)
Balance at 31 December 2012 192 6,454 {44) {142) 21 86 (2,211) 4,366 492 4,858

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT

for the year ended 31 Decemnber 2012

2012 2011
Notes €m €m
Cash flows from operating activities {including discontinued operations)
Profit before taxes from continuing operations 968 1,193
Loss before taxes from discontinued operations M (99)
987 1,094
Adjustments for
~ Depreciation and amortisation 185 175
— Value adjustments, impairment and provisions 200 232
- Equrty-ssttled share-based payments expenses 5 7
— Gain on disposal of assets (33) (116)
— Financial results including net interest expense and share of results of assoctates 83 19
Use of provisions (113) (79)
Working capital changas (a4) {1)
Incoma taxes paid (325) {287)
Net cash from operating activities 925 1,044
- thereof from discontinued operations Five Group - 3
~ thereof used in discontinued operations Alpha E 3) {20)
Cash flows from investing activities (including discontinued operations)
Acguisttians of
— Programme and cther nghts {103) (79)
- Subsidiares and joint ventures net of cash acquired (8) (134)
- Other intangible and tangible assets (a0} {120)
— Other investments and financial assets (48) {38)
Gurrent depostt with shareholder 10, 1 {29) (50)
(274) (421}
Proceeds from the sale of intangible and tangible assets 27 22
Dispaosal of
- Discontinued operations, net of cash disposed of u (2) [€}}
- Other subsidianes and joint ventures, net of cash disposed of - (5)
Proceads from the sale of associates, other Investments and financial assets a3 29
Current deposit with shareholder 8 0 187 256
Interest receved 13 18
258 318
Net cash used in investing activities (16) (102}
- thereof used in discontinued operations Five Group [ 4.] - (1)
- thereof used in discontinued operations Alpha g 2) 2)
Cash flows from financing activikes (including discontinued operations)
Interest paid {19) (15)
Transactions on non-controlling interests (13) {111)
Proceeds from loans 7 54
Repayment of loans (60) (102)
Dividends pad (880 902
Net cash used in financing activites {965}  (1,076)
- thereof used in discontinued operations Aipha g {20) (44)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents {56) {134}
Cash and cash equivalents and bank overdrafis at beginning of year 8. 9. 700 838
Effact of exchange rate fluctuation on cash held 1 -
Effect of cash in disposal group held for sale [ 4] - {43
Cash and cash equivalents and bank overdrafts at end of year (2. 2] 645 700

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consoclidated financial statements
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NOTES TO THE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

KA SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

RTL Group SA (the “Company’) 1s a company
domuciled i Laxermbourg  The consclidated financial
statements of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2012 comprise the Company and its
subsidhanes (together referred to as “RTL Group™ or
“the Group™) and the Group's Interest In associates
and jontly controfled entties RTL Group SA s the
parent company of a mulbnatonal television, radio
and production Group holding, directly or indirectty, in-
vestments in 525 comparnies The Group maihly oper-
ates television channels and radio stations in Europe
and produces television content such as game shows
and soaps The list of the pnncipal Group under-
takings at 31 December 201215 set out In note 13

The Company s Iisted on the Brussels and Luixem-
bourg Stock Exchanges Statutory accounts can be
obtained at its registered office established at 45,
boulevard Pierre Fneden, L-1543 Luxembourg

The ultimate parent company of RTL Group SA pre-
parng consoldated financial statements, Bertelsmann
SE & Co KGaA, includes i its consolidated financial
staterments those of RTL Group SA. Bertelsmann SE
& Co KGaA is a company ncorporated under Ger-
man iaw whose registered office I1s estabiished at
Carl-Bertelsmann-StraBe 270, D-33311 Gutersloh,
Gearmany Consolidated financial statements for
Bertelsmann SE & Co KGaA can be obtaned at
their registered office

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
were authonsed for 1ssue by the Board of Directors
on 24 February 2013

Statement of complance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared In accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (FRS) as adopted by the Euro-
pean Union

1. 2.
Basts of preparation

1, 2. 1

Consohdated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in millians of Euro, which s the Company’s function-
al and Group presentation currency, and have been
prepared under the tustoncal cost convention except
for the following matenal items 0 the staterment of
financial position

u Dervative financial instruments are measured at
far value,

= Non-denvative financial instruments at far value
through profit or loss are measured at farr value,

m Avallable-for-sale financial assets are measured at
far value,

® Labiltes for cash-settled share-based payment
arrangemants are measured at farr value, and

& The defined benefit assets and labilties are meas-
ured in accordance with IAS 19

The preparation of financial staternents in conformity
with IFRS as adopted by the European Urion requires
managsment to make judgements, estimatss and
assumptions that affect the apphcation of policies
and reported amountts of assets and liabifties, Income
and expenses The estmates and associated
assumptions are based on histoncal expenence and
vanous other factors that are believed to be reason-
able under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making the judgements about
carrying values of assets and liabilites that are not
readily apparent from other sources Actual results
may differ from these estimates

The estimates and underlying assumptions are re-
wviewed on an ongoing basis Rewisions to accounting
estmates are racognised n the perod n which
the estimate 1s revised ff the rewvision affects only
that period, or in the penod of the revsion and future
periods if the rsvision afiects both current and
future penods

Judgements made by management in the applca-
tion of IFRS that have a significant effect on the
financial statements and estmates with a significant
nsk of matenal adustment in the next years are
discussed In note 2

Certan comparative amounts In the consobdated
statement of comprehensive income and conso-
Idated statement of financtal posiion have been
reclassfied to conform with the current year's
presentation

In addstion, following the completion of the purchase
price allocaton dunng the first half year 2012 for
the Hunganan language cable channels, compara-
tve information N the consolidated statement of
financial position at 31 December 2011 has been
re-presented for intangible assets and deferred tax
habiltes (see nota 6 2)
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(1) These standards and mterpretatrons
have not yat been endorsed by the
European Umon
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1. 2. 2,
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
The accounting policies have been consistently ap-
phed by the Group entities and are consistent with

those used In the previous year, except as follows

1. New and amended standards and
interpretations adopted by the Group

The Group has early adopted the fallowang amended
IFRS as of 1 January 2012, which has affected the
presentation of the consolidated financial staiements

= |IAS 1, “Financial Statement presentation” regarding
other comprehensive income {amendments pub-
ished In June 2011} - effective from 1 July 2012,

The following amendments to standards, new nter-
pretations and amendments to interpretahons are
mandatory for the first time for the financial year be-
gnning 1 January 2012, but are not currently rele-
vant or have no or very imited impact for the Group
u |FRS 7 {amendments}, “Amendments to IFRS 7 Fi-
nancial instruments disciosures” — effective for an-
nual penod beginning on or after 1 July 2011,
®[FRS 1 {amendments), “Severe hypennflation and
removal of fixed dates for first-time adopters” — ef-
fective from 1 July 2011,

2. Standards and amendments to existing
standards that are not yet effective and have
not been early adopted by the Group

The following new standard has been published but
18 not effective for the Group's accounting year be-
gnning on 1 January 2012

m [FRS 9, “Finangial Instruments”, addresses the clas-
sification, measurement and reccgnition of financiat
assets and financial labilites IFRS 9 was issued in
Novermber 2009 and October 2010 | raplaces the
parts of IAS 38 that relate to the classification and
measurement of financial instruments [FRS 9 re-
quires financial assets 0 be classified nto two
measurement categenes those measured as at far
value and those measured at amortised cost The
determination is made at initial recogmion The clas-
sification depends on the entity’s business model for
managing ts financial nstruments and the contrac-
tual cash flow charactenstics of the nstrument For
financial llabilties, the standard retains most of the
IAS 39 requiremients The man change is that, in
cases where the far value option 1s taken for finan-
cial habilities, the part of a far value change dus to
an entty’s own credit nsk s recorded n other com-
prehensive Income rather than the income state-
ment, unless this creates an accounting mismatch
The Group is yet to assess IFRS 9's full impact and
intends to adopt IFRS 9 no later than the accounting
penod beginming on or after 1 January 2015 {1}

The following new standards and amendments to
standards have been published but are not effective
for the Group’s accounting year beginning on 1 Jan-
uary 2012 and ars expected to have no or very lm-
ted impact for the Group
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u |AS 19, “Employee benefits” {amendments pub-
lshed »n June 2011} — effective from 1 January
2013,

B |FRS 10, “Conscldated financial statements” —
effective from 1 January 2014,

®{FRS 11, “Jont arrangements” — effectve from
1 January 2014,

®FRS 12, “Disclosures of interests i other entities”
- gffective from 1 January 2014,

u {FRS 13, “Fair valus measurement” — affective from
1 January 2013,

m |AS 27, ‘Separate financial statements” (revised
2011} - effactive from 1 January 2014,

®|AS 28, “Associates and joint ventures” (revised
2011) — effective from 1 January 2014,

A5 12 {amendment), “Defarred tax recovery of
undertying assets” — effective from 1 January 2013,

BIFRS 7 (amendments), “Financial mstruments
disclosures” on cffsetting financia! assets and
financial labilties - effectve from 1 January 2013,

= |AS 32 (amendments), “Financial instruments
presentation” on offsetting financial assets and
financial labilties — effectve from 1 January 2014,

8 [FRIC 20, “Stnpping costs it the production phase
of a surface mine” - effectve from 1 January 2013,

o Improvements to IFRSs 2008-2011 - effectve
from 1 January 2013 (1)

1. 3.

Principles of cansolidation

1. 3. 1.

Subsidianes

Subsidiznes are those undertakings conirofled by
the Company Control exists when the Company
has the power or ability (‘de facto control”), directly
or indirectly, to govern the financial and operating
policies of an undertaking so as to obtain benefits
from its actvties The existence and effect of poten-
tial voting nghts that are presently exercisable or
presently convertible are cansidered when assess-
ing whether the Company conirols another entity
Drrectly or indirectly held subsidianss are consolidat-
ed from the date on which control s transferred to
the Company, and are no longer consolidated from
the date that control ceases

The full consalidation method 1s used, whereby the
assets, labilities, Incame and axpenses are fully n-
comporated The proportion of the net assets and net
iIncome attributable to non-controling ntarests 15
presentad separately as non-controling interests in
the consolidated statement of financial position and
in the consolidated income statement

Accounting for business combinations
Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisiion method as at the acquisition date, which
Is the date on which control I1s transferred to the
Group

For acquistions on or after 1 January 2010, the
Group measures goodwall at the acquistion date as




w the far value of the consideration transferred, plus

wthe recognised amount of any non-controling
interasts In the acquiree, plus, if the business
combnation i achieved In stages, the fair value of
the axisting equity Interest in the acquiree, less

sthe net recognised amount of the identfiable
assals acquired and llabilities assumed

When the excess is negative, a bargan purchase
gain I1s recogrised iImmediately n profit or loss

The cansideratan transferred for the acquisthon of a
subsidiary 1s the far value of the assets transferred,
the habilities incurred and the equity mterests issued
by the Group The consideration transferred includes
the far value of any asset or liability resuling from a
contingent consideration arrangement

Costs related to the acquisiion, other than those
associated with the issue of debt or eguity secunties,
that the Group Ingurs N connection with a business
combination are expensed as incurred

Any contingent consideration payable 1s recognised
at fair value at the acquisition date

If the contngent consideration is classified as equity
it Is not re-measured and settlement 1s accounted
for within equity Otherwise, subsequent changes
to the fair value of the contingent consideration are
recognised in profit or loss

On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis the Group rec-
ognises any non-controling interssts in the acquires
ether at far value or at the non-contralling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets

Identtfiable assets acquired and liabilites and contin-
gant liablites assumed I a business combination
are measured intially at therr far valus at the acqui-
sihon date

Accounting for transactions

with non-controlling mterests

The Group treats transactions with non-controling
interests as transactions with equity owners of the
Group For acgquistions from non-coniroling mter-
ests, the diffarence between any consideraton pard
and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value
of the net assets of the subsidary s recarded iIn
equity Gains or losses on dispesals of non-control-
ling nterests are also recordad in equity

Loss of control

When the Group ceases to have control, any
ratained interest in the entity Is re-measured to s
farr value at the date when control 15 lost, with the
change n carying amount recognised in profit or
loss The tarr value subsequently becomes the inttial
carrying amount for the purposes of accounting for
tha retainad interest as an assoclate, jont venture or
financial asset In addition, any amounts previousty
vecognised 1 other comprehensive mncome In
respect of that entity are accounted for as if the
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Group had directly disposed of the related assats or
labilites This may mean that amounts previously
recognised In other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss

1, 3. 2.
Joint ventures
A joint venture 1s an entity where the control of
economic activity s contractually shared wath one or
more parties whereby no party an its own exercises
effective control

The purchase method of accountng s used to
account for the acqursiion of joint ventures by the
Group

Jomnt ventures are accounted for using proportionate
consolidation Under thus method the Group includes
its proportionate share of the joint ventura's income
and expenses, assets and habiities and cash flows
in the relevant components of the consolidated
financial statements, on a ine-by-kne basts

1. 3. 3.

Associates

Associates are defined as those investments, not
classified as either subsidianes or joint ventures,
where the Group I1s able to exercise a significant
influence Such mvestments are recorded in the
consolidated statement of financial position using
the equity method of accounting and are inthally
recogrised at cost Under this method the Group’s
share of the post-acquisiion profits or losses of
assogiates I1s recognised in the incoms statement,
and s share of post-acquisitton movernents In
reserves Is recognised n reserves The cumulative
post-acquisition movements are adjusted against
“Investrnents in associates”

The Group has dscided not o reverse any impair-
ment ioss recognised and allocated to goodwill on
associates pnor to 1 January 2000 This cumulated
wmparrment loss amounts to €291 milhon

When the Group's share of losses in an assocate
equals or exceeds its Interest n the associats,
ncluding any other unsecured recenvables, the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it has in-
curred obligattons or made payments on behalf of
the associate

Unrealised gans on transactions between the Group
and ts associates are ekminated to the extent of
the Group's interest n the associates Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides ewidence of an imparment of the asset
transferred Accounting polices of associales have
been changed where necessary to ensurs cons:st-
ency with the policies adopted by the Group

1. 2. 4.
Transactions ehminated on consolidation
intra-group balances and transactions and any un-
realised gans ansing from intra-group transactions
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are eiminated in prepanng the consolidated financial
statements Unrealised gans ansing from transac-
tions with assaciates and joint ventures are gliminated
to the extent of the Group’s interest in the undertak-
Ing Unreahsed gains resulting from transactions with
assoctates are eliminated against the investment in
the associates Unrealised losses are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains except that they
are only eliminated to the extent that there 18 no ewi-
dence of impasrment

1, 4.
Foreign currency translation

1. 4. 1.

Fareign currency translations and balances
Transactions In forexgn currencies are translated to
the respectve functional cumrencies of Group entities
at the foreign exchange rate rulng at the date of the
transaction Monetary assets and habidities denomi-
nated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are
franslated at the foraign exchange rate rulng at that
date Forewgn exchange differences ansing on trans-
lation are recogrused In the Income statement Non-
monetary assets and labdities that are measured n
terms of histoncal cost n a foretlgn currency are
translated using the exchange rate at the date of the
transaction Non-monetary assets and llabiites de-
norminated in foreign currencies that are stated at far
value are translated to Euro at foreign exchange
rates ruling at the date the far value was determined

Financial statements of foreign operations

The assets and labiies of foreign operations,
including goodwill, excent for goodwill ansing from
acquisihions before 1 January 2004, and fair value
adustments ansing on consolidatiors, are translated
to Euro using the foraign exchange rate prevaiing at
the reporting date Income and expenses are trans-
lated at the average exchange rate for the year
under review The foreign currency translaton differ-
ances rasulbing from this treatment and those resuit-
ing from the translaticn of the foreign operations’
opening net asset values at year-end rates are rec-
ognised directly In a separate component of equity

Exchange differences ansing from the translation of
the net investmant in a foreign cperation, or associat-
ed undertaking and financial instruments, which are
designated and qualified as hedges of such invest-
ments, are recogrused directly n a separate compo-
nent of equity On disposal or partial disposal of a
fereign operation, such exchange differences or pro-
portion of exchange differences are recogrised i the
income statement as part of the gan or loss on sale

Denvative financial instruments
and hedging activities

Fair value
Denvatve financial instruments are invtially recognised
at far value In the statement of financial posibon at
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the date a denvative contract is entered into and are
subsequently re-measured at farr value

The fair value of foreign currency forward contracts
15 determined by using forward exchange market
rates at the reparting date

Cash flow hedging

Fer qualifying hedge relationships, the Group docu-
ments at the mception of the transaction the relaton-
ship between hedgng mnstruments and hedged
temns, as well as s nsk management cbjective and
strategy for undertalang the hedge This process in-
cludes linking all denvatives designated as hedges to
spectfic assets and habilities or to specific firm com-
mitments or foracast transactons The Group also
documents, both at the hedge inception and on an
ongoing basis, its assessment of whether the hedg-
ng denvatives are effective In offsetting changes n
far values or cash flows of the hedged items

The accounting treatment appled to cash flow
hedges in respect of off-balance sheet assets and Ii-
abilties can be summarised as follows

m For qualifying hedges, the effective companent of
far value changes on the hedging Instrument
{mostly foreign currency forward contracts or cash
balances n foregn currencies) 15 deferred m
“Hedgng reserve”,

= Amounts deferred in “Hedging reserve” are subsg-
quently released to the income statement in the
penods In which the hedged iterm impacts the in-
come staternent or are used to adjust the carrying
value of assets purchased (basis adjustrment)
When hadging forecast purchases of programme
nghts in fareign currency, releases from equity viaa
basis adjustment occurs when the programme
nght 1s recognised on-balance sheet n accord-
ance with the Group's palicy,

® The ineffective component of the fair value chang-
es on the hedging instrumeant 18 recorded directty
In the Income statement

When a hedging nstrument expres or 1s scid, or
when a hedge no longer meets the cntena for hedge
accounting under IAS 39, any cumulative gain or
loss included in the “Hedging reserve” 1s deferred
untll the commutted or forecast transaction ulttimate-
ly impacts the income statement However, if a com-
mitted or forecast trangaction 1s no longer expected
to oceur, then the cumulative gain or loss that was
reported in equity IS Immediately transferred to the
income statement

Current/non-current distinction

Current assets are assets axpected to be realised or
consumed in the normal course of the Group's oper-
ating cycle (normally within one year}) All other as-
sets are classified as non-currant assets

Current labities are habiites expecied to be settled
by use of cash generated In the normal course of




the Group's operating cycle {normally wittun one
year) or liabiltes due within one year from the re-
poring date All other kabiities are classified as non-
current habilties

1. 7.
Intangible assets

1. 7.1,

Non-current programme and other nghts
Non-current programme and other nghts are inally
recognised at acquisitton cost or production cost
which includes staff costs and an appropnate por-
tion of relevant overheads, when the Group contrals,
In substance, the respective assets and the nsks
and rewards attached to them

Non-current programme and other nghts include
{co-jproductions, audiowisual and other nghts
acquired with the pnmary intention to broadcast,
distnbute or trade them as part of the Group’s long-
term operations Non-current programme and other
nghts are amortised based on expected revenue
The amortisation charge 1s based an the ratio of net
revenue for the pencd over total estimated net
revenue The (co-Jproduction shares and fiat fees
of distnbutors are amorbsed over the applcable
product lifecycle based upon the ratio of the current
penod's revenue to the estimated remamning total
revenue (uttimate revenue) tor each {co-)producton

Estimates of total net revenue are reviewed penodi-
cally and additronal impairment losses are recog-
nised f appropnate

1. 7. 2,
Goodwilt
Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisihon method as at the acquisition date Good-
will ansing from applying this method 1s measured at
inihal recognition as detalled in note 1 31

Goodwill on acquisitions of substdianes and joint
ventures I1s recogrised as an intangible asset Good-
will 15 tested annually for imparment and camed at
cost less accumulated impairment losses Goodwill
i1s allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose
of mparment testing Each of the cash-generating
units represents the Group’s investment i a geo-
graphical area of operation by bustness segment,
except for the content busness, which 15 a world-
wide aperation

No goodwill 1s recogmised on the acquisition of non-
controfing interasts
1. 7. 3.

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets with a definite useful Iife,
winch are acqutred by the Group, are stated at cost
less acourmulated amertisation and impairment loss-
gs They compnse kcences (other than (co-Jproduc-
tion, auchovisual and other nghts), trademarks and
sirmitar nghts as well as EDP software They are am-
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ortised on a straight-line basis over ther estimated
useful Iife as follows

® Licences seven to 20 years,
& Software maxmum three years

Other intangible assets with a definite useful lfe
also include capitalised costs associated with the
acguisthon of sports club players These costs are
amorhsed on a straight-ine basis over the penod of
the respective contracts The term of these con-
tracts may vary but 1t generally ranges from one to
five years

Brands, unless an indefinite useful ife can be |ustr-
fiad, and customer relatonsiups acquired through
business combinations are amortised on a straight-
kne basis over their estimated useful life

Other intangible assets with an mdefinite usetul life
are tested annually for imparment and whenever
therg 1s an indication that the intangole asset may
be impaired

Property, plant and equipment

Owned assets

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and imparment
losses Depreciation s recognised on a staight-lne
basis ovar the estimated usefut ives of the assets as
follows

e Land ni,

» Buldings ten o 25 years,

s Tachrucal equipment four to ten years,

s Other fixtures and fithngs, tools and equipment
three to ten years

Where an tem of property, plant and equipment com-
prises major components having different useful lves,
they are accounted for as separate items of property,
plant and equipment Gains and losses on disposals
are determined by companng proceeds with the car-
rying amount and are included in operating profit

Depreciation methods and useful ives, as well as re-
sidual values, are reassessed annually

Leases

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the
Group assumes substantally all the benefits and
nsks of ownership are classified as finance leases
Assets held under finance [eases and the refated ob-
ligations are racogrsed cn the staternent of financial
position at tha lower of ther far value and the present
vadug of minimum lease payments at the ngeption
of the lease, less accumulated depreciation and
imparment losses Such asssts are depreciated on
the same basrs as owned assets (see note 18 1}
or lease term f no ewvidence of lessee will obtain
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ownership Each leasae payment s alocated between
the labidity and finance charge so as to achieve a
constant rate on the outstanding finance balance
The corresponding lease obligations, net of finance
charges, are included in loans payable The interest
element of the finance charge 1s charged to the in-
come statement over the lease penod

Leases where alf the nsks and benefits of ownershp
are effectively retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases Payments rmade under cperating
leases, net of any ncentves recewved from the les-
sor, are charged to the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the penod of the lease

Subsequent expenditure

Expenditure iIncured to replace a compaonent of an
item of property, plant and equipment, that s sepa-
rately accounted for, 1s capitalised, with the carrying
amount of the component that 1s to be replaced be-
ing wntten off Other subsequent expenditure 1s cap-
ttalised anly when It increases the future economic
benefits that will be denved from the item of proper-
ty, plant and squipment All other expenditura is ex-
pensed as incurred

Loans and other financial assets

Loans are recognised intally at far value plus
transaction costs In subsequent penods, loans are
stated at amortised cost using the effective yeld
method, less any valuation allowance for credit nsk
Any difference between norminal value, net of trans-
action costs, and redempion value 1s recognised
using the effective interest method in the income
statement over the penod of the loan

Non-current and current nvestments compnse
avadable-for-sale assats and other financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss

Investments intended to be held for an indefinite pe-
nod of time, which may be sold in response to needs
far lguidity or changes i interest rates, are classified
as avalable-for-sale and are included in nan-current
assets unless management has the express intention
of holding the nvestment for less than 12 months
from the raporting date or unless they will need to be
sold to raise operating capital, In which case they
are included i current assets Management deter-
mines the appropnate classificaton of ts nvestments
at the time of the purchase and re-evaluates such
designation on a regular basis Avadable-for-sale
investments are nibally recogrised at far value plus
transaction costs and are subsequently camed at
far value Unrealised gains and losses ansing from
changes in the far value of avalable-for-sale invest-
ments are included, net of deferred imcome tax, n
ather comprehensive income {revaluation reserve) in
the penod In which they anse

Financial iInstruments are designated at far value
through profit or loss If they contain one or more
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embedded denvatives which cannot bs measured
separately, or when they are managed and ther per-
formance 15 evaluated on a far value basis They are
nitially recegrised at far value, and transaction costs
are expensed n the income statement Changes in
farr value ars recognised in the Income statement

All purchases and sales of non-current and current
Investments are recogrised on the trade date, which
15 the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset

The far value of publicly tradad investments 1s based
on quoted market prces at the reporting date The
far value of non-publicly traded mvestments is
based on the estmated discounted value of future
cash flows

Current programme nghts

Current programme nights are intially recognised at
acquisition cost or Group production cost when the
Group conirals, In substance, the respective assets
and the nsks and rewards attached to them

Current proegramme nghts include programmes in
progress, {co-productions and nghts acquired with
the pnmary intention to broadcast or sell them in the
normmal course of the Group's operating cycle
Current programme nghts include an appropnate
portion of ovarneads and are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value The net reahsable
value assessment 1s based on the advertising reve-
nue expected to be generated when broadcast and
on estimated net sales Weak audience shares or
changes from a pnme time to a late-night slot con-
strtute indicators that a valuation allowance may be
recorded They are consumed based on either the
expected number of transmissions or expected
revenue in order to match the costs of consumption
with the benefits receved The rates of consumption
applied for breadcasting nghts are as follows

mFree television thematic channels programme
nghts are consumed on a straight Ine basis over a
maximum of six runs,

n Freg television other channels

« Blockbusters (fims with high cnema ticket sales),
mim-senes (pnmarly own productions with a
large budget), other films, senes, TV mavies and
(co-)productions ars mainly consumed over a
maximum of two transmussions as follows at
least 67 per cent upon the first transrmission, with
the remander upcn the second iransmission,

= Soaps, In-house productions, quiz and game
shows, sports and other events, documentanes
and music shows are fully consumed upon the
first transmission,

= Children’s programmes and cartoons are con-
sumed over a maximum of two transmissions as
follows at least 50 per cent upeon the first trans-
mission, with the remander upon the second
transmussion




Accounts receivable

Trade accounts recewvable anse from the sale of
goads and services related to the Group's operating
actvities Other accounts recevabte include, i addi-
tion 10 deposits and amounis related to Profit and
Less Pooling ("PLP”) and Compensation agreements
with RTL Group's controling shareholder, VAT recov-
erable, and prepaid expenses Trade and other ac-
counts receivable are measured at amorhsed cost

Impairment losses on trade and other accounts re-
caivable are recognisad when thera 1s objective ewi-
dence that the Group will not be able to collect all
amaunts due according to the onginal term of recerv-
ables Significant financial difficulties of the debtar,
probability that the dabtor will enter bankruptcy or fi-
nancial reargarisation, and default or delinquencgy in
payments {more than 30 days ovardue) are consid-
gred indicators that the trade recevable i1s impared

The amount of the provision is the difference be-
tween the asset’s camying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at
the ongnal effective interest rate The carying
amount of the asset s reduced through the use of
an allowance account, and the amount of the loss Is
recognised in the incorme statement within depraci-
ation, amortsathon and mparment When a trade
recevabie is uncollectible, it 1s written off against the
allowance account for trade accounts recewabile

Subseguent recovenes of amourts previcusly writ-
ten off arg credited agamst depreciation, amortisa-
tion and impairment In the income statement

Accrued income 15 stated at the amounts expected
to be receved

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash congists of cash m hand and at bani

Cash equivalents are assets that are readly con-
vertible Into cash, such as short-term highly hquid
snvestments, commercial paper, bank deposits and
marketable secunties — all of which mature within
three months from the date of purchase - and
money market funds that qualfy as cash and cash
equvalents under IAS 7 (seenote 31 2)

Bank overdrafts are included wathin current habiies

1, 13,

Impairment of non-financiat assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful Iife are not sub-
ect to amortisation and are tested annually for im-
parment Assets that are subject to amortisation
are reviewed for impawrment whenever events or
changes 1n ¢ircumstances indicate that the carrmying
amount may not be recoverable An imparment
toss 1s recognised for the amount by which the as-
set's carrying amount exceeds is recoverable
amount For the purposes of assessing Impawment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately «dentifiable cash flows (cash-
gsnerabing units)
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The recoverable amount 1s the higher of an asset’s
far value less costs to sell and valug In use In as-
sessing value in use, and tar value less costs to selt
where apphcable, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assess-
ments of the time valuse of money and the nsks spe-
cffic to the asset

In raspect of assets other than goodwill, an Impair-
ment loss Is reversed when there s an indication that
the condiions that caused the impairment loss may
no longer exst, and there has been a change In the
estmates used to determine the recoverable amourt
The canyng value after the reversal of the imparment
loss cannot exceed the camyng amount that would
have been detenmined, net of depreciation and amor-
tisation, f no mparment loss had been recognised

1. 14,
impaiment of financial assets
The Group assesses at each reporting date whether
there I1s objective evidence that a financial asset, or a
group of financral assets, 1s Imparred

Evidence of impaimment of avallable-for-sale financial
asseis 13 assessed on the basis of two qualitative
critena

m A signdicant drop of the fair value, considered as a
declne exceading one quarter of the acqursition
cost, while gvng consideration to all market con-
ditions and cirrcumstances, or

s The observation of an unrealsed loss over two
consecutive years

i any such ewdence exists for avalable-for-sale
financial assets, the cumulative loss — measured as
the diference between the acquisitian cost and the
current far value, less any impairment loss on that
financial asset previously recognised in the income
statement —is removed from equity and recognised
n the income statement iImparrment losses recog-
nised In the income statement on equity nstruments
are not reversed through the mcome statement
("Financial results other than interest”) Impairment
testing of trade accounts receivable 1s descrnbed In
note 1 11

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classi-
fred as assets held for sale when ther carrying
ameunt IS to be recovered pnncipally through a sale
transaction and a sale 1s considered highly probable
They are stated at the lower of carrying amount and
farr value less costs to sell if ther cariying amount 1S
recovered pnncipally through a sale transaction rath-
er than through continuing use

Accounts payable
Trade accounts payable anse from the purchase of
assets, goods and services relating to the Group’s
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operating activities Other accounts payable com-
pnise, In addition to amounts related to the Profit and
Loss Pocling Agreement {“PLP"} with RTL Group's
contraling shareholder, VAT payable, far value of
denvabve labilites, accrued expenses and accounts
payable on capital expenditure Trade and other
accounts payable are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, except denvative
labiites which are measured at far value

Loans payable

Interest-beanng current and non-current hizbiliies
are recognised inbially at farr value less transaction
costs Subsequent to nthal recognition, interest-
beanng current and non-current labilities are stated
at amortised cost with any difference between cost
and redsmption value being recognised n the in-
come staterment over the penod of the borrowings
using the effective Interest method

Provisions

Provisions are recogrised when the Group has a
present legal or construciive obligation to transfer
economic benefits as a result of past events The
amounts recognised represent management's best
estimata of the expendstures that will be required to
settle the oblgation as of the reporting date Prowi-
sions are measured py discounting the expected fu-
ture cash flows to settle the obligation at a pre-tax
risk-free rate that reflects current market assess-
ments of the time value of money and, where appro-
prate, the nsks specific to the obligation

A prowision for restructunng 1s recognised when the
Group has approved a detalled and formal restructur-
iNg plan and ithe restructuring has esther cormmenced
or has been announced publcly Costs relating to the
ongoing actvities of the Group are not prowded for

Provisions for onerous contracts relate 10 unavoidable
costs for indvidual programme nghts, the perform-
ance of which 1s assessed as clearly below that
onginally planned when the contract was agreed

Such stuations mainly anse in case of executory
obligations to purchase programmes which will not
be arred due to lack of audience capacity or to a
mismatch with the current editonal policy In additon,
an expected or actual fall i audience can be
evidenced by several indicators such as the under-
performance of a previous season, the withdrawal of
the programme’s main advertisers or a decline in the
populanty or success of sport stars Long-term
sourcing agreements am to secure the supply n
pragrammes of broadcasters They are mainly output
deals, production agresments given the European
quota obligations, and arangements with spaort
organisations The provision i1s measured at the
nresent value of the lower of the expected cost of
tarminating the contract and the expected net cost
of continuing with the contract Before a prowision 1s
established, the Group recognises any imparment
loss on the assets associated with that contract
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Employee benefits

Pension benefits

The Group operates or parbicipates in both defined
contnbution and defined benefit plans, according to
the national laws and reguiations of the countnes I
which it operates The assets of the plans are gener-
ally held in separate trustee-administered funds, and
some of the plans are operated through pension
funds that are legally mdependent from the Group
The pension plans are generalty funded by pay-
ments from employees and by the relevant Group
cormpanies, taking into accourt the recommenda-
tions of Independent qualfied actuanes

Pension costs and obhigations relating to defined
benefit plans are recognised based on the projected
unit credit method The Group recognises actuanal
gains and losses in other comprehensive ncomea

Pension costs relating to defined contnbution plans
(including deferred compensation plans that are de-
fined contribution plans i nature) are recognised
when an employee has rendered service In ex-
change for the conirbutions due by the employer

Other benefits

Many Group companies provide death In service
benefits, and spouses and children's benefits The
cosis assocrated with these benefits are recogmsed
when an employee has rendered senice In ex-
change for the coninbutions due by the emplcyer

Share-based transachions

Share options are granted 1o certain directors and
senior employees The options are granied at the
market pnce on the date of the grant and are exer-
cisable at that pnce

When a share option 1s granted, the far value of
optons granted s recognised as an employee
expense with a comesponding Increase In equity
The fair value 1s measured at grant date and spread
over the penod dunng which the employees become
uncondtionally entitled to the options The far value
of the options granted 1s measured using a binomial
model, taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the options were granted The amount
recognised as an expense I1s adjusted to reflact the
actual number of share optons thai vest, except
where forferture 1s cnly due to share pnces not
achieving the threshold for vesting

Share capital

Equity transaction costs
Incremental external costs directly attrbutable to
the 1ssue of new shares, other than n connection




with a business combination, are deducted, net of
the related income taxes, aganst the gross proceeds
recorded N equity Share ssue costs incumed In
connection with a business combination are included
wn the cost of acquisition

Treasury shares
Where the Company or its subsidianes purchase the
Company's own equity, the consideration paid, n-
cluding any attributable transaction costs net of in-
come taxes, 1s shown in deduction of equity as
“Treasury shares”

Dividends

Dvidends on ardinary shares are recorded in the con-
solidated financial staterments in the penod in which
they are approved by the Company’s shareholders

Revenue presentation and recognition

Revenue includes sales of nghts and hcence income,
{co-Jproductions, advertising revenue and other sales,
net of sales deductons such as cash rebates, credit
notes, discounts, refunds and VAT Revenue com-
pnses the far value of consideration received or re-
cavable for the sale of services In the ordinary course
of the Group's actvities Agency commissions are
presented as a deduction from advertising revenue

Revenue 1s recognised when the Group has trans-
ferred the signficant nsks and rewards of owner-
ship, and the contrcl over the goods sold and the
arnount of revenue can be measured reliably Specif-
wically, adverhsing sales are recognised when the
refated advertisement or commercial 1s broadcast,
and sales of programme nghts under licences are
recognised when the programme matenal has been
accepted by the lcensee as baing n accordance
with the condrtions of the hicence agreement

Barter revenue is recognised If goods or services in
a barter transaction are of a2 dissimilar nature and if
revenue has economic substance and can be relia-
bly measured Revsnue from barter transactions 1s
recogrised at the far value of the goods or servic-
es receved, adjusted for any cash involved in the
transaction

Government grants

Grants from government and inter-governmertal
agencies are recognised at ther far value where
there 1S a reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions

Governiment grants related to assets are initially pre-
sented as a deducton in amving at the camying
amount of the asset

Grants that compensate the Group for expenses in-
curmed are recognised i profit or loss on a system-
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atic basis m the same penod n which the expenses
are recognised

Interest income /fexpense
Interast income/expense Is recagnised on & time
proportion basis using the eftective iInterest method

{ncome tax

Income tax an the profit or loss for the year comprns-
es current and deferved tax Income tax 1s recog-
nised n the Income statement except to the extent
that nt relates to items recogmsed directly to equity
or ather comprehensive Income

Current tax 1s the expected tax payable on the taxa-
ble income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substanbally enacted in the countnes where the
Group’s subsidianes, joint ventures and associates
operate and generate taxable ncome at the report-
ing date and any adjustment to tax payabie In re-
spect of previous years

Deferred taxes are recognised according to the bal-
ance sheet llabilty method on any temporary differ-
ence between the carrying amount for consolidation
purposes and the tax base of the Group’s assets
and liabiities Tempeovary differences are not prowid-
ed for when the inthal recognition of assets or ltabili-
ties affects nether accounting nor taxable profit, and
when differences relate to mvestments in subsidiar-
168 to the extent that they will probably not reverse
in the foreseeable future No temporary differences
are recogrised on the imbial recogrition of goodwill
Defarred tax assets and habilites are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply to the penod
when the asset 1s realised or the liability 1s settled,
based on tax rates that have been enacted or sub-
stantively enacted at the reporting date

Deferred tax assets are recognised 1o the extant that
it 1s probable that future taxabla profits will be avalla-
ble aganst which the temporary differences and
losses carmed forward can be utilsed

Deferred tax assets and liabilites are offset when
there 1s a legally enforceable nght to set off curment tax
assets against current tax labities and when the de-
ferred income taxes relate to the same tax authority

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation s a component of the
Group’s business that represents & separate major
lne of business or a gecgraphical area of aperations
that has been disposed of or 1s held for sale or dis-
tnbution, or 1S a subsidiary acquired exclusively with
a view to resale

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs up-
on disposal or when the operation meets the cntena
to be classfiad as held for sale, f earler When an
operation 1s classified as a discontinued operation
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the comparative income statement 15 re-presented
as If the operation had been discontinued from the
start of the comparative year

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share I1s calculated by dwiding
the net profit attnbutable to shareholders by the
weighted average number of ardinary shares In is-
sue dunng the year, excluding ordinary shares pur-
chased by the Group and held as treasury shares

The diluted earnings per share Is calculated by ad-
Justing the weighted average number of ordinary
shargs outstanding to assurne conversion of all diu-
trve potential ordinary shares The enly category of
dilubve potential ordinary shares 1s shars options

Segment reparting

Operating segments are reported In & manner con-
sistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker The chisf operating
decision-maker, who 15 respensible for allocating re-
sources and assessing performancs of the operat-
Ing segments, has bean identfied as the Executive
Committee that makes strategic decisions

An operating segment 1s a component of the Group
that engages in busmess actmties from which it may

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

158 RTL GROUP

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
and are based on histoncal expenence and other fac-
tors, including expeciations of future events that are
heteved to be reasonable under the crcumstances

The Group makes eshmates and assumptions con-
cerning the future The resulting accountng est-
mates will, by definiion, seldom equal the refated
actual results The estrmates and assumptions that
have a significant nsk of causing a matenal adjust-
ment to the cammying amounts of assats and habikties
within the next financial year are discussed below

Programme and other nghts

{assets and prowisions for onerous contracts)
The Group’s accounting for non-current pregramme
nghts requires management judgement as It relates
to eshmates made of total net revenus used in the
determination of the amortisation charge and imparr-
ment loss for the year

In additon, management judgement will need to
take into account factars such as the future pro-
grammae gnd, the reahsed/expected audience of the
programme, the current programme rights that are
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earn revenue and Incur expenses, Including revenue
and expenses that relate to transactons with any of
the Group's other components

All operating segments’ operating resuits are reviewed
regularly by the Group's Executive Committee to
make decisions about resources to be allocated to
the segment and assess its performance, and for
which discrete financial information is available

The invested capttal 1s disclosed for each reportable
segment as reported to the Executve Commitice

The segment assets include the following items

® The non-current assets, except the incremental far
value of the avalable-for-sale investments, the sur-
plus of the defined benefit plans and the deferred
tax assets,

& The current assets, except the Income tax receiva-
ble, the far value of denvative assets, the current
deposit with the sharehoider, the account receva-
ble from the shareholder in relation to the PLP and
Compensation agreements, the accounts receva-
ble related to dvidend income, the fixed term de-
posits, and cash and cash equivalents

The segment assets and labiites are consistently
measured with those of the statement of financial
position

not likely to be broadcast, and the related valuation
allowance

Prowisions for gnerous contracts related to pro-
gramme and other nghts are also recognised whan
the Group has constructive obligations and it s prob-
able that unavoidable costs exceed the economic
henefiis onginally planned These provisions have
been determined by discounting the expected future
cash inflows far which the amount and trning are de-
pendent on future events, notably sports events

2. 2.
Estimated imparment of goodwiil and
investments in associates
The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suf-
fered any impament, n accordance with the ac-
counting policy stated mnote 1 7 2

The Group tests annually whether investments In
assoclates have suffered any impaiment, and if any
imparmertt should be reversed

The Group has used a combmation of long-term
trends, mdustry forecasts and in-house knowledge,
with greater emphasis on recent expenence, In




farming the assumptions about the development of
the vanous advertising markets In which the Group
operates This IS an area highly exposed to the gen-
aral econcrmic condrtions

The state of the advertising market I1s just one of the
kay operational drivers which the Group uses when
assessing Indwdual business models Other key
drivers mclude audience shares, advertising market
shares, the EBITA margin and cash corversion rates

All of these different elements are vanable, inter-re-
tated and difficult to 1sclate as the main dnver of the
vanous business medels and respective valuations

The Group performs sensitmty analysis on the cash-
generating units, especially on those where the
headroom between the recoverable amount and the
camying value 1s low

Fair value of contingent consideration
Contingent consideration, resulting from business
combinations, 1s valued at far value at the acquisitron
date as part of the bustness combination, and sub-
sequently re-measured to farr value at each reporting
date The determination of the far value 1s based on
discounted cash flow and takes into account the
probability of meeting each performance target

Fair value of avallable-for-sale

investments and financia! assets/hamities

at fair value through profit or loss

The Group has used discounted cash flow analysis
for vancus avalable-for-sale investments and finan-
cial assetsMiabilities at far value through profit or loss
that were not traded n active markets

The camying amount of avadable-for-sale imvest-
ments would be an estimated €4 million lower or
hugher were the discount rates used in the discount-
ed cash flows analysis to differ by 10 per cent fram
management's estmates

Prowvisions for litigations

Most clams involve complex i1ssues, and the proba-
bdity of loss and an estimation of damages are diffi-
cult to ascertan A provision 1s recognised when the
nsk of a loss becomes more bkely than not and
when it 1s possible to make a reasonable estmate of
the expected financial effect

Income and deferred taxes

The Group s subject to Income taxes 1N numerous
junsdictions There are transactions and calcutations
for which the uttimate tax determination 1s uncertain
dunng the ordinary course of business

Deferred tax assets are recogmised to the extent that
it 1s probabils that future taxable profits will be avala-
ble aganst which the temporary diffarences and
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lossas carned forward can be uthsed Management
Judgement IS required to assess prabable future tax-
able profits In 2012, deferred tax assets on losses
carry-forwards {manly n Germany, €33 milion,
2011 €39 milllon} and on temporary differences
(mainty in Germany, €313 milkon, 2011 €297 mil-
lion} have been reassessed on the basis of currently
implemented tax strategies

Post-employment benefits
The Group has adapted the following approaches
for the pension assumptions

= The discount rate ts determined by reference to
market yelds at the closing on high guaity corpo-
rate bonds,

a The expected return on plan assets 15 based on
market expectations at the beginning of the pened,

m Egtimate of future salary increases manly takes
account of inflation, seniorty, promotton and sup-
ply and demand in the employment market

Disposal groups

The determinatton of the far value less costs to sale
requires management judgement as it relates to es-
timates of proceeds of the disposal, residual obliga-
tons and direct disposal costs

2. 9.

Contingent habilities

Contingent liabilities are disclosed unless manage-
ment consider that the likekhood of an outflow of
economic benefits 1s remote
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Financial nsk factors

The Group's actvities expose It to a vanety of finan-
cial nsks market nsk (including currency, far value
interest rate, cash flow interest rate and price nsks},
credit nsk and iquidity nsk The Group is exposed in
particular to nsks from movernents in foreign ex-
change rates as it engages n long-term purchase
contracts for programme nghts (output deals) de-
nominated in foreign currency

Risk management s camed out by the Group Treas-
ury department under the supervision of the Chuef
Financial Officer under pcolices approved by the
Board of Directors Group Treasury identifies, evalu-
ates and hedges nsks in close cooperation wath the
Group's cperating units The Group's overall nsk
management pragramma focuses on the unpredict-
ability of financial markets and seeks to minmise
potential adverse effects on the Group's financial
performance The Board of Directors has issued
wnitten prnnciples for overall nsk managemaent as well
as wnitten policies coverng spectfic areas, such as
market nsk, credt nsk, igudty nsk, use of denva-
tives and investment of excess lquidity

The Group seeks to mnimise the potental adverse
effects of changing financial markets on its perform-
ance through the use of denvatve financial Instru-
ments such as foreign exchange forward contracts
Dervatives are nat used for speculative purposes
Risks are hedged to the extent that they influenca
the Group’s cash flows {f e translational nsk inked
to the conversion of net investments in foreign oper-
ations 1s not hedged)

Market nsk
Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange exposure

The Group operates internationally and 1s exposaed
to foreign exchange nsk ansing from vanous curren-
cy exposures, pnmanly in respect of USD and GBP
Foresgn exchange nsk anses from recognised assets
and labilites, future commercial transactions and
net mvestrments in foreign operations

For the Group as a whale, cash flows, net income
and net worth are optimised by reference 1o the €
However, foreign exchange nsks faced by indmdual
Group compames are managed or hedged against
the functional currency of the relevant entity (as
these entites generally generate ther revenue in lo-
cal cumrencies) Hence the Group manages a vanety
of currencies due to the numerous functional curren-
cles of the companes constituting the Group

In addition, market practices in the television busi-
nass mply a significant forward exposure to USD as
programme nghts are usually denominated in USD
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and not paid up-front For this reasan, the main off-
balance sheet exposura of the Group i1s towards the
USD m respect of future purchases and sales of
programme nghts, output deals (commitments for
future cash flows) and hghly probable forecast
transactions (USD 6 millon as at 31 December
2012, USD 166 millon as at 31 Decamber 2011)

Management of the foreign exchange exposure
Managemaent has set up a policy to require Group
companies to manage their foreign exchange risk
against ther functional currency Group companies
are regured to hedge thew entire foreign currency
exchange nsk exposure with the Group Treasury i
accordance with the Group Treasury polices All for-
eign currency exchange exposures, Including signed
and forecast output deals and programme nghis
in foreign curency are centralised in an intranet-
hased database To manage ther foreign exchange
nsk ansing from recognised assets and habiities
and future commercial transactions, entiies N the
Group use forward coniracts transacted with Group
Treasury Group Treasury 1s then responsible for
hedging, most of the time on a one-to-one basis,
the exposure aganst the functional currency of the
respective entrty

The Group Treasury policy 1s to hedge up to 100 per
cent of the recognised monetary foreign currency
exposures ansing from cash, accounts recevable,
accounts payahle, loans recevable and borrowings
denominated in currencies other than the functional
currenicy The Group policy 1S to hedge between 80
per cent and 100 per cent of short-term cash flow
forecasts and betwesn 20 per cent and 80 per cant
of longer term {between two and five years} cash
flow forecasts Approximately 72 per cent (2011 72
per cent) of antiapated cash flows constitute firm
commitments or highly probable forecast transac-
tions for hedge accounting purposes

Irs order to monitor the comphance of the manage-
ment of the fareign exchange exposure with the
Group's pclicy, a menthily report 1s praduced and an-
alysed by managerment This report shows for each
subsidiary Its exposure to currencies other than thewr
functional currency, detaling the nature (8 g trade
accounts, royaltes, intercompany accounts} of on-
balance sheet items, and the undertying deals and
matunties of off-balance sheet items, as well as the
corresponcding hedging ratos A specific report
showing the global USD, GBP and AUD exposures
{representing the main exposures) s provided to
ATL Group management on a monthly basis

Accounting

For recognised foreign currency monetary assets
and labiities there 1s a natural offset of gans and
losses In the income staternent between the revalu-
ation of the denvative and the exposure Therefore,
hedge accounting as defined under IAS 38 1s not
appled




The spit by matuniies of
notional amounts of for-
ward exchange contracls
at 31 December 2012 15,
for the mam foreign
currencies, as folfows.

The spint by maturities of
notional amounts of for-
ward exchange contracts
at 31 December 2011 1s,
for the main foreign
currencies, as follows:

The forergn currency cash flow hedge accounting
model defined under |AS 39 s applied by those
companies which account for the majonty of the
Group's foretgn currency exposura, when

& Hedged foreign cumrency exposures relate to pro-
gramme rights transactons which have not yet
been recognised on the statement of financial po-
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2012, the amount of ineffectiveness (see note 7 5)
that has been recognised in the income statement is
€(8) mullon {€(5) milkion in 2011)

Foreign exchange denivative contiracts
The mpact of forward foreign exchange contracts is
detailed as follows

2012 2011
siion (such as forecast or firm purchases of pro- €m £m
gramme nghts for which the licence penod has not
yet begur), and Net fair value of fareign

® Amounts are sufficiently matenal to ustrfy the need exchange derivative assets

Y tusty {seenotes 88 and 811) 23 80
for hedge accounting
Operating foreign exchange
gains/{losses) (1} 9

When hedge accounting 1s applied, the effective Cash flow hedges neffectiveness

portion of the changes in the far value of the hedg- losses (see note 75) (8) (5)

ing Instrument 1s recognised net of deferred tax in

the hedging reserve as presented In the “"Consoli- 2012 201

dated statement of changes In equity” (see note €m €m

814 4) It s released to the carmang value of the

hedged tem when such an tem 1s recognised in the Less than 3 months {1 9

statement of financiat posihon The ineffective por- Less than 1 year 7 21

tion aof the change In fair value of the hedaing Instru- Less than 5 years 17 50

ment {ncluding swap ponts) 1s recognised directly in Net farr value of denvative assets

profit or foss For the year ended 31 December fseenotes 88 and 8 11) 2 80

2013 2014 2015 2016 »2ME Total
£m £m em £m £m £m

Buy 166 40 15 3 1 225

Sell {234) (27 7 (1} {1) {270)

Total {68) 13 8 2 - (45)

2013 2014 2015 2006 >2016 Tatal
m $m sm $m Em Sm

Buy 903 264 190 136 98 1,591

Selk (261) {41) (26) (6) (2} (336)

Total 642 223 164 130 95 1,255

2012 2013 2014 2015 >2015 Total
£m em £m em £m £m

Buy 172 21 18 - 2 213

Sell (264) (7 {8) {2) - {291)

Total (92) 4 10 {2) 2 (78}

212 2013 2014 2015 »2015 Total
$m £m $m S tm $m

Buy 830 286 199 127 106 1,548

Sell (201) (20) (13) - (5) {239)

Total 629 266 186 127 101 1,309
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Sensdnily analysis to foreign exchange rates
Management estimates that

u|f the USD had been 10 per cent stronger com-
pared to the € (respectively weaker), with all other
vanables held constant, this would have had no
matenal impact for the Group (2011 no matenal
Impact), and mn an addrtionat pre-tax €75 millon in-
come (respectively expense} (2011 €81 million}
recognised In equity,

w If the GBP had been 10 per cent stronger com-
pared to the € {respectively weaker}, with all other
vanables held constant, this would have had no
matenal Impact for the Group {2011 no matsnal
impact), and in an additional pre-tax €0 2 millon
expense {respectively income} (2011 €2 million}
recognised in aquity,

u [f other currencies had been 10 per cent stronger
campared to € {respectively weaker), with all other
variables held constant, this would have had no
matenal impact on profit or loss and equity (2011
no matenal impact}

This sensitvty analysis does not mclude the impact
of transtation nto € of foreign operations

Interest rate nsk

The Group interest rate nsk anses pnmanly from
cash and cash equwalents and from current and
term deposits The management of interest rate
nsk 1s centralised at the level of Group Treasury
The objective of the mterest rate nsk management
policy 1s to minimise the interest rate funding cost
over the long-term and to maximise the excess
cash return

In order to achieve this olyective, cross border cash
pooling has been set up for most of the entities of
the Group The interest rate strategy defined by
RTL Group depends on the net cash position of

each company Although the Group has currently no
significant borrowing ar overdraft, managerment has
defined a targeted fixed versus floating rateratio ( e
20 per cent fixed/80 per cent floating} when the
Group needs to borrow This percentage can be re-
viewed at the discretion of the Treasury Commuittee
until the optimum mx between fixed and floatng
rates has been achieved The Group constders f the
predominance of floating rate debt s appropnate m
view Of the overall state of the economy, short-term
interest rates and the Group’s results

When RTL Group has excess cash, the Treasury
Committee defines the appropnate average tenor of
the short-term placements based o business sea-
sonalty and regularly reviewed cash flow foracasts
tnterest income depends on the evolution of floating
mterest rates and can potentially, In a fow interest
rate snvironment, generate a shortfall of incoms
aganst interest expense

Group Treasury uses vanous indicaters to monitor
interest rate nsk, such as a targeted net fixed/Moat-
Ing rate debt ratio, durattion, basis point value {in-
crease In Interest rate costs resulting from a basis
point increase in interest rate) and interest cover ra-
o (1 e adjusted EBITA over net interest expense as
defined by rating agsncies)

If the interest rates achieved had been lower (respec-
tvely higher} by 100 basis points, and assuming the
current amount of floating net cash available rernains
constant, the interest income at 31 December 2012
would have been decreased {respectively increased)
by €11 mikkon (€12 milkon n 2011)

The following table indicates the effective nterest
rate of interest-earming financral assets and interest-
beanng financial liabilities at 31 December and the
penads in which they re-price

Effective Total G months 6-12 1-2 2-5 OverS

interest rate amount {1) or less months years years years

Notes €m €m €m €m €m £m

Other loans - fixed rate 33 6 - 1 3 2 -
Other loans - floating rate 15 26 23 3 — - _
Current depostt with sharesholder - floating rate 03 426 426 - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents ~ sarning assets [ 8. 9] 09 631 631 - - - -
Bank loans — floating rate 85 (3) 2 {1) -~ - -
Bank overdrafts 8. 0. 20 (s} (5) - - - -
Leasing liabilities — fixed rate 49 {7 {1) 2 2 @ -
Loans payable — floating rate 8. 10 19 {12) {9) 3 - - -
At 31 December 2012 1,062 1,063 {2 1 - -
Other loans - floating rate 07 7 3 4 - - _
Current depesit with sharehalder - floating rate [ 5. 8] 14 588 588 - - — -
Cash and cash equevalents - earming assets [a. ¢} 11 658 658 - - - -
Bank loans — floating rate 47 (8) (8) - - - -
Bank overdrafts 20 1] () - - - -
Leasing labilties - fixed rate 36 (3 - (1) 1) (1) -
Loans payable — floating rate 13 {35) {34) {1) - - -
At 31 December 2011 1,206 1,206 2 1 (1) -

1) Exciuding accrued intarasts
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Ageing of financial assets
{exciuding avarable-for-
sale and fair value through
profit or loss ivestments
for respectively €116
muflton and €136 millton)
at 31 December 2012:

Ageing of financial assels
{excluding available-far-
sale and fair value through
profit or loss invesiments
for respectively €106
mithon and € 132 iiiion)
at 31 December 2011

{1) At 31 Decernber 2012 cumulgted
valuation alfiowances amount to €94
miion, of which €5 milfion on
colective basis The latter ara not
taken into eccount ¥t the table above

{21 At 31 December 2011 cumutated
vehistion allowances amount to €64
mmilhon of wiich €6 mihor o
colectve basis The latter are not
teken into account i the table above

Credit nsk

RTL Group's exposure to credit nsk pnmanly arises
through sales made to customers {trade recewa-
bies), Investments in money market funds classified
In cash and cash equivaients, and deposits made
with banks and the shareholder

Credit nsk 1s managed on a Group basis, except for
credit nsk relating to accounts recevable balances,
which are managed by indwvidual subsidiaries

The Group's telewision and radio operattons incur
exposure to credit nsk when making transactons
with advertising agencies ar direct customers In
2012, the combined televtsion and radio advertising
revenue contnbuted 57 per cent of the Group’s rav-
enue {2011 60 per cent) Due to its business mod-
el, RTL Group's exposure to credit nsk is directly
linked to the final cllent However the nsks are con-
sidered as weak due to the size of the indmidual
COMPanies or agency groups

RTL Group produces pragrammes that are sold or
licensed to state-owned and commercial television
channels In 2012, these actvies contributed 30
per cent of the Group’s revenue {2011 26 per cent}
Gwven the imited number of television broadcasters
in different countnes, there 1s a high degree of con-
centration of credit nsk However, given the long-
standing relatonships between content providers
and broadcasters, and the fact that the customers

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

are large businesses with sohd financial positions,
the leve! of credit nsk 1s significantly mitigated

RTL Group also has policies in place to ensure that
sales of products and services arg made to custom-
ers with an approprate credit history

According to the banking policy of the Group, derv-
atve nstruments and cash transactions {including
bank deposits and investments 1 money market
funds) are operated cnly with tugh credit quality fi-
nancial Instituttons so as to mitigate counterparty
nsk {only independently rated parties with a mirni-
mum rating of ‘A’ are accepted for bank deposits}

The Group's bank relationship policy sets forth stin-
gent criteria for the selection of banking partners
and money market funds (such as apphcable super-
visory authonties, investment policy, maximum vola-
tilty, track record, rating, cash and cash equivalents
status under tAS 7} In order to mitigate settiement
nsk, the Group has policies that mit the amount of
credit exposure to any ons financtal institution on
any single day Statistics (such as the percentage of
the business allocated to each bank over the year
compared to a target defined by management, or
such as the surmmary of the highest intraday expo-
sures by bank and by matunty date) are computed
and used on a daily basis so as to ensure credi nsk
1s mitigated in practice at any time

The carmying amount of financral assets represents
thetr maximum credit exposure

Neither Not impaired as af the reporting dats and past dua by
impared
nor past
Gross due on the Gross
camying  reparting <=1 2-3 3-6 6-12 Qver amount
amount {1, 2) date month months. maonths months fyear mpared
€m €m €m €m €m €m €m €m
Loans and other
non-gurrent financial assets 58 31 - - - - - 27
Trade accounts receivable 1,164 821 181 60 22 11 9 60
Accounts receivable
from associates 22 22 - - - - - -
Current daposit with shareholder 426 426 - — - - - -
Other accounts receivable and
current financial assets 289 274 5 3 - - - 7
Cash and cash equivalents 6850 650 - - - - ~ -
At 31 December 2012 2,609 2224 186 63 22 11 g 94
Loans and other
non-current financial assets 10 B - - - - - 4
Trade accounts receivable 1,062 751 118 71 17 19 27 59
Accounts receivable
from associates 22 22 - - - - - -
Current deposit with sharehofder 589 589 - - - - - -
Other accounts receivable and
current financial assets 410 401 2 2 - - - 3
Cash and cash equivalents 701 701 - - - - - -
At 31 December 2011 2,794 2,470 120 73 17 19 27 68

The top ten trade accounts recewvable represent
€135 milion (2011 €99 milion) while the top 50
frade accounts recewable represent €325 million
(2011 €266 million)
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(1) Accounts payable exclude
employes benddit Eabditres defermed
wncome, social secunty and
other taxes payable and advance
DAyments

164 RTL GROUP

The top ten counterparties for cash and cash equiv-
alents reprasent €364 millon (2011 €411 milkon)

The Group has a significant concentration of credit
nsk due to its relationsivp with Bartelsmann Never-
theless, credt nsk ansing from transactons with
shareholders 1s significantly mitigated {see note 10 1)

Liquidity nsk

Prudent hquidity nsk management implies maintain-
ing sufficient cash, the avalability of funding through
an adequate amount of committed credit facihties
and the ability to close out market positons Due to
the dynamic nature of the undertying busingss, man-
agement am to mantan flexbdty n fundng by
keeping committed credit Iines avalable despite the
total net cash situation Cash flow forecasting 1s par-
formed n the operating entities of the Group and
aggregated by Group Treasury Group Treaswry
monitors rolling forecasts on the Group’s hquidity re-
quirements to ensure it has sufficient headroom to
meet operational needs Management monitors, on
a monthly basis, the level of the "Liqudity Head
Room” {total commutted facilities mnus current utili-
sation through bank loans and guarantees)

Under 1 1-5 Owver5s

212 €m €m €m €m

Credit facilities — banks

Committed faciliies 288 268 20 -
Headroom 119 100 19 -
2011

Credit facihities - banks
Committed facilities 285 215 70 -
Headroom 120 60 680 -

Surplus cash held by the operating entities over and
above balances required for worlong capital man-
agement 1s fransferred to Group Treasury Group
Treasury invests surplus cash ininterest-beanng cur-
rent accounts, time deposits, money market funds
or deposits with Bertelsmann SE & Co KGaA (see
note 10 1) choosing instruments with appropnate
matunties or sufficient iquidity to prowde sufficient
headroom as datarmined by the above-mentioned
forecasts

The table below analyses the Group's financial kabili-
tes into relevant maturty groupings based on the re-
mainng penod at the closing date to the contractual
matunty date The amourts disclosed in the table
below are the contractual undiscounted cash flows

Under 1 year 1=5Syears Over 5 years Total
€m €m €m €m
Non-denvative financial habilities
Loans and bank overdrafts 16 8 6 30
Accounts payable (1) 1,690 87 25 1,802
At 31 December 2012 1,706 95 21 1,832
Denwvative financial lablities
Farward exchange contracts used for hedging
— Outflaw 702 198 - 200
- Inflow {689} (192) - (881)
At 31 December 2012 13 6 - 19
Under 1 yaar 1-5years QOverb5years Tatal
€m €m €m €m
Non-denvative financial liabihities
Loans and bank overdrafts 43 11 1 55
Accounts payable (1) 1,665 132 26 1,823
At 31 December 2011 1,708 143 27 1,878
Dernvative financial liabites
Farward exchange contracts used for hedging
- Qutflow 444 53 - 497
- Inflow (430) {51) - (481)
At 31 December 2011 14 2 - 16
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3. 2.
Capital nsk management
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a go-
ing concernt and to provide returns far shareholders
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3. 3.
Accounting classifications and
fair value hierarchy

a2 1.

Financial instruments by category
The fair valus of each class of finangial assets and
habilites are equivalent to their carrying amount

Assets at
fair value Denvatves Loans and Available-
through profit used for accounts for-sale
or loss (1) hedging recetvable  investments Total
MNotes em €m €m €m €m
Assets
Laans and other financial assets (surplus
of the defined benefit plans excluded) 8. 5. 57 - 29 116 202
Accounts recewvable and other
. financial assets (2) 79 42 1,794 - 1,915
(1) Includtes Netiorel Motka Group Cash and cash equivalents - - 650 - 650
prepad expense and ather tlaves At 31 December 2012 136 42 2,473 116 2,767
recenable
- Liahilities
at far valua Denvatives Other
through used for financial
profit or lass hedging  habiltes (1) Total
Notes €m €m €m €m
A Liabithes
gj oliipating ;:YZS,; exchig Loans and bank overdrafts - - 29 29
employee benefits hability deferred Accounts payable (2} [REER - 19 1,773 1,792
mcome social secunty and
other taxas payable and advance At 31 December 2012 - 19 1,802 1,821
payments
Assets at
fair value Denvatives Loans and Avalable-
through profit used for accounts for-sale
or ioss {1} hedging receivable  investments Total
Notes €m €m €m €m €m
Assets
Loans and other financial
assets {surplus of the defined
benefit plans excluded) 8. 5. 132 - 6 106 244
Accounts recevable and other
financial assets (2} [ 8. 8] - 96 1,827 - 2,023
Cash and cash eguivalents (2. 3] - - 701 - 701
At 31 December 2011 132 96 2,634 106 2,968

(1) As part of an agreement signad on 10 Jurs 2011 with the current shareholders of National Medra Grous ("NMMG*) RTL Group swappsd is 30 per
cent shareholding in the Russian TV channel Ren TV for 2 7 5 per cent sharsholding in NMG NMG halds interasts in three major Russian TV chan
nels {First Channel Pen TV and TRK Petersburg) the dady newspaper Isvestya and the radio station Russian News Senvice. Put and calf optron
agreements have been concluded with rights exercisable in 2013 Tha non cash transactian resulted in
- the disposal of Ber TV which was classified in 2010 1 financial assels at fair value through profit or Joss withowt recognition of any capital gan
and

- the recogmitian of the vestment i NMG m accardance witi JAS 39 for an amount of €76 mihan at 31 December 2011
NMG has been designated at fair value through profit or l0ss as s performance s managed on a far value bass
This financa! asset 15 presented in level 3 accoraing o the IFRS7 gudance

{2} Accounts recenable exclude prepad expense and ather taxes recevable

biablives
at fair valua Denvatves Other
through used for financial
profit or lass hedging  habites (1} Total
Notes £m €m €m €m
(1) At amortised cost Lighilrthes
(2} Accounts payable excluide Loans and bank overdrafts 8. 0. - - 53 53
henafit kabi, farren
e somal seoutty Accounts payable {2) 2 11 = 16 1795 1,81
other 'a’r“"s payable and advance At 31 December 2011 - 16 1,848 1,864
payments
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3. 3. 2.

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the Group's financial
assets and habilities measured at farr value at 31 De-
cember by valuation method The different levels
have been defined as follows

u | evel 1 quoted prnces (unadjusted) in actve mar-
kets for identical assets {or habilities),

® | evel 2 inputs other than quoted pnces included
withurt level 1 that are observable for the asset or fi-
ability, ether directly { e prices) or indirectly {1 e
denved from prices), and

®Levsl 3 Inputs far the asset or the kability that are
not based on observable market data (unobserva-

ble inputs})
Total Level1 Lovel2 Level 3
€m €m €m €m
Assets
Financial assets at far value through profit or loss 136 - 57 79
Available-for-sale investments 116 16 43 57
Denvatives used for hedging 42 - 42 -
At 31 December 2012 294 16 142 136
Liabilttes
Denvatives used for hedging 19 - 19 -
At 31 December 2012 19 - 19 -
Assets
Financial assets at far value through profit or loss 132 — 56 76
Available-for-sale investments 106 2] 50 50
Derivatves used for hedging 96 - 96 -
At 31 December 2011 334 6 202 126
Liabilities
Denvatives used for hedging 16 - 16 -
At 31 December 2011 16 - 16 -

The farr value of financial instruments traded n ac-
tive markets are based on guoted market pnees at
the balance shest date A market s regarded as ac-
tve 1f quoted pnces are readily and regularly availa-
ble from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group,
pnicing service, or regulatory agency, and those pnc-
es represent actual and regularly occurnng market
transactions on an arm’s length basis These instru-
ments are included in lavel 1 The quoted market
pnce used for financial assets by the Group s the
currant oid pnce

The far value of financtal nstruments that are not
traded in an active market are determined by using
valuation techmques These valuation technigues
maxirnise the use of observable market data where
it 1s avalable, and rely as little as possible on entity-
specific estimates If all significant nputs required to
far value an nstrument are observable, the instru-
ment is included In level 2

It one or more of the significant Inputs s not based
on cbsarvable market date, the instrument is includ-
ed nlevel 3

166 RTL GROUP AMNUAL REPQRT 2012




The following table presents
the change in fevel 3
rstruments for the year
ended 31 December 2012

The followng table presents
the change in level 3
instruments for the year
ended 31 December 2011

{1) Summit avadable-for-sale
wwastment presented vt leved 3 m
2010 has been transferred (o
level 2 following Tha acquisition on
13 January 2612 of Summit
by Lions Gate Entertamment

{2) Aloss of €1 milkon, refated to an
avarable-for sale ymvestment
was rgcogrised i chsconinued
operahons (see note 4.}

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAKCIAL STATEMEKTS

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial
instruments include

® Quoted market prces or dealer quotes for sumilar
instruments,

u The far value of forward foreign exchange con-
tracts are determined using forward exchange
rates at the balance sheet date, with the resultng
value discounted back to present value,

® Other techmiques, such as discounted cash flow
analysis, are used to determing faur value for the re-
maning financial Instruments

Financial
assets at fair Avadable-
value through for-gale
profit orloss  investments Total
€m €m €m
Balance at 1 January 76 50 126
Disposal 0 - {1
Gans and losses recognised in other comprehensive income - 13 13
Gains and losses recogrised in profit or loss
{"Financial results other than interest”, see note 7 5) 4 (6} {2)
Balance at 31 December 79 57 136
Total gams/ {losses) for the period included m profit or loss
for assets held at the end of the reporting period 4 (6) {2)
Financial
assets at far Avalghle-
valus through for-sale
profitorloss  mvestments Total
€m €m €m
Balance at 1 January 72 69 141
Purchase 72 2 74
Disposal {72) - (72)
Transfer into level 2 (1) - {11} {11)
Gains and losses recognised in other comprehensive income ~ 9) (9)
Gains and losses recognised in profit or loss
(“Financial result other than interest”, see note 7 5} (2) 4 {1) 3
Balance at 31 December 76 50 126
Total gains/ (losses) for the period included in profit or loss
for assets held at the end of the reporting period 4 (1) 3
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KA DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
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Alpha

Following the decision of the Board of Diectors of
RTL Group SA in December 2011 to fully dispose of
the shares held in Alpha Meda Group Lid,
RTL Group concluded an agreement with the non-
controling shareholder of Alpha The transaction
was subject to approval by the Greek Competriron
Commisston at 31 December 2011 The transaction
was completed on 20 February 2012, once the
competition clearance was gbtained on 9 February
2012

The terms of the share purchase agreement stputat-
ed that, pnor to the disposal, RTL. Group wilt recapi-
takse and fund Alpha, enabling 1t to fully reimburse
the loans and facilities to third parties and to cover

working capital requirements for December 2011
and January 2012 In this respect, RTL Group umat-
erally contnbuted €53 million and €16 millkon in De-
camber 2011 and In January 2012, respectively,
through capital iIncreases In an Alpha group compa-
ny Alpha continues to benefit from aloan of €22 5
million owed to RTL Group after its exit with a nil far
value at 31 December 2012

The loss from discontinued operations related to Al-
pha of €1 millign (2011 €88 milkion) 1s attnbutable to
the owners of the Group for € mil million (2011 €76
mllion)

The resuits of Alpha are presented below

202 201t

€m €m
Revenue 4 49
Other operating mcome 1 5
Consumption of current programme rights {1 {16)
Depreciation, amortisation and imparrment - (6)
Other operatirg expenses (7} (55)

Impairment of disposal group and amortisation and impairment
of fair value adjustments on acquisiigns of subsidianes and joint ventures - (72

Gain/{loss) from sale of subsidianies, other investments and ra-measuremant

to fair value of pre-existing interest in acquiree 2 -
Loss from operating activihes {1) (95}
Earrings betore interest and taxes (“EBIT™) (1) {95)
Net interest expense - {4)
Financial results other than interest - 1
Loss before taxes {1} (98)
Loss for the year from discontinued operaticns (1) {a8)
EBITA (discontinued operations) 3) (23}
Impairment of subsidianes and joint ventures and of dispesal group - (64)
Amortisation and imparment of far value adjustments on acquisttions of subsidianes

and jomnt ventures - (8)
Gain/{loss) from sale of subsidianes, other nvestments and re-measurement

to farr value of pre-existing interest In acquree 2 -
Earnings betore interest and taxes {(“EBIT") (1} (95)
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Other comprehensive ncome of Alpha disposal
group relating to actuanal gains on defined benefit
plans armounts to € nil millon at 31 December 2012
(2011 €0 4 milhon}




Cash outflow on disposal
of discontinued
operations 1s as follows:

{1) At disposal data

Non-current assels
classified as held for sale,
disposal group-

{1) Including impawment of non-curent
assets for €(19) mdltar of which
mmparrrent of fax value adiustments
on acquistions of subsidianas
and jorit vertures for €(T) midlion

Lrabultties directly
assoctated with
non-current assets
classified as held for sale:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2012
€m
Assets classified as held for sale (1) (29)
Liabilsties directly associated with non-current assets classified as held for sale (1) a5
Non-controling interests {1
Accumulated other comprehensive income recognised in the Income statement -
Net assets disposed of 5
Direct cost associated with the disposal of Alpha (3)
Less
Payments on previous year on disposal of Alpha 1
Cash outflow on disposal of discontinued operations (2)
2011
£€m
Non-current assets
— Other Intangible assets 8
= Property, plant and equipment 11
Current assets
- Programme rights 20
- Income tax recevable 4
— Accounts receivable and other financiat assets 55
= Cash and cash equivalents 4
Impairment of disposal group (1) {71}
k1
2011
€m
Current habilities
Loans and bank overdrafts 20
Income tax payable 1
Accounts payable 23
Non-current habihties
Accounts payable 8
Provisions 5
57
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Five Group

On 23 July 2010, RTL Group disposed of Five
Group to Naorthern & Shell, a company owned by
British publisher Richard Desrmond

The terms of the agreement included a net cash
payment of €118 milllon The total cash considera-
ton payable to RTL Group for ts 100 per cent
shareholding in Five Group amounted to €124 mi-
kon before adjustment related to a cash poolng
mechanism (minus €6 milion) The regulatory nsk
was taken by the purchaser (sege note 9 1)

The results of Five Group are presented below

2011

€m
Gain/{loss) from sale of substdianes, ather investments and re-measurement
to far value of pre-existing interest in acquirge (1)
Loss from operating activibes (1)
Earmings before interest and taxes (“EBIT”) (1}
Loss before taxes (1}
Income tax incame 3
Profit/ (loss) for the year from discontinued operations 2
EBITA (discontinued operattons} -
Gain/{loss) from sale of subsidianes, other investments and re-measurement
to farr value of pre-existing interest in acquiree {1)
Earnings before interest and taxes (“EBIT™) )

The loss from discontinued operations of €1 mullion
{2011 €96 milhon) and related to Alpha and Five 1s
attnbutable to the owners of the Group for € nil mul-
llon (2011 €74 millon} Of the profit from continuing
operations of €691 millon (2011 €891 million),
€597 mflion 1s atinbutable to the owners cf the
Group (2011 €770 millon}
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SEGMENT REPORTING

The determination of the Group's operating segments
1s based on the aperational and management-
refated entities for which information 1s reported to
the Executive Committee

The Group has 15 business units, each one led by a
CEQ They manage operations in telewsion, radio
and diversification businesses in ten counines, In
which the Group owns interests In 53 TV channels
and 28 radio stations, of which eight TV channels
and two radio stations held by Grupo Antena 3 as-
soclate, FremantleMedia and UFA Sports operate an
international network N the content business

All the reported segments meet the quanttative
thresholds required by IFRS 8

» Mediengruppe RTL Deutschland this segmertt en-
cormpasses all of the Group's German television
actvites These include the leading commercial
channel RTL Television, free-to-air channels Vox,
Super RTL, RTL MNitro and N-TV, thematic pay
channels RTL Cnme, RTL Living and Passion, and
an equity participation In free-to-ar channel RTL I
This segment also includes an array of diversifica-
tion activities such as new media and content,

u Groupe M6 primanly composed of the commer-
cial telewiston channel M6 This segment also in-
cludes two other fres-to-ar telewviston channels,
W3 and the newly launched 6ter, and a number of
smaller thematic pay channels This segment also
includes significant ather actwbes such as home
shopping, direct-to-consumer marketing, nghts
distribution and a football club,

® FremantleMadia principally a worldwide produc-
tion business but other actwvites include a
significant distnbution and licensing business Its
main busness units are based in the United
States, the United Kingdom, Germany and Aus-
traha FremantieMedia segment includes Radical
Media, a leading TV commercials production com-
pany n the United States with offices in Australia,
China and Germany,

® RTL Nederand this segment covers both tele-
wision and radio achvittes The Group's television
channels cover RTL 4, RTL 5, RTL 7, RTL 8§,
RTL Lounge, RTL Cnme and RTL Telekids, and are
the leading family of channels in the Netherlands,

= RTL Belgum this segment includes both television
and radio actwsties primanly focused in the French-
speaking (southern) part of Belgurm  The telsvision
activities are the leading family of channals and in-
clude RTL-TVI, Plug RTL and Club RTL, whila the
radio actties are made up of the number one and
nurmber two stations, Bel RTL and Radio Contact,

s French radic this 15 the leading radio family
in France and mamly includes the stations RTL
Radio, RTL 2 and Fun Radic

The revenue of "Other segments” mainly relates to
RTL Klub (Hungary, €101 million) and RTL Hrvatska

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FIMARCIAL STATEMENTS

(Croatia, €31 million) Group headquarters provides
services, Inhates development projects and 1s also
reported in “Qther segments”

RATL Group’s Executive Committee assesses the
performance of the operating segments based on
EBITA Interest income, interest expense, financial
results other than interest and ncome tax are not al-
located to segments, as these are centrally dnven
Inter-segment pncing 15 determined on an amm’s
length basis

The Exacutive Committee also reviews, on a regular
basis, the amount of the invested capital of each
profit centre Only the assets and liabiites directly
managed by the profit centres are considered Se-
portable segment assets and liabiities are recon-
clled to total assets and liabities, respectively

Al management financial mformation reported to
RTL Group's Executive Committee 1s fully comphant
and consistent with the Group's accounting policies
and pnmary statements
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Mediengruppe
Segment information mzm% m,w Mﬁzun
€m €m €m €m
Revenue from external customers 1,979 1,909 1,378 1,414
inter-segment revenue 3 3 9 7
Total revenue 1,982 1,912 1,387 1,421
Profit/ (loss} from operating activities 561 508 217 238
Share of results of associates 21 21 - -
EBIT 582 529 217 238
EBITA {(continuing operations) 581 529 224 249
Impairment of investments in assoclates - - - -
Amortisation and impairment of farr value adjustments on acguisitions of subsidianes and joint ventures (1) - @ (11)
Re-measurement of earn-out arrangements 2 - - -
Gain/{loss) from sals of subsidiaries, other investments
and re-measurement to fairr value of pre-existing intaerest in acquiree - - - -
EBIT 582 529 217 238
Interest incoma
Interest expense
Financial results other than interest
Income tax expense
Profit for the year from continumng operations
Segment assets {assets classified as held for sale and assoctates excluded) 1,476 1,458 1,476 1,486
Investments In associates 60 60 - -
Assets classtfied as held for sale and assets related to discontinued operations - - - -
Segment assets 1,536 1,518 1,476 1,486
Segment labilibes (habilities directly associated with non-current assets
classiiied as held for sale excluded) 849 776 618 656
Liabiites directly associated with non-current assets classified as held for sale
and hablibes related to discontinued operations - - - -
Segment habilities 849 776 618 656
Invested capital 687 742 858 830
Segment assels
Daferred tax assets
Income tax receivable
COther assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Totat assets
Segment abilities
Defarred tax habilities
Income tax payable
Other liabilities
Total habiliies
Capital expendriture (1) (2) 16 26 117 93
Depreciation and amortisation {3} (19) {20) (107} {87)
Impairment losses excluding goodwill - - - )
Impatrment of goodwill of subsidianes and joint ventures and of disposal group - - - -
* Re presented (see Note 6.2 Hunganan Janguage cable channels and M RTL)
(1) Caputal expenditure ncludes additons i "Programme and olher nghis® “Other niangible asseis”™ and "Properly plant ard equipment”
new goodwill following acquistions of subsidianes and joint ventures and ncremental fair valua on wdontifiable assets foflawing purchass accounting
{2) inchidng capital expendilura related to discontinued operations for € il makon (2011 €1 milhor}
{3) including depreciaton and amortisation related ta discontinued operalrons for € nd madlan {2011 €4 mulhon)
Germany France
5. 2. 2012 2081 2012 2011
£m €m €m
Geagraphical information Geographtcal areas are based on where customers Revenue fram external

{revenue) and the Group’s non-current assets are
located Goodwill has been allocated to a geograph-
ical arga based on whether the Group's nsks and
returns are affected predominantly by the products
and services It preduces
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customers

2,110 2,012 1,551 1,611

Non-current assets

1,019 1,012 939

933

Assets classified as
held for sale

3 -

Capital expendrture

42 57 120

99
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French Other

FremantleMedia Nederland Belgrum radio segments Eliminatons Totat Group
2012 2011 2012 201t 2012 2011 2012 20m M2 2011 2012 2011 w12 2011
€m €m €m €m €m €m €m €m €m €m £m €m Em €m
1,554 1,263 431 491 209 215 178 182 269 201 - - 5,998 5,765
157 166 - - 1 1 2 2 a5 39 {207) (218) - -
1,711 1,429 421 491 210 216 180 184 304 330 {207) {218) 5,998 5,765
137 143 97 240 45 46 30 30 (55) 1) - - 1,032 1,184
(10) ] - - - - - - (64) 24 - - (53) 38
127 136 97 240 45 46 30 30 {119) 3 - - 979 1,222
138 143 97 134 45 46 20 30 (37) 3 - - 1,078 1,134
10) 7} - - - - - - (72 1 - - {82) (6)
- - = (1) - - - - (2) (1) - - (10} (13)
- - - - - - - - - — - - 2 -
4] - - 107 - - - - (8 - - - L)) 107
127 136 97 240 45 46 30 30 (119) 3 - - 979 1,222
11 23
21) (25)
(1) 27)
277) (302)
691 81
1,763 1,680 a61 342 172 172 179 179 558 548 (123} {141) 5,862 5,724
- 9 - - - - - - 191 287 - - 251 356
- - - - - - - - - 23 - - - 23
1,763 1,689 361 342 172 172 179 179 749 B58 {123) (141) 6,113 §,103
550 488 120 123 104 117 73 76 287 283 {123) {142} 2,478 2,377
- - - - - - - - - 33 - - - a3
550 488 120 123 104 117 73 76 287 316 {123) (142) 2,478 2,410
1,213 1,201 241 219 68 55 106 103 462 542 - 1 3,635 3,693
6,113 6,103
377 361
86 57
672 965
650 701
7,898 8,187
2,478 2,410
62 57
79 100
421 527
3,040 3,094
30 53 13 51 4 6 2 5 20 107 - - 202 341
{22) (22} {7 (10} (s) 5 1) (@ (22) 27 - - {1886) (175)
(2) (4} {1 - - - - - - (3) - - (31 (14
- - - — - - - - - (72) - - - (72)
UsSA Netherlands Belgium UK Other regrons Total
2012 2011 2012 2013 a2 2011 012 2011 2012 21 2012 zon
£m €m €m €m £tm €m €m €m €m €m £m €m
The revenue generated N Luxembourg amounts
640 496 448 502 238 235 218 206 792 703 5,898 5,765 to €55 millon (2011 €54 milion) The total of non-
441 442 287 285 50 5t 411 417 204 200 3,351 3,340 current assets other than financial nstruments,
deferred tax assets and post-employment benefit
- - - - - - - -3 3 3 assets located n Luxermbiourg amounts to €27 ml-
3 14 14 51 4 6 4 5 15 109 202 M flon (2011 €26 millior)
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@ ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

174 RTL GROUP

Acquisttions and increases

i interests held in subsidianes

Detadls of main acquistions in the year ended 31 De-
cember 2012 are set out in note 6 2 Acquisibons
have been consolidated using the purchase method
of accounting with goecdwill being recognised as an
asset All acquisitions have been included in the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control was transferred to the Group

In aggregate, the acquired businesses contnbuted
revenue of €2 millon and profit attnbutable to
RTL Group shareholders of € nil millen for the post
acquisition penod ta 31 December 2012 Had the
business combxnations been at the beginning of the
year, the revenue and the profit atinbutable to
RTL Group shareholders would not have changed

6. 2.
Details of main acquisitrons and disposals,
Increases in interests held in subsidanes

2012

There were no major acquistitons It the year ended
31 December 2012 The Group incurred insigruficant
acquisition-related costs

Other acquisitions and disposals, increases in
interest held in subsidianes

8 0n 2 January 2012, RTL Group acquired 100 per
cent of Gutscheine de HSS GmbH which operates
onhkng couponing sies In Germany The acquisition
strengthens RTL Group's position in the German
ornline market The transaction qualified as a busi-
ness combination since RTL Group ganed the
control of Gutscheine de The purchase accounting
did not lead to recognition of additonal identifiable
assets and kabilties The purchase consideration,
net of cash acquired, armnounted to €3 million
resulting in the recognition of a goodwill of €2 9
midlion An amount of €25 milion was already
cashed-out In 2011 At 31 December 2012, the
contingent consideration based on a vanable per-
formance component includes an eamn-out mech-
anism assessed for an amount of €0 5 milkon,

= 0On 2 August 2012, the Group acguirred 25 per
cent of Apareo Holding GmbH which comes in ad-
dition to the 50 per cent previously held The busi-
ness was launched in 2012 and s based on the
development of system solutions for sport organi-
sations, clubs and associations in order to mone-
tise the attractiveness of their brand from an online
virtual market place The transaction qualfied as a
business combination since RTL Group gained the
control of Apareo The purchase consideration, net
of cash acquired, amounted to €2 3 million result-
ing in the recognion of a goodwill of €2 milbon In
addition to a capital increase of €0 3 millon, an
amount of €1 1 mifken was already cashed-out
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in 2011 At 31 December 2012, the contingent
consideration based on a vanable performance
component Includes an eam-out mechanisrm fully
recognrised for an amount of €0 6 million,

= (On 11 October 2012, RTL Group acquired 100 per
cent of Videostnp BV, the largest online wvideo
advertising network in the Netherlands The trans-
action fits the Group's strategy to mvest in digital
advertising and content-delvery technologies The
transaction qualfied as a business combination
since RTL Group gained the control of Videostnp
The purchase accounting led to no recogrution of
addinonal fair vaiues directly attnbutable to the net
assets acquired The purchase consideration, net
of cash acquired, amounted to €3 5 muthon result-
ing I the recogniion of a goodwill of €3 4 milkon
The eamn-cut mecharism for an amount of €3 mil-
lion has not been recogrised,

® On 31 October 2012, RTL Group acguired Tom's
Games internet sites (JeuxvideoPC com and
Jeuxwvideo-fiash com) The transaction contnbutes
to extend the creative capabilities of the Group
The transaction qualified as a business combina-
tion since RTL Group gained the control of Tom's
Games The purchase consideration, net of cash
acquired, amounted to €3 1 milkon resulting in
the recogniion of a provisional goodwall of €3 1
millon At 31 December 2012, the contingent
cansideration based on a vanable performance
component includes the first earn-out mecharusm
fully recogrised for an amount of €0 5 millon




2011

Hunganan language cable channels

and M-RTL

On 28 July 2011, RTL Group signed with [KO and
certain other entiies an agreement for acquinng its
stake of 31 per cent m M-RTL and the full control of
a portfolio of seven Hunganan language cable chan-
nels The transachons were completed on 20 De-
cember 2011 once the approval of the Munganan
Competition Office was received

The final purchase pnce was contingent on working
capital adustments In addon, the acquishion
agreement provided for certain warranbes and -
demnities in favour of RTL Group

On 31 August 2011, RTL Group paid €6 million for
100 per cent of KOS Beteigungs- und Verwaltungs-
gesellschaft mbH ("KOS") holding a 2 per cent
economic ownership and 20 per cent voting nghts in
M-RTL

The acqusitions of KOS and of the 31 per cent
stake in M-BTL from KO was accounted for as eq-
urty transactions (see note 8 14 8) The related con-
sideratton amounted to €64 miion In this context,
RTL Group also rembursed a loan payable for an
amount of €8 millon The excess of consideration
recognised (n the equity attrbutable to RTL Group
shareholders amounted ta €{(42} milion

The transactions related to the seven cable charnels
qualfied as a busingss combinaton At 3t December
2011, the related purchase consideration, net of cash
acquired, amounted to €91 million, resulting N the
recagnition of a provistonal goodwill of €87 mullion

The acqusitons prowided the opportunty for
RTL Group to build a family of chanrels in the very

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fragmented Hunganan market and to develop syner
gies for reducing the cost base

The acquistion-related costs of €0 6 mullion, mainly
consisting of legal fees and due diligence costs,
were racogrisad in “Other operating expenses”

As the gan of control of the cable channels oc-
curred at the end of the year, the revenue and profit
included for the acquired operations in the consoli-
dated 1ncome statement of RTL Group for the pen-
od 2011 was ot significant

Had the business combination occurred on 1 Janu-
ary 2011, the contnbution $o the consoldated reve-
nue and to the Group's conscbdated result would
have been €17 milion and €2 million, respectively

In 2012, the purchase consideration was reduced
by € 1 rmullion (to €89 million), following working cap-
ftal adjustments agreed between the selfer and
RTL Group in May 2012 The purchase accounting,
determined on a provisional basis In 2011 and com-
pleted dunng the first half of 2012 resulted n a
goodwil| of €78 millon

The followsng dentrfiable assets and llabiities have

been recognised

& The brand names “Cool”, "F+", *Film2”, “Muzsika™,
“Prnzma”, “Reflektor” and “Sorozat+™ for an amount
of €2 millon,

8 Ths customer relationships for an amount of €7
milion,

» A related deferred tax lability for an amount of €1
milhon

Goodwill will not be tax deductble in connechan
with this transaction

Carrying amount Fair value
Hungarnian [anguage cable channels and M-RTL gam : ‘ff,,,‘;‘,‘;} lmm:::‘: gain 3 ::'n:,::
2011 €m €m €m
Cash and cash equivalents {1) - {1}
(Other intangible assets 3 9 12
Current programme rights 4 - a4
Accounts recewable and other financial assets 4 - 4
Accounts payable M - {7
Defarred tax habilities - (1) {1}
Net assets acquired 3 8 11
Goodwill 78
Total purchase consideration 89
Purchase pnice adjustment 1
Cash and cash equivalents in operations acquired 1
Cash outflow on acquisition a1

RTL GROUP ANNUAL REPORT 2012 175




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS

176

RTL GROUP

Dutch radios and RTL Nederland

On 28 July 2011, RTL Group exercised its put op-~
tion towards Talpa Media Nederland to get back
Talpa Medha's 26 3 per cent non-controfling share-
holding in RTL Nederland (mainly Dutch TV opera-
tions) n exchange for its interests held N the Dutch
radios Radio 538, Radio 10 Gold and SlamIFM The
exchange of the respective shargholdings was inmial-
ly set to take place n 2012

RTL. Group and Talpa Media agreed on 1 Septem-
ber 2011 to accelerate the transfer of shares be-
fore 31 December 2011 On 289 December 2011,
RTL Group and Talpa Media agreed on the final com-
pletion of the asset swap and the related payments

The acquisition of the remaining non-controding inter-
est in RTL Nederland was accounted for as an equity
transaction (see note 8 14 8} The far value of the
26 3 per cent of HTL Nederland amounted to €290
millon The valuation was based on a discounted
cash-flow approach and an analysis of comparable
trading and transactrons muttiples  The equity trans-
achon resuited N a decrease in equity of €273 miion

RTL Group recogrised a capial gain on the dispos-
al of the Dutch radios far an amount of €107 mihon
denved from the measurement at far value of 26 3
per cent of RTL Nederland included in the consider-
aton received

The terms of the agreement included the payrment
to Talpa of the put option cash settlement amount,
net of representations and warranties receved by
Talpa (€{7) millon), the reimbursement to Talpa Me-
dia of its coninbution paid n 2007 (€{(74) milicn}, the
rembursement to RTL Group of the loan granted n
2007 (€74 milkon), and the payment to RTL Group
of the purchase price following the acquisthon of
Radio 10 Gold and Slam!FM (€7 mithor) The dis-
posal resutted therefore In an outflow, net of cash
held by the Dutch radios disposed of, amounting to
€(5) rmullion

In 2011, the Dutch radios contnbuted €61 mulion
and € 13 milion to the revenue and the profit attnb-
utable to the owners of Group, respectively

Dutch radios and RTL Nederland 2:1.;
Cash and cash equivalents {79}
Goodwill (164}
Other intangible assets (34)
Property, plant and equipment {1)
Net deferred tax assets {36)
Accounts receivable and other financial assets 13)
Accounts payable 65
Interest-hearing loans payable and bomowings 55
Non-controlbng interests 24
Net assets disposed of {183)
Total disposal proceeds 297
Less

Transactions with non-controlling interests (290}
Cash settlernant amount {7)
Reimbursement to RTL Group of the loan granted 74
Cash and cash equivalents in operations disposed of (79)
Cash outflow on disposals of c““t‘"“EB_L operations (see note 6.2 ) (s)
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Other acquisitions and disposals, increases
in interest held m subsicharies

= On 1 Apnl 2011, RTL Group acguied 100 per cant & On 1 June 2011, RTL Group acguired 100 per cent

of the leading Dutch internet site Buienraday, which
provides real-time weather information  The trans-
action qualfied as a business combination since
RTL Group gamned the control of Buienradar BV
Tne purchase accounting led to no recogneion of
addrtional far values directly attnbutable to the net
assets acquired The purchase considaeration, net
of cash acquired, amounted to €15 million result-
wig N the recognition of a goodwill of €11 mudlion,

= On 19 Apnl 2011, the Group acquirsd the remain-

ing 50 per cent of the shares of the company TCM
Droits Audiovisuels SNC ("TCM™), previously pro-
portionate consglidated The transacton qualfied
as a business combmination since RTL Group
ganed tha control of TCM The re-measurement to
farr value of the Group's existng 50 per cent
{amounting to €04 milion) was recogrised in
“Ganf{loss) from sale of subsidianes, other invest-
ments and re-measurement to far value of pre-ex-
1sting Interest N acquires” (see note 7 3) The pur-
chase accounting led to the recogniton of a far
value of €1 7 million on the nghts acquired subse-
quentty fully impaired,

= On 28 Aprl 2011, the Group acquired 50 per cent

n Panorabanqgue SAS (“Panorabangue” through a
capital increase and 34 per cent in Quicksign SAS
{see note 8 4}, atechnological platform devoted to
financial sevices and implemented by Panora-
banque Jointly conirolied, Panorabanque I1s pro-
portionate consolidated The purchase accounting
led to no recognition of additional fair values direct-
ly attnbutable to the net assets acquired A good-
will of €0 7 milllon was recognised,

® On 5 May 2011, the Group acquired 100 per cent

of Les Films de la Suane San (“Les Films de la
Suane”), a company that cwns a catalogue of
seven feature fiims The transaction qualfied as a
business combination since the Group gained the
control of Les Films de la Suane The purchase
accounting led to the recognibion of a farr value of
€2 milkon on deferred tax assets related to losses
camed forward and on the catalogue of nghts
acquired, net of refated deferred tax lability,

of the Dutch radio station SlamiFM BV (*Slam!FM”)
The transaction quakfied as a business combina-
ton snce RTL Group ganed the control of
Slam!FM The purchase accounting led to no rec-
ogrution of additional far values directly attnbutable
to the net assets acquired The purchase consider-
ation, net of cash acquired, amounted to €6 milllon
resutting tn the recognition of a goodwaill of €4 rmil-
llon 1t was agreed that in case RTL Group would
exercise s put gpion on Talpa, the shares in
Slam!FM will be transferred to Talpa on the same
terms and conditions as at the date of acquisition
(see note “Dutch radios and RTL Nederiand”),

=0On 5 August 2011, the Group acquired 100 per
cent of Netrathleten net Media GmbH (“Netz-
athleten”) and its 100 per cent controlled subsidi-
ary Delta Advertising GmbH Netzathleten s the
leading operator of vertical content networks in the
German-speaking market The transaction qual-
fied as a business combination since RTL Group
ganed the contral of Netzathleten The purchase
accountng led to the recognitton of a fair value of
€3 milion on the customer refationships and to a
related deferred tax kabidity of €1 millon The trans-
achon resuited In the recognition of a goodwill of
€12 milion The purchase consideration, net of
cash acguired, amaunted n 2011 to €7 miflon At
31 December 2011, the deferred consideration
payable based cn a vanable performance-related
camponent amounted to €6 milllon
in 2012, an agreement related to one part of the
performance-related component was signed, and
resutted in a lump sum payment of €3 milkon and
In & re-measurement of €1 miion At 31 December
2012, the daferred consideration payable based
on the remaning vanable performance-related
camponant amounts to €1 million,

® An additional far value of the deferred consid-
eration was recognised in 2011 due to the oui-
performance of Onginal Productions The goodwill
was accordingly Increased for an amount of
€12 milkon to €63 millon

2012 2om
6. 2. €m €m
Assets and habilities
acquired Purchase consiwderation
Details of the net asseols - Cash pad 8 132
acquirad and goodwill are - Payments on prior years’ acquisittons {3} (12)
as follows: - Contingent consideration 2 <]
— Prior years' payments on acguisitions 4 -
- Purchase pnice adjustmert 1 {1)
Total purchase consideration 12 125
Less
Fair value of net assets acquired (1) {20)
Far value of equity interest held before business combinations - 1
Goodwill (see note 6.2) 11 106
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2012 2011
Far value Fawr valua
€m €m
Cash outflow on
acquisitions Cash and cash equivalents - (2)
The net assels and Non-current programme and other nights - 4
llabilities arising Other intangibie assets 1 15
from the acquisitions Current programme rights - 4
are as follows. Accounts recevable and other financial assets 1 7
Accournits payable (o] (12}
Other provision - 1)
Interest-beanng loans payable and borrowings - 4]
Non-controlling interests - 6
Net assets acquired 1 20
Fair value of equity interest held before business combinations - {1
Goodwill " 106
Total purchase consideration 12 125
Less
Caontingent consideration 2} {6)
Payments on prior years' acquisitions 3 12
Purchase price adjustment {1) 1
Pror years' payments on acquisitions {4)
Cash and cash equivalents in operations acquired =
+ Ro-presented fses note 6 2) Cash outflow on acquisitions {see note 6 2.) 8 134

20m
€m

Assets and habilities

disposed of Farr value of consideration receved 207
Details of net assets Payment associated 7
disposed of and gain on Net assets disposed of {183)
disposal are as folfows: Net gain on disposal of substdianes (see note 6.2.) 107

(6. 6] “em

Cash outflow on

disposals of continuing Cash and cash eguivalents (79)

operations Goodwill {164)
Other intangible assets (34}
Property, plant and equipment (1)
Net deferred tax assets {36}
Accounts receivable and other financial assets (13)
Accounts payable 65
Interest-bearing loans payable and borrowings 55
Non-controlling interests 24
Net assets disposed of {183)
Total disposal proceeds 297
Less
Transaction with non-controliing terests (290)
Cash settlement amount 4]
Retmbursement to RTL Group of the loan granted 74
Cash and cash equivalents in operations disposed of (79)
Cash outflow on disposals of continuing operations {see note 6.2.) (8)
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DETAILS ON CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

Ravenue

7. 2.
Other operating expenses

{1} Fees related to
PncewsterhauseCoopers (PwG)}
the Group s audstor and thesr
affitates regarding the continung
cperations are set out below

7.2, 1.
Employee benefits
expenses

2012 2011

€m % €m %

Spot advertising sales 3,146 53 3,207 &6
Bartering advertising revenue 53 1 53 1
QOther advertising sales 198 3 199 3
Advertising sales, net of agency commissions 3,397 57 3,459 60"
Net films, programmes and other nghts — sold or icensed 1,774 30 1,491 26
Sales of merchandise and consumer services 555 9 564 10
Professional services 272 4 251 4
5,998 100 5,765 100

2012 201

Notes €m €m

Employee benefits expenses 2.1 958 914
External cost of Ive programmes 289 242
Intellectuat property expenses 335 333
Expenses for subcontract production 177 177
Gonsumption of other inventonies 283 270
External cost of transmitiing 126 142
Other marketing, promotion and public relations costs 121 126
Rental costs 93 98
Operating taxes 74 79
Audr, consulting and legal fees (1) 56 56
Marketing and promotion costs — barter 50 50
Repairs and mantenance 55 46
Other distnbution expenses 36 34
Commissions on sales 15 19
Admirustration and sundry expenses 122 160
2,790 2,746

2012 2011

€m €m

PWC PwC

Audit services pursuant to legisiation 24 24
Other audn-related senices 10 a7
Qther services relating 10 taxation 0.1 02
Other services 0.3 05
3.8 as

The PwC feas refated to the discontinued operations
amounted to €ni mikorn in 2012 (2011 €0 1 million)

20mz2 2011

€m €m

Wages and salanes 712 694
Termination benefits 28 16
Social secunty costs 155 149
Share ophions granted to employees 5 7
Pensian costs 16 14
Other employea expenses 42 34
958 914

OF which restructunng costs 7 -
The amounts set out above exclude personnel costs In additton to other shori-term bonus schemes,
of €242 million (2011 € 194 million), that are caprtal- RTL Group has implemented for its serior manage-

1sed and that represent costs of employees directly ment a lang-term incentive plan {“LTIP") which runs

allocated to the production of assets

RTL GROUP
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for the tarm 2011 to 2013 The LTIP ams to reward
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An analysis of the
average number of
employees for under-
takings held by the
Group is set out opposite.
1) Oscontinuad cperations (see noig 4}

7. 3.

Gamn/{loss) from sale
of subsidianes, other
investments and
re-measurement to
farr value of pre-existing
Interest In acquiree

Net interest
income/{expense}

(1) OF whch (see note 8 13}
- Expected reium on pian assets
€4 millon {2011 €4 milfor)
-~ Unwind of discount on defined
benefit chhgatons €(9) millon
(2011 €(8) minon)

7. 5.
Financial results other
than interest

(1) This amount mciudes the
re-measurement of put options &t
fair value at year and and change n
far valug on athar financial assets

180 RTL GROUP

RTL Group's senior management for entraprenaurial
performance and to encourage therr long-term com-
mitment to the Group The performance targets and
beneficianes of the LTIP have been approved by the
Nomination and Compensation Committee of
RTL Group These performance targets are based
upon the RTL Group's Value Added ("RVA" The
RVA corresponds to the EBITA net of tax after de-
duction of the cost of invested capital As at 31 De-
cember 2012, the hability related to this LTIP has

been assessed on the basis of the achievement of
performance targets and amounts to €30 mullion
(2011 €11 milion) Groupe M6 operates a specific
long-term incenave plan based on stock option and
free shares plans

Pension costs relate to defined contnbutions for €9

midlion (2011 €7 million} and defined benefit plans
for €7 milion (2011 €7 million) {seenote 8 13}

2012 2031

Employees of fully consolidated undertakings

9,502 9,538

Employees of joint ventures 88 83
9,590 9,621
Employees of Alpha (1) 78 482

“Ganv/{loss) from sale of subsidianes, other nvest-
ments and re-measurement to far vatue of pre-exst-
Ing interest In acquree” mainly relates to the followng

2012
w | oss on partial disposal in Grupo Antena 3
{see nate 8 4} €(8) millon

“Employees of joint ventures” reflects the number of
employees based on the Group’s ownership In these
joint ventures

2011

» Gan on disposal of Dutch radios (see note 6 2 )
€107 mificn

= Gain on re-measurament of far value of the
Group's exsting 50 per cent m TCM Drods
Audiovisuels SNC (see note 6 2) €0 4 millon

2012 2011

£€m €Em
Interast mcome on loans and accounts receivable 11 23
Interest mcome 11 23
Interest expanse on financial habiities 9) (11)
Tax-related interest expense {2} (6)
Interest on defined benefit obligation (1) (5) 4
Interest expense on other employee benefit habilties 5) 4
Interest expense (21) (25)
Net interest expense {10} (2)

‘Interest Incorme on loans and accounts recevable”
wncludes an amount of €3 million (2011 €8 milkon)
in respect of deposits to Bertelsmann SE & Co
KGaA {see note 10 1)

22012 2011

£m £m
Net gan/(loss) on disposal and impairment on available-for-sale investments 1 -
Cash flow hedges ineffectiveness (see note 3 ) (8) (5)
Net gain on other financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss (1) 6 20
Other financial results - 2)

(1} {27)
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Income tax expense

The mcome tax on

the Group profit before
tax differs from the
theoretical amount that
would anse using

the Luxembourg tax rate
as follows-

7. 7.
Earnings per share

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2012 2041
€m €m
Current tax expense 271) (288)
Deferred tax expense (6) (14)
{277} (302)
2012 201
€m % €m 9
Prafit before taxas (continuing operations) 968 1,193
Income tax rate applicable in Luxemboury 28 80 2880
Tax calculated at domestic tax rate applicable
to profits in Luxembourg 279 343
Effects of tax rate in foraign jurisdictions and German trade tax 63 56
Tax calculated at domestic tax rate applicable to profits
n the respective countrnes 342 35,30 339 33 40
Change in tax regulation and status - (10)
Non deductible expenses 40 17
Tax exempt revenue {40} (40)
Commussion received in refation to the Compensation
Agreement (see note 101} {69} (69)
Tax incentives not recognised in the Income statemant 1Q) (11)
Effect of tax losses for which no deferred
tax assets are recognised 14 1
Tax expense before adyustments on prior years 277 28.60 287 24 10
Current tax adjustments on prior years 4 23
Deferred tax adjustments on prior years {4} (8
Income tax expense 277 2B8.60 302 2530

In 2012, non deductible expenses manly relate to
impairment losses on goodwil of Grupo Antena 3
(see note 8 4 } (€22 million}

“Tax exempt revenue” manly refates to capital gains
and far value changes for €25 mullion {2011 €27
millton) and to the share of results of associates for
€8 millon (2011 €13 mihen)

The calculation of basic earnings per share IS based
on the profit attnbutable to RTL Group shareholders
of €537 milion (2011 €696 million) and a weighted

In 2011, the effect of the change In Income tax rates
in Germany resulted In an increase In deferred tax
amounting to €10 million

Tax incentives not recogmsed n the income state-
ment relate to a permanent difference generated by
the amortisation of tax goodwill In Germany

In 2011, the tax adustments on prior years mainly
resulted from final tax assessments In Germany

average number of ordinary shares outstanding dur-
ing the year of 153,618,853 (2011 153,618,853),
calculated as follows

Contin Di Continuing Discortinued

operations operationy 2z operations operations 2011
Profit/ (loss) attnbutable to RTL Group
shareholders (in € million} 598 {1} 597 770 (74) 696

Werghted average number of ordinary shares

Issued ordmnary sharas at 1 January (note 814 1)

154,787,554 154,787,564 154,787,554 154,787,554

154,787,554 154,787,554

Effect of treasury shares held (note 8 14 2} {1,168,701) {1,168,701) 1,168,701} (1,168,701) {1,188,701) (1,168,701)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 153,618,853 153,618,853 153,618,853 153,618,853 153,618,853 153,618,853
Basic eamings per share {in €) 3.89 (0 01) 3.88 501 {0 48) 453
Diluted earnings per share (in €) 3.89 (0.01) 3.88 sl (0 48) 453
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3 DETAILS ON CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Advance
Distribution payments Total
and andico-)  programme Other
{Co-) broadcastng  productions and other intangible
productions nghts 1 progress nghts Goodwilk assets
m €m €m €m €m €m €m
Programme and other
rights, goodwill and other Cost
intangible assets Balance at 1 January 2011 598 1,002 36 1,636 5,137 448
Effect of movements in foreign exchange 7 2 - 9 3 {3)
Additions 12 34 37 83 - 56
Disposals - 41 - {41) - (29)
Subsidianes and jont
vartures acquued (3) 1 3 - 4 106 15
Subsidianes and joint
ventures disposed of (1) - - - - (164} (68}
Transfer to assets classified
as held for sale (4) - - - - (114 {16}
Transfers and other changes (2) 7 26 42) (9) 9 1
Balance at 31 December 2011* 625 1,026 31 1,682 4,977 402
Effect of movements in foreign exchange (4) {1) - (5) 6 3
Additions 9 30 62 101 - 25
Disposals (1) {63) - {64} - (29)
Subsidianes and joint
ventures acquired (3} - - - - 11 1
Transfers and other changes 13 33 (48) - - 3
Balance at 31 December 2012 642 1,025 47 1,714 4,994 405
Amaortisatton and mpawrment losses
Balance at 1 January 2011 {578) (934) - (1512 (2,429) (232)
Effects of movemenrts n foreign exchange (v¢] 2 - {9) - 2
Amortisation charge for the year (16) (60) - {76) - (31)
impatrment losses
recogrised for the year @ 2) (4) (9} - 3]
Reversal of impairment - 2 - 2 - -
Disposals - 41 - 4 - 24
Subsidiaries and joint ventures
disposed of {1) - - - - - 34
Transfer to assets classified
as held for sale {4} -~ - _ _ 114 8
Balance at 31 December 2011 {604) {055) (4} (1,563) (2,315 (201)
Effects of mgvements in foreign exchange 4 1 — 5 — (1)
Amartisation charge for the year {19) {74) - (93) - {26)
Imparment losses
recogrused for the year @) (1) - (3) - n
* R presented (see nole 6 2.} Reversal of impatrment - 1 - 1 _ _
(1) S note 4 And 6 2 Disposals 1 63 - 64 - 29
() “Transfers and other changes” Transfers and other changes (1) - - {1) - 3)
o Cotgmal Prcsctions Balance at 31 December 2012 621) _ (965) @ (1,580 (2,315 (209
and Radicsl Media
(3} Sea nota 6.2 and 6.3.
(4) The assels recogrused af far value Carrying amount
o o by AT oo e e At 31 December 2011 21 71 27 18 2,662 201
recisssified to disposal group at At 31 December 2012 21 60 43 124 2,679 202
371 Dacember 2011 (see nota 4}

Other intangible assets include manly M:stergocd-
deal, M6 and Hunganan language cable channel
brands for an amount of €126 milkon (2011 €125
mikon), Groupe M6, Netzathleten net, M-RTL and
Hunganan language cable channels customer rela-
tionships for an amount of €16 mihon (2011 €14
millior}

182 RTL GROUP ANNUAL REPORT 2012




* Ra presented (see nota 6 2)

No imparment loss has been recogrised in 2012 re-
garding intangible assets recognised at far value at
the time of the gain of control by RTL Group

The M6 brand 1s considered to have an indefinite
usefuld Iife and was recognised for an amount of €120
millon At 31 Decemnber 2012, an wmpaiment test
was performed and did not lead to any impairment

In detarmining that the M6 brand has an indefinite
useful ife, Group Management has considered varl-
ous factors such as the past and expected longew-
ty of the brand, the impact of possible changes In
broadcasting technologies, the /mpact of possible
evolutions of the regulatory environment In the
French television industry, the cumrent and expscted
audience share of the M6 channe! and M6 manage-
ment strategy to maintain and strengthen the trade-
mark "MB" Based on the analysis of these factors,
management has determined and confimmed at
31 December 2012 that there 15 no foreseeable m-
1t to the penod of time over which the brand MG is
expected to generate cash inflows far the Group

Impairment test for goodwill

Goodwill 15 allocated to the Group’s cash-generating
units on the basis of the business units (see note 5}
and at the level at which cash flows are generated

Al business units and cash-generating units mainty
cperate 1N one country, except FrermantleMedia,
Radical Media and UFA Sports which are worldwide
opsrations

2012 2011
£m €m
Mediengruppe RTL Deutschland 884 881
Groupe MB 419 416
FremaritleMedia 1,003 1,000
Radical Media a7 398
RTL Nederland 138 135
RTL Belgum 31 31
French radio 65 65
Other segments
- Hunganan language
cable channels and M-RTL 83 78
— German radio 17 17
- UUFA Sports 2 -
Total goodwill
on cash-generating units 2,679 2,662

Goodwll 1s tested for impairment annually, as of
31 December or whenever changes in cicum-
stances indicate that the carmying amount may not
be recoverable

The recaverable amount of a cash-generating unit
{“CGU"} has been determined on the basis of the
higher of 1ts value In use and s far value less costs
to sefl

NOTES T0 THE CONSOLIDAYED FINARGIAL STATEMENTS

u The value In use 1s determinad on the basis of cash
flows excluding estmated future cash inflows or
outflows expected to anse from future restructur-
ings and from improving or enhancing the CGU's
performance unless the cash-generating unit 1S
committed at year end to the restructuring, and re-
lated prowvisions have been made Furthermore,
the discount rats is closely knked to Group param-
eters {manly credit premium, geanng rato and
speaific nsk),

# Fayr value less costs to sefl iIs the amount obtana-
bla from the sale of a CGU in an arm’s length trans-
action between knowledgeable, wilng partes, less
the costs of disposal The hierarchy of sources for
determuning a “far value less costs to sell” 1s
u A binding am's length sales agreement,

» An active trading market for the CGU, or
# Best information avallable

The Group supports tts far values less costs to sell
on the basis of a discounted cash flow {“DCF"})
model to the extent that ¢t would reflect the value
that any market participant” would be ready to pay
In an arm’s length transactron Ddfferently from the
“value m use” approach, which reflects the perspec-
tive of the Group for a fong-term use of the CGU, a
“far value less costs to sell” model would mnclude
future cash flows expected o anse from restructur-
ing plans and future nvestments, as all rational
market participants would be expected to undertake
these restructunngs and mvestments v order to
extract the best value from the acquisiion Further-
morg, the discount rate in a “far value less costs
to sell” rmodel 15 calculated based on a market
approach and most of the parameters used are
derved from market sources The latter approach
applied was not used by the Group i determinng
the recaverable amaount of cash-generating urits at
31 December 2012

Cash flow prajections are based on financial budgets
approved by management covenng a three-year-
period Cash flows beyond the three-year-penod for
up to ten years are prepared using the estimated
growth rates and other key drvers including audience
and advertising market shares, the EBITA margin,
and cash conversion rates based on past perform-
ance and expactations of market developrment
Cash flows beyond the ten-year penod are exira-
polated using the estimated perpetual growth rates
and the discount rates stated below

The perpetual growth rates used are consistent with
the forecasts included 1n industry reports The dis-
count rates have bean determined, CGU by CGU, in
order to reflect, where appropnate, the following
factors

® Country nsk,

a Specific firm premium,

u Credit spread due to the financial s{uation, and

w Geanng rato of the CGU
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2012 2011
Perpetual Perpetual
growth Discourt growth Discount
rete rate rate ate
% a year % % a ypar %
Cash-generating units
Mediengruppe RTL Deutschland 2.0 76 20 79
Groupe M6 25 8.3 25 86
FremantleMedia 3.0 78 30 78
Radical Medha 2.0 8.0 20 79
RTL Nederland 20 8.3 25 86
RATL Belgium 20 83 25and2(1}) B6andB5(1)
French radio 20 64 20 65
Other segments
- German radio 20 65 20 65
- Hunganan language cable channels and M-RTL 2.0 126 20 131
{1) For teleusion and racho resp 5 - UFA Spons 20 1.8 20 78

Management consider that, at 31 December 2012,
no reasonably possible change in the market shares,
margn and cash converswon rates would reduce
the headroom between the recoverable amounts
and the carrying values of the cash-generating units,
Hungarian language cable channels and M-RTL
excepted

For Hunganan language cable channels and M-RTL,
if, for 2013 and each of the following years, the esti-
mated revenue growth and the EBITA margin had
been reduced by 1 per cant and the discount rate
had baen increased hy 1 per cent, this would have
resulted in an imparment loss aganst goodwill of
€15 million

No impairment loss on goodwill was recorded in
2012

2011

Na imparment loss on goodwilt was recorded in
2011
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8 3.
Property, plant
and equipment

(1) Sea note 4 and 6.2

{2) Ses nota 4

(3} A buiding owned n Lordon was dis
posed of it 2012 for €21 mabon, net
of transaction costs  The related
caprtal gain amounted to € 14 rafion
{"Other operatng ncome’)

Investments
In associates

NOTES T0 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Land buddings Techrucal
2nd improvatients squipment Other Total
€m €m €m €m

Cost
Balance at 1 January 2011 365 294 208 867
Effect of movements in foreign exchange - (1) - (1}
Additions 15 20 41 76
Disposals {3) (6) (16 (25)
Subsidianes and joint ventures acquired (1} 1) (2) {3) (6)
Transfer to assets classified as held for sale (2) {18) {19) (6) (43)
Transfers and other changes (17) 3 (6) (20)
Balance at 31 December 2011 3 289 218 848
Effect of movements in foreign exchange 1 1 - 2
Additions 17 20 28 65
Disposals {3) (18) (i5) (23) {53)
Transfers and other changes 29 7 {35) 1
Balance at 31 December 2012 373 302 188 863
Depreciation and impairment losses
Balance at 1 January 2011 {160) (202) (132) (494)
Effect of movements in {oreign exchange - - ~ -
Depreciation charge for the year {16) {30) (22) (68)
Impairment lossaes recognised for the year (1) - - )
Disposals 1 ;] 16 23
Subsidianes and joint ventures disposed of (1) 1 2 2 5
Transfer to assets clasaifiad as held for sale (2) 11 16 5 32
Transfers and other changes 1" 1 1 13
Balance at 31 December 2011 {153) (207) {130} {480}
Effect of movernents in foreign exchange - 1) - (1)
Depreciation charge for the year {16) (29} (22) 67
Impairment losses recogmised for the year — - - =
Disposals {3} 5 15 22 42
Transfers and other changes [73) (1) 2 (1)
Balance at 31 December 2012 (166) (223) {128) {517
Carrying amount:
At 31 December 2011 1838 82 88 358
At 31 December 2012 207 79 60 346

Net tangible assets held under finance leases at
31 Decarmber 2012 amount to €3 rillion (2011 €3

million)

2012 2011

£€m €m

Balance at 1 January 356 358
Effect of movements in fareign exchange - 1
Share of results of associates {53) 38
Dwidend distribution (38) (40)
Change in ownership interest and other changes {11) {1)
Transfers to assets classfied as held for sale (3) -
Balance at 31 December 251 356

Investments in associates include Grupo Antena 3
and RTLH

In Dacember 2011, Grupo Antena 3 and La Sexta
signed an agreement for the merger of the two
broadcasting companies This was approved by the
companies’ Boards and Sharaholders’ Meetings
and, following final regulatory approval, La Sexta
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Share of resufis
of associates

186 RTL GROUP

was absorbed into Grupo Antena 3 in October
2012 The transaction qualified as a business com-
binatton since Grupo Antena 3 ganed the control of
La Sexta La Sexta's sharshclders receved 7 per
cent of the share capital of Grupo Antena 3, In ex-
change for all assets and labilites of La Sexta The
stock pnce of Grupo Antena 3 on the Madnd stock
exchange at the date of the formal approval of the
transaction was €3 37 In consideration for this
transaction, Grupc Antena 3 dehvered 1,181,296
treasury shares and issued 14,620,000 new shares
(€49 million), of which 1,181,296 shares are without
rnght to dmdends dunng a pened of two years

La Sexta shareholders will receive an additional 7
per cent of Grupo Antena 3 in a graduated manner
and at the Iatest n June 2017 through the delvery

by Grupo Antena 3 of a fixed number of treasury
shares (15,818,704) held by Grupo Antena 3 at
31 December 2012 Shouid the target of earnings
before taxes duning the penod 2012 fo 20186 not,
or parbally not, be reached by Grupo Antena 3,
La Sexta shareholders separately agreed that they
would have to pay all or part of these treasury
shares to Grupo Antena 3 at the closing pnce of
30 June 2017

The transaction resulted in & dilution of RTL Group's
interest generating a captal loss of €8 millon {(see
nota 7 3)

Investments in assoclates are tested for impairment
according to the same methadology applied for the
impaiment test of goodwill (see note 8 2)

212 2011
Perpetual Perpetual
growth Discount grawth Discount
rate rate rate rate
% & year % % a year %
Main assocrates
Grupo Antena 3 2.0 107 25 101
RTLII 25 8.3 20 86

The recoverable amount of Grupo Antena 3 has
been determined an the bhasis of the fair value less
costs to sell at 31 December 2012 RTL Group
management consequently recorded an impairment
loss amounting to €72 milkon against the carrying
value of Grupo Antena 3 reduced to €167 milkon

The recoverable amount of RTL Il has been deter-
mined on the basis of its value In use

The investment in the associate Ad Scciety has
been fully impaired at 31 December 2012 generating
a loss of €10 milkon on the basis of the current
performance and of the refusal of shareholders
to prowde additional funding unless the financal
performance will be improved An imparment loss
had already been recogmised i 2011 for an amount
of €8 milion

2012 2014
€m €m

Share of result after tax 29 44
Impairmenit of nvestments in associates (82) (6)
(53) 38

ANNUAL REPGRT 2012

Grupo Antana 3 and RTL Il mainly contnindted in
2012 to the “Share of rasults of assocates” for €(66)
and €13 millon, respectively (2011 €20 and €13
million, respectively)

Some associates of the German radio business unit
holding 16 per cent In Racho Regenbogen have
been classiiied as asssts held for sale (€3 milion)




The summansed

financial information on
the mam associates of

the Group, on a 100 per
cent basis, is as follows:

Loans and other
financial assets

The movements

n availlable-for-sale
investments

are as follows:

Deferred tax assets
and kabiities

{1) Ot which

- &(3) milion (2011 €1 mBor}
relsted to cdenvaives on equty
mstruments

- €1 mdion (2011 €3 miiory

related to share ophions granted to

employees,
- €6 milion (2011 €(15) miliond re-
leted to effectve portion of changes

n far valye of cash ffow hedges,

- €8 miion {2011 €3 million) related
to changa in far vahse of cash flow
hedges transfarred to profit or loss

~ €6 nulion (2011 €nd milion)
ratated to dafined beneftt plan
acluanal gans/iosses), and

— E(1) mifior (2011 €(12) mitbar)
redatod to changa n fan vekn
of avedable-for sale rvestments

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Profit for Interast

Country of Assets Liabilibes Equity Revenue the year held

2012 incorpemtion €m €m €m €m €m %
Grupo Antena 3 Spain 1,174 238 336 741 32 205
ATL 2 GmbH & Co KG Germany 109 60 49 2B5 37 358
Profit for Interest

Country of Assets Labilites Equity Revenue the year held

2011 ncorperation €m €m €m €m €m %
Grupo Antena 3 Spain 783 489 204 805 a3 217
RTL 2 GmbH & Co KG Germany 108 62 46 280 36 358

Based on the published share pnce at 31 December
2012, the market capitalisation of 100 per cent of
Grupo Antena 3 amounts to €880 millon, 1e €39
per share (2011 €882 milion, 18 €4 65 per share)

2012 2011

€m €m

Available-for-sale nvestments (see nota 8 14 5) 116 106
Surplus of the defined benefit plans {see note 8 13} ] 5
Loans and other financial assets 86 138
208 249

On 13 January 2012, Groupe M6 disposed of its 9 1
per cant Interest In Summit Entertainment following
the sale of the studio to Lons Gate RTL Group
has recognised a capital gan from the disposal of
€20 millon presented In “Financial results other than
interest” {ses note 7 5} and recenved a O 4 per cant
interest in Lions Gate This avallable-for-sale nvest-
ment 1s listed on the New York Stock Exchange and
presented in level 1 according to the IFRS7 guidance

“Loans and other financial assets” include €20 mil-
lion placed dunng the first half of 2012 under an es-
crow accaount by the Footbail Club des Girondins de
Bordeaux for the benefit of the city of Bordeaux
This amount bears mterest of 1 6 per cent per an-
num up uniii the delivery of the new stadium, which
IS expected In 2015 At that tme the amount will be
paid to the partrers in charge of the construciion

A reversal of impairment loss has been recorded in
2012 for an amount of €1 million 2011 € nil muthon)

2012 2011

€m €m

Balance at 1 January 106 111
Net acquisitions and disposals 7 4
Change in far vaiue 14 (1}
Imparment iosses and other changes 11) (8)
Balance at 31 December 116 106
2012 2011°

€m €m

Deferred tax assets 377 361
Deferred tax habiliies {62) (57}
315 304

2012 2011

£€m €m

Batance at 1 January 304 373
Incame tax expense {continuing operations) {6) (14}
income tax income/(expense} ({discontinued operations) - 2
Income tax credited/(charged) to equity (1) 17 (20)
Change in consaolidation scope - (37)
Balance at 31 December 315 304

Ra presentod (sea note 8.2}
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The Group has deductible temporary differences carry forwards to the extent that realisation of the re-
onginating from an intra-group transaction which wall lated tax bensfit through the future taxable profits
mainly reverse dunng the next seven years are probable The Group has unrecognised tax loss-

es of £5,370 milon (2011 €5,297 millicn) to carry
Unrecognised deferred tax assets amount to € 1,557 forward against future taxable income which relate
millon at 31 December 2012 {2011 €1,523 mullion) to Hungary and Luxembourg (2011 Luxembourg
Deferred tax assets are recognised on tax losses only) and have no expiry date

{Chargad)/
Balance at credited to Charged Transfers ~ Balance at
1 January income to and other 31 Dacember
2012 statement souity changes 012
Deferred tax assets €m €m €m €m €m
The movement in
deferred tax assets and Intangible assets 159 {20) - = 138
frabilittes during Programme nghts 132 20 - - 152
the year s as follows: Property, plant and equipment 1 1 - — 2
Provisions 75 4 6 - 85
Tax losses (sse note 7 6) 44 B8 - - 39
Others 19 (6} 25 - 38
Set off of tax {69) - - (9) {78)
361 (6 " (9 377
{Gharged)/

Balance at credited 10 Charged Transfers Balance at
1 January ingome 1 and other 31 December
2012 statement equity changes 2
Deferred tax liabilitea €m €m €m €m £m
Intangible assets {70 n - - (71}
Property, plant and equipment 17 2 — o) (18
Provisions N {1) - - {8)
Others {32) - (14) 1 {45)
Set off of tax 69 - - ] 78
{57) - (14) 9 {62)

{Charged}/
Balance at credited to Charged Change in Transters Balance at
1 Jarwary meome to consolidatran and other 3t Decamber
2011 statement squity SCOpEe changes 2011
Deferred tax assats €m £€m €m €m €m €m
Intangible assets 217 (24} - (35) 1 159
Programme nghts 118 13 - - 1 132
Property, plant and equipment 1 - - - - 1
Provisions 70 {1} - - ] 75
Tax losses (seenote 7 6) 52 1) - 2 1 44
Others 22 18 (17N 1 (5) 19
Set off of tax {85) - - - (4) (69)
415 {1) 17) {36} - 361

(Chargec)/
Balance at creditad to Charged Change in Transfers Balance at
1 January INCOMY 1o consalidation and other 31 December
2011 statement equity scope changes 2011
Deferred tax fizbilities £m €m £m €m €m €m
Intangible asssts (68} (1 - - 4] 6]
Property, plant and equipment (18) 1 - - - (17
Provisions (6) - - - {1} jt4]
Qthers (15) (11) (3) {1} (2) 32
Set off of tax 65 - - - 4 69
(42) (11) (3) (1) - {57)

Deferred tax assets and kabilities are offset against deferred taxes on termporary differences 1s mostly
each other i they relate to the same tax authonty expected to be recovered or settled more than
and meet the cntena of offsetting The term of the 12 months from the balance sheet date
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8. 7.
Current
programme nghts

Accounts receivable and
other financial assets

* Re-presented (sea note 6 2.)
{1} inchudfing accrued nterests

Cash and cash
equivalents

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINARCIAL STATEMENTS

2012 2011
Vatuation Valuaton
Gross value allowamice Netvalus  Gross value allowance Net valus
Em €m £m €m €m €m
{Co-)productions 354 {314) 40 344 (313) kY|
TV programmes 54 - 54 55 - 55
Other distnbution and
broadcasting nghts 813 {251} 562 793 (223) 570
Sub-total programme nghts 1,221 (565) 656 1,192 (536) 656
{Co-Jproductions and programmes
In progress 142 (@) 133 154 (6} 148
Advance, payments on {co-)productions,
programmes and rights 118 {1} 117 123 - 123
Sub-total programme
nghts in progress 260 {10) 250 277 8) 271
1,481 (575) 906 1,469 {542) 927
Addstions and reversals of valuation allowance have
been recorded for €(107) million and € 60 milion re-
spectively In 2012 (2011 €(80) mikon and €64 mil-
lion respectrvely)
2012 2011°
Under Over Under Over
1 yoar 1 year Total 1 year 1 ysar Totat
£€m Em £€m €m €m €m
Trade accounts recevable 1,102 5 1,107 1,002 6 1,008
Accounts recevable from associates 22 - 22 22 — 22
Prepatd expenses 98 - 98 79 2 81
Fair value of derivative assets 20 22 42 44 52 96
Current deposit with shareholder {1}
{seenote101) 426 - 426 589 - 589
Cther current financial assets
(seenota2331) 82 - 82 2 - 2
Account recewvable from shareholder in
relation with PLP agreement
{see note 10 1) 122 - 122 209 - 209
Other accounts recevable 133 4 137 121 3 124
2,005 31 2,036 2,068 63 2,131

Addittons and reversals of valuation allowance have
been recarded for €{(32) millon and €22 million re-
spectively In 2012 (2011 €(30) mihon and €21 mil-
lion respectively}

2012 2011

€m €m
Cash in hand and at bank 204 133
Fixed term deposits {under three months) 225 175
Other cash equivalents 221 393
Cash and cash equivalents {excluding bank overdrafts} 650 701
Cash and cash equwalents {excluding bark overdrafts) 650 701
Bank overdrafts {see note 8 10) (5 (1)
Cash and cash equivalents 645 700

"Othar cash equivalents” include money market
funds for €221 milion (2011 €293 milion}

The current deposit with the shareholder 1s present-
ed In accounts recevable (see note 8 8}
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Loans and
bank overdrafis

Term and debt
repayment schedule:

Accounts payable

190 RATL GROUP

2012 2011 2012 2011
Current habilities €m €m Non-cwrrent liabilities €m €m
Bank overdrafts 5 1 Leasing habilittes 5 2
Bank loans payable 3 8 QOther non-current loans payable 8 9
Leasing liabilities 2 1 13 11

Other current loans payable 6 32

16 42
Total
Under 1-5 Over carymg
1 year years S5 years amount
2012 €m €m €m €m
Bank overdraft S - - 5
Bank loans payable 3 - - 3
Leasing habilities 2 5 - 7
Other loans payable 6 3 5 14
16 8 5 29

2011
Bank overdraft 1 - - 1
Bank loans payable 8 - - 8
Leasing habilihes 2 1 - 3
Other loans payable 31 9 1 41
42 10 1 53
2012 2011
Carrent accounts payable €m £€m
Trade accounts payable 1,271 1,165
Amounts due to associates 3 2
Empioyee benefits liabiity 141 159
Deferred income 121 106
Social securily and cther taxes payable 75 87
Farr value of denvative habtities 13 14
Account payable to sharehalder in relation with PLP agreernent (see note 10 1)} 191 278
Qther accounts payable 341 363
2,156 2,154
202 2011
1-5 Over 1-5 Qver 5

years Syears Total years years Total
N t it €m €m £€m €m €m €m
Trade accounts payahle 48 6 54 46 8 54
Employee benefits hability 32 180 212 1 162 163
Deterred income 2 1 3 6 2 8
Far value of denvative liabilities 6 - 6 2 - 2
Other accounts payable 28 16 44 79 13 92
116 203 319 134 185 319
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Provisions

Provisions other
than post-employment
benefiis

Post-employment
benefits

{1} Ofwhich defined contnbutions pian

for €9 maign (2017 €7 miory

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Onergus QOther

Restructunng Libgatons camtracts ProviSons Tatal
€m €m €m €m €£m
Balance at 1 January 2012 4 121 108 22 255
Provistons charged/(credited)
to the income statement
- Additions 4 41 73 8 128
- Reversals - (16) {10} 3 (29)
Provisions used during the year 3 (35) {50} {3) {91)
(Other changes - 2 1 2) 1
Balance at 31 December 2012 5 113 122 22 262

The provisions mamnty relate to the following

® Provisions for itigations correspand to the Group's
best estimate of the expected future cash outfiow
related to disputes ansing from the Group's activi-
ties No further information 15 disclosed as it may
harm the Group's position,

a “QOnerous contracts” manly compnse provsions
made by Mediengruppe RTL Deutschland for €76
milion {2011 €46 mifion} and €39 milion by
Groupe M6 {2011 €55 million) n relation to the
supply of programmes, most of which are sporis

programmes QOut of €73 mithon of provisions re-
corded dunng the year, €31 millon were charged
to profit or loss as a result of the significant decline
In the advertising market over the Ife of several
sports nghts contracts The single most significant
charge of €17 million relates to the Formula 1 con-
tract for the German temtory which runs unti the
end of 2015 Should the expected downturn in ad-
vertising Income not matenalise to the extent as-
sessed by the management, the balance of the
onerous contracts provisions n the next financial
year might be adjusted

22 2011
£€m €m
Current 219 238
Non~current 43 17
262 255
2012 2011
€m €m
Balance at 1 January 99 94
Provisions charged/(credited) to the income statement
- Addtions (1) 21 19
- Reversals {1) -
Prowvisions used during the year (1) {17) (15}
Actuanal fosses directly recognised in equity 30 -
Transfer to habilities directly assaciated with non-current assets
classthied as held for sale - {3)
Other changes 1 4
Balance at 31 December 133 99

*Post-employment benefits™ compnse proviston for
dafined benefit obligatons (see note 8 13} for €129
million (2011 €95 milkon) and prowsion for other
employee benefits for €4 milhon (2011 €4 milion}

2012 2011

€m €m

Current 2 2
Non-current 131 a7
133 99
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Post-employment benefits

RTL Group operates or participates in a number of
defined benefit and defined contnbution plans
throughout Eurcpe These plans have been set up
and are operated in accardance with natonal laws
and regulations A descnption of the pnncipal de-
fined benefii plans of the Group s grven below

Belgium

Employees of RTL Belgium participate in a defined
benefit plan insured with the Insurance company
AXA, which provides pension benefits to members
and ther dependants on retirement and death The
assets of the nsurance contract are not segregated
but mutualised within the global assets of the insur-
ance company ("Branche 217} A guaranteed inter-
est rate 1s provded by AXA

France

Groupe M6, Ediradio, ID and IP France operate
retirement indemnity plans, which by law, provide
lump sums to employees on retirement The lump
sums are based on service and salary at date of
termination of employment in accordance with
the applicable collective agreerment The Ediradio, ID
retrernent indemnity plan 1s partly funded by an
insurance contract with AXA Edrradio also partic-
pates In a defined benefit plan which prowdes
pension benefits to members on retrement This
plan s partly funded by an msurance contract with
AXA. The assets of the nsurance contract are not
segregated but mutualised within the global assets
of the insurance company A guarantsed interast
rate 1s provided by AXA.

Germany

Employess of UFA Berlin Group (including UFA Fern-
sehproduktion, UFA Entertainment, UFA Film & TV
Produktion}, Universum Film, Grundy Light Enter-
tainment, Teamworx Television & Film, AVE Horfunk-
beteligung, UFA Film & Fernsehen and RTL Group
Deutschland participate in an unfunded common
group retirement plan which 1s defined benefit in na-
ture The company Grundy UFA TV Produktions has
a partly funded plan Each employer which partici-
pates in this plan has separately identrfiable liabilites

RTL Telewision and 1P Deutschiand operate ther
own retirement arrangerments 1P Deutschland spon-
sors indmdual plans for five former employees, pro-
viding defined pension benefits to each employes at
retirament

RTL Telewvision sponsors indvidual plans for two
employees and two former employees, providing
defined pension benefits to each employee at retire-
ment in addition, a number of employess participate
In a support fund providing pension benefits to mem-
hers and ther depsndants on retrernent and death

The plan of RTL Television 1s partly funded by a kfe
insurance contract with AXA The assets of the in-
surance contract are not segregated but mutualsed
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within the global assets of the insurance company A
guaranteed Interest rate 1s provided by AXA

Luxembourg

Employees of CLT-UFA, RTL Group and Broadcast-
ing Center Europe participate in a defined bensfit
plan, which provides pension benefits to members
and ther dependants on retirerent, death and disa-
biity GLT-UFA, RTL Group and BCE set up a prow-
sion for the unfunded retrement benefit plan Death
and disabilty are insured with Cardif Lux Vie

United Kingdom

FremantieMedia Group Limited 1s the principal em-
ployer of the Fremantle Group Pension Plan {*the
Fremantie Plan”}, which was established on 29 De-
cember 2000 and was, pnor ta 1 Septernber 2008,
known as the RTL Group UK Pension Plan The Fre-
mantle Plan prowdes both defined benefit and de-
fined contnbution benefits Plan assets are held for
both sactions of the plan and are manly composed
of equity instruments




The amounts recognised
w the statement of
financial position are
determined as follows*

The movement in
the present value of
funded/ unfunded
defined benefit
obiigation over the
year s as follows:

The movement n the
fair value of plan assets
of the year is as follows:

Plan assets are
compnsed as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2012 2011
€m €m
Present value of funded obligations 132 105
Fair value of plan assets {101) (85)
31 20
Present value of unfunded obligations 92 70
Net hahility 123 90
Assets (seanota B5) 6 5
Prowvisions (see note 812 2) 129 a5
Expenience adjustments on assets gains/ (losses) 3 (2)
Experence adjustments on provisians {gains)/lossas 1 1
2012 2011
€m €m
Balance at 1 January 175 168
Current service cost 7 7
Interest cost {see note 7 4) 9 8
Actuanal gains/ (losses) a5 {1)
Employee contributions 1 1
Benefits paid by employer # 4
Benefits paid out of the plan assets (2 {2)
Foreign exchange differences 3 1
Transfer to llabiliies directly associated with non-current assets
classified as hald for sale - (3
Balance at 31 December 224 175
2012 201t
€m €m
Balance at 1 January 85 80
Expected return on plan assels {see note 7 4} 4 4
Actuanal gains/({losses) 2 (2)
Employer contnbutions 9 5
Employee contributions 1 1
Benefits paid out of the plan assets (2) 2)
Settlements - 2)
Foreign exchange differences 2 1
Balance at 31 December 101 85
2012 z20m
£m €m
Equrty instruments 59 48
Debt instruments 37 32
Property 2 2
{Other 3 3
Fair value of plan assets 101 85

The actual return on plan assets was €6 million
(2011 €2 million)

Expected contnbuhons to post-employment benefit
nlans for the year ending 31 December 2013 arg €7
milion
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The amounts recogmsed
in the income statement
are as follows.

The pnncipal actuanal
assumptions used were
as follows-

194 RTL GROUP

2012 2011
€m €m

Current service cast 7 7
Total included in employee benefits expenses (see note 7.2 1) 7 7
2012 2011

€m €m

Interest cost 9 8
Expected return on plan assets 4 {4
Total included in net interest expense (see note 7 4.) 5 4

The cumulated amount of the actuanal losses rec-
ognised in equity at 31 December 2012 1s €{47) mil-
ton (2011 €(14) million}

2012 2011
% a year % a ywar

Discount rate 2.80-4 70 4 75-510
Expected return on plan assets 2.80-4.70 350-450
Long-term inflation rate 1.80-2.30 180-250
Future salary increases 2.15-4.50 225-450
Future pension increases 1.80-2 85 180-305

Equity

8. 14. 1.
Share capital
At 31 December 2012, the subscnbed capital
amounts to € 192 mifion (2011 €192 milkon) and 1s
represented by 154,787,554 (2011 154,787,554}
fully pasd-up ordinary shares, without nominal value
All shares have the same nghts and entitlements

Treasury shares

The reserve for the Company's own shares compris-
es the cost of the Company's shares held by the
Group At 31 December 2012, the Group holds
1,168,701 own shares (2011 1,168,701) at a cost
of €44 milion (2011 €44 million)

Currency translation reserve

The currency transtation reserve compnses all for-
eign exchange differences ansing from the transla-
tion of the financial statements of foreign operations,
reserves on associatas for foraign exchange transla-
tion differences and cash flow hedaing, as well as
loans designated to form part of the Group’s net in-
vestment in spacific undertakings as repayment of
those loans Is not anticipated within the foreseszble
future

Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve {equity attnbutable to non-con-
troling interests included) compnses the effeciive
portion of the cumulative net change in the farr value
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of cash flow hedging instruments related to hedged
transactions that have not yet occurred

Between 31 December 2011 and 31 Dscember
2012, the hedging reserve decreased by €46 milkon
before tax effect This consists of

a Decrease by €12 millon due to foreign exchange
contracts that existed at 2011 year end and which
ware stll hedging ofi-balance sheet commitments
at 31 Decermber 2012,

® Decrease by €26 million due to foreign exchange
contracts that existed at 2011 year end but which
were incorporated in the cost of tha hedged item
and subsequently consumed and refeased in 2012
from the hedging reserve to Income statement,

® Decrease by €8 million due to foreign exchange
contracts hedging new off-balance sheet commit-
ments

Between 31 December 2010 and 31 December
2011, the hedging reserve increased by € 45 milion
beforg tax effect This consists of

= [ncrease by €13 mulion due to foreign exchange
contracts that existed at 2010 year end and which
were stil hedging off-balance sheet commitments
at 31 December 2011,

& Decrease by €9 millon due to foreign exchange
contracts that existed at 2010 year end but which
were incorporated in the cost of the hedged item
and subsequently consumed and released in 2011
from the hedging reserve to income statement,

s increase by €41 milkon due to foresgn exchange
contracts hedging new off-balance shest commut-
ments




Revaluation reserve
The revaluation reserve includes

® The cumulative change net of tax In the far value
of avallable-for-sale Investments (see note 8 5} un-
tl the investment I1s derecognised or impaired for
€41 million (2011 €21 milian},

@ The curnulative Increase n the fair value of the m-
tangible assets and property, plant and equipment
followsng the gans of control of Groupe M6 and M-
RTL and the acquisition of associates achieved In
stages (2012 €54 million, 2011 €54 mifhon)

Dmdends
The dwvidends tin respect of 2011 amounted to €5 1
per share, or €789 milion

On 24 February 2013, the Board of Directors of
RTL Group SA decided to distnbute an intenm divi-
dend, compnsing an ordinary dividend of €5 1 per
share and an extraordinary dvidend of €54 per
share

NOTES T@ THE CONSOLEDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board of 24 February 2013 also approved anew
dwvidend policy going forward, targeting a pay-out
ratio of 50 to 75 per cent of the adjusted consokdat-
ed net profit attnbutable to ATL Group shareholders
within the hmit of the Company’s distributable
reserves

At the Annual General Meeting of RTL Group SA on
17 Apnl 2013, a dmdend n respect of 2012 of
€10 5 per share (of which €5 4 as extracrdinary div-
idend) is to be proposed These financial statements
do not reflect the final proposed dmdsend payable,
which will be accounted for as an appropnation of
retained earnings In 2612

Share options

Groupe M6 Share Option Plan

Groupe M6 has establshed employee share option
plans open to directors and certain employess with-
n the group The number of options granted to par-
tcipants 1s approved by the Superaiscry Board of
Metropole Téléwsion SA m accordance with the au-
thonsation given by the General Mesting of Share-
holders

Number of
options nrhally Remaining Contractual kfe
granted options of options
Grant date  {in thousands) {in thousands) Vestng condiions {1
The terms and conditions
of the grants are Stock options plans
as follows, whereby all 06—2005 635 50 - 4 years of service 7 years
options are settled 06-2006 73675 395 25 4 years of service 7 years
by physical delivery of 05-2007 827 60 519 50 4 years of service 7 years
shares- 05-2008 883 83 639 36 4 years of service 7 years
Total 3,083.58 1,554.11
Maximym
number of
frge shareg. Remaming
granted {in options
Grant date  thousands) (2} {in thousands) Vesting conditions
Free shares plans
03-2010 2200 - 2 years of service
2 years of service +
072010 37778 - performance conditions
2 years of service +
12-2010 48 00 -~ performance condittons
{1) Contractusl ife of ophons corre~ 2 years of service +
sponds to the vesting perod i e, 07-2011 367 82 31898 performance conditions
years) hree {which
%s ?;ftr;ne f:mT dunng 2 years of service +
which the ppions can be exercsed) 12-2011 37 50 3350 performance conditions
@ mememm 2 years of service +
mr?u sg‘ltfic::tc;exceeded 07-2012 487 75 487 75 performance conditions
Such number could be reckiced to Total 1,340.85 840.23
i of obyectivas are nol met
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Movemenls in the
number of share options
are as follows:

Shares options
outstanding

(in thousands} at the
end of the year have
the following terms-

196 RTL GROUP

The Free Shares Plans are subject to parformance
condrtions except the plan at 25 March 2010 A de-
scnption by plans 1s gven below

® The plans at 27 July 2010, 26 July 2011 and 27
July 2012 are subject to Groupe M6 achieving its
target growth 10 net consolidated result over the
penods 2010, 2011 and 2012 respectively,

= The plans at 22 December 2010 and 2011 are
subject to the Ventadis area achievng s targst

growth in operating result over the penaods 2010,
2011 and 2012 respectively

The pnce to be pad to exercise each of the remain-
ng optons 15 the average value of shares in
Metropole Téléwision on the Pars Stock Exchange
over the 20 trading days preceding the date of grant
with the exception of the management free share al-
location plan

Average Average

exarcise prica exercise prce
In thousands of optigns 1 € per share 2012  in € per share 2011
Options outstanding at the beginning of the year 21 2,093 22 2,722
Options exercised dunng the year - - 15 3)
Options expired dunng the year 21 (539) 24 626)
Options outstanding at the end of the year 21 1,554 21 2,093

Approximately 840,000 frea shares are still exercisa-
ble at ihe end of the year agamst 824,000 at the be-
gnning of the year which have been reduced by
16,000 due to the performance 488,000 free shares
were granted dunng the year with 381,000 being ex-
ercised and 65,000 being forfeited

Exarcise Number Number of
price of options options
Expiry data n € 2012 201

Stock options plans
2012 19 84 - 368
2013 24 60 395 446
2014 27 52 520 576
2015 1473 639 702
1,554 2,093

Free shares plans

2012 - 427
2013 352 397
2014 488 -
840 824
Total 2,394 2,917
QOut of which exercisable 1,341 1,859
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The market price of Métropale Télewision shares on
the Pans Stock Exchange was €11 82 at 31 De-
cembar 2012 (€11 53 at 31 December 2011)

The farr value of services received In return for share
options granted 1s measured by reference to the far
value of the share options granted The estimate of
fair value of the services receved 1s measured basad
on a binomial mode! Fres shares ars valued at the
share pnce at the date they are granted less the dis-
counted dwdends that employees cannot receive
dunng the vesting pencd
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Hrstorical Risk-frae Expected Emy
Share pnce Stnke pnce volatiity (3) mterest rate return 2012 2011
Grant date ne n€ % % @ year % a year Option lite €m €m
Stock options plans.
06/06/2006 24 63 24 60 431 402 381 7 years - =
02/05/2007 26 55 27 52 378 440 399 7 years - g2
06/05/2008 1522 1473 400 439 630 7 years - 06
00 08
Free shares plans
28/07/2009 1300 na na 249 490 2 years - 13
23/12/2009 18 02 na na 142 401 2 years - 04
25/03/2010 18 84 na na 100 504 2 years - 02
27/07/2010 17 66 na na 100 538 2 years 15 26
22/12/2010 18 22 na na 113 549 2 years 02 03
26/07/2011 1575 na na 156 6 35 2 years 2.2 10
22/12/2011 1140 na na 102 9860 2 years 0.2 -
27/07/2012 1151 na na 024 950 2 years Q7 -
48 58
Total 48 66
(3) Histoncal volatity retaned was
demanned on the basis of a penod
equal to the matuiy of gsch plan

Transactions on non-controlling interests
These transachons manly relate to

2012

Transactions on non-controling interests without a

change in control

®[n 2011, Groupe M6 entered into a share buyback
programme Approval was given to the company
to buy back shares on the open market over a
24-month peniod up to a maximurm of 5 per cent of
the subscribed capital Groupe M6 has acquired
own shares for its free share allocation plan and In
respect of the iquidity programme  For the penod
ended 31 December 2012, 1,006 thousand shares
have been acquired (of which 480 thousand from
Bayard d'Antin SA} and 500 thousand cancelled
The related outflows amount for the Group to €12
milkon

Transactons on non-controling nterests with a
change in control
= Alpha (ses nota 4 )

2011

Transactions on non-controlling interests without a

change i control

= 0On 25 July 2011, RTL Group acqured the remain-
ing 26 per cent of the share capital of RTL Croatia
from ths non-controfing shareholders for an
amount of €15 3 millon The transaction resulted
in a cash-out 0 20111 of €12 6 milkion and impact
on equity attnbutable to BTL shareholders of €13
rmihion,

®n December 2011, RTL Group unilaterally in-
creasad the capital of Alpha Media Group Ltd (see
note 4 ),

% M-RTL (see note 6 2},

= AT Nederland {see note 6 2},

aFollowing the approval to enter into a share
buyback programme, Groupe M6 acqured and
cancelled 2,577 thousand shares {of which 960
thousand fram Bayard d'Antin SA) for the penod
ended 31 December 2011 Groupe MG acquireg
own shares for Ifs free share allocation plan and in
raspect of the iquidity programme The related
outflows amounted for the Group to €20 millon

Transactions on non-controfing interests with a
change in control

» Buienradar (seenote 6 2,

» SlamiFM (see Dutch Radios, note 6 2 )

Denvatives on equity instruments
Denvative instruments relate to forward transactions
by Groupe M6 on Métropole Téléwvision SA shares
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E} COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

9. 2.
Operating leases
Non-cancellable
operating fease rentals
are as follows.

198 RTL GROUP

2m2 2011

€m €m
Guarantees and endarsements given 43 123
Contracts for purchasing rights, (co-)productions and programmes 2,039 2171
Operating leases 498 527
Purchase obligations in respect of transmission and distribution 215 199
QOther long-term contracts and commitments 148 208
Of which discontinued operations Alpha - 18

The Group has nvestmeants in unhrmated hability ent-
tes In the event these entities make losses, the
Group may have to participate to the entire amount
of losses, even If these entites are not wholly owned

Certain UK companies in the FremantleMedia group
have elected to make use of new audit exempton
regulations for non-dormant subsidiaries introduced
at the end of 2012 In order to fulfil the conditions
set out In the regulations, the Company has given a
statutory guarantee of all outstanding habilities to
which the subsidiaries are subject at the end of the
financial year to 31 December 2012 A full kst of the
compantes who have made use of the audit exemp-
tion 1s presented in note 13

Guarantees and endorsements given

On 23 Juty 2010, Five Group was sold to Northern &
Shell, a group domicied In the United Kingdom The
term of the sale agreement stipulated that BTL Group
contnues to provide guarantees to third parttes on
behalf of Five Group Narthern & Shell has prowded
back-to-back guarantees to RTL Group The related
amounts stand at €23 million at 31 December 2012
{2011 €59 millon) (see note 4 )

2012 2011

Under 1 1-5 Over Under 1-5 Over
year yoars 5 years Total 1 year years 5years Tetal
Lease payments €m €m €m £m em €m €m £€m
Leasing of satellite transponders 1 55 38 04 19 38 1A 68
Qther operating leases 63 176 165 404 71 192 196 459
64 231 203 498 90 230 207 527
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“Other aoperating leases” mainly relates to the rental
of offices, buldings and equipment in Germany,
France and the United Kingdom




Purchase obligations in respect

of transmission and distribution

These obligations result from agreements with pro-
viders of services related to the terrestrial and cable
transmission and distnbution of the analogical and
digital signals of the RTL Group TV channels and ra-
dio statons

Other long-term contracts and commitments
The Group has “Other long-term contracts and
commitments” armounting to €148 miflion at 31 De-
cember 2012 (2011 €208 rmulian}

Long-term contracts include contracts for services,
agraaments to purchase assets or goods, and com-
mutments to acquire icencss other than audiovisual
nghts and television programming that are enforcea-
ble and legally binding and that speciy all signficant
terms Other commitments refate to sale and lsase
back transactions In respect of FremantieMedia

FremantieMedia has arrangements for a remaining
penod of five years In relation to safe and lease back
transactions for an amount of €45 milion (2011 €58
milion) Under these arrangements, FremantleMedia
has sold programme nghts to a special purpose
vehicle and simultaneously leased back the assets
under a finance lease arrangememt The cash
received 1s placed In a “restncted bank account” at
A-rated banks in order to satisfy the lease payments,
and s not considered as an asset in accordance
with SIC 27 Income receved by FremantieMedia
was recognised in the iIncome statement when an-
tening into these arrangements

Licence agreement

In the course of their actvities, several Group com-
panies benefit from licence frequency agreements,
which comrnit the Group in vanous ways depending
upan the legal regulation n force In the counires
concerned

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMERTS
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K8 RELATED PARTIES

200 RTL GROUP

Identity of related parties

At 31 Decamber 2012, the pnncipal sharehalder of
the Group s Bertelsmann Gapital Holdng GmbH
{(“BCH") {92 3 per cent) The remander of the Group's
shares are publicly hsted on the Brussels and
Luxembourg stock exchanges The Group also has a
related party relatonship with its associates, jomt
ventures and with its directors and executive officers

Transactions with shareholders

Sales and purchases of goods and services
Dunng the year the Group made sales of goods and
services, purchases of goods and services to Ber-
telsmann Group amounting to €7 milkon (2011 €7
milion) and €21 mition {2011 €20 mdlion), respec-
tively At the year-end, the Group had trade accounts
recevable and payable due from/to Bertelsmann
Group amounting to €6 million (2011 €6 mullion}
and €5 milllon (2011 €5 million), respectively

Deposits Bertelsmann SE & Co. KGaA

With the view to investng its cash surplus, RTL Group
SA enterad in 2006 with Bentelsmann SE & Co
KGaA (previcusly Bertelsmann AG) into a Deposit
Agreement, the man terms of which are

= [nterest rates are based on an overmght basis on
EONIA plus 10 basis ponts, or on a one to
six month basis, EURIBOR plus 10 basis points,
= Bertelsmann SE & Co KGaA grants to RTL Group
as secunty for all payments due by Bertelsmann
SE & Co KGaA a pledge on
u All shares of its wholly owned French subsidiary
Média Communication SAS,
u All shares of its wholly owned Spanish subsidiary
Madia Finance Holding SL,
® All its interests In the German imited hability part-
nership Gruner + Jahr AG & Co KG (73 4 per
cent stake),
= All shares ¢f its wholly owned English subsichary
Bertelsmann UK Ltd

The interests in Gruner + Jahr AG & Co KG and
shares of Bertelsmann UK Ltd have also bean grant-
ad as pledge by Bertelsmann SE & Co KGaA to
CLT-UFA SA, a subsidhary of KTL Group, in connec-
tion with the accounts receivable related to PLP and
Compensation Agreements as defined below

At 31 December 2012, the amount - pnncipal de-
positad amounts to €51 milion {2011 €113 million)
on an overnight basis and € 300 million (2011 €425
milion} on & five-month basis (2011 three-month
basis) The interest income for the year amounts to
€2 5 millon (2011 €8 milkon)

On 22 Decernber 2011, RTL Group Deutschland
GmbH, a Group compary, and Bertelsmann SE &
Co KGaA entered into an agreement related to the
deposit of surplus cash by RTL Group Peutschiand
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GmbH with the shareholder To secure the depostt,
Bertelsmann pledged to RTL Group Deutschland
GmbH #s aggregate current partnership interest in
Gruner + Jahr AG & Co KG as well as all additional
partnership interests in Gruner + Jahr it may create
or acqure At 31 December 2012, the four-month
deposit of RTL Group Deutschitand GmisH with Ber-
telsmann amounted to €75 millon (2011 €50 mil-
hon} The mterest mcome for the year amounts to
€0 5 milion (2011 € nil)

RTL Group SA has additionally entered into a Treas-
ury Agreement in North Arenca with Bertelsmann
Inc Interest rates are based on US Lsbor plus 10 ba-
sis ponts At 31 December 2012, the balance of the
cash pooling payabls amounts to € nil million (2014
cash pooling payable for €0 4 millon} The interest
ncome/expense for the year i1s below €1 milion
(2011 below €1 mullion)

Tax

On 26 June 2008, the Board of Directors of
RTL Group agreed to procesd with the tax pooling
of its indirect subsidiary RTL Group Deutschiand
GmbH {*RGD7) into BCH, a direct subsidiary of Ber-
telsmann SE & Co KGaA.

To that effect, RGD entered into a Profit and Loss
Poaling Agreement (“PLP Agreernent”) with BCH for
a six-year period starting 1 January 2008 Simulta-
necusly, Bertelsmann SE & Co KGaA entered into a
Compensation Agreement with CLT-UFA, a direct
subsidiary of RTL Group, prowiding for the payment
to CLT-UFA of an amount compensatng the above
profit transfer and an additional commission {*Com-
mission”} amounting to 50 per cent of the tax saving
based upon the taxable profit of RGD

Through these agreements, as from 1 January 2008,
Bertelsmann SE & Co KGaA and the RGD sub-
group of RTL. Group are treated as a single entity for
German income tax purposes

As tha PLP Agreement does not give any authonty
to BCH to instruct or control RGD, 1t affects neither
RTL Group nor RGD's abiity to manage therr busi-
ness, including their responsibility to optimise their
tax structures as they deem fit After six years, both
PLP and Compensation Agraements are rengwable
on a yearly basis RGD and CLT-UFA have the nght
to request the early terrminztion of the PLP and Com-
pensation Agreemsnts under certan condiions

In the absence of specific guwdance n IFRS,
RTL. Group has elected to recognise current income
taxes related to the RGD sub-group based on the
amounts payable to Bertelsmann SE & Co KGaA
and BCH as a result of the PLP and Compensation
Agresments descrbed above Deferred income
taxes conttrue to be recognised, based upon the
enacted tax rate, in the consolidated financial state-
ments based on the amounts expected to be settled




by the Group m the future The Commission, being
economically and contractually closely related to the
Compensaton, s accounted for as a reduction of
the tax due under the Agreements

At 31 December 2012, the balance payable to BCH
amounts to €191 million (2011 €278 milhon) and
the balance recewable from Bertelsmann SE & Co
KGaA amounts to €122 mithon (2011 €209 rmiibon)

For the year ended 31 Decermnber 2012, the German
Income tax In relation to the tax pooling with Bertels-
mann SE & Co KGaA amounts to €140 milion
{2011 €142 milion} The Commission amounts to
€69 millon (2011 €69 million}

The UK Group relisf of Five Group {in 2011 only) and
FremantieMedia Group to Bertelsmann Group result-
ed In a tax income of €7 million (2011 €7 milion)

Transactions with associates and

joint ventures

The following transactions were carned oul
wrth associates and joini ventures:

Mz 201
£m €m

Sales of goods and services to

Associates 25 38

Jont ventures 25 23
50 61

Purchase of goods and services from

Associates 4 3

Joint ventures 9 9
13 12

Sales and purchases to and from associates and
jont ventures were camed out on commercial terms
and conditons and at market prices

Year-end balances ansing from sales and pur-
chases of goods and services are as follows.

2012 2011
€m €m
Trade accounts receivable from
Associates 20 20
Joint ventures 3 4
23 24
Trade accounts payable to
Associates 3 2
3 2

RTL il 1s a party In legal proceedings with a subsidi-
ary of RTL Group

NOTES T0 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Transactions with key management personnel
In addition to therr salanes, the Group also provides
non-cash bengfits to its key management personnel
{members of the Executive Committee), and contnb-
utes to a post-employment defined benefit plan on
its behalf

The key management personnel compensation 1S
as follows and reflects benefits {or the penod for
which the individuals held the Executve Commuttes
position

2012 2011

€m €m

Shaort-term benefits 74 63
Long-term benefits 25 12
g6 75

Directors’ fees

In 2012, a total of €0 5 millon {2011 €0 5 million}
was allocated in the form of attendance fees to the
non-executive members of the Board of Directors of
RTL Group SA and the committees that emanate
from 1t, with respact to ther functons within
RTL Group SA and other Group companies
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NODTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EXB INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

Country of Consolidation rata
ncorporation in 9%
2HH2 2011
The main joint ventures
are as follows: RTL Disney Fernsehen GmbH & Co KG Germany 50.00 50 00

Included i the consclidated financial statements are
the following items that represent the Group's mnter-
ests in the assets and habilities, income and expens-
es of the joint ventures

2012 2011
€m €m

Non-current assets 8 4
Current assets 50 50
Current habtlities (33) (33)
Net assets 25 21
2012 201t

€m €m

income 91 90
Expenses (71} {72}

Included n the consolidated financial statements are
the following items that represent the Group's inter-
ests in the commitments of the joint ventures

2012 2011

£m €m
Contracts for purchasing rights, (co-)productions and programmes 7 2
Operating leases 1 -
Other long-term contracts and commiments 17 g
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SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On 1 February 2013, FremantleMedia announced
that it 1s reviewing its FremantlsMedia Enterpnses
(FME) arm with a plan to create one new, stand-
alone, global dmsion focused on distnbuton and
kids and family entertainment  All remaining digital,
licensing, sponsorship and other ancillary actvities
previously undertaken by FME will be housed within
FremantieMedia's regional production operations In
addition, a new Digttal & Branded Entertainment di-
wision will be created to focus on the company’s glo-
bal digital and branded entertainment actvities The
proposed company structure wall  sigrificantly
strengthen FremantleMedia’s core business actvi-
ties while also better posittoning 1t to capitahse on
growth opportunities for the future

The Board of Drectors meeting on 24 February
2013 decided on the following

& The distrbutton of an intenm dividend amounting
to €16 bilion (see note 8 14 6) funded by the
Group’s net cash posttion and by debt in the form
of sharaholder loans from Bertelsmann prowded at
arm’s length terms and at current market condi-
tions The dwvidends will be pard on 7 March 2013,

u A changs 1 the Group's dmdend policy, resuiting
In a pay-out rato of between 50 and 75 per cent of
the adjusted consolidated net profit atinbutable to
RTL Group shareholders within the kmit of the
Company's distnbutable reserves

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ATL GROUP

ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GROUP UNDERTAKINGS

BROUP'S CONSELI- GROUP'S CONSOUI ROUFS CONSOL- GROUP'S CONSOLF
OWNER-  OATED OWNER-  DAVED OWIER-  DATED QWNER-  DATED
B P O oSNy an D e
LUXEMBOURG® AUSTRIA®
RTL Group SA M M IPA Plus (Osterresch) Verm tir
- - — e - - - Fermschwarbung GmbH 428 F a9 F
BELGIUM*
Home Shapping Service Belqigue SA 2 243 ﬁ @ 57 z F
ATLBeagum 84 77 ess F 658 F
So:ue-ié_ E:lmpemne d; Télev“a;ta ) ) ) ; o
Beigaque GIE @ 485 F @ 488 F
R B0t 5 el
CROATIA®
RTL Hrvatska d o o 997 F %97 F
CYPAUS™
Alpha Media Group Limited i - NG (19 687  F
FRANCE®
M SAS @ 464 F {3 481 F
C Productions SA @ 488 F [ 486 F
6t TV/WI SAS @ 48 F & 488 F
Foothall Club des Glrondins U ToTrs s T
de Bordeaux SASP (2} 48.5 F @ 485 F
él;ondms E:::arussmr;;;~ g‘AASU ) ) ] ) u4&£ l; [2u} 486 o l;
Glrundl-;'ls Henzons S;\SU o 2) ) 48.5. F. 2y 486 F
GMB 84S o 364 F Z ne
Home Shopping Service SA T @ aas £ @ a8s F
Immabilidrs 46D SAS 2 48  F @ 488 F
Immatibrs Mé SA B B T s  F (3§ 488  F
Les Fims de fa Suane Sarl T @ 46 F @ a6 F
LiveStmgeSAS @ s  F @ 488  F
M6 Bordemux SAS 1} 488 F 12 486  F
MG BoubquelaChaine SNG  ® - NG 1) 488 F
MB CommunicabonSAS ) 486  F (@ 488  F
MG Croatons SAS @ 488 F @ 486  F
MG Dévelcppement SASU ) 488  F @ 486 F
M Drffusiona SA T » sss F @& 46 F
M6 Brvertissement SAS " 4as F & 488 F
IGE Editions SA 2) 48.8 5 2 48(-; F-
MG Evenoments SA i T @ aas T £
M8 Films SA B s  F @ 46 F
M8 Foot SAS ) T @ sas  F @B e F
MS Génération/Ter SAS T T @m Tes F @ 48 F
MG lnteractons SAS @) 488 F 1@ 488  F
MG Publiche SASD @) 488 F @ 486 F
M6 Recréative SAS @ a8 F @ 488 F
MeShopSAS @ s F < me
MESwdoSAS @ a8s | F @ 488  F
Mo Thomatque SA T 7T T4wed F @ @5 F
ME Toulouss SAS " Twe  F @ ws  F
M6 Web SAS T T @ aas F o 486 F
Métrapote Production SA " @ s  F @ a6 F
Métropole Témnsion ~MESA [} 438 F o 488 F
P:hatergonddea.lsg T 2} 4&8. —F- (2)‘ 486. - F-
Monalburmphoto SAS ® 481 F @ 41 F
Panorabangue SAS " 23 P @ 243 P
Pans Premibre SAS T @ s F (@ 486  F
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BROADCASTING TV

NOTES TQ THE CONSDLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEDI wf' Téva SAS

Socigté Nuuvune da Chématogrsphll SA
{formar DIEM 2 SA)

Soae’.-lé Nouvaﬂs de Cinenatograprue SAS
Suuaia Nuuvdle de Dlstnbutlon SA
Smdln 89 Producﬂuns SAS

TCM Drolts Auﬁm\nme‘.s SNC
Tﬂtvmte Prnmouon SA

[l
'U.‘fli'ﬂ.‘ﬂnTl."ﬂn'ﬂ

LT

Unité 15 France SA

EROUPS CONSOL- GRAOUP'S CONSOL-

OWNER-  GATED OWNER-  DATED
BROADCASTING TV W S
GERMANY ——— - e e
Ad AuckencaGmbH e T e 249 E
arvalo systems S4M GmbH T m et
(former S4M Solutions For Madha GrmH) 19.9 £ 198 E
CBG Cologns Bmadtzsmg—(:mtar GmbH ) . o) 7- h uI; ~~99 ':'- F.
Cﬁpffs;GmbH(‘:n KG ) %7 F a7 F
Deita Advertsing Gt T wr F T eet F
EICartel Medn GmbHACo K& 388 E 358 €
Guta Zeten - Schlechte Zetten 7 7 ’
Verrna.rldungsgeseﬂschaft mbH 99.7 F 937 F
G—u;s-manc de HSS GmbH - DS.?T - E z NC
12 Muskprodaions und T T
Mus:kverlagssueﬂschaﬂ mbH e87 F 997 F
trfonstwork GmbH : Y N ; w7 F
P Demschland GmbH ) T T et £ “ea7 F
Madlmnrn Gu:ullschaﬂ fﬂr ﬁe—m;n-—.;é_ o - o T )
Kommunikatonsforschung moH 99.7 F a9 7 F
Netzathleten net G.mbH - i 89 '; o] '; F.
Norddech TV -7 T i ) oo
Pdeuklzonsgasdlschaft mbH 897 F 748 F
-t Nachrichtonfernsahen GmbH o w1 F  s97 F
Passion GmbH | %7 F Tag7 F
RTL Craatlon GmbH - - a9 '; : l; T =23 7: F
RTI.. Disney Fernsehen GmbH & Co KG 438 P T8 P
RTL Group Cable & Satefite GmoH @87 F 987 F
RTL Group Dewtschiand ) e T
Markenverwaltungs GmbH 89.7 F 987 F
HTL Hessen GmbH T et TFT T mey F
MHm;n;w;r;"n}mmrerﬁbH TTTT Tees T TR T ses F
RTL Interactive GmbH N o 89.1:" —F. ) 99"'; F
RTL Nord GmbH . " TR 597 F
RTL Televnsnon Gml;H . a9 7- F“ 997 F
ATLWESTGmbH ‘g F 748 F
F?T'ILZ'Femsnhe; ée"s::h;ﬂ;fur;ru"ng Gran h _——35.-8— o lg 35“3'.‘ é
FEn_EF;nsehen GmbH&CoT(G- T Tma T € Tass €
Unwersum Film GrigH T TTmr TF T wmr F
Vox Holding GrmbH . 807 F s97 F
VOX Televisian GmibH . 994 F 994 F
WuKennn?e—n—u;é:;bH— o 897 “‘[—': " a7 F
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HOTES TO THE GONSOLIDATED FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS

BROUP'S CONSOLK- GROUP'S CONSOLL- EAOUP'S CONSOU GROUP'S CONSOLF
OWNER-  DATED OWNER-  OATED OWNER-  DATED OWNER-  DATED
BROADCASTING TV N e 0 ware > e “™5 BROADCASTING TV o o D o S e )
GREECE” SPAIN®
Alpha Daryforiki Tieoras: SA 14 - NG (19 e97 F Antena 3 Gananas SLU (14 - NC & 217 €
T oo s Antena 3 de Telgwsian Colombia SA ) e € @ ne £
HUNGARY" h:;naa da Tciavlsmn SA T Eé) —20—.'.'; } E {6} 21 7: F:
Home Shapping Servics Hongris SA @ 485 F @} 485 3 Antena3Dvecto SAU @4 - Nc: ® 27 E
Kiub Interaktrv Kt (13 -7 N T® 87 | F  Amana3EvenmosSL @ 25 £ & 217 £
La Paz Média Holding Zt T SN @ w7 F Awnadmmssw T @ 25 £ @ 217 E
Magyar RTL Televind Zinkarlen ’ ) T AntanaSJucgus sy 77T T e Tws E ® 27 E
Mik3ddeszverytirsesdg ) w7 F & 7  F AntunaSMulhmed;a SLJ . TTT e s E @ =7 €
Koot S g mr k@ sy p AemSNwemssu @ @ms  E o N
Rfmekt~ ~ ~ "~ "7 @ w7 F® Wl F SfmTim::c:anmsa @ 206 E @© 217 E
AT Kebcltelewzo Kt & 997 F {5 w7 F Aires Adverising SLU T s E @ 217 £
Canal 3 Te|av1510n de Codomhna SA o {6} 4—.9- E- {8) 52 E.
INDLA® Ganal Media Radln Gaficia SLU T @ zs E ® 217 E
Big RTL BroadcastPvtid 90 P - M Canal Meda Hadm SAU_ T T e ms £ 217 £
Cordma Fanet 8L T @ w0a £ ® 109 £
LUXEMBOURG" Esiacmnes Radm-fu;lc;s-ae Aragon SAU ) A(GJ 20? ME- &) 21 ?- E-
Broadcasting Genter Ewropasa =~~~ =~ %7  F ®w7 F Gostion Audowsualde Caneras SL ) — & @ 43 €
ATLS 8A e e o ——— ,,,,,f 9_,.,, % - :54 ?”, _E éuad!ana«Produc“monesSA - o (6} B 50.5“ E. (6} 217~ ) E
RTL9SA8CosSEGS =~ .8 E = mMB € HolaTVAmenca SL o T e s E G 109 £
13 Tele\nsmn SL ) - {8) 10 3- E- (6} 10 9" !5
NETHERLANDS" Ipar Onda SAU T T e s E B8 27 E
Couverts FeserverenBY ~  ~ e87  F 897 @ F F ta Sexta Eddanal Musuéa] sw @ 208 E oo
RTL Nederiand BY o ®7  F 987 F  Moverecord Gine SAU [ 7 S VN N & R -
RTL Nederland HaldingBY %97  F %7 F Musca Aperto SAU (& 205 £t @ 217 E
FTL Nsderland InteractigfBv 887  F = 997  F Onda Cera SAU @ 205 E B =217 E
RTL Nederiand Ventures 1 BV e 8T F_ e _997_ . _F Orga;tzam;na; Da;—or;w—as—y_ o n e - T
HTL Nederland Vertures 3 BV 7 F 997 F Culturaies Umpubl‘c SA {6} 10.5 E (8} 111 £
ATL Nedettand Ventures BY F Pubfisess Imcatrvas Publicitanias SAU @ 205 € I o
Wentink Events BY - T £ Uniprex SAU . 6 20.5 E (-l.i) 27 E
- -t Linprex Telewsian Dngltal Terrestre ) i ’ )
de Andatmia SLU ® 152 E & 161 €
HOMANIA Uniprex Television SLU T e ms f ® 27 €
Cable Channels SA - w1 P BT F UnprexVeencaTeovsonSLU_ (B 205 E ® =17 E
Urepubic SA T 7 @ s E ® 111 E
Videoreport Cananas SA - (1—4) - NG- (“G) - Sg b E
VNows Agencia deNobesSLU  (4) - NC (6 217 €
SWITZERLANG"
Gofdbach Media (Switzerand) AG B Y 2y €
usar
SND USA Inc @ 428 Fo@
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NOTES T0 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS

EROUP*S CONSOLI GROUP'S CONSOLK- GROUP'S CONSQU- GROUP S CONSOLI
OWNER-  DATED OWNER-  DATED OWNER-  DATED QWNER-  DATED
SHIP 2012 METHOO SHIP 2011 METHOD SHIP 2012 METHOD SHIP 2011 METHDD
CONTENT WOTE () (INOTE (™ (1) CONTENT NOTE  ¢=)  (INOE () i
ANTIGUA" GERMANY"
Grundy lmematlonaj Operatmn.s L(d 000 F 1000 F Deutsche Synchron Filmgesetischaft mbH &
o - - - - - - Ca Karlhemz Ellunnemann Produktions KG (7) 50.8 F 508 F
Fremantl Gml 7 F
AUSTRALIA™ L} Ucnnslnq Gen-nany H . 9&7_“ _F_ L Es T
Grundy nght Enteﬂalnmeﬂt GmbH 100.0 F 1000 F
Forum 5 Pty Ltd 100.0 F 1000 F e A iy g
——= - - = - - - - - N - Grundy Light Entertainment/Whita
FremantlaMedia Austraba Huldmgs F’ty Lid (11] 1000 F (11 1000 F Batance GmbH GBR (14) - NC 508 [
FremantleMedia Australia Pty Ltd " 1oo.o F {1 1000 F Grundy UFA TV Produktions GmbH @ es7 F @ 897 F
Grundy Organization Pty Ltd @) 1000 F 7 1000 F Obyektw Fim GmoH T ua J N W wr  F
Radicat Media Pty Lid 1000 F Phoenl Film Kathenz Brunnemann. ) T T
TeTLYTm T T T ) GmbH & Ca_Produktions KG (7 508 F @ %08 F
BELGIUM® Phén Geschaﬂsfuhungs GmbH — _(TJ so8 F (ﬂ 50 8 _F
Fremantis Productions Belgium NV 1000 F 1000 F Radlcal Modia GmP“I-: R RO (17’) 10‘3 o._.. — F !.13,_._. .1992 - _.__F_
-t T - T oo s T e s o m F!TLerpUcensmgAsuaGmbH 897 F 987 F
BRAZIL" ATL Group Servacas GI"I'II_:IH" . } o 99 TW_ L li o _?97_ . _F
5 Gel GmbH P - NC
FremantiaMedia Brazil Producdo = rmany - “(3) “3. I [P
de Televisdo Ltda 100.0 F 1000 F Teamwaorx Tetewson & Flm GmbH 97 F 987 F
Trebitsch Produk‘hon Holding Gth 13 - NC {4} 987 F
CANADA" Tretxtsch Produkion Holding
GmbH & Co KG {13) - NC (4 997 £
FremantjaMedia Ganada Holdings In 100.0 F 1000 F — - e T - -
——— - - - - -~ - UFA~ Femsehprnctukuon GmbH 3 997 F {3 997 F
Ludka LLG 100.0 F 1000 F - e e R R .- -
e emem e e o e - - - - - UFA - Fimpraduktion GenbH @ 7 F (9 997 F
CHINA® UFA and Cummumcaﬂnn GmbH 3 997 F {3 997 F
UFA Clnarna GmbH 997 F 987 F
AdSocm!y Daye Advemsmg Ca Ltd E - e s e e e e m el
- UFA Clnema Vbdelh GmbH 97 F 97 F
Radlcal Medna Co. d F . mw e mm—e—— e
e - UFA Em:rtalnment Gth |7 F 3 97 F
CROATIA® UFA F'lm & ™ onduktlon GmbH @ 897 F @ 997 F
UFA Spoﬁs GmbH 997 F 987 £
Fremantls Produkeyad o o 100.0 F 1000 F -~ - - - - R
GREECE*
DENMARK"
Frernanue Producbons SA 100.0 F 1000 F
Blu ASS 100.0 F 1000 F - - - - - - -
- e e emen oo - - = PPusProduchunsSA (14 - NC {18 687 F
FINLAND*
HONG KONG*
Fremantle Fintand Oy 1000 F 1000 F
- - - e B - - Fremantle Productions Asia Lid 1000 F 1000 F
FRANCE*
HUNGARY*
1 2 3 Productions SAS
fformer 20450 Telavision SAS) 100-0 F 1000 F Magyar Grundy UFAKR. 87 F 987 F
Fremantle France SAS F
™I F'rasse Producuons 8AS F o
Fremantle India TV Productions Pyt Ltd 1000 F 1000 F
INDONESIA~
PT Durua Vlsna.ma 100 0 F 1000 F
TALY*
FremantieMedta Italia Spa 100.0 F 1004 F
JAPAN"
FremantleMadia Japan KK {14} - NC 1006 F
LUXEMBOURG™
Duchy Digital SA |7 F a7 F
FremantleMedia SA 1000 F 100 D F
MEXICO™
Grundy Productions SA de CV 1000 F 1000 F
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS

GROUMS CONSOL- GROUPS GONSOLK EROUP'S CORSOL- GROUP'S CONSOL-
OWNER-  DATED OWNER-  DATED OWNER-  OATED OWNER-  DATED
CONTENT NOTE sumta:}; Mm{(ﬁ e F-n-l-ll m?ﬂ GONTENT NOTE SHIPPZEE' MHH‘(]lul NOTE e (221") Mm?ﬁ
NETHERLANDS* UK
Benelux film Invcsimum.'. Bv 49.8 P 498 P Arie Producton Ltd {18y  100.0 F 1000 F
Blus Girle B o 1000 F woe | F Fremartte (UK) Produstions Lid (8 1000 F 1006 F
Four One Medla BY N - 1000 £ 1000 F FremantieMedia Lt T ue woe  F 100 F
fremantieMedia Operatons BY He 1000 F (lor 1000 F FramanﬂeMedla Group ua o "(131 10"0.6 FTT THwo | F
FremantieMedia Overseas Holdngs BV 100.0 Fo weo ¢ FremanboModia veseas Lld (1) 1000 P e T F
Grundy Endemol Produstions VOF 50.0 P mo0 P FremantieMedia Services Ltd "(Ts) 1uu n TF T tse | F
Grundy Intemational Holdings () BV—- 77 Tawo . F T Tiwee | F R'T-'_L—G:oup Sup;;;n-é;w};IG- T ot F iwo  F
RIL Nededand FimVenwure BV s87  F @7  F Select TV Ltd ST T oo F “i00 F
ATL Nededand Producties 89 w7 F w7 F Tekback (UK) ProductiensUtd  100.0 £ 1000 F
-0 T ) oo Talkback Productons Ltd 12 1000 F a4 1m0 F
POLAND® Talkback Thames Ltd 2 1000 F {12 1000 F
FremantieMedsa Polska $0.Zo @ 1000 F 1000 F Thames Telewman Holdngs Ltd (58 1000 F 1000 F
- ) o Tha.ms Telewsonltd B 1o  F 100 F
PORTUGAL” T
FremantieMedia Portugal SA 1000 £ 1000 F UsA
B T Tt T . All Amencan Music Group 9 wod F {9 to0o F
RUSSIAN FELERATION* Alled Gommmamcations Ing R 100.0 F ~ moo: F
Fremantls Productions LLG 100 0 F 1000 F Amygdala LLC . _ (1 1000 F (6 wee  F
T Tt T o TTtooTE T Fremartia Gaodson Inc @ 1600 F (9 1000 F
SINGAPORE" Fra'na.nﬂe F'roduchms inc )] 100.0— . l; {9) . :100 0- F-
Fremantte Productians Asia Pte Ltd 100.0 F 1000 F Fremantle Productors Latin Amercane 100 F 100 F
UFA Sports As PteLid 751 F 751 F Fremantle p’““‘{i‘;"“}ﬂ“ﬂ“l"‘fﬂ - ® w0  F @ w00 _ F
) - . Frernanlle Praductions North Arnenca Ing 9 1IJO.D £ @ 100 F
SLOVAKIA® FremanﬂaMedla Lu-:e;s;'ng Inc _ : @ 100.(1 . F:u (8) - lﬁﬂq - F—Z
UFA Siovala 5.ro 658 F 658 F F“’ma"““""ed'a Nartn Amenca Ing . @ o FoB 100 F
S Good Games Live Inc. @  100.0 F (@ 1000 F
SPAIN® LBS Commurmcatans tnc {9} 100.0 F: @ 100 CE : F_
Fremantle de Espana SL ® 850 F ® 850 F Leray & Morton Productions u_c .o 1°°'° L we P
La Cumpatencia Producclonus SA:‘ ) N 1“001:!“ T T TIEOHGH T F Max l:'_c_)st LI:C_ - N —— = he 1nE °~ - F f E) 100 D
- - R Meagia Fia LLG 7 o0 F an’ 100 0
SWEBEN® r\;l_us_lc é;?ni lerar‘!:-!nin :_:Tm: - : :“ -: . (E) ) 12!0 IJ: ) F_ B {9) 1000_ _F
Newile LLG 6 1000 F (16 1000 F
Fremantistodia Svenge AB o0 g we LF omercilc T we w06 F 48 too  F
. OJSeMCELLC— ) i {16) 100.1; I-: ('IE) 1006 o I=~
SWITZERLAND Onginal Fremants LLE 089 100.0 F ue 1000 F
Grundy Sctwaiz AG - s 85'2 - "F- - --sso-—-—— F OﬂgmalprodmnsLLC ) (16) 100.(;" F (16) IDUC; o "1-:
Outpost DigHal LLC “un oo F un_ 1006 TR
JURKEY” Radical Media LLC T “un Twee | F um oo F
FremantieMedia TV Fim Yapm (4~ NG 1000 O F Rog Grundy Productions Holdngs lne (8 1000 “F @ eoa” T F
Sludm Pmductlcn Semcea Inc - -(;)“ ;W.l; o F- (5—) 1060 - ---;.
The Baywatch F'rodumiona Cmnpavw ) CQ)- “_100.6 ) I; @ ]60 0- o “F_
Thumbdance LLC ] T om0 F otwo F
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BROADCASTING RADIO

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BELGIUM*

Cabelfra SA

Contact Vlaanderan NV
Inadr SA

{P Plunmédia SA

Joker FM SA

Nuw Cnntam S-A i T h
Radta Belglurn Hc:ldmg SA

FRANCE"

Ediradio SA

D (lnfon'nahon at Drtfv.lsn;!; S&II ) i
IP Franna SA T o
IP Reglnns SA oo oTTTmmm o
FITL Fun Devalcppumsnt Sari

ATL Net SAS
SCP Sar
SERC SA
Sodara SA

GERMANY*

Antenne Niedersachsen GmbH & Co KG

AVE Gesellschaft
#ir Harfunkbetelgungen GmbH

AVE | Vermag: ftungsg aft
mbH & Co KG

AVE I Vermdgensvwaltungsgasdlschaﬂ
mbH & Ca KG

AVE V Vermog altur lschaft
mbH

AVE W1 Vennngensverwammgsgmﬂschaﬂ
miH & Co KG

BCS Broadcast Sachsan GmbH & Co. KG
Funkhaus Halls Gran & Cn KG T
HITRADIO RTL Sachsen GmbH

Madsack Hérfunk GmbH

Madiengeseiischaft Mitelstand
Nledarsachsan GmbH

Neve Spteeradio Hérlunkgmellschaft mbH
Radic Center Berln Gran

Radio Hamburg G.mbH & Co KG

RTL Fiacl:o Berfin Gran T
FITL Hadlu Dautscl'dand Gm-b_l-r -
RTL Radiovermarktung GrbH & Go KG

Pungtunk Bateihgungs- und
Betnehsgesellschaét Blauen mbk

UFA Radig-Programmgeselischaft
i Bayern mbH

LUXEMBQURS*

Luxradio Sad

NETHERLAKDS*

RTLFM BV

GROUPS CONSOU- GAOUP'S CONSOL-

OWNER-  DATED OWNER-  DATED)
OTHERS i S = B
AUSTRIA®
H'I'I.GmupAustriaGth 9.7 . F 9:07:__' F
BELGIUM"
Audiomedia Investmemts Bruxelles SA 100.0 . li . 1DD 0 I3
FRANCE"
IP Network SA %07 F %)
Soowémobibe By dAmnSA  C 7 F w7 F
GERMANY*
Aparee Deutschiand GmbH 4.8 F - NC
Aparso Holding GmbH o 748 FooT 0l The
Kos Beteligungs- ur:d ) T ) )
Verwaltungsgessilschaft mbH g7 F 897 F
RTL Group Central & Eastem Europe GmbH 987 "
AL, Group Deutschiand GmbH T Tse F w7 F
RTL Groun Vamﬂgmsv;wﬂm;lgs GmbH 1000 F 1000 F
UFA Frlm und Fernseh GmbH T nﬂﬁ'; N l; i 997 —F
LUXEMBOURG*
B &CE SA %7 F 907 F
CLT-UFA SA ST 287 F Tgar Tk
P Luxembowg Sai - 987 I T
P Network International 84 sex  F @7  F
Messmosa g 2T wne e - F
Madia prope"r;:;;s;.rl" TTTTTTT ooz " T F T Twr | F
FrrLGroupcsnwaEas:emEumpeSA - “ea7 F m7  F
HATL Group Germarvy SA 897 F- 99 i; F:

{***) Consohaated as a SpeaalH.vpose Vb'm:ia {SP‘«)

NETHERLANDS*

Bwenradar BV 097 F as7

RTL Group Behesr BY 1000 F 10008

Videastnp BV 997 F - NG

UK~

CLT= UFA UK Radso Ltd a7 F 987 F

CLT- UFA UK Telewvison Ltd a7 F 937 F
Country of ncorporation (13) Comnpany absorbed by & company

(1) M parent company
£ 1ul consoidaton
P proporionate consosdalion
E equity accounting
NC not consobdated
(2} Groupe M6 {*de facta” controf
{3} UFA Berlin Group
{4) Trabitsch Group
{5 M ATL Group
(8) Grupo Antena 2
(7) Phénox Group
{8) Fremantla Licensing Graup
{9) FrarnantieMecha North Amenca
(10 FremantteMedia Produchons
Nethertands Group
(11) Grundy Organisgtion ﬂ-loldngs) Group
(12} Takback Productions Grou,

of the Groug

{14} Company soki or Kquxdated

{15) Algha Med.a Group

{16} Ongral Productions

(17) Radical Media

{18 Company has elocted to make use of
the audit exemption in gccordance
with sachons 479 C of UK Companes
Act 2006 Other compames which
have glacted the examphon are not
reported in the st above (1939 Lid,
Framantla Group Pension Trustee Lid
and Screenpop Lid)

{ ™™ The Group's gwnersip is based on
the lotal number of shares after
daduction of treasury sheres held by
the cornpany as per 31 Dacember

RTL GROUP ANNUAL REPORT 2012 209




AUDITORS’ REPORT
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF RTL GROUP S.A.

REPORT ON THE GONSOLIDATED FENANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial staterments
of RTL Group S A. and its subsidianes (the “Group™) which compnse the
consolidated statement of financial postion as at 31 December 2012,
and the consolidated statements of comprehensive income, changes in
equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of signif-
icant accounting policies and other explanatory information as set out on
pages 144 to 209

BOARD OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Board of Diectors is respensible for the preparation and farr presen-
tation of these consolidated financial statements N accordance wath Inter-
national Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European
Union, and for such internal conirol as the Board of Directors determines
15 necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial staternents
that are freg from matenal misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error

RESPONSIBILITY OF THE “REVISEUR D’ENTREPRISES AGREE”

Qur responsibility 1s to express an opinion on these consoltdated finan-
cial staterments based on our audt We conducted our audit In accor-
dance with International Standards on Audiing as adopted for Luxern-
bourg by the “Commission de Survesliance du Secteur Financier” Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audtt to obtain reascnable assurance whether the consoli-
dated financial statements are free from materal misstatement

An audit nvolves performing procedures to obtan audit svidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial staterments
The procedures selected depend on the judgment of the “Rew-
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AUDITOR'S REPORT

seur d'antreprises agree” Including the assessment of the nsks of mats-
nal misstaterment of the consolidated financial statements, whether dus
fo fraud or emor In making those nsk assessmants, the "Réwviseur
d'entrepnses agree” considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparaton and far presentation of the consolidated financiaf statements
in order to design audsit procedures that are appropnate in the circum-
stances, but not for the pumpose of expressing an opinton on the effec-
tiveness of the entity’s internal control An audtt also includes evaluating
the approprateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estmates made by the Board of Directors, as well as eval-
uating the overall presentation of the conschdated financial statements

We believe that the audt evidence we have obtained 1s sufficient and ap-
propnate to provide a basis for our audit opimon

OPINION
In our opmion, the consolidated financial statements sat out on pages
144 to 209 give a true and farr view of the consohdated financial position
of the Group as of 31 December 2012, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidatea cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with internationat Financial Reporting Standards as adopt-
ed by the European Union

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REGUIREMENTS
The cansolidated Director’s report, including the cerporate governance
statament, which 1s the responsibility of the Board of Directors, 1s con-
sistent with the consolidated financial staterments and includes ths wfor-
mation required by the taw with respect to the Corporate Governance
Statement

Luxembeurg, 24 February 2013

PncewaterhouseCoapers, Société coopérative
Represented by
Pascal Rakovsky Marc Mmet
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ANNUAL REPORT 2012 211




RTL GROUP

With 53 television channels and 28 radio stations in ten
countnes, RTL Group s the leading European entertamment
network. The Luxembourg-based company has interests in TV
channels and radio statons in Germany, Franice, Belgium, the
Netherlands, Luxembourg, Span, Hungary, Croatia, and India
It ts one of the world's leading producers of telewision content,
such as talent and game shows, drama, daly soaps and
tetenovelas, ncluding Idofs, Got Talent, The X Factor, Good
Times —~ Bad Times and Family Feud

The roots of the company date back to 1924, when Radio
Luxembourg first went on ar Compagrie Luxembourgecise de
Radiodiffusion (CLR} was founded n 1931 As a European
pioneer, the comipany broadcast a unique programme in several
languages using the same frequency

212 ATL GROUP ANNUAL AEPORT 2012

RTL Group #tself was created in spring 2000 following the
merger of Luxembourg-based CLT-UFA and the British content
production company Pearson TV, owned by UK maedia group
Pearson PLC CLT-UFA tself was created in 1997 when the
shareholders of UFA {Bertelsmann) and the histonc Compagnie
Luxembourgeoise de Telédifusion - CLT {Audicfina) merged
their TV, radio and TV produchion busingsses

Bertelsmann has been the majonty shareholder of RTL Group
since July 2007 The shares of RTL Group are publicly traded
on the Brussels and Luxembourg stock exchanges




TELEVISION

Each day, millons of viewers all over Europe watch RTL Group's
television channefs, which include the famites of charnels
clusterad around the flagships RTL Telewision iIn Germany, M6 in
France, RTL 4 1n the Netherlands and RTL-TVI in Belgum Tha
company also has broadcastng operations i Hungary
{RTL Klub, RTL ll plus six cable channels), Croata (RTL Televizya,
RTL 2} and has interests in Grupo Antena 3 sn Span and National
Media Group In Russia in November 2012, RTL Group launched
its first TV channel outside of Europe, Big RTL Thrll in India

CONTENT

RTL Group’s content production arm, FremantleMedia, 1s one of
the largest internattonal producers outside the US Each year it
produces over 9,100 hours of award-winning pnme tme pro-
gramming across 62 countnes RTL Group s also one of the
world’s leading tndependent distnbutors outside the US, seling
nghts to more than 20,000 hours of programming w1 150 coun-
tnes worldwide

RADIC
RTL Group's racho stations reach milhlons of listeners each day
The company’s flagship radio station is RTL i France, and ¢
also owns or,has Interests in stafions in Germany (104 6 RTL,
Antenne Bayern), Belgum {Bel RTL, Radio Contact), Span
{Onda Cero, Furopa FM) and Luxembourg {RTL Radio
Letzebuerg, Eldoradio}

Company overview:
Best-in-class European entertainment company

dom=2 W VeX GI

-~ R

m
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In 1924, & sole radio transmrtter broadcast from Luxembourg Today, RTL Group has
a pertfolio of 53 TV channels in ten countries RTL Group's worldwide preduct:on

arm —which adapted the company name FremantieMedia n 2001 — grew 1ts revenues
by 128 per centto €1 7 bilfion since its inception

Strong #1 or #2 1n attractive key countnes

o
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CONTENT

Global leader in TV entertainment production,
exploitation and distnbution

DIGITAL

At the forefront of the digital and non-inear fransition

RTL’

GROUP

G:¢

with an integrated approach

Highly expenenced international management team

RESULTS

Strang track record of delivening financial results
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FIVE-YEAR SUMMARY

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
€m €m €m €m &€m
Revenue 5,898 5,765 5,532 5,156 5774
- of which net advertising sales 3,397 3,458 3,362 3,062 3,656
Other operating Income 45 40 51 43 37
Consumption of current programme nghts {2,015} (1,791) (1,718) (1,673} (2,095)
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment (187) (178) (192) (179) {161)
Other operating expenses (2,790} (2,748) (2,591) (2,577) (2,685)
Impaimment of goodwill and farr value adjustments
and amortisation of far value adjustments
on acquisitions of subsidiaries and joint ventures (10) {13) (10} (88) (395)
Gain/{loss) from szle of subsidianes, other investments and
re-measursment to farr value of pre-existing interest In acquiree )] 107 rj] - ()]
Profit from operating activities 1,032 1,184 1,072 682 466
Share of results of associates {53) 38 40 25 34
Earnings before nterest and taxes {“EBIT”} 979 1,222 1,112 707 500
Net interest income/{expense) {10) (2 12 4 21
Financial resufts other than interest ) @27} 4 23 7
Profit before taxes 968 1,193 1,128 734 528
Income tax expense (277) (302} (263) (234) (232
Profit for the year from continuing operations 691 891 BG5S 500 296
Loss from discontinued operations (1) (a6} {135) (202) -
Profit for the year 690 795 730 293 296
Attributable to
RTL Group shareholders 597 698 611 205 194
Non-controling interests 93 99 119 93 102
Profit for the year 6980 795 730 298 296
EBITA 1,078 1,134 1,132 7986 916
Amortisation and impairment of fair value adjustments
on acquisitions of subsidianes and Joint ventures (10} (13) (10) (88) (395)
Impasrment of investments in associates (B2) (6) 3) (1) (12}
Re-measurement of earn-out arrangements 2 - - - -
Gamn/{loss) from sale of subsidiaries, other investments and
re-measurement to fair value of pre-existing mterest in acquiree (9) 107 N - (9}
Earmings before interest and taxes (“EBITY) 979 1,222 1,112 707 500
Basic earmings per share (in €) 388 453 398 133 126
Ordinary dvidend per shara (in €) 510" 510 500 350 140
Extraordinary dividend per share {in €} 5 40™ - - - 210
Dividends pard (€ million) 1,623 789 773 541 541
Average number of full-time equivalent employees 9,580 9,621 9,286 9,608 9,191
Net assets (€million) 4,858 5,093 5,597 5,530 5,871
Net cash {€million) 1,051 1,238 1,456 789 876

*Ra-presantad following the application of IFRS 5 to Alpha Media Group (discontinued operations)
operations)

"Re-presented folowing the applicaon of IFRS 5 lo Five (dscontinved
Intanm danidend




